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General

On July 10, 2007 (the “Arrangement Date”), Lorus Therapeutics Inc. completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization with, among others,
4325231 Canada Inc. (now Global Summit Real Estate Inc.), formerly Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (“Old Lorus”), 6707157 Canada Inc. and Pinnacle International Lands, Inc. (the
“Arrangement”). As a result of the plan of arrangement and reorganization, among other things, each common share of Old Lorus was exchanged for one of our common shares
(“Shares”) and the assets (excluding certain future tax assets and related valuation allowance) and liabilities of Old Lorus (including all of the shares of its subsidiaries) were
transferred, directly or indirectly, to our corporation and/or our subsidiaries. We continued the business of Old Lorus after the Arrangement Date with the same officers and
employees and continued to be governed by the same directors as Old Lorus prior to the Arrangement Date. In this Annual Report on Form 20-F, all references to “Lorus” the

“Corporation”, the “Company”, “we”, “our”, “us” and similar expressions, unless otherwise stated, are references to Old Lorus prior to the Arrangement Date and us after the
Arrangement Date. References to this “Form 20-F” and this “Annual Report” mean references to this Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended May 31, 2009.

We use the Canadian dollar as our reporting currency. All references in this Annual Report to “dollars” or “$” are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise
indicated. See also “Item 3. Key Information” for more detailed currency and conversion information. Our consolidated financial statements, which form part of the Annual
Report, are presented in Canadian dollars and are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada (“Canadian GAAP”) which differ in certain
respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). The differences between Canadian GAAP and U.S. GAAP, as they relate to our
business, are explained in the Supplementary Information included with the Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.

Special note regarding forward-looking statements in this Annual Report

This Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of securities laws. Such statements include, but are not limited to, statements relating to:

. our ability to obtain the substantial capital required to fund research and operations;

. our plans to obtain partners to assist in the further development of our product candidates;

. our expectations with respect to existing and future corporate alliances and licensing transactions with third parties, and the receipt and timing of any
payments to be made by us or to us in respect of such arrangements;

. our expectations regarding future financings;

. our plans to conduct clinical trials;

. our expectations regarding the progress and the successful and timely completion of the various stages of our drug discovery, pre-clinical and clinical studies
and the regulatory approval process;

. the Company’s plans, objectives, expectations and intentions; and

. other statements including words such as “anticipate”, “contemplate”, “continue”, “believe”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”, “intend”, “will”, “should”,

‘may”, and other similar expressions.

Such statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties and are necessarily based upon a number of estimates and
assumptions that, while considered reasonable by us are inherently subject to significant business, economic, competitive, political and social uncertainties and contingencies.
Many factors could cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements that may be expressed
or implied by such forward-looking statements, including, among others:

. our ability to continue to operate as a going concern;

. our ability to obtain the substantial capital required to fund research and operations;

. our lack of product revenues and history of operating losses;

. our early stage of development, particularly the inherent risks and uncertainties associated with (i) developing new drug candidates generally, (ii)

demonstrating the safety and efficacy of these drug candidates in clinical studies in humans, and (iii) obtaining regulatory approval to commercialize these
drug candidates;




. the progress of our clinical trials;

. our liability associated with the indemnification of Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees

. our ability to find and enter into agreements with potential partners;

. our drug candidates require time-consuming and costly preclinical and clinical testing and regulatory approvals before commercialization;

. clinical studies and regulatory approvals of our drug candidates are subject to delays, and may not be completed or granted on expected timetables, if at all,
and such delays may increase our costs and could delay our ability to generate revenue;

. the regulatory approval process;

. our ability to attract and retain key personnel;

. our ability to obtain patent protection and protect our intellectual property rights;

. our ability to protect our intellectual property rights and to not infringe on the intellectual property rights of others;

. our ability to comply with applicable governmental regulations and standards;

. development or commercialization of similar products by our competitors, many of which are more established and have greater financial resources than we
do;

. commercialization limitations imposed by intellectual property rights owned or controlled by third parties;

. our business is subject to potential product liability and other claims;

. our ability to maintain adequate insurance at acceptable costs;

. further equity financing may substantially dilute the interests of our shareholders;

. changing market conditions; and

. other risks detailed from time-to-time in our ongoing quarterly filings, annual information forms, annual reports and annual filings with Canadian securities

regulators and the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, and those which are discussed under the heading “Risk Factors”.

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should the assumptions set out in the section entitled “Risk Factors” underlying those forward-looking
statements prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described herein. These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this management,
discussion and analysis or, in the case of documents incorporated by reference herein, as of the date of such documents, and we do not intend, and do not assume any obligation,
to update these forward-looking statements, except as required by law. We cannot assure you that such statements will prove to be accurate as actual results and future events
could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Investors are cautioned that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
accordingly investors are cautioned not to put undue reliance on forward-looking statements due to the inherent uncertainty therein.




PART1

Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advisors
Not applicable.

Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable

Not applicable.

Item 3. Key Information

A. Selected Financial Data

The following tables present our selected consolidated financial data. You should read these tables in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes included in Item 18 of this Annual Report and the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in
Item 5 of this Annual Report.

The financial data as at May 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and for the years ended May 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 have been derived from, and are
qualified in their entirety by reference to, our audited consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP and reconciled to U.S.

GAAP in the Supplementary Information included with the Financial Statements included in this Annual Report.

The following table presents a summary of our consolidated statement of operations derived from our audited financial statements for the years ended May 31, 2009,
2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Consolidated statements of operations data
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended May 31,

20091 20081 20071 20061 20051
In accordance with Canadian GAAP
Revenue $ 184 §$ 43 % 107 $ 26 $ 6
Research and development @) $ 3,757 $ 6,620 $ 3,505 $ 10,237  $ 14,394
General and administrative (@ $ 2958 § 3,715  §$ 3,727 $ 4334 § 5,348
Net loss $ 8860 § 6,334 $ 9,638 $ 17,909 $ 22,062
Basic and diluted loss per share $ 0.04 $ 003 $ 0.05 § 010 $ 0.13
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 247,084 215,084 204,860 173,523 172,112
In accordance with U.S. GAAP?
Net loss $ 7,735 § 5526 % 9,150 $ 16,388  $ 20,298
Basic and diluted loss per share $ 003 $ 003 $ 005 $ 009 $ 0.12

(a) Amounts in 2008 and 2007 have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation adopted in 2009




The following table presents a summary of our consolidated balance sheet as at May 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Consolidated balance sheet data

(In Thousands) As at May 31,

20091 20081 20071 20061 20051
In accordance with Canadian GAAP
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5374 $ 2,652 $ 1,405 $ 2,692 $ 2,776
Marketable securities and other investments $ 490 § 6,784  $ 10,993 § 5,627 $ 18,683
Total assets $ 7527 $ 11,607 $ 15475 $ 11,461 § 27,566
Total debt $ 15,878 $ 15459  $ 14,714  § 14,017  § 14,300
Total shareholders’ deficit $ 8351) $ (3,852) $ 761 $ 2,556) $ 13,266
Number of common shares outstanding 256,808 217,649 212,266 174,694 172,541
Dividends paid on common shares - - - - -
In accordance with U.S. GAAP2
Total assets $ 7593 § 11,911 $ 15,579  § 11,625  § 27,838
Total debt $ 16,322 § 17,314  $ 17,232 $ 17,277  $ 18,040
Total shareholders’ deficit $ 8,729) § (5,403) $ (1,653) $ (5,652) $ 9,798

Footnotes:
(1) On the Arrangement Date, the Company completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization with Old Lorus, 6707157 Canada Inc. and Pinnacle International

Lands Inc. As a result of the plan of arrangement and reorganization, among other things, each Share of Old Lorus was exchanged for one Share of the Company and the assets

@

(b)

(excluding certain future tax assets and related valuation allowance) and liabilities of Old Lorus were transferred to the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

The Company

continued the business of Old Lorus after the Arrangement Date with the same officers and employees and continued to be governed by the same Board of Directors as Old
Lorus prior to the Arrangement Date. Therefore, the Company’s operations have been accounted for on a continuity of interest basis and accordingly, the consolidated financial

statement information above reflect that of the Company as if it had always carried on the business formerly carried on by Old Lorus.
Changes in accounting polices:

Accounting changes:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the Accounting Standards Board's ("AcSB") replacement of Section 1506, Accounting Changes. The new standard allows for
voluntary changes in accounting policy only when they result in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information; requires changes in accounting
policy to be applied retrospectively unless doing so is impracticable; requires prior period errors to be corrected retrospectively; and calls for enhanced disclosures about the
effects of changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors on the financial statements. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the Company's

consolidated financial statements during the year ended May 31, 2009.

Capital disclosures:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the new recommendations of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA") Handbook Section 1535, Capital
Disclosures ("Section 1535"). Section 1535 establishes standards for disclosing information about an entity's capital and how it is managed. It requires the disclosure of
information about: (i) an entity's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; compliace with any capital requirements; and if it has not complied, the
consequences of such non-compliance. The Company has included disclosures recommended by Section 1535 in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of the

Company as set out in Item 18




(c) Financial instruments:
Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the new recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures ("Section 3862"), and
Handbook Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation ("Section 3863"). Section 3862 requires entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that
enable users to evaluate the significance of financial instruments on the entity's financial position and its performance and the nature and extent of risks arising from
financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the period and at the balance sheet date, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 establishes
standards for presentation of financial instruments and non-financial derivatives. It deals with the classification of financial instruments, from the perspective of the issuer,
between liabilities and equities, the classification of related interest, dividends, losses and gains, and circumstances in which financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset. The adoption of these standards did not have any impact on the classification and valuation of the Company's financial instruments. The Company has included
disclosures recommended by these new Handbook sections in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company as set out in Item 18.

(d) General standards of financial statement presentation:
In May 2007, the AcSB amended CICA Handbook Section 1400, General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation, to change the guidance related to management's
responsibility to assess the ability of the entity to continue as a going concern.

The main features of the changes are as follows:
(i) management is required to make an assessment of an entity's ability to continue as a going concern;

(ii) in making its assessment, management takes into account all available information about the future, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from
the balance sheet date;

(iii) financial statements must be prepared on a going concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the entity, to cease trading or cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so;

(iv) disclosure is required of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the entity's ability to continue as a going concern;
and

(v) when financial statements are not prepared on a going concern basis, that fact should be disclosed, together with the basis on which the financial statements are
prepared and the reason the entity is not regarded as a going concern.

The effective date of these amendments is for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The new disclosure
requirements pertaining to this section are contained in note 1(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

(2) The significant differences between the line items under Canadian GAAP and those as determined under U.S. GAAP arise primarily from:
Fiscal 2005 to 2009

The following table reconciles the loss per Canadian GAAP to loss per U.S. GAAP for years ended May 31, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009:




(In Thousands, except per Share data)

Years ended May 31,

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Loss per Canadian GAAP $ (8,860) $ (6334) $ 9,638) $ (17,909) (20,062)
Accretion of convertible debentures (i) 1,222 903 741 480 329
Amortization of debt issue costs (i) (48) (40) (59) (108) (40)
Stock compensation expense (ii) 39 47) (194) 1,149 1,475
Short-term investments (iii) (10) (7) - - -
Loss per U.S. GAAP (7,735) (5.526) (9,150) (16,388) (20,298)
Other comprehensive loss (iii) 10 (20) - - -
Loss and comprehensive loss per U.S. GAAP (7,725) (5,546) (9,150) (16,388) (20,298)
Basic and diluted loss per Share per U.S. GAAP $ (0.03) $ (0.03) $ (0.05) § (0.09) (0.12)

Under U.S. GAAP, the number of weighted average common shares outstanding for basic and diluted loss per share is the same as under Canadian GAAP.

(i) Convertible debentures

Under Canadian GAAP, the conversion option embedded in the convertible debentures is presented separately as a component of shareholders’ equity. Under U.S. GAAP, the
embedded conversion option is not subject to bifurcation and is thus presented as a liability along with the balance of the convertible debentures. Measurement differences from
the accretion of the value attributed to the conversion option on the convertible debentures and amortization of debt issue costs are further explained in the supplementary
information entitled “Reconciliation of Canadian and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”.

(ii) Stock options

For fiscal 2006, the Company followed the fair value based method of recording stock compensation expense under Canadian GAAP, and an intrinsic value method of recording
stock compensation expense under U.S. GAAP. This is further explained in the supplementary information entitled “Reconciliation of Canadian and United States Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles” .

Effective June 1, 2006 the Company adopted the fair value-based method of accounting for stock options granted to employees and directors as required by FASB Statement
No. 123R in accordance with the modified prospective method. Accordingly the company has applied the fair value-based method to all employee stock options granted after
June 1, 2006. Additionally, compensation costs for awards granted in prior periods for which the requisite service period has not been rendered as of June 1, 2006 will be
recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and deficit as the requisite service is rendered.

During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded stock compensation expense of $503 thousand (2006 - $1.2 million) in accordance with Canadian GAAP in the consolidated
statement of operations, representing the amortization applicable to the current year at the estimated fair value of options granted since June 1, 2002, and an offsetting
adjustment to stock options of $503 thousand in the consolidated balance sheets. Under U.S. GAAP, the Company recognized $697 thousand in expense during the same period
as a result of adopting SFAS 123R.

The primary reason for the difference between US GAAP and Canadian GAAP relating to fiscal years 2008 and 2009 is due to estimation of forfeitures in the determination of
the stock-based compensation expense under US GAAP and accounting for forfeitures as they occur under Canadian GAAP.

(iii) Financial instruments

Effective June 1, 2007, the Company adopted the recommendations of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' ("CICA") Handbook Section 3855, Financial
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement ("'Section 3855"), retroactively without restatement of prior periods. This section provides standards for recognition, measurement,
disclosure and presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives.




As part of the adoption of the new standards on June 1, 2007, the Company designated certain short term investments consisting of corporate instruments as “held-for-trading”.
This change in accounting policy for Canadian GAAP resulted in a decrease in the carrying amount of these investments amounting to $27 thousand and an increase in the fiscal
2008 opening deficit accumulated during the development stage of $27 thousand. Further, the Company recognized a net unrealized gain in the consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended May 31, 2008 of $7 thousand.

Under U.S. GAAP, the Company previously accounted for these investments as “held-to-maturity” in accordance with SFAS 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities (“SFAS 115”). Because the Company did not have the ability or intent to hold these investments until their stated maturity date, the Company made a
reassessment of the appropriateness of the previous classification and reallocated these investments as “available-for-sale” as of May 31, 2008, in accordance with SFAS 115.
Consequently, an unrealized holding gain in the amount of $10 thousand for the year ended May 31, 2009 (a loss of $20 thousand for the year ended May 31, 2008) was
recorded in other comprehensive income.

We publish our consolidated financial statements in Canadian (“CDN”) dollars. In this Annual report, except where otherwise indicated, all amounts are stated in CDN dollars.

The following table sets out the exchange rates of CDN$ for 1 US$ for the following periods:

Period Average Close High Low
October, 2009 1.0541 1.0845 1.0259
September, 2009 1.0818 1.1048 1.0649
August, 2009 1.0889 1.1072 1.0701
July, 2009 1.1222 1.1655 1.0790
June, 2009 1.1265 1.1625 1.0827
May, 2009 1.1500 1.1859 1.0917
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2009 1.1567 1.2991 1.0012
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2008 1.0140 1.0750 0.9170
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2007 1.1366 1.1855 1.0696
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2006 1.1701 1.2460 1.0948
Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2005 1.2551 1.3780 1.1746

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.

D. Risk Factors

Before making an investment decision with respect to our Shares, you should carefully consider the following risk factors, in addition to the other information included or
incorporated by reference in this Annual Report. Additional risks not currently known by us or that we consider immaterial at the present time may also impair our business,
financial condition, prospects or results of operations. If any of the following risks occur, our business, financial condition, prospects or results of operations would likely be
affected. In that case, the trading price of our Shares could decline and you may lose all or part of the money you paid to buy our Shares. The risks set out below are not the only
we currently face; other risks may arise in the future.




RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
Going concern.

Management has forecasted that the Company’s current level of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments after the extinguishment of the secured convertible
debentures will not be sufficient to execute its current planned expenditures for the next twelve months without further investment. On October 6, 2009, the Company secured a
six-month, $1.0 million, unsecured loan from a member of its Board of Directors and on November 27, 2009 the company completed a private placement equity financing in the
amount of $2.5 million. This amount includes the funds originally received by way of loan on October 6, 2009 which was concurrently repaid and used to purchase Units as part of
the private placement (See “Subsequent events”). Management believes that with the additional funds received in October and November 2009, it has sufficient funding to
continue to execute its planned expenditures without interruption for the next six to eight months. The Company continues to pursue additional funding and partnership
opportunities to execute its planned expenditures in the future. However, there can be no assurance that the capital will be available as necessary to meet these continuing
expenditures, or if the capital is available, that it will be on terms acceptable to the Company. The issuance of Shares by the Company could result in significant dilution in the
equity interest of existing shareholders. The Company is also considering alternatives to delay its research program until financing is available, amongst other cost savings
measures. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain sufficient financing to meet future operational needs. As a result, there is a significant doubt as to
whether the Company will be able to continue as a going concern and realize its assets and pay its liabilities as they fall due.

We need to raise additional capital.

We need to raise additional capital. To obtain the necessary capital, we must rely on some or all of the following: grants and tax credits, additional share issues and
collaboration agreements or corporate partnerships to provide full or partial funding for our activities. We cannot assure you that additional funding will be available on terms that
are acceptable to us or in amounts that will enable us to carry out our business plan.

If we cannot obtain the necessary capital, we will have to:
*  engage in equity financings that would result in significant dilution to existing investors;
*  delay or reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our development programs;

*  obtain funds through arrangements with collaborators or others that may require us to relinquish rights to technologies, product candidates or products that we
would otherwise seek to develop or commercialize ourselves; or license rights to technologies, product candidates or products on terms that are less favourable to
us than might otherwise be available;

*  considerably reduce operations; or

*  cease our operations.

We have a history of operating losses. We expect to incur net losses and we may never achieve or maintain profitability.

We have not been profitable since our inception in 1986. Under Canadian GAAP, we reported net losses of $8.9 million, $6.3 million and $9.6 million for the years ended
May 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively and as of May 31, 2009, we had an accumulated deficit of $189.4 million.

To date we have only generated nominal revenues from the sale of Virulizin® in Mexico and revenues associated with the license agreement with Zor Pharmaceuticals,
LLC (“Zor Agreement”). We stopped selling Virulizin® in Mexico in July 2005 and assigned the rights under the Zor Agreement to The Erin Mills Investment Corporation
(“TEMIC”) as part of the consideration for the repurchase of the secured convertible debentures in June 2009. We have not generated any other revenue from product sales to date
and it is possible that we will never have sufficient product sales revenue to achieve profitability. We expect to continue to incur losses for at least the next several years as we or
our collaborators and licensees pursue clinical trials and research and development efforts. To become profitable, we, either alone or with our collaborators and licensees, must
successfully develop, manufacture and market our current product candidate, LOR-2040, as well as continue to identify, develop, manufacture and market new product candidates.
It is possible that we will never have significant product sales revenue or receive significant royalties on our licensed product candidates. If funding is insufficient at any time in the
future, we may not be able to develop or commercialize our products, take advantage of business opportunities or respond to competitive pressures.




We are an early stage development company.

We are at an early stage of development. Significant additional investment will be necessary to complete the development of any of our products. Pre-clinical and clinical
trial work must be completed before our products could be ready for use within the market that we have identified. We may fail to develop any products, to obtain regulatory
approvals, to enter clinical trials or to commercialize any products. We do not know whether any of our potential product development efforts will prove to be effective, meet
applicable regulatory standards, obtain the requisite regulatory approvals, be capable of being manufactured at a reasonable cost or be accepted in the marketplace.

The product candidates we are currently developing are not expected to be commercially viable for several years and we may encounter unforeseen difficulties or delays
in commercializing our product candidates. In addition, our products may cause undesirable side effects.

Our product candidates require significant funding to reach regulatory approval assuming positive clinical results. Such funding will be very difficult, or impossible to
raise in the public markets. If such partnerships are not attainable, the development of these product candidates maybe significantly delayed or stopped altogether. The
announcement of such delay or discontinuation of development may have a negative impact on our share price.

The Company has indemnified Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees in respect of the Arrangement.

Under the Arrangement, we have agreed to indemnify Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees from and against all damages, losses, expenses (including fines
and penalties), other third party costs and legal expenses, to which any of them may be subject arising out of any matter occurring:

1) prior to, at or after the effective time of the Arrangement (“Effective Time”) and directly or indirectly relating to any of the assets of Old Lorus transferred to New
Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement (including losses for income, sales, excise and other taxes arising in connection with the transfer of any such asset) or conduct of
the business prior to the Effective Time;

(i1) prior to, at or after the Effective Time as a result of any and all interests, rights, liabilities and other matters relating to the assets transferred by Old Lorus to New
Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement; and

(iii) prior to or at the Effective Time and directly or indirectly relating to, with certain exceptions, any of the activities of Old Lorus or the Arrangement.
This indemnification could result in significant liability to us.
We may be unable to obtain partnerships for one or more of our product candidates which could curtail future development and negatively impact our share price.

Our strategy for the research, development and commercialization of our products requires entering into various arrangements with corporate collaborators, licensers,
licensees and others, and our commercial success is dependent upon these outside parties performing their respective contractual responsibilities. The amount and timing of
resources that such third parties will devote to these activities may not be within our control. We cannot assure you that such parties will perform their obligations as expected. We
also cannot assure you that our collaborators will devote adequate resources to our programs. In addition, we could become involved in disputes with our collaborators, which
could result in a delay or termination of the related development programs or result in litigation. We intend to seek additional collaborative arrangements to develop and
commercialize some of our products. We may not be able to negotiate collaborative arrangements on favourable terms, or at all, in the future, or that our current or future
collaborative arrangements will be successful.




If we cannot negotiate collaboration, licence or partnering agreements, we may never achieve profitability.

Clinical trials are long, expensive and uncertain processes and Health Canada or the FDA may ultimately not approve any of our product candidates. We may never
develop any commercial drugs or other products that generate revenues.

None of our product candidates has received regulatory approval for commercial use and sale in North America. We cannot market a pharmaceutical product in any
jurisdiction until it has completed thorough preclinical testing and clinical trials in addition to that jurisdiction’s extensive regulatory approval process. In general, significant
research and development and clinical studies are required to demonstrate the safety and effectiveness of our product candidates before we can submit any regulatory applications.

Clinical trials are long, expensive and uncertain processes. Clinical trials may not be commenced or completed on schedule, and Health Canada or the FDA or any other
regulatory body may not ultimately approve our product candidates for commercial sale.

The clinical trials of any of our drug candidates could be unsuccessful, which would prevent us from advancing, commercializing or partnering the drug.

Even if the results of our preclinical studies or clinical trials are initially positive, it is possible that we will obtain different results in the later stages of drug development
or that results seen in clinical trials will not continue with longer term treatment. Positive results in early Phase I or Phase II clinical trials may not be repeated in larger Phase II or
Phase I1I clinical trials. For example, results of our Phase III clinical trial of Virulizind did not meet the primary endpoint of the study despite promising preclinical and early stage
clinical data. All of our potential drug candidates are prone to the risks of failure inherent in drug development.

Preparing, submitting and advancing applications for regulatory approval is complex, expensive and time intensive and entails significant uncertainty. A commitment of
substantial resources to conduct time-consuming research, preclinical studies and clinical trials will be required if we are to complete development of our products.

Clinical trials of our products require that we identify and enrol a large number of patients with the illness under investigation. We may not be able to enrol a sufficient
number of appropriate patients to complete our clinical trials in a timely manner particularly in smaller indications such as acute myeloid leukemia. If we experience difficulty in
enrolling a sufficient number of patients to conduct our clinical trials, we may need to delay or terminate ongoing clinical trials and will not accomplish objectives material to our
success that could affect the price of our Shares. Delays in planned patient enrolment or lower than anticipated event rates in our current clinical trials or future clinical trials may
result in increased costs, program delays, or both.

In addition, unacceptable toxicities or adverse side effects may occur at any time in the course of preclinical studies or human clinical trials or, if any product candidates
are successfully developed and approved for marketing, during commercial use of any approved products. The appearance of any such unacceptable toxicities or adverse side
effects could interrupt, limit, delay or abort the development of any of our product candidates or, if previously approved, necessitate their withdrawal from the market.
Furthermore, disease resistance or other unforeseen factors may limit the effectiveness of our potential products.

Our failure to develop safe, commercially viable drugs would substantially impair our ability to generate revenues and sustain our operations and would materially harm
our business and adversely affect our share price. We may never achieve profitability.

As a result of intense competition and technological change in the pharmaceutical industry, the marketplace may not accept our products or product candidates, and
we may not be able to compete successfully against other companies in our industry and achieve profitability.




Many of our competitors have:
*  drug products that have already been approved or are in development, and operate large, well-funded research and development programs in these fields;

*  substantially greater financial and management resources, stronger intellectual property positions and greater manufacturing, marketing and sales capabilities, areas
in which we have limited or no experience; and

« significantly greater experience than we do in undertaking preclinical testing and clinical trials of new or improved pharmaceutical products and obtaining required
regulatory approvals;

Consequently, our competitors may obtain Health Canada, FDA and other regulatory approvals for product candidates sooner and may be more successful in
manufacturing and marketing their products than we or our collaborators are.

Our competitor’s existing and future products, therapies and technological approaches will compete directly with the products we seek to develop. Current and prospective
competing products may provide greater therapeutic benefits for a specific problem or may offer easier delivery or comparable performance at a lower cost;

Any product candidate that we develop and that obtains regulatory approval must then compete for market acceptance and market share. Our product candidates may not
gain market acceptance among physicians, patients, healthcare payers and the medical community. Further, any products we develop may become obsolete before we recover any

expenses we incurred in connection with the development of these products.

As a result, we may never achieve profitability.

If we fail to attract and retain key employees, the develop t and commercialization of our products may be adversely affected.

We depend heavily on the principal members of our scientific and management staff. If we lose any of these persons, our ability to develop products and become
profitable could suffer. The risk of being unable to retain key personnel may be increased by the fact that we have not executed long-term employment contracts with our
employees, except for our senior executives. Our future success will also depend in large part on our ability to attract and retain other highly qualified scientific and management
personnel. We face competition for personnel from other companies, academic institutions, government entities and other organizations.

We may be unable to obtain patents to protect our technologies from other companies with competitive products, and patents of other companies could prevent us
from manufacturing, developing or marketing our products.

Patent protection:
The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies are uncertain and involve complex legal and factual questions.

The United States (U.S.) Patent and Trademark Office and many other patent offices in the world have not established a consistent policy regarding the breadth of claims
that they will allow in biotechnology patents.

Allowable patentable subject matter and the scope of patent protection obtainable may differ between jurisdictions. If a patent office allows broad claims, the number and
cost of patent interference proceedings in the U.S. or analogous proceedings in other jurisdictions and the risk of infringement litigation may increase. If it allows narrow claims,
the risk of infringement may decrease, but the value of our rights under our patents, licenses and patent applications may also decrease.

The scope of the claims in a patent application can be significantly modified during prosecution before the patent is issued. Consequently, we cannot know whether our
pending applications will result in the issuance of patents or, if any patents are issued, whether they will provide us with significant proprietary protection or will be circumvented,
invalidated or found to be unenforceable.




Until recently, patent applications in the U.S. were maintained in secrecy until the patents issued, and publication of discoveries in scientific or patent literature often lags
behind actual discoveries. Patent applications filed in the United States after November 2000 generally will be published 18 months after the filing date unless the applicant
certifies that the invention will not be the subject of a foreign patent application. In many other jurisdictions, such as Canada, patent applications are published 18 months from the
priority date. We cannot assure you that, even if published, we will be aware of all such literature. Accordingly, we cannot be certain that the named inventors of our products and
processes were the first to invent that product or process or that we were the first to pursue patent coverage for our inventions.

Enforcement of intellectual property rights:

Protection of the rights revealed in published patent applications can be complex, costly and uncertain. Our commercial success depends in part on our ability to maintain
and enforce our proprietary rights. If third parties engage in activities that infringe our proprietary rights, our management’s focus will be diverted and we may incur significant
costs in asserting our rights. We may not be successful in asserting our proprietary rights, which could result in our patents being held invalid or a court holding that the third party
is not infringing, either of which would harm our competitive position.

Others may design around our patented technology. We may have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, European
opposition proceedings, or other analogous proceedings in other parts of the world to determine priority of invention and the validity of patent rights granted or applied for, which
could result in substantial cost and delay, even if the eventual outcome is favourable to us. We cannot assure you that our pending patent applications, if issued, would be held
valid or enforceable.

Trademark protection:

In order to protect goodwill associated with our company and product names, we rely on trademark protection for our marks. For example, we have registered the
Virulizin® trademark with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. A third party may assert a claim that the Virulizin® mark is confusingly similar to its mark and such claims or
the failure to timely register the Virulizin® mark or objections by the FDA could force us to select a new name for Virulizin®, which could cause us to incur additional expense.

Trade secrets:

We also rely on trade secrets, know-how and confidentiality provisions in our agreements with our collaborators, employees and consultants to protect our intellectual
property. However, these and other parties may not comply with the terms of their agreements with us, and we might be unable to adequately enforce our rights against these
people or obtain adequate compensation for the damages caused by their unauthorized disclosure or use of our trade secrets or know how. Our trade secrets or those of our
collaborators may become known or may be independently discovered by others.

Our products and product candidates may infringe the intellectual property rights of others, which could increase our costs.

Our success also depends on avoiding infringement of the proprietary technologies of others. In particular, there may be certain issued patents and patent applications
claiming subject matter which we or our collaborators may be required to license in order to research, develop or commercialize at least some of our product candidates, including
Virulizin®, LOR-2040 and small molecules. In addition, third-parties may assert infringement or other intellectual property claims against us based on our patents or other
intellectual property rights. An adverse outcome in these proceedings could subject us to significant liabilities to third-parties, require disputed rights to be licensed from third-
parties or require us to cease or modify our use of the technology. If we are required to license such technology, we cannot assure you that a license under such patents and patent
applications will be available on acceptable terms or at all. Further, we may incur substantial costs defending ourselves in lawsuits against charges of patent infringement or other
unlawful use of another’s proprietary technology.

If product liability claims are brought against us or we are unable to obtain or maintain product liability insurance, we may incur substantial liabilities that could

reduce our financial resources.




The clinical testing and commercial use of pharmaceutical products involves significant exposure to product liability claims. We have obtained limited product liability
insurance coverage for our clinical trials on humans; however, our insurance coverage may be insufficient to protect us against all product liability damages. Further, liability
insurance coverage is becoming increasingly expensive and we might not be able to obtain or maintain product liability insurance in the future on acceptable terms or in sufficient
amounts to protect us against product liability damages. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, liability claims may result in decreased demand for a future product, injury to
reputation, withdrawal of clinical trial volunteers, loss of revenue, costs of litigation, distraction of management and substantial monetary awards to plaintiffs. Additionally, if we
are required to pay a product liability claim, we may not have sufficient financial resources to complete development or commercialization of any of our product candidates and
our business and results of operations will be adversely affected.

We have no manufacturing capabilities. We depend on third-parties, including a number of sole suppliers, for manufacturing and storage of our product
candidates used in our clinical trials. Product introductions may be delayed or suspended if the manufacture of our products is interrupted or discontinued.

We do not have manufacturing facilities to produce supplies of LOR-2040, small molecule or any of our other product candidates to support clinical trials or commercial
launch of these products, if they are approved. We are dependent on third parties for manufacturing and storage of our product candidates. If we are unable to contract for a
sufficient supply of our product candidates on acceptable terms, or if we encounter delays or difficulties in the manufacturing process or our relationships with our manufacturers,
we may not have sufficient product to conduct or complete our clinical trials or support preparations for the commercial launch of our product candidates, if approved.

Our operations involve hazardous materials and we must comply with environmental laws and regulations, which can he expensive and restrict how we do business.

Our research and development activities involve the controlled use of hazardous materials, radioactive compounds and other potentially dangerous chemicals and
biological agents. Although we believe our safety procedures for these materials comply with governmental standards, we cannot entirely eliminate the risk of accidental
contamination or injury from these materials. We currently have insurance, in amounts and on terms typical for companies in businesses that are similarly situated that could cover
all or a portion of a damage claim arising from our use of hazardous and other materials. However, if an accident or environmental discharge occurs, and we are held liable for any
resulting damages, the associated liability could exceed our insurance coverage and our financial resources.

Our interest income is subject to fluctuations of interest rates in our investment portfolio.

Our investments are held to maturity and have staggered maturities to minimize interest rate risk. We cannot assure you that interest income fluctuations will not have an
adverse impact on our financial condition. We maintain all our accounts in Canadian dollars, but a portion of our expenditures are in foreign currencies. We do not currently
engage in hedging our foreign currency requirements to reduce exchange rate risk.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON SHARES

Our share price has been and may continue to be volatile and an investment in our Shares could suffer a decline in value.

You should consider an investment in our Shares as risky and invest only if you can withstand a significant loss and wide fluctuations in the market value of your
investment. We receive only limited attention by securities analysts and frequently experience an imbalance between supply and demand for our Shares. The market price of our
Shares has been highly volatile and is likely to continue to be volatile. Factors affecting our Share price include but are not limited to:

* our financial position and doubt as to whether we will be able to continue as a going concern;

*  our ability to raise additional capital;




¢ the progress of our and our collaborators’ clinical trials, including our and our collaborators’ ability to produce clinical supplies of our product candidates on a timely basis
and in sufficient quantities to meet our clinical trial requirements;

+ announcements of technological innovations or new product candidates by us, our collaborators or our competitors;
* fluctuations in our operating results;

*  published reports by securities analysts;

* developments in patent or other intellectual property rights;

*  publicity concerning discovery and development activities by our licensees;

» the cash and short term investments held us and our ability to secure future financing;

*  public concern as to the safety and efficacy of drugs that we and our competitors develop;

+  governmental regulation and changes in medical and pharmaceutical product reimbursement policies; and

+  general market conditions.

Future sales of our Shares by us or by our existing shareholders could cause our share price to fall.

Additional equity financings or other share issuances by us could adversely affect the market price of our Shares. Sales by existing shareholders of a large number of
shares of our Shares in the public market and the sale of shares issued in connection with strategic alliances, or the perception that such additional sales could occur, could cause the
market price of our Shares to drop.

Item 4. Information on the Company
A. History and Development of the Company

Old Lorus was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act(Ontario) on September 5, 1986 under the name RML Medical Laboratories Inc. On October 28, 1991,
RML Medical Laboratories Inc. amalgamated with Mint Gold Resources Ltd., resulting in Old Lorus becoming a reporting issuer (as defined under applicable securities law) in
Ontario, on such date. On August 25, 1992, Old Lorus changed its name to IMUTEC Corporation. On November 27, 1996, Old Lorus changed its name to Imutec Pharma Inc.,
and on November 19, 1998, Old Lorus changed its name to Lorus Therapeutics Inc. On October 1, 2005, Old Lorus continued under the Canada Business Corporations Act.

On the Arrangement Date, Old Lorus completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization with, among others, 6650309 Canada Inc. (“New Lorus”), 6707157
Canada Inc. and Pinnacle International Lands, Inc. As a result of the plan of arrangement and reorganization each Share of Old Lorus was exchanged for one Share of New
Lorus. New Lorus continued the business of Old Lorus after the Arrangement Date with the same officers and employees and continued to be governed by the same board of
directors as Old Lorus prior to the Arrangement Date. References in this Annual Report to the Company, Lorus, “we”, “our”, “us” and similar expressions, unless otherwise stated,

are references to Old Lorus prior to the Arrangement Date and New Lorus after the Arrangement Date.

The address of the Company’s head and registered office is 2 Meridian Road, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, MOW 4Z7. Our corporate website is www.lorusthera.com. The
contents of the website are specifically not included in this annual report by reference.

Our Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “LOR”.

Lorus currently has one subsidiary, NuChem Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“NuChem”), a corporation incorporated under the laws of Ontario, of which Lorus owns 80% of the
issued and outstanding voting share capital and 100% of the issued and outstanding non-voting preference share capital. Effective May 31, 2009, the Company wound up
GeneSense Technologies Inc. (“GeneSense”), a corporation incorporated under the laws of Canada, of which Lorus owned 100% of the issued and outstanding share capital into
Lorus. On June 22, 2009, the Company transferred its ownership in Pharma Immune, Inc to TEMIC as part of the consideration provided on the repurchase of the convertible
debentures.




Lorus Therapeutics Inc. is a biopharmaceutical company focused on the discovery, research and development of novel anticancer therapies with a high safety profile.
Lorus has worked to establish a diverse, marketable anticancer product pipeline, with products in various stages of development ranging from discovery and pre-clinical to an
advanced Phase II clinical trial. A growing intellectual property portfolio supports our diverse product pipeline.

Our success is dependent upon several factors, including establishing the efficacy and safety of our product candidates in clinical trials, securing strategic partnerships,
obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals to market our products and maintaining sufficient levels of funding through public and/or private financing.

We believe that the future of cancer treatment and management lies in drugs that are effective, have minimal side effects, and therefore improve a patient's quality of life.
Many of the cancer drugs currently approved for the treatment and management of cancer are toxic with severe side effects, and we believe that a product development plan based
on effective and safe drugs could have broad applications in cancer treatment. Lorus' strategy is to continue the development of our product pipeline using several therapeutic
approaches. Each therapeutic approach is dependent on different technologies, which we believe mitigates the development risks associated with a single technology platform. We
evaluate the merits of each product candidate throughout the clinical trial process and consider partnership when appropriate.

Over the past three years, we have focused on advancing our product candidates through pre-clinical and clinical testing. It costs millions of dollars and takes many years
before a product candidate may be approved for therapeutic use in humans and the risk exists that a product candidate may not meet the end points of any Phase I, Phase II or
Phase III clinical trial. See “Risk Factors”.

RNA-Targeted Therapies

Lorus” RNA-targeted therapeutics include LOR-2040, currently in Phase II clinical development, and LOR-1284, which is in the pre-clinical stage of development. See “-
- Clinical Development” and “Business of the Company - DNA/RNA-based Therapeutics”.

Small Molecule

We have small molecule drug screening technologies and preclinical scientific expertise, which we are using to create a drug candidate pipeline. Our proprietary group of
small molecule compounds, which include lead compounds LOR-253 and LOR-220, have unique structures and modes of action, and are promising candidates for the
development of novel, targeted anticancer agents with high safety profiles. See “-- Clinical Development” and “Business of the Company - Small Molecule Therapies”.

Immunotherapy

Lorus’ immunotherapy product candidates are Virulizin® and IL-17E. See “-- Clinical Development” and “Business of the Company - Immunotherapy” for more details.

(i) Virulizin®
In June 2009, as part of the consideration for the repurchase of the secured convertible debentures from TEMIC, Lorus’ assigned to TEMIC its rights under the license

agreement with Zor Pharmaceuticals, LLC (“Zor”), and sold to TEMIC its intellectual property rights associated with Virulizin® . See “-- Clinical Development” and “Business
Overview - Secured Convertible Debentures” for more details.

(i) IL-17E

Interleukin-17E (IL-17E) is a protein-based therapeutic that Lorus is developing as an immunotherapy for cancer treatment.




Clinical Development

The chart below illustrates our current view of the clinical development stage of each of our products. This chart reflects the current regulatory approval process for
biopharmaceuticals in Canada and the United States. See “Regulatory Requirements” for a description of the regulatory approval process in Canada and the United States. These
qualitative estimates of the progress of our products are intended solely for illustrative purposes and this information is qualified in its entirety by the information appearing
elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this annual report.
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B. Business Overview
Overview

Chemotherapeutic drugs have been the mainstay medical treatment option for cancer, particularly metastatic cancer, for the past 30 years. More recently, a range of novel
cancer drugs have been developed that are efficacious while improving patient quality of life. Unlike chemotherapies, which are typically based on chemical synthesis, these new
drugs may be of biological origin, based on naturally occurring molecules, proteins or genetic material. While conventional chemotherapy drugs are relatively non-specific and as a
result toxic to normal cells, these new generation agents specifically target individual molecules or genes that are involved in disease and are therefore preferentially toxic to tumor
cells. The increased targeted specificity of these drugs may result in fewer and milder side effects, meaning that, in theory, larger and therefore, more effective doses can be
administered. The current paradigm in cancer management is a multi-modal approach that combines multiple treatment options tailored to the specific indication and individual
patient. As a result, targeted drug regimens that combine novel small molecule therapies with biological agents, based on emerging understanding of cancer development, are of
considerable and growing interest.

Since cancer progression is a complex process involving the accumulation of multiple genetic alterations leading to changes in many specialized cell functions, Lorus
believes that no single drug will emerge as a cure for all cancers. Instead, we believe that cancer will continue to be treated by many different drugs with a variety of mechanisms
of action. Since Lorus takes a multi-mechanistic approach for the treatment of cancer, we concentrate on the discovery and the development of different classes of anticancer
compounds.




All of the drugs being developed by the research team at Lorus have one similar characteristic: they are designed with the goal of being well tolerated by patients. These
drugs may not only provide effective cancer treatment and contribute to an improved quality of life for cancer patients, but may also be commercially attractive as they could more
easily be combined with other leading therapies without significantly adding to the current side effect profiles of existing drugs.

Lorus has product candidates in three classes of anticancer therapies: (i) RNA-targeted therapies; (ii) small molecule therapies; and (iii) immunotherapeutics. Lorus has
certain commercial rights in Virulizin as described in “Immunotherapy”.

RNA-Targeted Therapies

Introduction

Metabolism, cell growth and cell division are tightly controlled by complex protein signalling pathways in response to specific conditions, thereby maintaining normal
function. Many human diseases, including cancer, can be traced to faulty protein production and/or regulation. As a result, traditional therapeutics is designed to interact with the
disease-causing proteins and modify their function. A significant number of current anticancer drugs act by damaging either DNA or proteins within cells (e.g., chemotherapy) or
by inhibiting the function of proteins or small molecules (e.g. estrogen blockers, such as Tamoxifen). RNA-targeted therapeutics offer a novel approach to treatment in that they
are designed to prevent the production of proteins causing disease.

Our RNA-targeted drugs consist of antisense drugs and short-interfering RNA (siRNA). The premise of this therapeutic approach is to target an earlier stage of the
biochemical process than is usually possible with conventional drugs. The blueprint for protein production is encoded in the DNA of each cell. To translate this code into protein
the cell first produces mRNAs (messenger ribonucleic acids) specific to each protein and these act as intermediaries between the information encoded in DNA and production of
the corresponding protein. Most traditional therapies interact with the final synthesized or processed protein. Often this interaction lacks specificity that would allow for interaction
with only the intended target, resulting in undesired side effects. In contrast, this newer approach is based on altering gene expression at the mRNA level, prior to protein
synthesis, and is intended to achieve better drug specificity towards the biochemical target. We believe that drugs based on this approach may have broad applicability, greater
efficacy and fewer side effects than conventional drugs.

We have developed a number of antisense drugs, of which our lead product is LOR-2040 (formerly GTI-2040). LOR-2040 targets the R2 component of ribonucleotide
reductase (“RNR”). RNR is a highly regulated, cell cycle-controlled protein required for DNA synthesis and repair. RNR is made up of two components, R1 and R2, encoded by
different genes. RNR is essential for the formation of deoxyribonucleotides, which are the building blocks of DNA. Since RNR activity is highly elevated in tumor cell
populations and is associated with tumor cell proliferation, we have developed antisense molecules specific for the mRNA of the R2 (LOR-2040) component of RNR. Furthermore,
the R2 component also appears to be capable of acting as a signal molecule in cancer cells and its elevation is believed to modify a biochemical pathway that can increase the
malignant properties of tumor cells. Consequently, reducing the expression of the RNR components in a tumor cell with antisense drugs is expected to have antitumor effects.

LOR-2040

Our lead antisense drug candidate is LOR-2040, which targets the R2 component of RNR and has exhibited antitumor properties against over a dozen different human
cancers in standard mouse models, including chemotherapy resistant tumors. We have completed a Phase I/II clinical trial of LOR-2040 for advanced or metastatic renal cell
carcinoma. We are also conducting or have completed multiple Phase I/ clinical trial programs in cooperation with the US National Cancer Institute (NCI), for the study of LOR-
2040 for the treatment of Acute Myeloid Leukemia (“AML”), breast cancer, lung cancer, colon cancer, prostate cancer, a series of solid tumors and myelodysplastic syndrome and
acute leukemia. In July 2008, we announced publication of a clinical study demonstrating encouraging results with LOR-2040 in combination with cytarabine in patients with
AML. This study examined the relationship of the targeted activity of LOR-2040 to clinical responses in AML patients less than 60 years of age. Downregulation of R2, the target
of LOR-2040, after 24 hours of LOR-2040 was statistically significant and was associated with complete remission. It was reported for the first time that outcomes of complete
response were associated with high pre-treatment levels of R2, which were statistically significant compared to nonresponders. This finding suggested that pre-treatment R2 levels
might be a predictor of response, and provided a possible basis for treatment stratification to LOR-2040 and high dose cytarabine combination. Favorable disease responses
included complete responses in 35% of the 23 patients and significant cytoreduction of leukemic blasts in two others. This successful clinical study provided a detailed supporting
rationale for Phase II development program which is presently ongoing to extend and confirm these findings in patients with refractory or relapsed AML. Furthermore, in April
2009 we announced a report of evidence of clinical activity in clinical trial of LOR-2040 combined with capecitabine and oxaliplatin in the treatment of advanced metastatic solid
tumors. This trial demonstrated a potential therapeutic benefit of LOR-2040 in difficult-to treat cancer patients with different solid tumors, including heavily pre-treated nonsmall
cell lung cancer patients for which there remains a significant unmet medical need.




LOR-2040 has demonstrated excellent anti-tumour activity in a number of murine models of human cancer including xenograft tumour growth, metastasis and survival
models. Additional studies have demonstrated combination drug efficacy in xenograft tumour growth studies for human cancer cells, including drug resistant tumour cell
lines. Studies on dose schedule optimization for LOR-2040 in combination with docetaxel demonstrated that the timing of these two drugs could be optimized for efficacy. These
data, which were presented at the 2007 annual meeting of the American Association for Cancer Research (AACR), may have implications for the NCI sponsored clinical
trials. More recent preclinical studies on the anticancer activity of LOR-2040 in combination with cytokine therapies were presented at the 2008 annual meeting of the
AACR. These studies showed that LOR-2040 significantly improved the anticancer efficacy of an important group of cytokine immunotherapeutic agents, including interferon
alpha and interleukin-2, both of which have been used in the treatment of solid tumors. These findings were published in January 2009 and may expand the potential avenues for
development of LOR-2040. Formal pre-clinical development of LOR-2040, including GLP toxicology studies in standard animal models, has demonstrated that LOR-2040 is well
tolerated at concentrations that exceed commensurate therapeutic doses in humans.

In April 2008 we announced the start of a development program aimed at expanding the therapeutic application of LOR-2040 for the treatment of superficial bladder
cancer. The new development program will examine direct (intravesical) administration of LOR-2040 into the bladder as a treatment for superficial or non-invasive bladder
cancer. In August 2008 we announced the successful completion of GLP toxicology studies with LOR-2040 to explore a novel route of administration. Two studies were
conducted to assess toxicity of LOR-2040 when administered by direct administration into the bladder. In both studies, no evidence of toxicity was seen following single or
repeated doses of LOR-2040 given with this method of administration. Toxicity was evaluated based on a wide range of observations including detailed examination of urinary
tract tissues.

LOR-1284

In 2003, Lorus began development of an anticancer therapeutic based on siRNA-mediated inhibition of R2 expression. Early screening experiments have identified lead
compounds and preliminary in vitro and in vivo characterization of these compounds has yielded promising results. LOR-1284 (formerly siRNA-1284), the lead compound
identified from the screening study, specifically targets R2 expression. In in vitro studies, down-regulation of R2 expression by LOR-1284 resulted in decreased tumor cell growth
(proliferation) with a concomitant block in cell cycle progression. Furthermore, LOR-1284 demonstrates anti-tumor activity against human kidney, skin and colon cancers in
mouse experimental models of tumor growth. We feel that the results of these studies warrant further development of LOR-1284 as well as expansion of siRNA research to other
cancer targets.

In March 2009, we announced that researchers at the Ohio State University (OSU) have received a grant of approximately US $2 million to explore the potential for
applying OSU’s proprietary tumor-targeted nanoparticle drug delivery technology with ribonucleotide reductase (RNR) targeted RNA-based drugs including LOR-1284. Although
in published reports LOR-1284 has shown significant in vivo anti-tumor activity on its own, the novel nanotechnology approach in development by OSU has the potential to
enhance uptake of the drug in tissues and to provide a selective affinity for specific tumors. Research is continuing to optimize delivery of siRNA in vivo and is expected to be the
key to the future therapeutic promise of siRNA therapeutics to effectively target specific genes associated with cancer.




Clinical Development
Lorus Sponsored Trials

Acute Myeloid Leukemia:

In August 2007, we announced an expansion of the LOR-2040 development program in the AML indication with initiation of a more advanced Phase II clinical trial with
LOR-2040 and high dose Ara-C (HiDAC) in refractory and relapsed AML. This Phase II study includes both an efficacy study and a novel additional study to measure intracellular
target activities and pharmacological synergies between the two agents. In the first stage of the 60 patient trial, the pharmacologic and target related activity of LOR-2040 and
HiDAC will be evaluated in two groups, to determine the contribution of each agent alone and in combination. The second stage of the trial will provide efficacy evaluation in a
larger patient population. The decision to advance clinical development of LOR-2040 was based on the encouraging results from our completed proof of concept NCI-sponsored
study of LOR-2040 in combination with HIDAC in patients with refractory and relapsed AML. In June 2008, Lorus announced that the European Medicines Agency (EMEA) had
granted orphan drug designation to LOR-2040 for development in AML.

Advanced Renal Cell Cancer:

In April 2005, we announced completion of a Phase I/II clinical trial of LOR-2040 in combination with capecitabine, in patients with advanced, end-stage renal cell
cancer in the United States. This trial was a single-arm pilot study examining the safety and efficacy of LOR-2040 used in combination with the anticancer agent capecitabine. The
majority of patients had failed two or more prior therapies before entering the study, exhibited extensive metastases, and were representative of a population with very poor
prognostic outcome in renal cell cancer. All 33 patients entering this study had advanced disease with multiple metastatic sites, with or without prior removal of the primary
kidney tumor. However, more than half (52%) of the patients on the recommended dose exhibited disease stabilization or better, including one confirmed partial response. LOR-
2040 was well tolerated when combined with a cytotoxic agent with expected adverse events. In April 2008 Lorus announced preclinical results from additional combination
therapies in this indication identifying that LOR-2040 significantly improved the anticancer efficacy of an important group of cytokine immunotherapeutic agents, including
interferon alpha and interleukin-2. In January 2009 Lorus announced publication in International Journal of Oncology 34: 33-42 of its in-vivo preclinical research demonstrating
that LOR-2040 improves the anticancer effects of interferon in kidney cancer. Lorus is actively searching for partnerships to assist with the further development of LOR-2040 for
the treatment of renal cell cancer and other selected solid tumor indications.

NCI Sponsored Trials

Much of the clinical development for LOR-2040 was performed in conjunction with the US NCI, which paid for the cost of the sponsored clinical trials. See “Agreements
- Collaboration Agreements - National Cancer Institute”. To date we have substantially completed six clinical trials with the NCI for LOR-2040 in patients with AML, metastatic
breast cancer, non-small cell lung cancer, solid tumors, unresectable colon cancer, hormone refractory prostate cancer and have one study ongoing in myelodysplastic syndrome
(“MDS”) and acute leukemia. These indications were selected based on the most promising results from our preclinical studies. Upon evaluation of the final clinical data emerging
from the completed NCI clinical trials, Lorus will analyze and make decisions regarding the strategic direction of our antisense portfolio. We do not believe that the data obtained
from these trials will be material nor impact our current development plan of focusing on LOR-2040 in AML. Lorus continues to search for partnerships for the future
development of LOR-2040.

Acute Myeloid Leukemia:

In July 2003, we announced the FDA’s approval of the NCI-sponsored IND application for a clinical trial of LOR-2040 in combination with cytarabine, in patients with
refractory or relapsed AML. Cytarabine is the current established drug for treating AML patients. The study is part of a Phase II clinical program to be conducted under the
sponsorship of the Cancer Treatment Evaluation Program of the NCI pursuant to a clinical trial agreement between Lorus and the NCI.




In August 2007, we announced the completion of this study. This clinical trial demonstrated safety and appropriate dosing of the combination regimen and showed
promising clinical responses in patients under 60 years of age. Moreover, the clinical responses correlated with downregulation of R2, the cellular target of LOR-2040, and were
further supported by demonstration of intracellular LOR-2040 in circulating and bone marrow leukemic cells. In July 2008 we announced publication of the final results of this
clinical trial by the investigators in the journal Clinical Cancer Research 14(12) 2008. The results demonstrated safety and appropriate dosing of the combination regimen. Notably,
promising clinical responses in patients under 60 years of age were obtained which included complete responses in 35% of the 23 patients and significant cytoreduction of the
leukemic blasts in two others. Moreover, the clinical responses correlated with down regulation of R2, the cellular target of LOR-2040 in circulating and bone marrow leukemic
cells. Additionally, outcomes of complete response were associated with high pre-treatment levels of R2, suggesting that pre-treatment R2 may be a predictor of response and a
possible basis for treatment stratification to this LOR-2040 and cytarabine combination. This proof of concept study provided the basis for proceeding to the current larger Phase 11
study in with the same regimen in patients less than 60 years of age with refractory and relapsed AML.

Additional research in this program has continued to add scientific support for action of LOR-2040 in AML. In September 2008 Lorus announced a further publication by
the investigators presenting results on the metabolism of LOR-2040 in these AML patients along with supporting experiments. This identified factors including activity of liver
microsomes that together predicted the circulating drug levels and clearance rates. The investigators also performed additional studies to further elucidate the intracellular activity
of LOR-2040 in AML which were announced by Lorus in April 2009 following the presentation to the American Association for Cancer Research, and in June 2009 following
their final publication of this data in Pharmaceutical Research 26(6) 2009. A novel analytical method was used to monitor the intracellular activity of LOR-2040 in both preclinical
models and in a patient’s samples and confirm an important mechanism of action of the drug to reduce the dNTP molecules in tumor cells that are required for DNA synthesis.

Metastatic Breast Cancer:

In August 2003, we announced that the FDA had approved the NCI’s IND to begin a Phase II clinical trial to investigate LOR-2040 as a treatment for metastatic breast
cancer in combination with capecitabine (Xeloda, manufactured by Roche Laboratories Inc.). In support of continued studies aimed at demonstrating R2 target down-regulation in
patient samples, this study group, in collaboration with Lorus, published preliminary results of RT-PCR studies in the May 2006 issue of Oncology Reports. The
results demonstrate that the assay developed by Lorus can feasibly assess R2 levels in blood and tumour tissues from patients before and after treatment In addition, as announced
by Lorus in August 2008, a publication of preliminary proteomic data from the same study by the investigators in Cancer Genomics and Proteomics 5, 2008, identified a
relationship between R2 levels and a protein, Skp-2, which may serve as a potential determinant of drug activity and resistance in these breast cancer patients. This study has been
completed and publication by the investigator of the full clinical results is anticipated in calendar 2010.

Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer:

In September 2003, we received approval from Health Canada for initiation of a clinical trial of LOR-2040 in combination with docetaxel for the treatment of advanced
non-small cell lung cancer (“NSCLC”), as part of a Phase I/II clinical program of LOR-2040 in collaboration with the NCI. Interim results from this study were announced in May
2005. Our interim results showed that the toxicity profile was determined to be acceptable for the specific combination therapy and the observed level of disease stabilizations was
encouraging given the advanced stage of the disease in this subset of patients. The study group published a paper in the December 2005 issue of the Journal of Chromatography,
outlining the development of a method for determination of LOR-2040 in human plasma samples. This highly sensitive method will be used for pharmacokinetic studies in patient
samples from the trial. This study has been completed and publication by the investigator of the final clinical results is anticipated in calendar 2010.
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Solid Tumors:

In February 2004, we announced the initiation of a Phase I clinical trial examining the use of LOR-2040 in combination with gemcitabine in patients with solid
tumors. In June 2005, results from the trial were published. The trial was intended to identify the recommended dose of LOR-2040 and its toxicity profile. At the recommended
dose LOR-2040 demonstrated a manageable toxicity profile and was generally well tolerated when given as a single agent. This study has been completed and publication by the
investigator of the final clinical results is anticipated in calendar 2010.

Colon Cancer and other Solid Tumors:

In May 2004, we announced the initiation of a Phase I clinical trial examining LOR-2040 in combination with oxaliplatin and capecitabine in the treatment of advanced
unresectable colon cancer and other solid tumors. This study is part of a clinical trials program sponsored by the NCI. This study has completed and in April 2009 Lorus
announced publication of the final results by the investigator in Cancer Chemotherapy Pharmacology, 2009. This reported that the combination regimen was feasible and safe with
evidence of clinical activity in patients with advanced incurable tumors including colorectal, lung and breast cancers despite the relatively low doses used in the study.

Hormone Refractory Prostate Cancer:

In November 2004, we announced the initiation of a Phase II clinical trial examining LOR-2040 in combination with docetaxel and prednisone in hormone refractory
prostate cancer. In November 2005, we announced interim data from this trial. The data showed that along with an acceptable tolerability profile, nine of 22 PSA evaluable
patients demonstrated a PSA response (reductions of greater than 50%). PSA is overproduced in prostate cancer cells and is commonly used to assess disease progression and
response. These data were also presented at the 2006 annual meeting of the American Society of Clinical Oncology (“ASCO”). This study has been completed and publication by
the investigator of the full clinical results is anticipated in calendar 2010.

High Grade Myelodysplastic Syndrome and acute leukemia:

Lorus announced in June 2006 a plan for a new clinical investigation of LOR-2040 as a single-agent in patients with high grade myelodysplastic syndrome and acute
leukemia. This trial was initiated in mid 2007. This clinical study is designed to evaluate the safety and activity of LOR-2040 as a single agent for acute leukemia and MDS using a
novel treatment schedule. The effect on leukemic blasts and blood count recovery will be assessed as part of a detailed investigation of the pharmacodynamic and pharmacokinetic
effects, dose-response relationships and tolerability of LOR-2040 during multiple courses of treatment. This clinical trial is ongoing.

Other Research Initiatives

Ohio State University investigators at the American Association of Clinical Research meeting in April 2008 presented an abstract and data showing synergy of LOR-2040
when combined with azacytidine in in-vitro and in-vivo AML preclinical models. Azacytidine is a first line treatment for MDS which has not yet been evaluated clinically in
combination.

In May 2009 Lorus announced the extension of a cooperative research agreement with the US National Cancer Institute for preclinical evaluation of LOR-2040 and other
Lorus RNA-targeted drugs as part of a novel combination therapeutic strategy to target the renal tumor and not the normal regenerating kidney.

Orphan Drug Status

On March 12, 2003, the FDA awarded Orphan Drug Status to LOR-2040 for the treatment of renal cell carcinoma. In May 2005, Lorus received Orphan Drug designation
from the FDA for LOR-2040 in the treatment of AML. In June 2008 the EMEA awarded Orphan Drug designation for LOR-2040 in the treatment of AML.

nall Molecule Therapies

Most anticancer chemotherapeutic treatments are DNA damaging, cytotoxic agents, designed to act on rapidly dividing cells. Treatment with these drugs is typically
associated with unpleasant or even serious side effects due to the inability of these drugs to differentiate between normal and cancer cells and/or due to a lack of high specificity for
the targeted protein. In addition, these drugs often lead to the development of tumor-acquired drug resistance. As a result of these limitations, a need exists for more effective
anticancer drugs. One approach is to develop small molecules that have greater target specificity and are more selective against cancer cells. Chemical compounds weighing less
than 1000 daltons (a unit of molecular weight) are designated as small or low molecular weight molecules. These molecules can be designed to target specific proteins or receptors
that are known to be involved with disease.
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LOR-253

In August 2005, Lorus announced the selection of two leading small molecule compounds from a series of novel small molecules discovered by Lorus scientists that
exhibit potent anticancer activity in in vitro screens. The results of characterization studies of these compounds were presented at the 2006 annual meeting of the AACR and early
formulation studies were published in the September 2006 issue of Cancer Chemotherapy and Pharmacology. Our studies identify the main mechanism of action of these
compounds, which involves the induction of the tumor suppressor Kriippel-like factor 4. The down regulation of Kriippel-like factor 4 is believed to be critical in the development
and progression of certain types of cancer and presents the possibility of exploiting a novel anticancer mechanism of action. From these two compounds, LOR-253 (formerly LT-
253) was selected as the lead compound for development as a drug candidate for the treatment of colon carcinoma and non-small cell lung cancer. This decision was based on its
potent in vitro anti-proliferative activity, its efficacy inin vivo xenograft models of human colon and lung cancer, and on its safety profile.

Recent preclinical data on LOR-253 was presented at the 2008 annual meeting of the AACR. In animal studies, LOR-253 showed a favorable pharmacokinetic profile
following intravenous dosing. A key finding of the study was the tissue distribution of LOR-253, where the drug was detected in tumor tissues in animal models, with significant
affinity for lung and colon tissues. These results strongly support the potential treatment of these cancers with LOR-253, which has shown selective and potent anticancer activity
in animal models of non-small cell lung cancer and colon cancer.

In March 2008 we announced the start of GLP toxicology studies for LOR-253. The toxicology studies were designed to support the filing of an Investigational New Drug
(IND) application with the U.S. FDA for LOR-253 to initiate a Phase I clinical study in cancer indications. In November 2008, we announced the successful completion of
toxicology studies. The GLP, IND-enabling toxicology studies included maximum tolerated dose studies and repeat-dose toxicity studies in rodents and nonrodents. We expect to
file an IND and initiate a Phase I dose-escalation trial in selected solid tumor indications by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2010.

In April 2009, we announced the presentation of preclinical data at the Annual Meeting of the AACR where we provided new data regarding LOR-253’s antiangiogenic

role.

Lorus is also pursuing other candidates at earlier stages of development. These include:

*  LOR-264, a second generation LOR-253 derivative, is being developed for oral administration. Like LOR-253, LOR-264 has demonstrated potent anticancer
activity in animal studies and represents the lead oral drug in this development platform. Derivatives of LOR-264 are currently being assessed for anticancer
activity and oral bioavailability as part of our lead optimization process.

*  LOR-500 platform. LOR-500 targets multikinases including tyrosine kinase family members and a member of the calcium/calmodulin dependent protein kinase
family. Hit-to-lead optimization of LOR-500 is being currently conducted to identify a lead drug candidate.

Immunotherapy

Immunotherapy is a form of treatment that stimulates the body’s immune system to fight diseases including cancer. Immunotherapy may help the immune system to fight
cancer by improving recognition of differences between healthy cells and cancer cells. Alternatively it may stimulate the production of specific cancer fighting cells.
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Interleukin-17E

Interleukin-17E (IL-17E) is a protein-based therapeutic that Lorus is developing as an immunotherapy for cancer treatment. We believe that IL-17E has anticancer
activity against a range of human cancers. Preliminary studies have revealed that IL-17E has strong in vivo efficacy against several human tumor types, including colon cancer,
melanoma, and pancreatic cancer, with low toxicity. Additional preclinical studies are being done to further evaluate its efficacy and toxicity profile in comparison to other cancer-
approved cytokines, including interferon-alpha and IL-2, and further non-clinical studies are planned to assess toxicity and optimize the therapeutic dose.

Virulizin®

In April 2008, Lorus entered into an exclusive licensing deal with a subsidiary of Zoticon Bioventures’ subsidiary, Zor, for Virulizin®. The license, covering North and
South America, Europe and Israel, granted Lorus the right to receive in excess of US$10 million in upfront and milestone payments as well as royalties on sales of between 10 and
20%. In addition, Lorus’ wholly-owned subsidiary received a 25% equity interest in Zor. Zor is responsible for all future clinical developments, regulatory submissions, and all
commercial activities. In June 2009, Lorus assigned these rights and the rights to the intellectual property associated with Virulizin® to TEMIC as part of the consideration for
Lorus’ repurchase of the secured convertible debentures. (See “Business Overview - Secured Convertible Debentures”™)

Agreements

Manufacturing Agreements

We currently rely upon subcontractors for the manufacture of our drug candidates. The subcontractors manufacture clinical material according to current Good
Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) at contract manufacturing organizations that have been approved by our quality assurance department, following audits in relation to the
appropriate regulations.

Manufactured product for clinical purposes is tested for conformance with product specifications prior to release by our quality assurance department. GMP batches of our
drug candidates are subjected to prospectively designed stability test protocols.

License Agreements

Ion Pharmaceuticals

In December 1997, Lorus, through NuChem, acquired certain patent rights and a sublicense from Ion to develop and commercialize the anticancer applications of CLT
and new chemical entities related to CLT (the “NuChem Analogs”). To July 2006, NuChem had made cash payments totalling US $500,000 to Ion. The balance of up to US$3
million is payable upon the achievement of certain milestones based on the commencement and completion of clinical trials related to the NuChem Analogs. The company does
not currently expect to achieve any of the above milestones in fiscal years ending May 31, 2010 or 2011 and cannot reasonably predict when such milestones will be achieved, if at
all.

The NuChem Analog patents are ancillary to the Company’s primary development activities and do not relate to our core research and development focus, namely LOR-
2040, nor did they relate specifically to the development of Virulizin.

All research and development activities to be undertaken by NuChem are to be funded by us through subscriptions for non-participating preference shares of
NuChem. As at May 31, 2009, we had provided a total of $5,779,000 of funding to NuChem.

University of Manitoba

The University of Manitoba (the “University”), Dr. Jim Wright, Dr. Aiping Young and Cancer Care entered into an exclusive license agreement (the “License
Agreement”) with GeneSense dated June 20, 1997 pursuant to which GeneSense was granted an exclusive worldwide license to certain patent rights with the right to sub-
license. In consideration for the exclusive license to GeneSense of the patent rights, the University and Cancer Care are entitled to an aggregate of 1.67% of the net sales received
by GeneSense from the sale of products or processes derived from the patent rights and 1.67% of all monies received by GeneSense from sub-licenses of the patent rights.
GeneSense is solely responsible for the preparation, filing, prosecution and maintenance of all patent applications and patents included in the patent rights and all related
expenses. Pursuant to the terms of the License Agreement, any and all improvements to any of the patent rights derived in whole or in part by GeneSense after the date of the
License Agreement are not included within the scope of the License Agreement and do not trigger any payment of royalties.
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The University of Manitoba agreement relates specifically to antisense and related technologies described in patent applications that were pending at the time of the
agreement. Subsequent patent amendments or advancements to these patents remain as the property of Lorus, without license rights accruing back to the University of
Manitoba. The Company is currently pursuing its antisense development program, primarily as a function of advancements and amendments to the original patents. We have not
yet earned any revenue from the products covered under the agreement and have not paid any royalties under this agreement and cannot reasonably predict the timing and amount
of any future payment. We do not expect to make any royalty payments under this agreement in fiscal years ending May 31, 2010 or 2011.

Effective May 31, 2009, this agreement was assigned from GeneSense to Lorus.

Collaboration Agreements

Zoticon Bioventures Inc.

In April 2008, Lorus through its wholly owned subsidiary GeneSense Technologies Inc. signed an exclusive multinational license agreement with Zor formed as a
subsidiary of Zoticon Bioventures Inc. (“Zoticon”), a research-driven biopharmaceutical group, to further develop and commercialize Virulizin® for human therapeutic
applications. The initial clinical development of Virulizin® under the agreement will be in advanced pancreatic cancer.

Under the terms of the agreement, GeneSense was entitled to receive payments in excess of US$10 million upon achievement of various milestone events and royalties
that vary from 10-20% depending on achieving of sales of Virulizin® and subject to certain other adjustments.

Zor will be responsible for the cost of all the clinical development, regulatory submissions and commercialization of Virulizin® in North and South America, Europe and
Israel. We retained rights in all other countries, including China, Japan, Australia and New Zealand. As discussed above, in June 2009, Lorus assigned these rights to TEMIC. (See
“Business Overview - Secured Convertible Debentures™)

As part of the agreement, we entered into a service agreement in which we agreed to provide Zor with 120 hours of consulting service at its own expense and thereafter
will provide services at an agreed upon rate. The agreement had an initial term of one year unless stated otherwise in any project assignment that extends beyond one year but no
longer than the date of termination of the License Agreement for any reason. If we had not provided 300 hours of consulting services after one year the agreement will renew for
an additional six months. This service agreement is expected to expire in October 2009.

National Cancer Institute

In February 2003, Lorus and the United States National Cancer Institute approved clinical protocols to conduct a series of clinical trials in a Phase I/II program to
investigate the safety and efficacy of LOR-2040. Lorus and the NCI signed a formal clinical trial agreement in which the NCI financially sponsors the LOR-2040 clinical trials,
while Lorus provides the clinical trial drug. The agreement was renewed in October 2007 for an additional three years.

NCI carries out clinical trials on behalf of the Company at its own cost. The rights to publish data remains with the NCI sponsored investigator generating the
information. The commercial results of the studies, including commercialization of any products remain with Lorus with no financial, license, or intellectual property rights
accruing to the Investigator or NCI for their participation. NCI has no rights to exploit the research results, except through the right of investigators to publish data accumulated by
it during the testing, nor does it have any obligation to pay or receive royalties under the agreement. Any royalty rights on products derived from the work performed by NCI will
need to be negotiated by Lorus under a marketing agreement with third parties (if not carried out by Lorus). It is not possible to reasonably estimate the amount and timing of any
royalty receipts, if any.
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In regards to future payment obligations, Lorus’ obligations under this agreement are limited to the supply of drugs, the cost for which has been incurred. The Company
does not currently expect any significant costs associated with the supply of the drug in the future, depending on the outcome of the projects.

See “Clinical Development - NCI sponsored trials”.

Other

From time to time, we enter into other research and technology agreements with third parties under which research is conducted and monies expended. These agreements
outline the responsibilities of each participant and the appropriate arrangements in the event the research produces a product candidate.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is based on the identification and development of novel therapies aimed at validated cancer targets. We believe that these target-based approaches
hold the promise of more effective therapies with fewer side effects. A target-based approach is increasingly recognized as several targeted agents are already approved by
regulatory authorities around the globe. In order to minimize single technology-related risks, we have adopted three different technology approaches:

1. RNA-targeted technologies such as antisense and siRNA.
2. Development of small molecules that recognize specific targets in cancer cells.
3. Immunotherapy using safe and efficacious products to stimulate the natural anticancer properties of the immune system.

The first two approaches utilize selection strategies for identification and development of highly specific targeted drug candidates, capitalizing on proprietary libraries of
compounds developed in-house.

In our efforts to obtain the greatest return on our investment in each drug candidate, we separately evaluate the merits of each drug candidate throughout the clinical
development process and consider commercialization opportunities when appropriate. In the next fiscal year, we intend to pursue partnerships for our lead compounds and further
the development of our promising pipeline. More specifically, our main objectives are (i) to maximize the therapeutic value and potential commercial success of LOR-2040 by
initiating a Phase IIb/III registration clinical trial in AML trial in collaboration with a co-development or licensing partner; (ii) to conduct a Phase I clinical trial of our lead small
molecule drug, LOR-253, while also pursuing partnership opportunities for this product candidate; and (iii) to commit resources to advancing our in-house pipeline of novel small
molecule drug candidates.

Financial Strategy

To meet future financing requirements, we intend to finance our operations through some or all of the following methods: public or private equity or debt financings,
capital leases, and collaborative and licensing agreements. We intend to pursue financing opportunities as they arise.

Secured Convertible Debentures

On October 6, 2004, the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) with TEMIC to issue an aggregate of $15 million of secured convertible
debentures (the “Debentures”) issuable in three tranches of $5 million each, in each of, October 2004, January 2005 and April 2005. The Debentures are secured by a first charge
over all of the assets of the Company. All Debentures issued under the Agreement are due on October 6, 2009 and are subject to interest payable monthly at a rate of prime plus
1% until such time, if ever, as the Company’s share price reaches $1.75 for 60 consecutive trading days, at which time interest will no longer be charged. Interest is payable in
Shares of Lorus until Lorus’ shares trade at a price of $1.00 or more after which interest would be payable in cash or Shares at the option of the debenture holder. Shares issued in
payment of interest are issued at a price equal to the weighted average trading price of such shares for the ten trading days immediately preceding their issue in respect of each
interest payment. The $15.0 million principal amount of Debentures is convertible at the holder’s option at any time into Shares of the Company with a conversion price per share
of $1.00.
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As a condition to agreeing to vote in favour of the Arrangement (as discussed below), the holder of Lorus’ secured convertible debenture required the repurchase by Lorus
of its outstanding three million Share purchase warrants at a purchase price of $252,000. This repurchase was completed in July 2007.

On June 22, 2009, the Company reached a settlement with TEMIC with respect to the purchase and settlement of the $15.0 million secured convertible debentures.

Under the agreement, Lorus purchased all of the convertible debentures from TEMIC for a cash payment on close of the transaction of $3.3 million, the assignment of the
rights under the license agreement with Zor, sale of intellectual property associated with Virulizin and sale of Lorus' shares in its wholly owned subsidiary, Pharma Immune, which
holds an equity interest in Zor (the "Consideration"). Under the agreement, Lorus will be entitled to 50% of any royalties received under the Zor license agreement and 50% of the
value of any transaction completed in territories not covered by the Zor license agreement. Lorus also retains a perpetual royalty free license for the animal use of
Virulizin. TEMIC will be fully responsible for all clinical and regulatory costs associated with commercialization of Virulizin in territories not covered by the Zor license
agreement. Lorus will assist TEMIC with certain agreed upon services.

As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain on the repurchase of the debentures of $11.0 million reflecting the difference between the carrying value of
the debentures at the repurchase date, net of transaction costs of approximately $221 thousand, and the cash payment amount of $3.3 million. In addition, as a result of
extinguishing the debentures, the equity portion of the debentures in the amount of $3.8 million was transferred to contributed surplus. The gain on repurchase of the debentures
does not result in income taxes payable as the Company has sufficient capital loss and non-capital loss carryforwards to shelter this gain.

Share Issuances

On November 27, 2009, the Company completed a private placement resulting in the issuance of 41 million units of the Company at a price of $0.06 per unit
(“Unit”). Each Unit consists of one common share of the Company and a one-half common share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant permits the holder to purchase an
additional Share of Lorus at $0.08 until May 27, 2011.

Pursuant to the private placement, the Company issued 41 million Shares and 20.5 million common share purchase warrants in exchange for cash consideration of
$2.5 million. This amount includes the principal amount of $1.0 million originally received by way of a loan from a director on October 6, 2009 which was applied to subscribe for
units as part of the private placement. In addition, the Company issued 2.2 million broker warrants to purchase an equivalent number of Shares at $0.08 until May 27, 2011. The
total costs associated with the transaction were approximately $225 thousand plus the broker warrants. The Company will allocate the net proceeds of the private placement to the
Shares and to the common share purchase warrants based on their relative fair values.

On June 25, 2008, the Company filed a short-form prospectus for a rights offering to its shareholders. Under the rights offering, holders of the Company's Shares as of
July 9, 2008 (the "Record Date") received one right for each Share held as of the Record Date. Each four rights entitled the holder thereof to purchase a unit of Lorus ("2008 Unit")
at a price of $0.13. Each 2008 Unit consists of one Share of Lorus at $0.13 and a one-half Share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant permits the holder to purchase additional
Shares of Lorus at $0.18 until August 7, 2010. All unexercised rights expired on August 7, 2008.

Pursuant to the rights offering, the Company issued 28,538,889 Shares and 14,269,444 Share purchase warrants in exchange for cash consideration of $3.7 million. The
total costs associated with the transaction were approximately $500 thousand. The Company has allocated the net proceeds of $3.2 million received from the issuance of the 2008
Units to the Shares and the Share purchase warrants based on their relative fair values. The fair value of the Share purchase warrants has been determined based on an option-
pricing model. The resulting allocation based on relative fair values resulted in the allocation of $2.8 million to the Shares and $417 thousand to the Share purchase warrants.
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On July 13, 2006 the company entered into an agreement with High Tech Beteiligungen GmbH & Co. KG (“High Tech”) to issue 28.8 million Shares at $0.36 per share
for gross proceeds of $10.4 million. The subscription price represented a premium of 7.5% over the closing price of the Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange on July 13,
2006. The transaction closed on August 31, 2006. In connection with the transaction, High Tech received demand registration rights that will enable High Tech to request the
registration or qualification of the Shares for resale in the United States and Canada, subject to certain restrictions. These demand registration rights expire on June 30, 2012. In
addition, High Tech received the right to nominate one nominee to the board of directors of Lorus or, if it does not have a nominee, it will have the right to appoint an observer to
the board. Upon completion of the transaction, High Tech held approximately 14% of the issued and outstanding Shares of Lorus.

On July 24, 2006 Lorus entered into an agreement with Technifund Inc. to issue on a private placement basis, 5 million Shares at $0.36 per share for gross proceeds of
$1.8 million. The transaction closed on September 1, 2006.

Plan of Arrangement and Corporate Reorganization

On July 10, 2007 (the “Arrangement Date”), the Company (or “New Lorus”) completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization with, among others, 4325231
Canada Inc., formerly Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (“Old Lorus”), 6707157 Canada Inc. and Pinnacle International Lands, Inc (the “Arrangement”). As a result of the plan of
arrangement and reorganization, among other things, each Share of Old Lorus was exchanged for one Share of the Company and the assets (excluding certain future tax attributes
and related valuation allowance) and liabilities of Old Lorus (including all of the shares of its subsidiaries held by it) were transferred, directly or indirectly, to the Company and/or
its subsidiaries. The Company continued the business of Old Lorus after the Arrangement Date with the same officers and employees and continued to be governed by the same
directors as Old Lorus prior to the Arrangement Date. Therefore, the Company’s operations have been accounted for on a continuity of interest basis and accordingly, the
consolidated financial statement information included in these financial statements reflect that of the Company as if it had always carried on the business formerly carried on by
Old Lorus. Following completion of the Arrangement, New Lorus is not related to Old Lorus, which was subsequently renamed Global Summit Real Estate Inc.

Under the Arrangement, the Company has agreed to indemnify Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees from and against all damages, losses, expenses
(including fines and penalties), other third party costs and legal expenses, to which any of them may be subject arising out of any matter occurring:

(i) prior to, at or after the effective time of the Arrangement ("Effective Time") and directly or indirectly relating to any of the assets of Old Lorus transferred to
New Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement (including losses for income, sales, excise and other taxes arising in connection with the transfer of any such asset) or

conduct of the business prior to the Effective Time;

(ii) prior to, at or after the Effective Time as a result of any and all interests, rights, liabilities and other matters relating to the assets transferred by Old Lorus to
New Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement; and

(iii) prior to or at the Effective Time and directly or indirectly relating to, with certain exceptions, any of the activities of Old Lorus or the Arrangement.
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In connection with the Arrangement, the Company received cash consideration of approximately $8.5 million, before transaction costs. This amount includes $600
thousand related to the indemnification, above, which was received in July 2008. The Company has recorded a liability of $150 thousand, which it believes is a reasonable
estimate of the fair value of the obligation for the indemnifications provided. There have been no claims under this indemnification to date. This amount is included on the
balance sheet in Accrued Liabilities as at May 31, 2009.

tellectual Property and Protection of Confidential Information and Technology

We believe that our issued patents and pending applications are important in establishing and maintaining a competitive position with respect to our products and
technology. As of May 31, 2009, we owned or had rights to 42 issued patents and 46 pending patent applications worldwide.

RNA-targeted Therapies

We have been issued two patents in Canada, nine patents in the United States and ten patents in other jurisdictions around the world relating to our DNA/RNA-based
therapeutics, which includes antisense and siRNA molecules. We also have 16 pending patents worldwide for this class of therapies. These patents include composition of matter
and method claims.

Small Molecule

We have been issued one patent in Israel relating to the NuChem small molecule platform. We also have 21 pending patents worldwide for out in-house small
molecules. These patents cover composition of matter and method claims.

Immunotherapy

We have been issued two patents in Canada, three patents in the United States and 11 patents in other jurisdictions around the world relating to our immunotherapy
(Virulizin) platform, which include composition of matter, method and process claims. All 16 issued patents for Virulizin, as well as six pending patents for Virulizin, were sold to
TEMIC. Lorus retains ownership of three pending patents for our IL-17E immunotherapy program.

Risks Relating to Intellectual Property

We either own these issued patents discussed above or have the exclusive right to make, use, market, sell or otherwise commercialize products using these patents to
diagnose and treat cancer. We cannot assure you that we will continue to have exclusive rights to these patents.

We cannot assure you that pending applications will result in issued patents, or that issued patents will be held valid and enforceable if challenged, or that a competitor
will not be able to circumvent any such issued patents by adoption of a competitive, though non-infringing product or process. Interpretation and evaluation of pharmaceutical or
biotechnology patent claims present complex and often novel legal and factual questions. Our business could be adversely affected by increased competition in the event that any
patent granted to it is held to be invalid or unenforceable or is inadequate in scope to protect our operations.

While we believe that our products and technology do not infringe proprietary rights of others, we cannot assure you that third parties will not assert infringement claims
in the future or that such claims will not be successful. Furthermore, we could incur substantial costs in defending ourselves against patent infringement claims brought by others
or in prosecuting suits against others.

In addition, we cannot assure you that others will not obtain patents that we would need to license, or that if a license is required that it would be available to us on
reasonable terms, or that if a license is not obtained that we would be able to circumvent, through a reasonable investment of time and expense, such outside patents. Whether we
obtain a license would depend on the terms offered, the degree of risk of infringement, the vulnerability of the patent to invalidation and the ease of circumventing the patent.

Until such time, if ever, that further patents are issued to us, we will rely upon the law of trade secrets to the extent possible given the publication requirements under
international patent treaty laws and/or requirements under foreign patent laws to protect our technology and our products incorporating the technology. In this regard, we have
adopted certain confidentiality procedures. These include: limiting access to confidential information to certain key personnel; requiring all directors, officers, employees and
consultants and others who may have access to our intellectual property to enter into confidentiality agreements which prohibit the use of or disclosure of confidential information
to third parties; and implementing physical security measures designed to restrict access to such confidential information and products. Our ability to maintain the confidentiality of
our technology is crucial to our ultimate possible commercial success. We cannot assure you that the procedures adopted by us to protect the confidentiality of our technology will
be effective, that third parties will not gain access to our trade secrets or disclose the technology, or that we can meaningfully protect our rights to our technology. Further, by
seeking the aforementioned patent protection in various countries, it is inevitable that a substantial portion of our technology will become available to our competitors, through
publication of such patent applications.
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Regulatory Strategy

Our overall regulatory strategy is to work with HC in Canada, the FDA in the United States, the EMEA in Europe, and any other local regulatory agencies to have drug applications
approved for the use of LOR-2040, and small molecules in clinical trials (alone and/or in combination with chemotherapeutic compounds) and subsequently for sale in international
markets. Where possible, we intend to take advantage of opportunities for accelerated consideration of drugs designed to treat rare and serious or life-threatening diseases. We also
intend to pursue priority evaluation of any application for marketing approval filed in Canada, the United States or the European Union and to file additional drug applications in
other markets where commercial opportunities exist. We cannot assure you that we will be able to pursue these opportunities successfully.

Revenues
The Company has not earned substantial revenues from its drug candidates and is therefore considered to be in the development stage.
Employees

As at May 31, 2009, we employed 24 full-time persons and four part-time people in research and drug development and administration activities. Of our employees,
seven hold Ph.D.s. To encourage a focus on achieving long-term performance, employees and members of the board of directors have the ability to acquire an ownership interest
in the Company through Lorus’ stock option plan and employees can participate in the employee share purchase plan.

Our ability to develop commercial products and to establish and maintain our competitive position in light of technological developments will depend, in part, on our
ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. There is a significant level of competition in the marketplace for such personnel. We believe that to date we have been successful in
attracting and retaining the highly skilled personnel critical to our business. We have also chosen to outsource activities where skills are in short supply or where it is economically
prudent to do so.

None of our employees are unionized, and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Office Facilities

Our head office, which occupies 20,500 square feet, is located at 2 Meridian Road, Toronto, Ontario. The leased premises include approximately 8,000 square feet of
laboratory and research space. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate to meet our requirements for the near term. Our current lease expires on March 31, 2011.

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries are characterized by rapidly evolving technology and intense competition. There are numerous players in both of these
industries that are focusing their efforts on activities similar to ours. Some of these are companies with established positions in the pharmaceutical industry and may have
substantially more financial and technical resources, more extensive research and development capabilities, and greater marketing, distribution, production and human resources
than us. In addition, we may face competition from other companies for opportunities to enter into partnerships with biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies and academic
institutions. Many of these other companies however are not solely focused on cancer, as is the mission of our drug development. We specialize in the development of drugs that
we believe will manage cancer.
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Competition with our products may include chemotherapeutic agents, monoclonal antibodies, antisense therapies, small molecules and immunotherapies with novel
mechanisms of action. These are drugs that are delivered by specific means for treatment of cancer patients, with a potential to be used in non-cancer indications. We also expect
that we may experience competition from established and emerging pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies that have other forms of treatment for the cancers that we
target. There are many drugs currently in development for the treatment of cancer that employ a number of novel approaches for attacking these cancer targets. Cancer is a
complex disease with more than 100 indications requiring drugs for treatment. The drugs in competition with our drugs have specific targets for attacking the disease, targets
which are not necessarily the same as ours. These competitive drugs therefore could potentially also be used together in combination therapies with our drugs to manage the
disease.

Government Regulation

Overview

Regulation by government authorities in Canada, the United States, and the European Union is a significant factor in our current research and drug development
activities. To clinically test, manufacture and market drug products for therapeutic use, we must satisfy the rigorous mandatory procedures and standards established by the
regulatory agencies in the countries in which we currently operate or intend to operate.

The laws of most of these countries require the licensing of manufacturing facilities, carefully controlled research and the extensive testing of products. Biotechnology
companies must establish the safety and efficacy of their new products in clinical trials, they must establish current Good Manufacturing Practices or cGMP and control over
marketing activities before being allowed to market their products. The safety and efficacy of a new drug must be shown through clinical trials of the drug carried out in
accordance with the mandatory procedures and standards established by regulatory agencies.

The process of completing clinical trials and obtaining regulatory approval for a new drug takes a number of years and requires the expenditure of substantial
resources. Once a new drug or product license application is submitted, we cannot assure you that a regulatory agency will review and approve the application in a timely
manner. Even after initial approval has been obtained, further studies, including post-marketing studies, may be required to provide additional data on efficacy and safety
necessary to confirm the approved indication or to gain approval for the use of the new drug as a treatment for clinical indications other than those for which the new drug was
initially tested. Also, regulatory agencies require post-marketing surveillance programs to monitor a new drug’s side effects. Results of post-marketing programs may limit or
expand the further marketing of new drugs. A serious safety or effectiveness problem involving an approved new drug may result in a regulatory agency requiring withdrawal of
the new drug from the market and possible civil action. We cannot assure you that we will not encounter such difficulties or excessive costs in our efforts to secure necessary
approvals, which could delay or prevent us from manufacturing or marketing our products.

In addition to the regulatory product approval framework, biotechnology companies, including Lorus, are subject to regulation under local provincial, state and federal
law, including requirements regarding occupational safety, laboratory practices, environmental protection and hazardous substance control, and may be subject to other present and
future local, provincial, state, federal and foreign regulation, including possible future regulation of the biotechnology industry.

Regulation in Canada

In Canada, the manufacture and sale of new drugs are controlled by Health Canada (“HC”). New drugs must pass through a number of testing stages, including pre-
clinical testing and clinical trials. Pre-clinical testing involves testing the new drug’s chemistry, pharmacology and toxicology in vitro and in vivo. Successful results (that is,
potentially valuable pharmacological activity combined with an acceptable low level of toxicity) enable the developer of the new drug to file a clinical trial application (“CTA”) to
begin clinical trials involving humans.

To study a drug in Canadian patients, a CTA submission must be filed with HC. The CTA submission must contain specified information, including the results of the pre-
clinical tests completed at the time of the submission and any available information regarding use of the drug in humans. In addition, since the method of manufacture may affect
the efficacy and safety of a new drug, information on manufacturing methods and standards and the stability of the drug substance and dosage form must be presented. Production
methods and quality control procedures must be in place to ensure an acceptably pure product, essentially free of contamination, and to ensure uniformity with respect to all quality
aspects.
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Provided HC does not reject a CTA submission, clinical trials can begin. Clinical trials for product candidates to treat cancer are generally carried out in three
phases. Phase I involves studies to evaluate toxicity and ideal dose levels in humans. The new drug is administered to human patients who have met the clinical trial entry criteria
to determine pharmacokinetics, human tolerance and prevalence of adverse side effects. Phases II and III involve therapeutic studies. In Phase I, efficacy, dosage, side effects
and safety are established in a small number of patients who have the disease or disorder that the new drug is intended to treat. In Phase III, there are controlled clinical trials in
which the new drug is administered to a large number of patients who are likely to receive benefit from the new drug. In Phase III, the effectiveness of the new drug is compared
to that of standard accepted methods of treatment in order to provide sufficient data for the statistical proof of safety and efficacy for the new drug.

If clinical studies establish that a new drug has value, the manufacturer submits a new drug submission (“NDS”) application to HC for marketing approval. The NDS
contains all information known about the new drug, including the results of pre-clinical testing and clinical trials. Information about a substance contained in an NDS includes its
proper name, its chemical name, and details on its method of manufacturing and purification, and its biological, pharmacological and toxicological properties. The NDS also
provides information about the dosage form of the new drug, including a quantitative listing of all ingredients used in its formulation, its method of manufacture, manufacturing
facility information, packaging and labelling, the results of stability tests, and its diagnostic or therapeutic claims and side effects, as well as details of the clinical trials to support
the safety and efficacy of the new drug. Furthermore, for biological products, an on-site evaluation (“OSE”) is completed to assess the production process and manufacturing
facility. It is required prior to the issuance of a notice of compliance (“NOC”). All aspects of the NDS are critically reviewed by HC. If an NDS is found satisfactory, a NOC is
issued permitting the new drug to be sold. In Canada an Establishment license must be obtained prior to marketing the product.

HC has a policy of priority evaluation of new drug submissions for all drugs intended for serious or life-threatening diseases for which no drug product has received
regulatory approval in Canada and for which there is reasonable scientific evidence to indicate that the proposed new drug is safe and may provide effective treatment.

The monitoring of a new drug does not cease once it is on the market. For example, a manufacturer of a new drug must report any new information received concerning
serious side effects, as well as the failure of the new drug to produce desired effects. As well, if HC determines it to be in the interest of public health, a notice of compliance for a
new drug may be suspended and the new drug may be removed from the market.

A post surveillance program involves clinical trials conducted after a drug is marketed (referred to as phase 4 studies in the United States) and is an important source of
information on as yet undetected adverse outcomes, especially in populations that may not have been involved in the premarketing trials (e.g., children, the elderly, pregnant
women) and the drug's long-term morbidity and mortality profile. Regulatory authorities may require companies to conduct Phase 4 studies as a condition of market approval.
Companies often conduct post-marketing studies in the absence of a regulatory mandate.

An exception to the foregoing requirements relating to the manufacture and sale of a new drug is the limited authorization that may be available in respect of the sale of
new drugs for emergency treatment. Under the special access program, HC may authorize the sale of a quantity of a new drug for human use to a specific practitioner for the
emergency treatment of a patient under the practitioner’s care. Prior to authorization, the practitioner must supply HC with information concerning the medical emergency for
which the new drug is required, such data as is in the possession of the practitioner with respect to the use, safety and efficacy of the new drug, the names of the institutions at
which the new drug is to be used and such other information as may be requested by HC. In addition, the practitioner must agree to report to both the drug manufacturer and HC
the results of the new drug’s use in the medical emergency, including information concerning adverse reactions, and must account to HC for all quantities of the new drug made
available.
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The Canadian regulatory approval requirements for new drugs outlined above are similar to those of other major pharmaceutical markets. While the testing carried out in
Canada is often acceptable for the purposes of regulatory submissions in other countries, individual regulatory authorities may request supplementary testing during their
assessment of any submission. We cannot assure you that the clinical testing conducted under HC authorization or the approval of regulatory authorities of other countries will be
accepted by regulatory authorities outside Canada or such other countries.

Regulation in the United States

In the United States, the Food & Drug Administration (“FDA”) controls the manufacture and sale of new drugs. New drugs require FDA approval of a New Drug
Application (“NDA”) prior to commercial sale. In the case of a biological product, a biological license application (“BLA”) must be obtained prior to marketing and batch
releasing. To obtain marketing approval, data from adequate and well-controlled clinical investigations, demonstrating to the FDA’s satisfaction a new drug’s safety and
effectiveness for its intended use, are required. Such data are generated in studies conducted pursuant to an IND submission, similar to that required for a CTA in Canada. As in
Canada, clinical studies are characterized as Phase I, Phase II and Phase III trials or a combination thereof. In a marketing application, the manufacturer must also demonstrate the
identity, potency, quality and purity of the active ingredients of the new drug involved, and the stability of those ingredients. Further, the manufacturing facilities, equipment,
processes and quality controls for the new drug must comply with the FDA’s cGMP regulations for drugs or biological products both in a pre-licensing inspection before product
licensing and in subsequent periodic inspections after licensing. An establishment license (“EL”) grants the sponsor permission to fabricate, package, label, distribute, import,
wholesale or test of the newly approved drug.A five-year period of market exclusivity for a drug comprising a new chemical entity (“NCE”) is available to an applicant that
succeeds in obtaining FDA approval of a NCE, provided the active ingredient of the NCE has never before been approved in an NDA. During this exclusivity period, the FDA may
not approve any abbreviated application filed by another sponsor for a generic version of the NCE. To extend this market protection, especially important when the original patent
may be close to expiration, new indications or dosage forms of previously approved drugs can receive new use or new clinical study exclusivity- up to a three-year period of market
exclusivity. During this time, the FDA may not approve an abbreviated application filed by another sponsor for a generic version of the product for that use or indication. For
orphan drugs or biologics, a seven-year period exclusivity is granted to benefit the marketing of a drug, which treats rare diseases or conditions with less than 200,000 patients.

The FDA has “fast track” regulations intended to accelerate the approval process for the development, evaluation and marketing of new drugs used to diagnose or treat
life-threatening and severely debilitating illnesses for which no satisfactory alternative therapies exist. ‘“Fast track” designation affords early interaction with the FDA in terms of
protocol design and eligibility for expedited review of an NDA. It also permits, although it does not require, the FDA to issue marketing approval based on a surrogate endpoint (a
measurement intended to substitute for the clinical measurement of interest, usually prolongation of survival) although the FDA will often require subsequent clinical trials or even
post-approval efficacy studies).

The above describes briefly what is necessary for a new drug to be approved for marketing in North America. The European Medicines Agency (EMEA) and Japanese
Pharmaceuticals and Medical Devices Agency (PMDA) are also important regulatory authorities in drug development. Together with the FDA, they are the three International
Conference on Harmonization (“ICH”) parties which oversee the three largest markets for drug sales.

C. Organizational Structure

Old Lorus was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act(Ontario) on September 5, 1986 under the name RML Medical Laboratories Inc. On October 28, 1991,
RML Medical Laboratories Inc. amalgamated with Mint Gold Resources Ltd., resulting in Old Lorus becoming a reporting issuer (as defined under Canadian securities law) in
Ontario, on such date. On August 25, 1992, Old Lorus changed its name to IMUTEC Corporation. On November 27, 1996, Old Lorus changed its name to Imutec Pharma Inc.,
and on November 19, 1998, Old Lorus changed its name to Lorus Therapeutics Inc. On October 1, 2005, Old Lorus continued under the Canada Business Corporations Act. On
July 10, 2007, the Old Lorus changed its name from Lorus Therapeutics Inc. to 4325231 Canada Inc. and on October 17, 2007 changed its name to Global Summit Real Estate
Inc. As of the Arrangement Date, Old Lorus is not related to New Lorus.
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New Lorus was incorporated on November 1, 2006 as 6650309 Canada Inc. under the Canada Business Corporations Act.

On the Arrangement Date, Old Lorus completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization with, among others, 6650309 Canada Inc., subsequently renamed
Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (“New Lorus™), 6707157 Canada Inc. and Pinnacle International Lands, Inc. As a result of the plan of arrangement and reorganization, among other
things, each Share of Old Lorus was exchanged for one Share of New Lorus and the assets (excluding certain future tax attributes and related valuation allowance) and liabilities
of Old Lorus (including all of the shares of its subsidiaries held by it) were transferred, directly or indirectly, to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. New Lorus continued the
business of Old Lorus after the Arrangement Date with the same officers and employees and continued to be governed by the same directors as Old Lorus prior to the
Arrangement Date. At the Arrangement Date, New Lorus’ articles of incorporation were amended to change the name of the Company from 6650309 Canada Inc. to Lorus
Therapeutics Inc.

The address of the Company’s head and registered office is 2 Meridian Road, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, MOW 4Z7. Our corporate website is www.lorusthera.com. The
contents of the website are specifically not included in this Form 20-F by reference.

Our Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “LOR”.

Lorus’ subsidiaries are GeneSense Technologies Inc. (“GeneSense”), a corporation incorporated under the laws of Canada, of which Lorus owns 100% of the issued and
outstanding share capital, and NuChem Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“NuChem”), a corporation incorporated under the laws of Ontario, of which Lorus owns 80% of the issued and
outstanding voting share capital and 100% of the issued and outstanding non-voting preference share capital and Pharma Immune Inc. (“Pharma Immune”), a corporation
incorporated under the laws of Delaware, of which Lorus owned 100% of the issued and outstanding share capital up to June 22, 2009 at which time it disposed of these shares
(See “Business Overview - Secured Convertible Debentures”). The Corporation wound up the operations of GeneSense into Lorus effective May 31, 2009.

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Our head office, which occupies 20,500 square feet, is located at 2 Meridian Road, Toronto, Ontario. The leased premises include approximately 8,000 square feet of
laboratory and research space. We believe that our existing facilities are adequate to meet our requirements for the near term. Our current lease expires on March 31, 2011.

Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
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Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
A. Operating Results

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended May 31, 2009 and the accompanying
notes (the “Financial Statements”) set forth elsewhere in this report. The Financial Statements, and all financial information discussed below, have been prepared in accordance
with Canadian GAAP. Significant differences between Canadian GAAP and U.S. GAAP are identified in the Supplementary Information included with the Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report. All amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted. In this Management's Discussion and Analysis, “Lorus”, the “Company”,
“we”, “us” and “our” each refers to Lorus Therapeutics Inc. both before and after the Arrangement Date.

Overview

Lorus is a life sciences company focused on the discovery, research and development of effective anticancer therapies with a high safety profile. Lorus has worked to
establish a diverse anticancer product pipeline, with products in various stages of development ranging from pre-clinical to an advanced Phase II clinical trial. A growing
intellectual property portfolio supports our diverse product pipeline. Lorus’ pipeline is a combination of internally developed products and products licensed in from other entities
at a pre-clinical stage.

We believe that the future of cancer treatment and management lies in drugs that are effective, safe and have minimal side effects, and therefore improve a patient's
quality of life. Many of the cancer drugs currently approved for the treatment and management of cancer are toxic with severe side effects, and we therefore believe that a product
development plan based on effective and safe drugs could have broad applications in cancer treatment. Lorus' strategy is to continue the development of our product pipeline using
several therapeutic approaches. Each therapeutic approach is dependent on different technologies, which we believe mitigates the development risks associated with a single
technology platform. We evaluate the merits of each product throughout the clinical trial process and consider commercial viability as appropriate. The most advanced anticancer
drugs in our pipeline, each of which flow from different platform technologies, are antisense, small molecules and immunotherapeutics.

Our business model is to take our product candidates through pre-clinical testing and into Phase I and Phase II clinical trials. It is our intention to then partner or co-
develop these product candidates after successful completion of Phase I or II clinical trials. Lorus will give careful consideration in the selection of partners that can best advance
the drug candidates into a pivotal Phase III clinical trial and, upon successful results, commercialization. Our objective is to receive cash for milestone payments and royalties from
such partnerships which will support continued development of our product pipeline. We assess each product candidate and determine the optimal time to work towards partnering
out that product candidate.

Our success is dependent upon several factors, including, maintaining sufficient levels of funding through public and/or private financing, establishing the efficacy and
safety of our products in clinical trials and securing strategic partnerships.

Our loss from operations for the year ended May 31, 2009 decreased to $9.3 million ($0.04 per share) compared to $12.6 million ($0.06 per share) during the same period
in fiscal 2008. During the year ended May 31, 2009 the Company recorded a gain on sale of shares related to the Arrangement (as described in the section titled “Plan of
Arrangement and Corporate Reorganization™) of $450 thousand resulting in a net loss and other comprehensive loss for the period of $8.9 million ($0.04 per share). During the
year ended May 31, 2008, the Company realized a gain on the sale of the shares related to the Arrangement in the amount of $6.3 million resulting in net loss and other
comprehensive loss for the period of $6.3 million ($0.03 per share).
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The decrease in net loss from operations for the year ended May 31, 2009 compared with the prior year is due primarily to lower research and development costs of $2.5
million resulting from less spending on GLP-toxicity studies as well as LOR-2040 drug manufacturing costs, lower general and administrative costs of $757 thousand due to
reduced personnel, legal and corporate governance costs as well as lower stock based compensation costs of $273 thousand as a result of a lower share price in the current year and
one time option grants in the third quarter of 2008 and option modification costs incurred in the second quarter of 2008. In addition, interest income decreased by $272 thousand in
2009 to $270 thousand as a result of lower cash and investment balances and lower prime rates of interest.

We utilized cash of $7.2 million in our operating activities in the year ended May 31, 2009 compared with $10.2 million in the prior year. The decrease is primarily a
result of a reduced net loss offset by lower accounts payable and accrued liabilities balances in the current year.

At May 31, 2009, we had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of $5.9 million compared to $9.4 million at May 31, 2008.
As a result of the Company's current cash position, management is currently undertaking actions to reduce expenditures while at the same time pursuing investment and
other opportunities aimed at funding its research and development programs. As part of its cost reduction strategies, management expects to reduce its research and development

costs by limiting activities and reduce its general and administrative costs by limiting expenditures and reducing its labour costs, among other things, until such time as the
Company has sufficient capital to support a full development program.
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Selected Annual Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data has been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the accompanying audited Financial Statements for the
year ended May 31, 2009 which are prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP.

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit()
(amounts in Canadian 000's except for per common share

data)
Years Ended May 31

2009 2008 2007
REVENUE $ 184 § 43§ 107
EXPENSES
Cost of sales - 2 16
Research and development 3,757 6,260 3,505
General and administrative 2,958 3,715 3,727
Stock-based compensation 446 719 503
Depreciation and amortization 189 317 402
Operating expenses 7,350 11,013 8,153
Interest expense on convertible debentures 707 1,029 1,050
Accretion in carrying value of secured convertible debentures 1,707 1,176 935
Amortization of deferred financing charges - - 110
Interest income (270) (542) (503)
Loss from operations for the period 9,310 12,633 9,638
Gain on sale of shares (450) (6,299) -
Net loss and other comprehensive income 8,860 6,334 9,638
Basic and diluted loss per common share $ 0.04 $ 003 $ 0.05
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per
share 247,084 215,084 204,860
Total Assets $ 7,527 $ 11,607 $ 15,104
Total Long-term liabilities $ - 8 12,742 § 11,566

() On July 10, 2007, the Company completed the Arrangement. As a result of the Arrangement, each Share of Old Lorus was exchanged for one Share of the Company and the
assets (excluding certain future tax assets and related valuation allowance) and liabilities of Old Lorus were transferred to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. The Company
continued the business of Old Lorus after the Arrangement Date with the same officers and employees and continued to be governed by the same directors as Old Lorus prior to
the Arrangement Date. Therefore, the Company’s operations have been accounted for on a continuity of interest basis and accordingly, the consolidated financial statement
information above reflect that of the Company as if it had always carried on the business formerly carried on by Old Lorus.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted -Canadian GAAP
The following accounting policies were adopted during the year ended May 31, 2009.
Accounting changes:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the Accounting Standards Board’s (“AcSB”) replacement of Section 1506, Accounting Changes. The new standard allows
for voluntary changes in accounting policy only when they result in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information; requires changes in accounting
policy to be applied retrospectively unless doing so is impracticable; requires prior period errors to be corrected retrospectively; and calls for enhanced disclosures about the effects
of changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors on the financial statements. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended May 31, 2009.

Capital disclosures:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the new recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Handbook Section 1535, Capital
Disclosures (“Section 1535”). Section 1535 establishes standards for disclosing information about an entity’s capital and how it is managed. It requires the disclosure of
information about: (i) an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; (ii) an entity’s compliance with any capital requirements; and (iii) if it has not complied,
the consequences of such non-compliance. The Company has included disclosures recommended by Section 1535 in note 8 of the financial statements included in Item 18 of this
Annual Report.

Financial instruments:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the new recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures (“Section 3862”) and
Handbook Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation (“Section 3863”). Section 3862 requires entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that enable users
to evaluate the significance of financial instruments on the entity’s financial position and its performance and the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to
which the entity is exposed during the period and at the balance sheet date, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 establishes standards for presentation of financial
instruments and non-financial derivatives. It deals with the classification of financial instruments, from the perspective of the issuer, between liabilities and equities, the
classification of related interest, dividends, losses and gains, and circumstances in which financial assets and financial liabilities are offset. The adoption of these standards did not
have any impact on the classification and valuation of the Company’s financial instruments. The Company has included disclosures recommended by these new Handbook
Sections in note 9 of the financial statements included in Item 18 of this Annual Report.

General standards of financial s t presentati

In May 2007, the AcSB amended CICA Handbook Section 1400 “General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation”, to change the guidance related to
management’s responsibility to assess the ability of the entity to continue as a going concern.

The main features of the changes are as follows:
i.  management is required to make an assessment of an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern;

ii. in making its assessment, management takes into account all available information about the future, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve months from
the balance sheet date;

iii. financial statements must be prepared on a going concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the entity, to cease trading or cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so;
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iv. disclosure is required of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

v. when financial statements are not prepared on a going concern basis, that fact should be disclosed, together with the basis on which the financial statements are
prepared and the reason the entity is not regarded as a going concern.

The effective date of these amendments is for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008, specifically June 1,
2008 for the Company. The new disclosure requirements pertaining to this Section are contained in note 1 of the financial statements included in Item 18 of this Annual Report.

The following accounting policies were adopted during the year ended May 31, 2008.
Financial instruments - disclosure and presentation

Effective June 1, 2007, the Company adopted the recommendations of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' ("CICA") Handbook Section 1530,
Comprehensive Income ("Section 1530"); Section 3855, Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement ("Section 3855"), retroactively without restatement of prior
periods. These sections provide standards for recognition, measurement, disclosure and presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives. Section
1530 provides standards for the reporting and presentation of comprehensive income, which represents the change in equity, from transactions and other events and circumstances
from non-owner sources. Other comprehensive income refers to items recognized in comprehensive income that are excluded from net income calculated in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("Canadian GAAP"). As a result of adopting the above standards, the Company did not recognize any other comprehensive
income in its financial statements.

Upon adoption of the new standards on June 1, 2007, the Company designated its financial assets and liabilities as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents as at June 1, 2007 and acquired thereafter are classified as held-for-trading investments and measured at fair value. By virtue of the nature of

these assets, fair value is generally equal to cost plus accrued interest. Where applicable, any significant change in market value would result in a gain or loss being recognized in
the consolidated statements of operations. As a result of adopting the new standards, there was no material change in valuation of these assets.

Short-term investments, marketable securities and other investments:

Short-term investments consist of fixed income government investments and corporate instruments. Any government and corporate investments with a stated maturity
date that are not cash equivalents are classified as held-to-maturity investments, except where the Company does not intend to hold to maturity and, therefore, the investment is
designated as held-for-trading. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, while held-for-trading investments are
measured at fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. The Company designated certain corporate instruments with
maturities greater than one year previously carried at amortized cost as held-for-trading investments. This change in accounting policy resulted in a decrease in the carrying
amount of $27 thousand and an increase in the opening deficit accumulated during the development stage of $27 thousand. The Company recognized a net unrealized gain in the
consolidated statements of operations for the year ended May 31, 2008 of $7 thousand.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are typically short-term in nature and classified as other financial liabilities. These liabilities are carried at amortized cost. As a
result of adopting the new standards, there is no material change in the carrying value of these liabilities.
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Secured convertible debentures:
The secured convertible debentures are classified as other financial liabilities and accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest method, which is consistent

with the Company's accounting policy prior to the adoption of Section 3855. The deferred financing charges related to the secured convertible debentures, formerly included in
long-term assets, are now included as part of the carrying value of the secured convertible debentures and continue to be amortized using the effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives:

Section 3855 requires that the Company identify embedded derivatives that require separation from the related host contract and measure those embedded derivatives at
fair value. Subsequent change in fair value of embedded derivatives is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations in the period in which the change occurs.

The Company did not identify any embedded derivatives that required separation from the related host contract and measured at fair value as at June 1, 2007.

Transaction costs:

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or liabilities are accounted for as part of the respective asset or liability's
carrying value at inception except for held-for-trading securities where the costs are expensed immediately.

No new accounting policies were adopted during the year ended May 31, 2007 under Canadian GAAP.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted - U.S. GAAP

On June 1, 2008, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 157 ("SFAS 157"), Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value under United States GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurements.

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be recorded at fair value, the Company considers the
principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact and it considers assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.

SFAS 157 requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. SFAS 157 establishes a fair
value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective evidence surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial instrument's categorization within the fair
value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. SFAS 157 prioritizes the inputs into three levels that may be used to
measure fair value:

* Level 1 - applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 - applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets);
or model-derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data.

«  Level 3 - applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of
the assets or liabilities.
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On June 1, 2008, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 159 ("SFAS 159"), The Fair Value Options for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which permits entities to
choose to measure many financial instruments as fair value on a contract-by-contract basis. SFAS 159 applies to all reporting entities and contains financial statement presentation
and disclosure requirements for assets and liabilities reported at fair value as a consequence of the election. The adoption of this change did not have an impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company periodically reviews its financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting policies to ensure that they provide accurate and transparent
information relative to the current economic and business environment. As part of this process, the Company has reviewed its selection, application and communication of critical
accounting policies and financial disclosures. Management has discussed the development and selection of the critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure relating to critical accounting policies in this MD&A. Other important accounting polices are described in note 3
of the Financial Statements included in Item18 of this Annual Report.

Drug Development Costs

We incur costs related to the research and development of pharmaceutical products and technologies for the management of cancer. These costs include internal and
external costs for preclinical research and clinical trials, drug costs, regulatory compliance costs and patent application costs. All research costs are expensed as incurred as
required under Canadian GAAP.

Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in clinical trials, are expensed as incurred unless they meet the criteria under Canadian GAAP for deferral and
amortization. The Company continually assesses its activities to determine when, if ever, development costs may qualify for capitalization. By expensing the research and
development costs as required under Canadian GAAP, the value of the product portfolio is not reflected on the Company's Financial Statements.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have applied the fair value based method to expense stock options awarded since June 1, 2002 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as allowed under
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Handbook Section 3870. The model estimates the fair value of fully transferable options, without vesting restrictions, which
significantly differs from the stock option awards issued by Lorus. The model also requires four highly subjective assumptions including future stock price volatility and expected
time until exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values. The increase or decrease of one of these assumptions could materially increase or decrease the fair value of stock
options issued and the associated expense.

Valuation Allowance for Future Tax Assets
We have a net tax benefit resulting from non-capital losses carried forward, and scientific research and experimental development expenditures. In light of the continued
net losses and uncertainty regarding our future ability to generate taxable income, management is of the opinion that it is not more likely than not that these tax assets will be

realized in the foreseeable future and hence, a full valuation allowance has been recorded against these income tax assets. Consequently, no future income tax assets or liabilities
are recorded on the balance sheets.
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The generation of future taxable income could result in the recognition of some portion or all of the remaining benefits, which could result in an improvement in our
results of operations through the recovery of future income taxes.

Valuation of Long Lived Assets

We periodically review the useful lives and the carrying values of our long-lived assets. We review for impairment in long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual
disposition of an asset is less than its carrying amount, it is considered to be impaired. An impairment loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its fair value; which is estimated as the expected future cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risks associated with the recovery of the asset.

To date management believes that there have been no material changes to the assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements that would materially
affect the valuations of the above.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Yet To Be Adopted - Canadian GAAP
The following Recent Accounting Pronouncements under Canadian GAAP have yet to be adopted:
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The CICA plans to converge Canadian GAAP with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) over a transition period expected to end in 2011. The Company has
begun to assess the impact of the transition to IFRS on the Company’s financial statements but has yet to determine the extent to which it will affect the financial statements when
these standards are implemented.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Section 3064, “Goodwill and intangible assets”, will be replacing Section 3062, “Goodwill and other intangible assets” and Section 3450, “Research and development
costs”. This new section, issued in February 2008, will be applicable to financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2008. Accordingly, the
Company will adopt the new standards for its fiscal year beginning June 1, 2009. It establishes standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of goodwill
subsequent to its initial recognition and of intangible assets by profit-oriented enterprises. Standards concerning goodwill are unchanged from the standards included in the
previous Section 3062. The adoption of this new section is not expected to have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments - Disclosures

In June 2009, the CICA amended section 3862, “Financial Instruments - Disclosures”, to include additional disclosure requirements about fair value measurement for
financial instruments and liquidity risk disclosures. These amendments require a three level hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the fair value
measurements. Fair value of assets and liabilities included in Level 1 are determined by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Assets and
liabilities in Level 2 include valuations using inputs other than the quoted prices for which all significant inputs are based on observable market data, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 valuations are based on inputs that are not based on observable market data. The amendments to Section 3862 apply for annual financial statements relating to fiscal years
ending after September 30, 2009.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Yet To Be Adopted - U.S. GAAP
The following Recent Accounting Pronouncements under U.S. GAAP have yet to be adopted:

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2”), which delayed the effective date of SFAS 157 for all
non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually),
until the beginning of the Company’s fiscal 2010 year. The Company does not expect that the application of SFAS 157, when applied to non-financial assets and non-financial
liabilities, will have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 141R, Business Combinations ("SFAS 141R"), which requires most identifiable assets, liabilities, non-controlling
interests and goodwill acquired in a business combination to be recorded at full fair value. SFAS 141R applies to all business combinations, including combinations among mutual
entities and combinations by contract alone. Under SFAS 141R, all business combinations will be accounted for by applying the acquisition method. SFAS 141R is effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008, specifically June 1,
2009 for the Company.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements ("SFAS 160"), which will requires non-
controlling interests (previously referred to as minority interests) to be treated as a separate component of equity, not as a liability or other item outside permanent equity. SFAS
160 applies to the accounting for noncontrolling interests and transactions with non-controlling interest holders in consolidated financial statements. SFAS 160 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008, specifically June 1, 2009 for the Company. Earlier application is prohibited. SFAS 160 will be applied prospectively to
all non-controlling interests, including any that arose before the effective date, except that comparative period information must be recast to classify non-controlling interests in
equity, attribute net income and other comprehensive income to noncontrolling interests and provide other disclosures required by SFAS 160. The Company does not expect the
adoption of SFAS 160 to have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB ratified EITF No. 07-1, Accounting for Collaborative Agreements ("EITF 07-1"), which provides guidance on how the parties to a
collaborative agreement should account for costs incurred and revenue generated on sales to third parties, how sharing payments pursuant to a collaboration agreement should be
presented in the income statement and certain related disclosure requirements. EITF 07-1 is effective for the first annual or interim reporting period beginning after December 15,
2008, and should be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented for all collaborative arrangements existing as of the effective date.

The company will adopt the provisions of EITF 07-1 effective June 1, 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of EITF 07-1 will
have on its consolidated results of operations and financial position.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ("SFAS 161"), which requires enhanced
disclosures about an entity's derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting. Mainly, entities are required to provide enhanced
disclosures about (i) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (ii) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under Statement 133 and its
related interpretations, and (iii) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS 161 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, specifically June 1, 2009 for the Company. SFAS 161 encourages, but does not
require, comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 to have an impact on its consolidated financial
position, financial performance or cash flows.

In May 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 165 (“SFAS 165”), Subsequent Events, which establishes the general standards of accounting and disclosure of events that
occur after the balance sheet date, but before financial statements are issued or available to be issued. SFAS 165 is effective for annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. The
Company will prospectively adopt SFAS 165 in its financial statements for the year ending May 31, 2010 and will make the required disclosures.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 168 ("SFAS 168"), The FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ ("Codification") and the Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles to replace SFAS 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, which became effective November 13, 2008. The Codification
will become the source of authoritative United States GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by non-governmental entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative United States GAAP for SEC registrants. On the effective date of
this statement, the Codification will supersede all then-existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards. All other non-grandfathered non-SEC accounting literature not
included in the Codification will become non-authoritative. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15,
2009. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 168 will have an impact on its consolidated financial statements other than changes to note disclosures.
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In September 2009, the FASB ratified EITF No. 08-1, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables ("EITF 08-1"), which addresses the criteria for separating
consideration in a multiple element arrangement from EITF No. 00-21. The consensus will require the use of an estimated selling price for deliverables in circumstances where
vendor specific objective evidence or third party evidence of selling price does not exist. Companies will be required to use the relative selling price method to allocate the
arrangement consideration to all elements, thereby eliminating the residual method. EITF 08-1 also enhances disclosure requirements for multiple element arrangements. EITF
08-1 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of EITF 08-1 will have on its consolidated results of operations and financial position.

Operating Results
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended May 31, 2009 increased to $184 thousand compared with revenue of $43 thousand for the prior year and $107 thousand in 2007. This increase
in revenue is related to an increase in milestone revenues associated with the license of Virulizin to Zor and recognition of revenue on milestone payments received in prior periods.
This revenue is recognized over the remaining period of a service contract whereby Lorus has agreed to provide consulting services to Zor. There remains $105 thousand in
deferred revenue which has been recorded in Accrued Liabilities on the balance sheet as at May 31, 2009. Management anticipates that this revenue will be recognizable over the
remaining term of three months as services are provided. The decreased revenue in 2008 compared with 2007 is related to reduction in laboratory services work performed by
Lorus personnel on behalf of other companies.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses totaled $3.8 million in the year ended May 31, 2009 compared to $6.3 million during the prior year and $3.5 million in 2007. The decrease in
spending during the year ended May 31, 2009 compared with the prior year is due to the completion of GLP-toxicity studies for both our LOR-2040 bladder cancer and LOR-253
small molecule programs during the year. These research programs were ongoing in the prior year. In addition, during the year ended May 31, 2008 we manufactured LOR-2040
drug. In 2009, we manufactured LOR-253 drug, our lead small molecule, the manufacturing cost of which is significantly less than LOR-2040 contributing to the decrease in
research spending. The increase in research and development expenditures in 2008 as compared to 2007 is due to a significant increase in activity in our LOR-2040 and small
molecule development programs and LOR-2040 manufacturing costs.

Costs incurred during the current period and to date are summarized in note 11 to the Financial Statements. In respect of future costs to be incurred on the Company’s
principal pipeline products:

Immunotherapy

This clinical approach stimulates the body's natural defences against cancer. The Company's lead immunotherapeutic drug, Virulizin®, completed a global Phase III
clinical trial for the treatment of pancreatic cancer during 2005, but overall survival data did not reach statistical significance. In April 2008, the Company announced the signing
of an exclusive multinational license agreement with Zor formed as a subsidiary of Zoticon Bioventures Inc, a research-driven biopharmaceutical group, to further develop and
commercialize Virulizin® for human therapeutic applications. Subsequent to the year end, the Company assigned the rights under the license agreement with Zor, sold the
intellectual property associated with Virulizin, but retained a perpetual royalty free license for the animal use of Virulizin. TEMIC will be fully responsible for all clinical and
regulatory costs associated with commercialization of Virulizin in territories not covered by the Zor license agreement.
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Antisense

Antisense drugs are genetic molecules that inhibit the production of disease-causing proteins. LOR-2040 (formerly GTI-2040) is the Company's lead antisense drug, and
has shown preclinical anticancer activity across a broad range of cancers and is currently in various Phase I/II trials in several solid tumor types, which are sponsored by the U.S.
National Cancer Institute. Lorus has selected Acute Myeloid Leukemia ("AML") as a lead cancer indication for clinical development of LOR-2040. LOR-2040 is currently in a
Company-sponsored advanced Phase II clinical trial in combination with high dose Ara-C as salvage therapy in refractory and relapsed AML patients under 60 years of age.

Small Molecule

The Company is utilizing its small molecule drug screening technologies and preclinical scientific expertise to identify several groups of novel small molecules that show
strong anticancer activity and a high therapeutic index due to low toxicity. The Company's proprietary group of novel small molecule compounds, which include lead compounds
LOR-253 and LOR-220, have unique structures and modes of action, and are promising candidates for the development of novel anticancer agents with high safety profiles.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses totaled $3.0 million for the year ended May 31, 2009 compared to $3.7 million in the prior year and $3.7 million in 2007. The
decrease in general and administrative costs for the current year is the result of lower personnel costs, reduced legal and patent costs and lower annual meeting costs.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense, net of forfeitures, totaled $446 thousand for the year ended May 31, 2009 compared with $719 thousand in the prior year and $503
thousand in 2007. The lower stock based compensation for the year ending May 31, 2009 is due primarily to a lower share price in the current year and one-time increase in
options granted during 2008 that vested immediately in order to bring option granting practices in line with industry standards. No similar transaction occurred in 2009 or
2007. Also in 2008, the Company recorded an expense of $83 thousand relating to the extension of options to directors not standing for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting and Dr. Wright for options granted in his capacity as President and CEO. A similar extension was made in 2009 for directors not seeking re-election resulting in a
$3 thousand additional expense.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses decreased to $189 thousand in the year ended May 31, 2009 as compared to $317 thousand in the prior year and $402 thousand in
2007. The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense is the result of reduced capital asset purchases over the past three fiscal years. During the current year, we acquired
research and development equipment that provides us with the ability to do certain testing in house that was previously outsourced.

Interest Expense

Non-cash interest expense was $707 thousand in the year ended May 31, 2009 compared with $1.0 million in the prior year and $1.0 million in 2007. These amounts
represent interest at a rate of prime plus 1% on the $15.0 million convertible debentures. The decrease in interest expense in fiscal 2009 compared with fiscal 2008 and 2007 is a
function of significantly lower prime rates in comparison with the prior years. All interest accrued on the debentures to date has been paid in Shares of the Company.

Accretion in Carrying Value of Secured Convertible Debentures

Accretion in the carrying value of the Company’s secured convertible debentures was $1.7 million in the year May 31, 2009 compared with $1.2 million in the prior year
and $935 thousand in 2007. The accretion charges arise as under GAAP the Company has allocated the proceeds from each tranche of the debentures to the debt and equity
instruments issued on a relative fair value basis resulting in the $15.0 million debentures having an initial cumulative carrying value of $9.8 million as of their dates of
issuance. Each reporting period, the Company is required to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such that at maturity on October 6, 2009, the carrying value
of the debentures would be the face value of $15.0 million. The increase in expense year ended May 31, 2009 compared with the prior year and 2008 compared with 2007 is due
to the increasing principal balance to which the implicit interest is applied in determining the accretion amount. Subsequent to the year-end the Company settled its secured
convertible debentures and extinguished its liability in the amount of $15.0 million for consideration of cash and other assets.
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Interest Income

Interest income totalled $270 thousand in the year ended May 31, 2009 compared to $542 thousand in the prior year and $503 thousand in 2007. The decrease in interest
income during the current year is due to lower average cash and marketable securities balances and significantly lower interest rates available on investments in comparison with
the prior years.

Loss from operations for the period

For the reasons discussed above, our loss from operations for the year ended May 31, 2009 decreased to $9.3 million ($0.04 per share) compared to $12.6 million ($0.06
per share) in the prior year and $9.6 million in 2007. During the year ended May 31, 2009 the Company recorded a gain on sale of shares related to the Arrangement of $450
thousand which resulted in a net loss and other comprehensive loss of $8.9 million ($0.04 per share). During the year ended May 31, 2008, the Company realized a gain related to
the Arrangement in the amount of $6.3 million resulting in a net loss and other comprehensive loss for the period of $6.3 million ($0.03 per share). The decrease in loss in 2008
compared to 2007 is a result of the impact of the gain on sale of shares related to the Arrangement partly offset by increased research and development costs.

Gain on sale of shares

As a result of the Arrangement described below, the Company recognized a gain on the sale of the shares of Old Lorus to the investor of approximately $6.3 million for the year
ended May 31, 2008. In the year ended May 31, 2009 the Company recognized a gain on sale of $450 thousand which represents the $600 thousand released from escrow less
$150 thousand accrued as management’s estimate of the fair value of the liability associated with the indemnification described below. This liability is included on the balance
sheet in Accrued Liabilities as at May 31, 2009.

Under the Arrangement, New Lorus and its subsidiaries have agreed to indemnify Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees from and against all damages, losses,
expenses (including fines and penalties), other third party costs and legal expenses, to which any of them may be subject arising out of any matter occurring (i) prior to, at or after
the effective time of the Arrangement (“Effective Time”) and directly or indirectly relating to any of the assets of Old Lorus transferred to New Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement
(including losses for income, sales, excise and other taxes arising in connection with the transfer of any such asset) or conduct of the business prior to the Effective Time; (ii) prior
to, at or after the Effective Time as a result of any and all interests, rights, liabilities and other matters relating to the assets transferred by Old Lorus to New Lorus pursuant to the
Arrangement; and (iii) prior to or at the Effective Time and directly or indirectly relating to, with certain exceptions, any of the activities of Old Lorus or the Arrangement.

In reference to those indemnifications, $600 thousand of the proceeds on the transaction were held in escrow until the first anniversary of the transaction and were released
to Lorus in July 2008. There have been no claims under this indemnification to date.
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Plan of Arrangement and corporate reorganization

On July 10, 2007 (the “Arrangement Date”), the “Company”, (“New Lorus”) completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization with, among others, 4325231
Canada Inc., formerly Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (“Old Lorus”), 6707157 Canada Inc. and Pinnacle International Lands, Inc (the “Arrangement”). As a result of the plan of
arrangement and reorganization, among other things, each Share of Old Lorus was exchanged for one Share of the Company and the assets (excluding certain future tax attributes
and related valuation allowance) and liabilities of Old Lorus (including all of the shares of its subsidiaries held by it) were transferred, directly or indirectly, to the Company and/or
its subsidiaries. The Company continued the business of Old Lorus after the Arrangement Date with the same officers and employees and continued to be governed by the same
directors as Old Lorus prior to the Arrangement Date. Therefore, the Company’s operations have been accounted for on a continuity of interest basis and accordingly, the
consolidated financial statement information included in this MD&A reflect that of the Company as if it had always carried on the business formerly carried on by Old Lorus.

License Transactions

Effective April 8, 2008, we entered into a non-exclusive multinational license agreement with Zor formed as a subsidiary of Zoticon Bioventures Inc. to further develop
and commercialize Virulizin® for human therapeutic applications.

Under the terms of the agreement, we received an upfront licensing fee of $100 thousand and a subsequent milestone payment of $170,000, and were entitled to receive in
excess of US$12 million in milestone payments based on progress through financing and clinical development, and royalties on net sales that vary from 10-20% depending on the
level of sales of Virulizin® achieved in those territories covered by the license and subject to certain other adjustments. Zor assumed all future costs for the development of the
licensed technology.

At the same time, we entered into a service agreement with Zor to assist in the transfer of knowledge. Under this agreement, we agreed to provide Zor with 300 hours of
consulting service during a period of 18 months.

In addition, we acquired a 25% equity interest in Zor in exchange for a capital contribution of $2,500.
On June 22, 2009, the Company reached a settlement with TEMIC with respect to the purchase and settlement of the $15.0 million secured convertible debentures.

Under the agreement, Lorus purchased all of the convertible debentures from TEMIC for a cash payment on close of the transaction of $3.3 million, the assignment of the
rights under the license agreement with ZOR, sale of intellectual property associated with Virulizin and sale of Lorus' shares in its wholly owned subsidiary, Pharma Immune,
which holds an equity interest in ZOR (the "Consideration"). Under the agreement, Lorus will be entitled to 50% of any royalties received under the ZOR license agreement and
50% of the value of any transaction completed in territories not covered by the ZOR license agreement. Lorus also retains a perpetual royalty free license for the animal use of
Virulizin. TEMIC will be fully responsible for all clinical and regulatory costs associated with commercialization of Virulizin in territories not covered by the ZOR license
agreement. Lorus will assist TEMIC with certain agreed upon services.

For receipt of this consideration, TEMIC has released all security interest in the assets of Lorus.
Corporate Changes

As discussed above, on July 10, 2007, the Company and Old Lorus completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization with, among others, 6707157 Canada
Inc. and Pinnacle International Lands, Inc. As part of the Arrangement, all of the assets and liabilities of Old Lorus (including all of the shares of its subsidiaries held by it), with
the exception of certain future tax assets were transferred, directly or indirectly, from Old Lorus to the Company. Securityholders in Old Lorus exchanged their securities in Old
Lorus for equivalent securities in New Lorus and the board of directors and management of Old Lorus continued as the board of directors and management of New Lorus. New
Lorus obtained substitutional listings of its Shares on both the Toronto Stock Exchange and the NSYE Amex (formerly the American Stock Exchange). As discussed under the
heading “Regulatory Matters” below, the Company voluntarily delisted from the NYSE Amex effective October 31, 2008.
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As part of the Arrangement, the Company changed its name to Lorus Therapeutics Inc. and continued as a biopharmaceutical company, specializing in the research and
development of pharmaceutical products and technologies for the management of cancer as a continuation of the business of Old Lorus. In October 2007, Old Lorus changed its
name from 4325231 Canada Inc. to Global Summit Real Estate Inc.

Regulatory Matter

Lorus received notice from the NYSE Amex (formerly the American Stock Exchange) dated February 13, 2008, indicating that we needed to comply with the $6 million
stockholder's equity threshold required for continued listing under NYSE Amex Company Guide Sec. 1003(a)(iii). This notification was triggered by the decline of Lorus' market
capitalization to less than $50 million, which previously exempted us from meeting the minimum stockholder's equity requirement.

Lorus voluntarily delisted from NYSE Amex effective October 31, 2008
Quarterly Results of Operations

The selected financial information provided below is derived from the Company’s unaudited quarterly financial statements for each of the last eight quarters.

Research and development expenditures were higher in the four quarters ended August 31, 2008 in comparison to the most recent three quarters as a result of increased
activity related to the LOR-2040 and LOR-253 programs for which development during these periods. In particular research and development costs were significantly higher
during the quarter ended May 31, 2008 as the Company incurred manufacturing costs associated with production of additional quantities of LOR-2040 to support the ongoing
Phase II clinical trial in AML. Research and development expenditures were lower in the quarter ended August 31, 2007 as the Company was in between wrapping up the

Virulizin® Phase III clinical trial and escalating development within the LOR-2040 and LOR-253 programs.

Overall, research and development expenditures has been lower in the most recent three quarters ended compared with the prior periods due to reduced spending on the
small molecule and LOR-204 studies as a result of the completion/reduction in third party research and toxicity testing costs.

General and administrative expenses have remained relatively consistent across last eight quarters with the exception of the following quarters:

* the quarter ended November 30, 2007 reflecting corporate governance costs and increased corporate communication costs over the previous periods, and
*  the quarter ended May 31, 2008 resulting from increased legal, professional and internal control compliance fees.

The Company recognized a gain on sale of shares of $6.1 million on the close of the Arrangement as discussed above in the quarter ended August 31, 2007. For the

quarter ended August 31, 2008 the Company recognized an additional gain on sale of shares of $450 thousand related to the release of funds from escrow net of the estimated value
of the indemnifications provided under the Arrangement, as discussed above.
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(Amounts in 000’s except for per common share May 31, Feb 28, Nov. 30, Aug. 31, May 31, Feb. 29, Nov. 30, Aug. 31,

data) 2009 2009 2008 2008 2008 2008 2007 2007
Revenue $ 78 $ 64 $ 39 § 3 3 13 3 3 3 1 $ 26
Research and development expense (1 701 1,090 741 1,225 1,880 2,265 1,290 825
General and administrative expense(!) 516 775 873 794 1,142 820 1,060 693
Net (loss) earnings (1,895) (2,469) (2,284) (2,212) (3,650) (3,850) (2,825) 3,991
Basic and diluted net (loss) earnings per share $ 0.01) $ 0.01) $ 0.01) $ 0.01) $ 0.02) $ 0.02) $ 0.01) $ 0.02
Cash used in operating activities $ (1,544) $ (1,789) § (2,080) $ (1,800) $ (2,722)  § (2,586) (2,537) $ (2,348)

] Prior quarter amounts have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation subsequent to that date.

Outstanding Share Data

As at November 27, 2009, the Company had 298,009,677 Shares issued and outstanding and 36,921,944 Share purchase warrants convertible into an equal number of
Shares. In addition, the Company had issued and outstanding 19,654,993 stock options to purchase an equal number of Shares.

B. Liquidity and capital resources

Since its inception, Lorus has financed its operations and technology acquisitions primarily from equity and debt financing, the proceeds from the exercise of warrants and stock
options, and interest income on funds held for future investment. The remaining costs associated with the completion of the LOR-2040 Phase I/II clinical trial program with the
US National Cancer Institute (“NCI”) will be borne by the US NCI. Lorus has, in the past, undertaken additional LOR-2040 trials and acquired additional quantities of LOR-2040
drug to support this ongoing trial and any further development of LOR-2040 at its own cost. We will continue the development of our small molecule programs from internal
resources.

We have not earned substantial revenues from our drug candidates and are therefore considered to be in the development stage. The continuation of our research and development
activities and the commercialization of the targeted therapeutic products are dependent upon our ability to successfully finance and complete our research and development
programs through a combination of equity financing and payments from strategic partners. We have no current sources of payments from strategic partners.

On June 19, 2009, the Company settled its secured convertible debentures and extinguished its liability in the amount of $15.0 million for consideration consisting of cash and
other assets.

Management has forecasted that the Company’s current level of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments after the extinguishment of the secured convertible
debentures will not be sufficient to execute its current planned expenditures for the next twelve months without further investment. On October 6, 2009, the Company secured a
six-month, $1.0 million, unsecured loan from a member of its Board of Directors and on November 27, 2009 the company completed a private placement equity financing in the
amount of $2.5 million. This amount includes the funds originally received by way of loan on October 6, 2009 which was concurrently repaid and used to purchase Units as part of
the private placement (See “Subsequent events”). Management believes that with the additional funds received in October and November 2009, it has sufficient funding to
continue to execute its planned expenditures without interruption for the next six to eight months. The Company continues to pursue additional funding and partnership
opportunities to execute its planned expenditures in the future. However, there can be no assurance that the capital will be available as necessary to meet these continuing
expenditures, or if the capital is available, that it will be on terms acceptable to the Company. The issuance of Shares by the Company could result in significant dilution in the
equity interest of existing shareholders. The Company is also considering alternatives to delay its research program until financing is available, amongst other cost savings
measures. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain sufficient financing to meet future operational needs. As a result, there is a significant doubt as to
whether the Company will be able to continue as a going concern and realize its assets and pay its liabilities as they fall due.

48




The financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption were not appropriate. If the going concern basis were not
appropriate for these financial statements, then adjustments would be necessary in the carrying value of the assets and liabilities, the reported revenues and expenses and the
balance sheet classifications used.

Operating Cash Requirements

We utilized cash of $7.2 million in our operating activities in the year ended May 31, 2009 compared with $10.2 million in the prior year. The decrease is primarily a
result of a reduced net loss offset by lower accounts payable and accrued liabilities balances in the current year.

Cash Position

At May 31, 2009, Lorus had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments totaling $5.9 million compared to $9.4 million at May 31, 2008. The Company invests
in highly rated and liquid debt instruments. Investment decisions are made in accordance with an established investment policy administered by senior management and overseen
by the board of directors. Working capital (representing primarily cash, cash equivalents, short term investments and other current assets less current liabilities which included
$14.4 million of secured convertible debentures that were due October 6, 2009) at May 31, 2009 was a deficiency of $9.2 million as compared to a surplus of $8.0 million at May
31,2008. Subsequent to the year end we repurchased the secured convertible debentures and extinguished our liability. The purchase consideration consisted of $3.3 million in
cash paid on the closing of the transaction and the balance in other assets. Following this payment, the Company had approximately $2.6 million in cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments.

We do not expect to generate positive cash flow from operations in the next several years due to additional research and development costs, including costs related to drug
discovery, preclinical testing, clinical trials, manufacturing costs and operating expenses associated with supporting these activities. Negative cash flow will continue until such
time, if ever, that we receive regulatory approval to commercialize any of our products under development and revenue from any such products exceeds expenses.

If we are able to secure additional financing, we intend to use these resources to fund our existing drug development programs and develop new programs from our
portfolio of preclinical research technologies. The amounts actually expended for research and drug development activities and the timing of such expenditures will depend on
many factors, including the ability of the Company to raise additional capital, the progress of the Company's research and drug development programs, the results of preclinical and
clinical trials, the timing of regulatory submissions and approvals, the impact of any internally developed, licensed or acquired technologies, our ability to find suitable partnership
agreements to assist financially with future development, the impact from technological advances, determinations as to the commercial potential of the Company's compounds and
the timing and development status of competitive products.

As discussed above, management has forecasted that the Company’s current level of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments after the extinguishment of the
secured convertible debentures will not be sufficient to execute its current planned expenditures for the next twelve months without further investment.

Financings
On November 27, 2009, the Company completed a private placement resulting in the issuance of 41 million units of the Company at a price of $0.06 per unit

(“Unit”). Each Unit consists of one common share of the Company and a one-half common share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant permits the holder to purchase an
additional Share of Lorus at $0.08 until May 27, 2011.

49




Pursuant to the private placement, the Company issued 41 million Shares and 20.5 million common share purchase warrants in exchange for cash consideration of
$2.5 million. This amount includes the principal amount of $1.0 million originally received by way of a loan from a director on October 6, 2009 which was applied to subscribe for
units as part of the private placement. In addition, the Company issued 2.2 million broker warrants to purchase an equivalent number of Shares at $0.08 until May 27, 2011. The
total costs associated with the transaction were approximately $225 thousand plus the broker warrants. The Company will allocate the net proceeds of the private placement to the
Shares and to the common share purchase warrants based on their relative fair values.

On June 25, 2008, the Company filed a short-form prospectus for a rights offering to its shareholders. Under the rights offering, holders of the Company's Shares as of July 9,
2008 (the "Record Date") received one right for each Share held as of the Record Date. Each four rights entitled the holder thereof to purchase a unit of Lorus ("2008 Unit"). Each
2008 Unit consists of one Share of Lorus at $0.13 and a one-half Share purchase warrant to purchase additional Shares of Lorus at $0.18 per Share until August 7, 2010. All
unexercised rights expired on August 7, 2008.

Pursuant to the rights offering the Company issued 28,538,889 Shares and 14,269,444 Share purchase warrants in exchange for cash consideration of $3.7 million. The total costs
associated with the transaction were $500 thousand. The Company has allocated the net proceeds of $3.2 million received from the issuance of the 2008 Units to the Shares and the
Share purchase warrants based on their relative fair values. The fair value of the Share purchase warrants has been determined based on an option pricing model. The allocation
based on relative fair values resulted in the allocation of $2.8 million to the Shares and $417 thousand to the Share purchase warrants.

On July 10, 2007, Lorus completed a reorganization that had the effect of providing the Company with non-dilutive financing of $8.5 million in additional cash, before
transaction costs, for New Lorus, subject to a $600 thousand holdback. The amount was released to Lorus on July 10, 2008. See Gain on Sale of Shares, above.

On July 13, 2006 the Company entered into an agreement with HighTech Beteiligungen GmbH & Co. KG (“HighTech”) to issue 28.8 million Shares at $0.36 per share
for gross proceeds of $10.4 million. The subscription price represented a premium of 7.5% over the closing price of the Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange on July 13,
2007. The transaction closed on August 31, 2006. In connection with the transaction, HighTech received demand registration rights that will enable HighTech to request the
registration or qualification of the Shares for resale in the United States and Canada, subject to certain restrictions. These demand registration rights expire on June 30, 2012. In
addition, HighTech received the right to nominate one nominee to the board of directors of Lorus or, if it does not have a nominee, it will have the right to appoint an observer to
the board. Upon completion of the transaction, HighTech held approximately 14% of the issued and outstanding Shares of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.

On July 24, 2006 Lorus entered into an agreement with Technifund Inc. to issue on a private placement basis, 5 million Shares at $0.36 per share for gross proceeds of
$1.8 million. The transaction closed on September 1, 2006.

Subsequent Events

On October 6, 2009 the Company received an unsecured loan by way of a Promissory Note from Herbert Abramson, a director. The principal amount of $1.0 million
bears interest at a rate of 10% per annum. Principal and interest are due at maturity, which is six months from the date the loan was entered into. The loan can also be repaid at
anytime prior to maturity without attracting any penalty. The loan was repaid on November 27, 2009 as part of a private placement.

On November 27, 2009, the Company completed a private placement resulting in the issuance of 41 million units of the Company at a price of $0.06 per unit
(“Unit”). Each Unit consists of one common share of the Company and a one-half common share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant permits the holder to purchase an
additional Share of Lorus at $0.08 until May 27, 2011.

Pursuant to the private placement, the Company issued 41 million Shares and 20.5 million Share purchase warrants in exchange for cash consideration of $2.5 million.
This amount includes the principal amount of $1.0 million originally received by way of a loan from a director on October 6, 2009 which was applied to subscribe for units as part
of the private placement. In addition, the Company issued 2.2 million broker warrants to purchase an equivalent number of Shares at $0.08 until May 27, 2011. The total costs
associated with the transaction were approximately $225 thousand plus the broker warrants. The Company will allocate the net proceeds of the private placement to the Shares and
to the common share purchase warrants based on their relative fair values based on an option-pricing model.

See also "Item 7 - Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions.”
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C. Research and development, patents and licenses, etc.
Certain information concerning research and development and intellectual property is set forth in Item 4, “Information on the Company”.
D. Trend information
The Company does not currently know of any significant trends that would be material to our operations.
E. Off-balance sheet arrangements
As at May 31, 2009, we have not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.
F. Tabular disclosure of contractual obligations

(Amount in ‘000s)

Less than 1 More than 3
year 1-3 years years Total
Operating leases 148 138 - 286
Convertible debentures! 15,000 - - 15,000
Total 15,148 138 - 15,286

(I The convertible debentures were due on October 6, 2009. On June 22, 2009 the Company settled its secured convertible debentures and extinguished its liability in the amount
of $15 million for consideration of cash and other assets.

In addition, the Company is party to certain licensing agreements that require it to pay a proportion of any fees that it may receive from future revenues or milestone
payments. As of May 31, 2009 no amounts have been received by the Company relating to these licensing agreements and therefore, no amounts are owing and the amount of the
future fees is not determinable.

The Company has entered into various consulting agreements that upon execution of a partnership agreement could result in liabilities owing to such consultants. The
amounts payable in these agreements are contingent on the amounts receivable by Lorus under such partnership agreements. As of May 31, 2009 no amounts were owing and the
amount of future fees payable to the consultants are not determinable.

All research and development activities under the Company’s current license agreements and collaboration agreements are in the early stage research or development in a
variety of indications; therefore, any payment obligations, if any, and the timing thereof under these agreements cannot be reasonably predicted. In relation to the Company’s
LOR-2040 project, it has previously incurred the drug manufacturing cost and is supplying the drug out of existing supply.

Under the Arrangement, Lorus agreed to indemnify Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees from and against all damages, losses, expenses (including fines

and penalties), other third party costs and legal expenses, to which any of them may be subject arising out of any matter occurring:
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(iii) prior to, at or after the Effective Time of the Arrangement and directly or indirectly relating to any of the assets of Old Lorus transferred to New Lorus pursuant to the

Arrangement (including losses for income, sales, excise and other taxes arising in connection with the transfer or any such asset) or conduct of the business prior to the
Effective Time;

(iv) prior to, at or after the Effective Time as a result of any and all interests, rights, liabilities and other matters relating to the assets transferred by Old Lorus to New
Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement; and

v) prior to or at the Effective Time and directly or indirectly relating to, with certain exceptions, any of the activities of Old Lorus or the Arrangement.
Lorus has recorded a liability of $150 thousand, which we believe is a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the obligation for the indemnifications provided. There
have been no claims under this indemnification to date. The amount is included on the balance sheet in Accrued Liabilities at May 31, 2009.
Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
A. Directors and Senior Management

The following table and notes thereto provide the name, province or state and country of residence, positions with the Company and term of office of each person who
serves as a director or executive officer of Lorus as at the date hereof.

Each director has been elected or appointed to serve until the next annual meeting or until a successor is elected or appointed. We have an Audit Committee, a Corporate

Governance and Nominating Committee and a Compensation Committee the members of each such committee are shown below. As at May 31, 2009, our directors and executive
officers, as a group, beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or exercised control over approximately 67.6 million Shares or approximately 26% of our outstanding Shares.

52




Name and Province/State and

Ontario, Canada

Dr. Jim Wright?
Ontario, Canada

Officers:
Dr. Aiping Young
Ontario, Canada

Dr. Saeid Babaei
Ontario, Canada

Dr. Yoon Lee
Ontario, Canada

Director, former President and Chief Executive Officer

President and Chief Executive Officer, Director, and
former
Chief Operating Officer

Vice President, Business Development and former
Director of Business Development

Vice President Research and former Director, Research

Country of Residence Position Director or Officer Since
Directors:

Herbert Abramson(®) (1) Director July 2007

Ontario, Canada

[Denis Burger()(2) Chairman, Director September 2007

Oregon, United States

Georg Ludwig) Director September 2006

[Eschen, Liechtenstein

Dr. Mark Vincent®) Director September 2007

October 1999

October 1999

May 2008

May 2008

November 2005

Elizabeth Williams Acting Chief Financial Officer and Director of Finance
Ontario, Canada

(1) Member of Audit Committee.

2) Member of the Compensation Committee.

3) Member of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.
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The principal occupation and employment of each of the foregoing persons for the past five years is set forth below:

Herbert Abramson: Mr. Abramson is a co-founder, Chairman and CEO of Trapeze Capital Corp., an investment dealer and portfolio management company and is also
Chairman of Trapeze Asset Management Inc., an affiliated investment counseling company. Mr. Abramson is a member of the Law Society of Upper Canada and practiced
corporate/securities law for 12 years before going into the investment business.

Dr Denis Burger: Dr. Burger is currently Executive Chairman of BioCurex, Inc. (2009 to present) and was the past Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and a director of
AVI Biopharma Inc, an Oregon based biotechnology company from 1992 to March 2007. Dr. Burger is also a partner in Sovereign Ventures, a healthcare consulting and funding
firm based in Portland, Oregon. Dr. Burger received his MSc and PhD in Microbiology and Immunology from the University of Arizona.

Georg Ludwig: Mr. Ludwig is Managing Director of ConPharm Anstalt a consulting and management company for life science funds, located in Liechtenstein.

Dr. Mark Vincent: Dr. Mark Vincent is the co-founder and Chief Executive Officer of Sarissa, Inc. since 2000. Dr. Vincent is an Associate Professor of Oncology at the
University of Western Ontario and a staff medical oncologist at the London Regional Cancer Program.

Dr. Jim Wright: Dr. Wright is presently Chief Executive Officer of NuQuest Bio Inc. Dr. Wright co-founded GeneSense Technologies Inc. in 1996, and served as Lorus'
President, Chief Scientific Officer and a member of the Board of Directors in October 1999 on a merger with GeneSense. In September 2006 he stepped down as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of Lorus.

Dr. Aiping Young: Dr. Young has been our President and Chief Executive Officer since September 21, 2006 and was a cofounder with Dr. Wright of GeneSense
Technologies Inc. Dr. Young previously held the position of Chief Operating Officer, Senior Vice President, Research and Development and Chief Technical Officer at Lorus.

Dr. Saeid Babaei: Dr. Babaei is currently Vice-President of Business Development. Dr Babaei joined Lorus in 2006 and has held progressive positions as Associate
Director of Corporate Affairs and Director of Corporate Development. Prior to his employment with Lorus Dr. Babaei was the Director of Corporate Development at Northern
Therapeutics Inc.

Dr. Yoon Lee: Dr. Lee is currently Vice President of Research. Dr. Lee has been with Lorus for ten years, most recently serving as the Director of Research. He joined
Lorus in 1999 through the merger with GeneSense Technologies Inc., where he was a Research Scientist integrally involved in the development of GeneSense oligonucleotide
therapeutics program.

Elizabeth Williams: Prior to joining Lorus in July 2004, Ms. Williams was an Audit Manager with Ernst and Young LLP. Ms. Williams is a chartered accountant and has
received a bachelor’s degree in business administration.

There are no family relationships among the persons named above and there are no arrangements or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others pursuant

to which any person was selected as a director or member of senior management, except that pursuant to a subscription agreement with High Tech dated July 13, 2006, as
amended, for as long as High Tech owns shares of the Company they have the right to put forward a board nominee. Mr. Ludwig is the nominee of High Tech.
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The following table outlines other reporting issuers that Board members are directors of:

Director Reporting Issuer

Herbert Abramson St Andrew Goldfields Ltd.

Denis Burger Trinity Biotech plc
BioCurex, Inc.

Georg Ludwig -

Mark Vincent o

Jim A. Wright -

Aiping Young o

B. Compensation

Summary of Executive Compensation

The following table provides a summary of compensation earned during the last fiscal year by our Chief Executive Officer, our Chief Financial Officer (or acting Chief Financial
Officer) and for the next two most highly compensated executive officers (the “named executive officers”). The figures are in Canadian dollars.

Summary Compensation Table

Non-equity incentive plan compensation

Name and Principal Position Fiscal Salary Share- Option- Annual Long- Total
Year ) based based incentive term Compensation
awards awards® plans incentive
® % ($) plans )
Dr. Aiping Young 2009 335,236 N/A 115,000 112,320 Nil 562,556
President and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Elizabeth Williams 2009 79,376 N/A 34,600 4,935 Nil 118,911
Director of Finance, Acting Chief Financial
Officer@
Dr. Saeid Babaei 2009 157,269 N/A 34,600 23,670 Nil 215,539

Vice President Business Development

Dr. Yoon Lee 2009 133,587 N/A 34,600 19,080 Nil 187,267
ice President Research

1. In determining the fair value of these option awards, the Black-Scholes valuation methodology was used with the following assumptions: (i) expected life of five years; (ii) volatility
of 76%; (iii) risk free interest rate of 3.5%; and (iv) no dividend yield.

2. Ms. Williams is employed by the Corporation on a part-time basis.

55




Annual Compensation Long-Term

Compensation
Awards
Name and Principal Position Fiscal Securities Under
Year Other Annual Options/SARs All Other
Salary Bonus Compensation Granted Compensation

(&) (&) ) () ®
Dr. Aiping Young 2009 335,236 112,320 Nil 1,500,000 Nil
President and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Elizabeth Williams ) 2009 79,376 4,935 Nil 450,000 Nil
Director of Finance, Acting Chief Financial
Officer
Dr. Saeid Babaei 2009 157,269 23,670 Nil 450,000 Nil
Vice President, Business Development
Dr. Yoon Lee 2009 133,587 19,080 Nil 450,000 Nil

Vice President, Research

Directors’ Compensation

During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009, each director who was not an officer of the Corporation was entitled to receive 150,000 stock options (the Chair received
300,000) and, at their election, Shares, deferred share units and/or cash compensation for attendance at the board of directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) committee meetings.
Compensation consisted of an annual fee of $15,000 (the Chair received $35,000) and $1,500 per Board meeting attended ($4,500 to the Chair of a Board meeting). Members of
the Audit Committee received an annual fee of $8,000 (the Chair received $10,000). Each member of the Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee received an annual fee of $5,000 per committee.

On October 2, 2008, stock options to purchase 900,000 Shares at a price of $0.08 per share expiring October 1, 2018 were granted, in aggregate, to our directors. These
options vested 50% upon issuance and the remaining 50% will vest after one year. In addition, Lorus reimbursed the directors for expenses incurred in attending meetings of the
Board and committees of the Board.

Directors are entitled to participate in our Deferred Share Unit Plan. See “Equity Compensation Plans - Directors' and Officers' Deferred Share Unit Plan”.
Management Contracts

Under the employment agreement with President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, Dr. Aiping Young, dated September 21, 2006, Dr. Young’s salary for
fiscal 2009 was $335,000. This agreement provides for a notice period equal to 18 months plus one additional month for each year of employment under the agreement in the event
of termination without cause or a resignation. If within 18 months of a change of control of Lorus, Dr. Young's employment is terminated without cause or if she terminates the
agreement with good reason as defined in the agreement, then she is entitled to receive the equivalent of two years' of her basic salary plus one month salary for each year under the
agreement, plus an annual bonus prorated over the severance period (based on the bonus paid in respect of the last completed fiscal year).

Dr. Young will also be entitled to benefits coverage for the severance period or a cash payment in lieu thereof. The employment agreement provides that the Corporation
may at any time assign Dr. Young to perform other functions that are consistent with her skills, experience and position within the Corporation. Dr. Young reports directly to the
Board. The bonus and options allocation of the President and Chief Executive Officer is determined by the Board and is awarded based 100% on achievement of corporate
objectives. Dr. Young is entitled to five weeks annual vacation prorated to reflect a period of employment less than a full calendar year.
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Under the employment agreement with Director of Finance of the Corporation, Ms. Elizabeth Williams, dated May 31, 2004, Ms. Williams' salary for fiscal 2009 was
$79,400. Ms Williams currently provides services on a part-time basis. This agreement provides for a notice period equal to the greater of one month and the applicable notice
entitlement under employment legislation in the event of termination. Ms. Williams reports to the Chief Executive Officer. The bonus and options allocation of the Director of
Finance is as recommended to the Board by the Chief Executive Officer. Ms Williams is entitled to four weeks of paid vacation, pro rated to reflect a period of employment less
than a full calendar year.

Under the employment agreement with Vice President, Business Development of the Corporation, Dr. Saeid Babaei, dated May 5, 2008, Dr. Babaei’s salary for fiscal
2009 was $157,000. This agreement provides for a notice period equal to 4 months plus one additional month for each year of employment. Dr. Babaei reports to the Chief
Executive Officer. The bonus and options allocation of the Vice President, Business Development is as recommended to the Board by the Chief Executive Officer. Dr. Babaei is
entitled to four weeks of paid vacation, pro rated to reflect a period of employment less than a full calendar year.

Under the employment agreement with Vice President of Research of the Corporation, Dr. Yoon Lee, dated May 5, 2008, Dr. Lee’s salary of for fiscal 2009 was $134,000.
This agreement provides for a notice period equal to 4 months plus one additional month for each year of employment. Dr. Lee reports to the Chief Executive Officer. The bonus

and options allocation of the Vice President of Research is as recommended to the Board by the Chief Executive Officer. Dr. Lee is entitled to five weeks of paid vacation, pro
rated to reflect a period of employment less than a full calendar year.

Salary and bonus amounts for each of the Named Executive Officers paid during the fiscal year 2009 were as set out in the above Summary Compensation Table.
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Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain details as at the end of the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 and at November 27, 2009 with respect to compensation plans pursuant to
which equity securities of the Company are authorized for issuance.

Number of Shares to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options

Number of Common shares
remaining available for
future issuance under the
equity compensation plans
(Excluding Securities
reflected in Column (a))

Total Stock Options
outstanding and
available for Grant

@ © @+ ©
Weighted-
average
% of exercise price of % of % of
Common outstanding Common Common

shares options shares shares
Plan Category Number outstanding (b) Number outstanding Number outstanding
Equity compensation plans approved 16,873,000 6.7% $0.29 21,648,000 8.3% 38,521,000 15.0%
by Shareholders
Equity compensation plans not
approved by Shareholders 19,655,000 6.6% $0.25 25,046,000 8.4% 44,701,000 15.0%

“November 27, 2009)

Stock Option Plans

The stock option plans were established to advance the interests of Lorus by:

*  Providing Eligible Persons (as defined below) with additional incentives;

*  Encouraging stock ownership by Eligible Persons;

* Increasing the interest of Eligible Persons in the success of Lorus;

*  Encouraging Eligible Persons to remain loyal to Lorus; and

*  Attracting new Eligible Persons to Lorus.

Our original stock option plan was established in 1993 pursuant to our 1993 Stock Option Plan (the “1993 Plan”); however, due to significant developments in the laws
relating to share option plans and our then future objectives, in November 2003 we created the 2003 Stock Option Plan (the “2003 Plan”), ratified by our Shareholders, pursuant to
which all future grants of stock options would be made.

The Compensation Committee as authorized by the Board administers our stock option plans (collectively the “Stock Option Plans”).

The 1993 Plan

Under the 1993 Plan, options were granted to directors, officers, consultants and employees of the Corporation or its subsidiaries (“Eligible Persons”). The total number of
options issued under the 1993 Plan is 1,094,071. This represents 0.4% of the Corporation's issued and outstanding capital as at November 27, 2009. There were no further option
grants made under the 1993 Plan after November 2003. Therefore, no further options are issuable under the 1993 Plan. The total number of Shares issuable under actual grants
pursuant to the 1993 Plan is 1,094,071 being 0.4% of the Corporation's issued and outstanding capital as at November 27, 2009.
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The number of Shares issuable to insiders, at any time, under the 1993 Plan and any other compensation arrangement of the Corporation cannot exceed 10% of the issued
and outstanding Shares of the Corporation. The number of shares issued to insiders, within any one year period, under the 1993 Plan and any other compensation arrangement of
the Corporation cannot exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding Shares of the Corporation. The maximum percentage of Shares reserved for issuance to any one person is 5% of
the issued and outstanding Shares of the Corporation. The exercise price of options granted under the 1993 Plan was established by the Board on the basis of the closing market
price of Shares of the Corporation on the TSX on the last trading day preceding the date of grant. If such a price was not available, the exercise price was to be determined on the
basis of the average of the bid and ask for the Shares on the TSX on the date preceding the date of grant. The Board determined the vesting period of options at the time of granting
the option. The term of options granted under the 1993 Plan and outstanding as of October 7, 2004 is 10 years from the date of grant.

If an option holder ceases to be an officer, director, continuing consultant or employee of the Corporation or a subsidiary, each unexpired, vested option may be exercised
within three months of the date of cessation. In the event of the death of an optionee, each unexpired, vested option may be exercised within nine months of the option holder's date
of death.

Options granted under the 1993 Plan are not transferable. Currently, the 1993 Plan may be amended by the Board subject to regulatory approval in certain circumstances.

The 2003 Plan

Under the 2003 Plan, options may be granted to Eligible Persons. At November 27, 2009, the total number of options outstanding under the 2003 Plan is 18,560,922
representing 6.6% of the Corporation's issued and outstanding capital. Options to purchase up to an additional 25,046,459 Shares, being 8.4% of Shares issued and outstanding,
remain available for grant under the 2003 Plan. The total number of Shares issuable under the 2003 Plan is 43,607,381. This represents 14.6% of the Corporation's issued and
outstanding capital as at November 27, 2009. The total number of options issued under the 2003 Plan combined with those issued under the 1993 Plan and shares issued under the
Alternate Compensation Plan (“ACP”), if adopted at the Company’s annual and special meeting scheduled for November 30, 2009, will not exceed 15% of the Shares issued and
outstanding at any time.

The maximum number of Shares reserved for issuance to insiders, at any time, under the 2003 Plan and any other compensation arrangement of the Corporation is 10% of
the issued and outstanding Shares of the Corporation. The maximum number of Shares that may be issued to insiders, at any time, under the 2003 Plan and any other compensation
arrangement of the Corporation within a 12 month period is 10% of the issued and outstanding Shares of the Corporation. The maximum number of Shares reserved for issuance to
any one person is 5% of the issued and outstanding Shares of the Corporation. The exercise price of options granted under the 2003 Plan is established by the Board and will be
equal to the closing market price of the Shares on the TSX on the last trading day preceding the date of grant. If there is no trading on that date, the exercise price will be the
average of the bid and ask on the TSX on the last trading date preceding the date of grant. If not otherwise determined by the Board, an option granted under the 2003 Plan will vest
as to 50% on the first anniversary of the date of grant of the option and an additional 25% on the second and third anniversaries after the date of grant. The Board fixes the term of
each option when granted, but such term may not be greater than 10 years from the date of grant.

If an option holder is terminated without cause, resigns or retires, each option that has vested will cease to be exercisable thee months after the option holder's termination
date. Any portion of an option that has not vested on or prior to the termination date will expire immediately. If an option holder is terminated for cause, each option that has vested
will cease to be exercisable immediately upon the Corporation's notice of termination. Any portion of an option that has not vested on or prior to the termination date will expire
immediately.

Options granted under the 2003 Plan are not assignable.

Currently, the Board may amend the 2003 Plan subject to regulatory approval, provided that the Board may not make the following amendments without the approval of

Shareholders:

59




e an amendment to the maximum number of Shares reserved for issuance under the 2003 Plan and under any other security based compensation arrangement of the
Corporation;

« areduction in the exercise price for options held by insiders;

* an extension to the term of options held by insiders; and

e anincrease in the 10% limits on grants to insiders.

During the period June 1, 2008 to May 31, 2009, options to purchase 5,124,000 Shares were granted under the 2003 Plan at exercise prices between $0.08 and $0.12 per
Share. During the year ended May 31, 2009, we granted options to employees, other than executive officers of the Corporation, to purchase 1,374,00 Shares, being 27% of the total
incentive stock options granted during the year to employees, executive officers and directors.

Employee Share Purchase Plan

In November 2004, the Board adopted the Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), effective January 1, 2005. For the year ended May 31, 2009 a total of 239,118
Shares had been purchased by employees and named executive officers under the ESPP at prices per share between $0.04 and $0.07 per Share and a weighted average purchase
price of $0.055. During fiscal 2009, under the ESPP, Named Executive Officers as a group purchased 34,237 Shares at a weighted average purchase price of $0.07 per Share and
employees, excluding named executive officers, as a group purchased 204,881 Shares at an average exercise price of $0.05 per Share. The purpose of the ESPP is to assist the
Corporation to retain the services of its employees, to secure and retain the services of new employees and to provide incentives for such persons to exert maximum efforts for the
success of the Corporation. The ESPP provides a means by which employees of the Corporation and its affiliates may purchase Shares at a 15% discount through accumulated
payroll deductions. Eligible participants in the ESPP include all employees, including executive officers, who work at least 20 hours per week and are customarily employed by the
Corporation or an affiliate of the Corporation for at least six months per calendar year. Generally, each offering is of three months' duration with purchases occurring every quarter.
Participants may authorize payroll deductions of up to 15% of their base compensation for the purchase of Shares under the ESPP.

Directors' and Officers' Deferred Share Unit Plan

We have a deferred share unit plan for directors and officers (the “Deferred Share Unit Plan”). Under the Deferred Share Unit Plan, participating directors (“Participating
Directors”) may elect to receive either a portion or all of their annual fees for acting as a director (“Annual Fees”) from us in deferred share units. Under the Deferred Share Unit
Plan, the Compensation Committee may at any time during the period between the annual meetings of our Shareholders, in its discretion recommend the Corporation credit to each
participating director who has elected under the terms of the Deferred Share Unit Plan, the number of units equal to the gross amount of the Annual Fees to be deferred divided by
the fair market value of the Shares. The fair market value of the Shares is determined as the closing price of the Shares on the TSX on the day immediately preceding such
recommendation by the Compensation Committee or such other amount as determined by the Board and permitted by the stock exchanges or other market(s) upon which the
Shares are from time to time listed for trading and by any other applicable regulatory authority (collectively, the “Regulatory Authorities™).

In addition, the Participating Directors may elect under the Deferred Share Unit Plan to receive deferred share units in satisfaction for meeting fees earned by the
Participating Directors as a result of attendance at meetings of the Board held between the annual meetings of our shareholders by the credit to each Participating Director of the
number of units equal to the gross amount of the meeting fees to be deferred divided by the fair market value of the Shares, being the closing price of the Shares on the TSX on the
day immediately preceding the recommendation by the Compensation Committee or such other amount as determined by the Board and permitted by the Regulatory Authorities.

The Deferred Share Unit Plan is administered by the Board (in consultation with the Compensation Committee) and, subject to regulatory requirements, may be amended
by the Board without shareholder approval. When a Participating Director ceases to hold the position of director and is no longer otherwise employed by us, the Participating
Director receives either (a) a lump sum cash payment equal to the number of deferred share units held multiplied by the then fair market value of the Shares on the date of
termination, or (b) the number of Shares that can be acquired in the open market with the amount described in (a), either case being subject to withholding for income tax. The
Board may terminate the Deferred Share Unit Plan any time before or after any allotment or accrediting of deferred share units thereunder.
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Option Grants During Fiscal Year 2009
The following tables set forth the options granted to and exercised by each of the Named Executive Officers during the year ended May 31, 2009:

Option/SAR Grants During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year

Name and Securities Under % of Total Exercise or Market Value of Expiration
Principal Position Options/SARs Options/SARs Base Price Securities Date
Granted Granted to Underlying
Employees in Options/SARs
Financial on the Date
Year of Grant
(G} (%) ($/Security) ($/Security)
Dr. Aiping Young 1,500,000() 35.5 0.12 0.12 August 10, 2018
President and Chief
Executive Officer
Ms. Elizabeth Williams 450,000 @ 10.7 0.12 0.12 August 10, 2018

Director of Finance, Acting
Chief Financial Officer

Dr. Saeid Babaei 450,000 ) 10.7 0.12 0.12 August 10, 2018
Vice President, Business

Development

Dr. Yoon Lee 450,000 @ 10.7 0.12 0.12 August 10, 2018

Vice President, Research

(1) These options to purchase Shares are incentive options. The options vest upon the attainment of specific undertakings based on certain corporate performance
objectives; failing to achieve the undertakings will result in forfeiture on the specified deadline.

(2) These options were granted on August 10, 2008 in respect of corporate and personal performance during the year ended May 31, 2009. The options vest on the basis of
50% on the first anniversary and 25% on the second and third anniversaries of the date of granting
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Incentive Compensation Plans

Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards
The following table shows all awards outstanding to each NEO as at the financial year ended May 31, 2009:

Option-based Awards

Name Number of securities Option exercise Option expiration Value of
underlying unexercised price date unexercised
options in-the-money
options
#) $) O
Dr. Aiping Young 50,000 2.50 Oct 10,2010 Nil
113,297 1.61 Dec 17,2010 Nil
150,000 0.95 Sept 17, 2011 Nil
75,000 0.95 July 6, 2012 Nil
75,000 0.33 Sep 24,2012 Nil
75,000 1.22 July 15,2013 Nil
150,000 1.17 Sep 7, 2013 Nil
250,000 0.78 July 20, 2014 Nil
283,333 0.78 July 19, 2015 Nil
50,000 0.26 Nov 30, 2015 Nil
25,000 0.30 Oct 10,2010 Nil
37,500 0.30 July 20,2014 Nil
56,649 0.30 Dec 17,2010 Nil
75,000 0.30 Sep 17,2011 Nil
37,500 0.30 July 6, 2012 Nil
37,500 0.30 Sep 24,2012 Nil
37,500 0.30 July 15,2013 Nil
75,000 0.30 Sep 7, 2013 Nil
87,500 0.30 July 20,2014 Nil
37,500 0.30 Jul 19, 2015 Nil
50,000 0.30 Jan 5,2016 Nil
104,163 0.30 July 19, 2015 Nil
75,000 0.33 July 27,2016 Nil
2,490,000 0.27 Oct 5,2016 Nil
450,000 0.22 July 21, 2017 Nil
900,000 0.205 Jan 14,2018 Nil
1,500,000 0.12 Aug 10, 2018 Nil
Ms. Elizabeth Williams 2,388 0.78 Jul 20, 2014 Nil
50,000 0.72 Nov 17,2014 Nil
54,487 0.78 July 19,2015 Nil
50,000 0.26 Nov 30, 2015 Nil
1,194 0.30 July 20,2014 Nil
25,000 0.30 Nov 17,2014 Nil
27,244 0.30 July 19,2015 Nil
50,000 0.30 Jan 5, 2016 Nil
159,849 0.33 July 27,2016 Nil
200,000 0.22 July 21,2017 Nil
450,000 0.12 Aug 10, 2018 Nil
Dr. Saeid Babaei 150,000 0.22 July 21,2017 Nil
150,000 0.19 Feb 4, 2018 Nil
450,000 0.12 Aug 10, 2018 Nil
Dr. Yoon Lee 5,544 0.30 Oct 10,2010 Nil
11,580 0.30 Sep 17,2011 Nil
17,250 0.30 July 6, 2012 Nil
18,856 0.30 July 15,2013 Nil
27,244 0.30 July 20,2014 Nil
27,585 0.30 July 19,2015 Nil
50,000 0.26 Nov 30, 2015 Nil
50,000 0.30 Jan 5, 2016 Nil
140,833 0.33 July 27,2016 Nil
150,000 0.22 July 21,2017 Nil
150,000 0.19 Feb 4, 2018 Nil
450,000 0.12 Aug 10, 2018 Nil

(1)  These amounts are calculated based on the difference between the market value of the securities underlying the options at the end of the year ($.075), and the
exercise price of the options.
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The options granted to the Named Executive Officers during the year ended May 31, 2009 vest contingently upon the achievement of corporate objectives that the
Compensation Committee has deemed to be the value drivers of Shareholder value. These stock options vest 50% upon the achievement of the stated objectives, 25% on the next

anniversary and 25% on the second anniversary.

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises During the Most Recently Completed
Financial Year and Financial Year-End Option/SAR Values

Name Securities Aggregate Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Acquired on Value Options/SARs at in-the-Money
Exercise Realized May 31, 2009 Options/SARs at
May 31, 2009
(6] ®)
Exercisable/ Exercisable/
@) $) Unexercisable Unexercisable
Dr. Aiping Young Nil Nil 7,347,442/4,378,692 0/0
President and Chief Executive Officer Former Chief
Operating Officer
Ms. Elizabeth Williams Nil Nil 1,070,162/480,200 0/0
Director of Finance, Acting Chief Financial Officer
Dr. Saeid Babaei Nil Nil 750,000/150,000 0/0
Vice President, Business Development
Dr. Yoon Lee Nil Nil 1,098,892/463,684 0/0

Vice President, Research
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C. Board Practices

Lorus is authorized to have a board of at least one director and no more than ten. Lorus currently has six directors. Directors are elected for a term of about one year,
from annual meeting to annual meeting, or until an earlier resignation, death or removal. Each officer serves at the discretion of the Board or until an earlier resignation, death or
removal. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or officers.

Our non-management directors have no service contracts with us or our subsidiaries that provide for benefits upon termination of employment.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Company has an Audit Committee, a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, a Compensation Committee and an Environment, Health and Safety
Committee.

The members of these committees were as follows from September 19, 2007 to October 2, 2008:

[Audit Committee: J. Kevin Buchi, Denis Burger and Alan Steigrod
[Compensation Committee: IAlan Steigrod, Denis Burger and Susan Koppy
[Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee: Herbert Abramson, J. Kevin Buchi, and Susan Koppy
Environment, Health and Safety Committee: Mark Vincent, Jim Wright and Aiping Young

The members of these committees effective October 2, 2008 are as follows:

[Audit Committee: Denis Burger, Georg Ludwig, Herbert Abramson
[Compensation Committee: Denis Burger, Jim Wright
[Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee: [Herbert Abramson, Mark Vincent

Compensation Committee

Composition of the Compensation Committee

The Board, upon the advice of the Compensation Committee, determines executive compensation. During the period from June 1 to October 2, 2008 the Compensation
Committee was comprised of three directors, Mr. Steigrod (former director of the Company), Mr. Burger and Ms. Koppy (former Director of the Company). From October 2, 2008
to present, the Compensation committee is comprised of Mr. Burger and Mr. Wright. Mr. Burger is chair of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee met three
times during the above period.

Compensation Objectives and Philosophy

The Compensation Committee's mandate is to review and advise the Board on the recruitment, appointment, performance, compensation, benefits and termination of
executive officers. The Compensation Committee also administers and reviews procedures and policies with respect to our 1993 and 2003 Stock Option Plans, employee benefit
programs, pay equity and employment equity.

The market for biotechnology companies in the development phase has been extremely challenging throughout fiscal 2009 and it has been negatively impacted further by
the deterioration of the capital markets late in calendar 2008 and continuing in 2009. The Compensation Committee has taken these factors into consideration when recommending
the compensation for Named Executive Officers and focuses the assessment on achievement of the corporate objectives described below as being the key value drivers of the
Corporation.
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Lorus’ executive compensation program is designed to:
*  attract and retain qualified, motivated and achievement-oriented individuals by offering compensation that is competitive in the industry and marketplace;
»  align executive interests with the interests of shareholders; and

» ensure that individuals continue to be compensated in accord with their personal performance and responsibilities and their contribution to the overall objectives of
the Company.

These objectives are achieved by offering executives and employees a compensation package that is competitive and rewards the achievement of both short-term and
long-term objectives of the Company. As such, our compensation package consists of three key elements:

« Dbase salary and initial stock options;
*  short-term compensation incentives to reward corporate and personal performance through potential annual cash bonuses;
¢ long-term compensation incentives related to long-term increase in share value through participation in the 2003 Stock Option Plan.

Base Salary - Initial Stock Options

In establishing base salaries, the objective of the Compensation Committee is to establish levels that will enable Lorus to attract and retain executive officers who can
effectively contribute to the long-term success of Lorus. Base salary for each executive officer is a function of the individual's skills, abilities, experience, past performance and
anticipated future contribution to the success of Lorus. The Compensation Committee uses private and public compensation surveys and their knowledge of industry trends to assist
with the determination of an appropriate compensation package for each executive officer. In certain cases, the Compensation Committee may recommend inclusion of automobile
allowances, fitness allowances and the payment of certain professional dues as a component of an overall remuneration package for executives.

In certain cases, executive officers may be granted stock options on the commencement of employment with Lorus in accordance with the responsibility delegated to each
executive officer for achieving corporate objectives and enhancing shareholder value in accordance with those objectives.

Short-Term Compensation Incentives

The role of short-term compensation incentives at Lorus is to reward corporate and personal performance. Each year, the Board approves the annual corporate objectives
encompassing scientific, clinical, regulatory, business and corporate development and financial criteria. The annual cash bonus for the President and Chief Executive Officer and
the other executive offices is based, at least in part, on the level of achievement of these annual objectives. One hundred percent of the President and Chief Executive Officer's and
seventy-five percent of the other executive officers’ cash bonus is based on the level of achievement of corporate objectives. The balance of the other executive officers’ bonus is
based on achievement of individual/departmental objectives.

All overall corporate and executive officer objectives are reviewed by the Compensation Committee and approved by the Board. The Compensation Committee
recommends to the Board the awarding of bonuses, payable in cash, stock or stock options, to reward extraordinary individual performance.

For each executive officer, during the year ended May 31, 2009, the potential annual cash bonuses range from 15% to 40% of base salary when all corporate and
individual executive officer objectives were achieved.

Cash bonuses are determined as soon as practicable after the end of the fiscal year and, for the Named Executive Officers, are included in the Summary Compensation
Table in the year in respect of which they are earned.
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Long-Term Incentive Plan

The role of long-term compensation incentives at Lorus is to reward an executive’s contribution to the attainment of Lorus’ long-term objectives, align an executive’s
performance with the long-term performance of Lorus and to provide an additional incentive for an executive to enhance shareholder value. Long-term incentive compensation for
directors, officers, employees and consultants is reviewed annually and is accomplished through the grant of stock options under our 2003 Stock Option Plan.

The number options granted for executives of Lorus for the 2009 fiscal year was based on achievement of both corporate and executive officer objectives. The
Compensation Committee approves the allocation of options and options are priced using the closing market price of the Shares on the TSX on the last trading day prior to the date
of grant. Options to purchase Shares expire ten years from the date of grant and vest over a term determined by the Compensation Committee. The granting of options to purchase
Shares for Named Executive Officers is included in the Summary Compensation Table in the year that they are earned.

Performance Metrics
The performance of the President and Chief Executive Officer and other Named Executive Officers for the 2009 financial year was measured in the following areas:

1. Maximizing the value of LOR-2040;

2. Maximizing the value of LOR-253;

3. Selecting and developing pre-clinically a new lead small molecule drug candidate in preparation for GLP-toxicology program, or in-license one product/technology;

4. Establishing at least one corporate partnership; and

5. Equity financing of at least $5 million subject to the Board approval.
Each of the above is weighted 15%, 35%, 20%, 20% and 10% in relation to assessment of satisfaction of overall corporate objective and determination of any general corporate
bonuses. In its evaluation, the Board also considered the impact of negotiating the repurchase of the convertible debt on management’s attainment of the objectives during the year
and in recognition of the significance of this achievement determined that management receive an overall rating of 100%. Incentive compensation related to the attainment of these
objectives will be paid in fiscal 2010. Similar performance metrics were established for the year-ended May 31, 2010 based on the approved business plan for the current year.
Audit Committee

Pursuant to Canadian securities laws, our board of directors has determined that Mr. Ludwig is financially literate, as he has experience in reviewing and analysing the
financial reports and ascertaining the financial position of a corporation. Mr. Ludwig as Managing Director of ConPharm Anstalt a consulting and management company for life
science funds is educated and experienced in reading and analyzing financial statements Additionally, we believe that Mr. Luwig qualifies as “independent” as that term is defined
in the relevant Canadian and United States securities laws relating to the composition of the audit committee.

Audit Committee Mandate

The Audit Committee’s mandate is to assist the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. In particular, the Audit Committee:

(a) serves as an independent and objective party to monitor the integrity of our financial reporting process and systems of internal controls regarding finance,
accounting, and legal compliance, including the review of our financial statements, MD&A and annual and interim results;
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(b)
©
(d
(©

identifies and monitors the management of the principal risks that could impact our financial reporting;
monitors the independence and performance of our independent auditors, including the pre-approval of all audit fees and all permitted non-audit services;
provides an avenue of communication among the independent auditors, management, and our board of directors; and

encourages continuous improvement of, and foster adherence to, our policies, procedures and practices at all levels.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for implementing and overseeing our whistle-blowing procedures.

D. Employees

As at May 31, 2009, we employed 24 full-time persons and four part-time people in research and drug development and administration activities. Of our employees,
seven hold Ph.D.s. All employees work at the Company’s primary location. To encourage a focus on achieving long-term performance, employees and members of the board of
directors have the ability to acquire an ownership interest in the Company through Lorus’ stock option plan and employees can participate in the employee share purchase plan.

Our ability to develop commercial products and to establish and maintain our competitive position in light of technological developments will depend, in part, on our
ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. There is a significant level of competition in the marketplace for such personnel. We believe that to date we have been successful in
attracting and retaining the highly skilled personnel critical to our business. We have also chosen to outsource activities where skills are in short supply or where it is economically

prudent to do so.

None of our employees are unionized, and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.
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E. Share Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of our Shares as of November 27, 2009, by our officers and directors individually and as a

group.
Options to Purchase Shares
Total Number Number of Exercise Expiry
of Shares Percentage of Underlying Price Date
Number of Beneficially Shares (Range) (Range-
Shares Warrants® Owned Outstanding (#) ($) Year)
Dr. Aiping H. Young 677,520 60,000 737,520 0.23% 7,847,442 $0.07-$2.50 2010-2019
Elizabeth Williams 8,566 856 9,422 0.00% 1,220,163 $0.07-80.78 2014-2019
Dr. Sacid Babaei 34,550 2,307 36,857 0.01% 1,200,000 $0.07-80.22 2017-2019
Dr. Yoon Lee Nil Nil Nil Nil 1,548,892 $0.07-$0.30 2010-2019
Georg Ludwig® 36,362,500 3,636,250 39,998,750 12.58% 350,000 $0.08-80.30 2016-2018
Dr. Jim A. Wright 4,639,791 100,125 4,739,916 1.49% 350,000 $0.08-$0.30 2016-2018
Herbert Abramson®) 42,826,615 16,098,916 58,925,531 18.54% 300,000 $0.08-80.22 2017-2018
Dr. Denis Burger 59,620 Nil 59,620 0.02% 600,000 $0.08-80.22 2017-2018
Dr. Mark Vincent Nil Nil Nil Nil 300,000 $0.08-80.22 2017-2018
All directors and
executive officers as a group 84,609,162 19,898,456 104,507,618 32.87% 13,756,639 $0.07-$2.50 2010-2019

(1) Warrants to purchase Shares were acquired pursuant to a rights offering completed on August 7, 2008. Each warrant represents the right to acquire a Share at an exercise price of
$0.18. These warrants will expire on August 7, 2010. Included in the amount for Mr. Abramson are 8.5 million warrants to purchase shares that were acquired pursuant to a private
placement that was completed on November 27, 2009. Each warrant represents the right to acquire a Share at an exercise price of $0.08. These warrants will expire on May 27, 2010.

(2) Mr. Ludwig is deemed to control the shares held by High Tech in his capacity as managing director of High Tech.

(3) In addition to shares held personally, Mr. Abramson is deemed to control the shares held by Technifund Inc. in his capacity as sole owner of Technifund.

See item 6.B for a description of arrangements pursuant to which employees may become involved in the capital of Lorus.

Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions

A. Major Shareholders

To the knowledge of our directors and officers, as of the date hereof, no person or company beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over,
more than 5% of the outstanding Shares, other than as described below.

On July 13, 2006, Lorus entered into a share purchase agreement with High Tech Beteiligungen GmbH & Co. KG (“High Tech”) to issue 28.8 million Shares at $0.36 per
share for gross proceeds of $10.4 million. The transaction closed on August 30, 2006. Subsequent to that date, High Tech indirectly acquired an additional 290,000 Shares. On
August 7, 2008, High Tech acquired 7.3 million Shares and 3.6 million warrants to purchase Shares at an exercise price of $0.18 pursuant to a rights offering; warrants expire on

August 7, 2010 if unexercised. As of November 27, 2009, based solely on public filings with securities regulators, High Tech holds approximately 12% of the issued and
outstanding Shares of Lorus.

On July 24, 2006 Lorus entered into a share purchase agreement with Technifund Inc. (“Technifund”) to issue, on a private placement basis, 5,000,000 Shares at $0.36 for

gross proceeds of $1,800,000. On August 7, 2008, Technifund acquired 15.2 million Shares and 7.6 million warrants to purchase Shares at an exercise price of $0.18 pursuant to
a rights offering; warrants expire on August 7, 2010 if unexercised.
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On October 6, 2009 the Company received a loan by way of a Promissory Note from Herbert Abramson, a director. The principal amount of $1.0 million bears interest at
arate of 10% per annum. Principal and interest were originally due six months from the date the loan was entered into. The loan can also be repaid at anytime prior to maturity
without attracting any penalty. The loan was repaid on November 27, 2009 and the funds used to acquire Units as part of the private placement.

On November 27, 2009, as part of a private placement Herbert Abramson acquired 17.0 million Shares and 8.5 million warrants to purchase Shares of the Company at an
exercise price of $0.08; warrants expire on May 27, 2011 if unexercised.

As of November 27, 2009, Mr Abramson and his affiliated company, Technifund, holds approximately 14% of the issued and outstanding Shares of Lorus.
All of our shareholders have equal voting rights.

B. Related Party Transactions

See Item 7.A.

During the year ended May 31, 2009, the Company expensed consulting fees of $25 thousand to a director of the Company (2008 - $31 thousand; 2007 - nil). There was
no amount payable at May 31, 2009 (2008 - $30 thousand; 2007 - nil). This transaction was in the normal course of business and has been measured at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

In order to effectively execute our business strategy, we expect to continue outsourcing various functions to the expertise of third-parties such as contract manufacturing

organizations, contract research organizations, and other research organizations. These relationships are with non-related third-parties and occur at arm's length and on normal
commercial terms.

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.

Item 8. Financial Information

A. Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Financial Information
See Item 18.

B. Significant Changes

None.

Item 9. The Offer and Listing

A. Offer and Listing details

Not applicable, except for Item 9A (4) and Item 9C.
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Price Range of Common Stock and Trading Markets

Our Shares are currently listed on the TSX under the symbol “LOR”. Until October 31, 2008 our shares were also listed on the American Stock Exchange (now the
NYSE Amex) under the symbol “LRP”. The following table sets out the price ranges and trading volumes of our Shares on the TSX and AMEX for the periods indicated
below. Effective October 31, 2008, the Company voluntarily delisted from the AMEX, therefore no prices are provided for periods after that date.

American Stock Exchange/ Toronto Stock Exchange/TSX
NYSE Amex (CDNS$)
(USss$)™

Five most recent full fiscal years: High Low High Low
Year ended May 31, 2009 W W 0.16 0.03
Year ended May 31, 2008 0.27 0.11 0.26 0.14
Year ended May 31, 2007 0.34 0.14 0.39 0.22
Year ended May 31, 2006 0.79 0.19 0.92 0.22
Year ended May 31, 2005 0.70 0.45 0.94 0.57
Year ended May 31, 2009

Quarter ended May 31, 2009 0.21 0.11 0.21 0.14
Quarter ended February 28, 2009 0.25 0.15 0.21 0.16
Quarter ended November 30, 2008 0.27 0.14 0.25 0.17
Quarter ended August 31, 2008 0.26 0.15 0.26 0.16
Year ended May 31, 2008

Quarter ended May 31, 2008 0.21 0.11 0.21 0.14
Quarter ended February 28, 2007 0.25 0.15 0.21 0.16
Quarter ended November 30, 2007 0.27 0.14 0.25 0.17
Quarter ended August 31, 2007 0.26 0.15 0.26 0.16
October 2009 i i 0.09 0.08
September 2009 *k *k 0.10 0.08
August 2009 i i 0.09 0.07
July 2009 *k *k 0.09 0.07
June 2009 i i 0.08 0.06
May 2009 *k *k 0.08 0.06

**Effective October 31, 2008 the Company voluntarily de-listed from the AMEX, therefore prices per share not available after that date.
B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.

C. Markets

See Item 9.A.

D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.

E. Dilution

Not applicable.
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F. Expense of the Issue

Not applicable.

Item 10. Additional Information

A. Not Applicable

B. Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

We are incorporated pursuant to the laws of Canada. Our Articles of Incorporation and by-laws provide no restrictions as to the nature of our business operations. Under
Canadian law, a director must inform us, at a meeting of the Board of Directors, of any interest in a material contract or proposed material contract with us. Directors may not vote
in respect of any such contracts made with us or in any such contract in which a director is interested, and such directors shall not be counted for purposes of determining a quorum.
However, these provisions do not apply to (i) a contract relating primarily to their remuneration as a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or affiliate, (ii) a
contract for their indemnity or insurance as permitted under the Canada Business Corporations Act, or (iii) a contract with an affiliate.

We are authorized to issue an unlimited number of Shares. Our stockholders have no rights to share in our profits, are subject to no redemption or sinking fund provisions,
have no liability for further capital calls and are not subject to any discrimination due to number of shares owned. By not more than 50 days or less than seven days in advance of a
dividend, the Board of Directors may establish a record date for the determination of the persons entitled to such dividend.

The rights of holders of our Shares can be changed at any time in a stockholder meeting where the modifications are approved by 66 2/3% of the shares represented by
proxy or in person at a meeting at which a quorum exists.

All holders of our Shares are entitled to vote at annual or special meetings of stockholders, provided that they were stockholders as of the record date. The record date for
stockholder meetings may precede the meeting date by no more than 50 days and not less than 21 days, provided that notice by way of advertisement is given to stockholders at
least seven days before such record date. Notice of the time and place of meetings of stockholders may not be less than 21 or greater than 50 days prior to the date of the meeting.
There are no:

. limitations on share ownership;

. provisions of the Articles or by-laws that would have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of our company;

. by-law provisions that govern the ownership threshold above which stockholder ownership must be disclosed; and

. conditions imposed by the Articles or by-laws governing changes in capital, but Canadian Corporate law requires any changes to the terms of share capital be

approved by 66.66% of the shares represented by proxy or in person at a stockholders’ meeting convened for that purpose at which a quorum exists.
Common Shares

Each holder of record of Shares is entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters properly submitted to the stockholders for their vote, except matters which are
required to be voted on as a particular class or series of stock. Cumulative voting for directors is not permitted.

Holders of outstanding Shares are entitled to those dividends declared by the Board of Directors out of legally available funds. In the event of liquidation, dissolution or
winding up our affairs, holders of Shares are entitled to receive, pro rata, our net assets available after provision has been made for the preferential rights of the holders of preferred
stock. Holders of outstanding Shares have no pre-emptive, conversion or redemption rights. All of the issued and outstanding Shares are, and all unissued Shares, when offered and
sold will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. To the extent that additional Shares may be issued in the future, the relative interests of the then
existing stockholders may be diluted. There were 256,808,000 Shares issued and outstanding at May 31, 2009.
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Convertible Debentures

On October 6, 2004, we entered into an agreement to raise aggregate net proceeds of $13.9 million through the issuance of secured convertible debentures and warrants.
The debentures were secured by a first charge over all of the assets of the Company. We received $4.4 million on October 6, 2004 (representing a $5.0 million debenture less an
investor fee representing 4% of the $15.0 million to be received under the agreement), and $5.0 million on each of January 14 and April 15, 2005. All debentures issued under this
agreement were due on October 6, 2009 and subject to interest payable monthly at a rate of prime plus 1%. Interest was payable in Shares of Lorus until Lorus' shares trade at a
price of $1.00 or more after which interest will be payable in cash or Shares at the option of the debenture holder. Shares issued in payment of interest were issued at an amount
equal to the weighted average trading price of such shares for the ten trading days immediately preceding their issue in respect of each interest payment. For the year ended May 31,
2009, the Company issued 10,620,000 Shares in settlement of $707 thousand in interest. For the year ended May 31, 2008, the Company has issued 5,383,000 Shares in settlement
of $1 million in interest.

On June 22, 2009, the Company reached a settlement with TEMIC with respect to the purchase and settlement of the convertible debentures.

Under the agreement, Lorus purchased all of the convertible debentures from TEMIC for a cash payment on close of the transaction of $3.3 million, the assignment of the
rights under the license agreement with Zor, sale of intellectual property associated with Virulizin and sale of Lorus' shares in its wholly owned subsidiary, Pharma Immune, which
holds an equity interest in Zor (the "Consideration"). Under the agreement, Lorus will be entitled to 50% of any royalties received under the Zor license agreement and 50% of the
value of any transaction completed in territories not covered by the Zor license agreement. Lorus also retains a perpetual royalty free license for the animal use of
Virulizin. TEMIC will be fully responsible for all clinical and regulatory costs associated with commercialization of Virulizin in territories not covered by the Zor license
agreement. Lorus will assist TEMIC with certain agreed upon services.

For receipt of this consideration, TEMIC has released all security interest in the assets of Lorus.

As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain on the repurchase of the debentures of $11.0 million reflecting the difference between the carrying value of
the debentures at the repurchase date, net of transaction costs of approximately $221 thousand, and the cash payment amount of $3.3 million. In addition, as a result of
extinguishing the debentures, the equity portion of the debentures in the amount of $3.8 million was transferred to contributed surplus. The gain on repurchase of the debentures
does not result in income taxes payable as the Company has sufficient capital loss and non-capital loss carryforwards to shelter this gain.

Shares Eligible for Future Sale

Future sales of substantial amounts of our Shares in the public market or even the perception that such sales may occur, could adversely affect the market price for our
Shares and could impair our future ability to raise capital through an offering of our equity securities.

At May 31, 2009, there were 16,873,000 options outstanding under the plan to purchase an equal number of Shares. The outstanding options are exercisable at a weighted
average price per share of $0.29.

Indemnification of Executive Officers and Directors
We have agreed to indemnify our executive officers and directors for all costs, charges and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment,
reasonably incurred by them in respect of any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which they are made a party by reason of being or having been a director or

officer, if (a) they acted honestly and in good faith with a view to our best interests, and (b) in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding that is enforced by a
monetary penalty, they had reasonable grounds for believing that their conduct was lawful.
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C.

Material Contracts

Other than the agreements described below, we have not, in the two years preceding the date hereof, entered into any material agreements other than contracts in the ordinary
course of business.

1.

2.

11.

13.

14.

Form of Canadian Subscription agreement used in connection with November 2009 private placement.

Form of Canadian Warrant issued in connection with November 2009 private placement.

Form of United States Subscription agreement used in connection with November 2009 private placement.

Form of United States Warrant isssued in connection with November 2009 private placement.

Promissory note dated October 6, 2009 between the Company and Herbert Abramson regarding a loan to the Company of $1,000,000.

Share Purchase Warrant Indenture dated June 27, 2009 between the Company and Computershare Trust Company of Canada regarding the provision for issuance of
common share purchase warrants.

Settlement Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation with respect to the purchase and settlement of $15 million
secured convertible debentures.

Asset Purchase Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation under which the Company sold the intellectual
property associated with Virulizin.

Supply and Services Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and Erin Mills Biotech Inc. under which the Company agreed to provide certain business
development services associated with the Virulizin intellectual property sold.

Share Purchase Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation under which the Company sold the sale of Lorus’
shares in its wholly-owned subsidiary Pharma Immune Inc.

Animal Rights License Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and Erin Mills Biotech Inc. under which the Company is granted certain rights to develop
and market Virulizin for use in animals.

Amendment, Assignment, Assumption, Novation and Consent Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company, Zor Pharmaceuticals, LLC, Erin Mills Biotech
Inc. and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation under which the Company assigned its rights under the licence agreement with Zor Pharmaceuticals, LLC.

Exclusive License Agreement dated April 8, 2008 between the Company and Zor Pharmaceuticals LLC. See “Collaboration Agreements - Zoticon Bioventures LLC”.

Independent Contractor Services Agreement dated April 8, 2008 between the Company and Zor Pharmaceuticals LLC. See “Collaboration Agreements - Zoticon
Bioventures LLC”.

Limited Liability Company Agreement dated April 8, 2008 between the Company and ZBV I, LLC. See “Collaboration Agreements - Zoticon Bioventures LLC”.
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Please refer to Item 4 - Business Overview - Financial Strategy - Share Issuances, for details of the share purchase agreements entered into with each of High Tech and Technifund
and the November 2009 private placement. Please refer to Item 4 - Business Overview - Financial Strategy - Secured Convertible Debentures, for details of the subscription
agreement, debentures and warrants entered into with TEMIC. Please refer to Item 4 - Business Overview - Financial Strategy - Plan of Arrangement and Corporate
Reorganization.

Other than the agreements described in the preceding paragraphs, we have not, in the two years preceding the date hereof, entered into any material contracts other than
contracts in the ordinary course of business. The Company is not a party to any other material contracts entered into since January 1, 2002 and still in effect.

D. Exchange Controls

There is no law or governmental decree or regulation in Canada that restricts the export or import of capital, or affects the remittance of dividends, interest or other
payments to non-resident holders of our voting shares, other than withholding tax requirements.

There is no limitation imposed by Canadian law or by our Articles or our other charter documents on the right of a non-resident to hold or vote voting shares, other than as
provided by the Investment Canada Act, the North American Free Trade Agreement Implementation Act (Canada) and the World Trade Organization Agreement Implementation
Act.

The Investment Canada Act requires notification and, in certain cases, advance review and approval by the government of Canada of the acquisition by a non-Canadian of
control of a Canadian business, all as defined in the /nvestment Canada Act. Generally, the threshold for review will be higher in monetary terms for a member of the World Trade
Organization or North American Free Trade Agreement.

E. Taxation
U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following is a summary of the anticipated material U.S. federal income tax consequences to a U.S. Holder (as defined below) arising from and relating to the
acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares of the Company.

This summary is for general information purposes only and does not purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all potential U.S. federal income tax consequences that
may apply to a U.S. Holder as a result of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares. In addition, this summary does not take into account the individual facts and
circumstances of any particular U.S. Holder that may affect the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares. Accordingly, this
summary is not intended to be, and should not be construed as, legal or U.S. federal income tax advice with respect to any U.S. Holder. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own
financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant regarding the U.S. federal, U.S. state and local, and foreign tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of
Shares.

Scope of this Disclosure
Authorities

This summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), Treasury Regulations (whether final, temporary, or proposed), published rulings
of the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), published administrative positions of the IRS, the Convention Between Canada and the United States of America with Respect to Taxes
on Income and on Capital, signed September 26, 1980, as amended (the “Canada-U.S. Tax Convention”), and U.S. court decisions that are applicable and, in each case, as in effect
and available, as of the date of this Annual Report. Any of the authorities on which this summary is based could be changed in a material and adverse manner at any time, and any
such change could be applied on a retroactive basis. This summary does not discuss the potential effects, whether adverse or beneficial, of any proposed legislation that, if
enacted, could be applied on a retroactive basis.
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U.S. Holders

For purposes of this summary, a “U.S. Holder” is a beneficial owner of Shares that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is (a) an individual who is a citizen or resident
of the U.S., (b) a corporation, or any other entity classified as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, that is created or organized in or under the laws of the U.S. or any
state in the U.S., including the District of Columbia, (c) an estate if the income of such estate is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of the source of such income, or (d) a
trust if (i) such trust has validly elected to be treated as a U.S. person for U.S. federal income tax purposes or (ii) a U.S. court is able to exercise primary supervision over the
administration of such trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of such trust.

Non-U.S. Holders

For purposes of this summary, a “non-U.S. Holder” is a beneficial owner of Shares other than a U.S. Holder. This summary does not address the U.S. federal income tax
consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares to non-U.S. Holders. Accordingly, a non-U.S. Holder should consult its own financial advisor, legal
counsel, or accountant regarding the U.S. federal, U.S. state and local, and foreign tax consequences (including the potential application of and operation of any tax treaties) of the
acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares.

U.S. Holders Subject to Special U.S. Federal Income Tax Rules Not Addressed

This summary does not address the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares to U.S. Holders that are subject to
special provisions under the Code, including the following U.S. Holders: (a) U.S. Holders that are tax-exempt organizations, qualified retirement plans, individual retirement
accounts, or other tax-deferred accounts; (b) U.S. Holders that are financial institutions, insurance companies, real estate investment trusts, or regulated investment companies;

(c) U.S. Holders that are broker-dealers, dealers, or traders in securities or currencies that elect to apply a mark-to-market accounting method; (d) U.S. Holders that have a
“functional currency” other than the U.S. dollar; () U.S. Holders that are liable for the alternative minimum tax under the Code; (f) U.S. Holders that own Shares as part of a
straddle, hedging transaction, conversion transaction, constructive sale, or other arrangement involving more than one position; (g) U.S. Holders that acquired Shares in connection
with the exercise of employee stock options or otherwise as compensation for services; (h) U.S. Holders that hold Shares other than as a capital asset within the meaning of
Section 1221 of the Code; or (i) U.S. Holders that own, directly or indirectly, 10% or more, by voting power or value, of the outstanding shares of the Company. U.S. Holders that
are subject to special provisions under the Code, including U.S. Holders described immediately above, should consult their own financial advisor, legal counsel or accountant
regarding the U.S. federal, U.S. state and local, and foreign tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares.

If an entity that is classified as partnership (or “pass-through” entity) for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds Shares, the U.S. federal income tax consequences to such
partnership (or “pass-through” entity) and the partners of such partnership (or owners of such “pass-through” entity) generally will depend on the activities of the partnership (or
“pass-through” entity) and the status of such partners (or owners). Partners of entities that are classified as partnerships (or owners of “pass-through” entities) for U.S. federal
income tax purposes should consult their own financial advisor, legal counsel or accountant regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and
disposition of Shares.

Tax Consequences Other than U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences Not Addressed
This summary does not address the U.S. state and local, U.S. federal estate and gift, or foreign tax consequences to U.S. Holders of the acquisition, ownership, and

disposition of Shares. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant regarding the U.S. state and local, U.S. federal estate and gift, and
foreign tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares. (See “Taxation - Canadian Taxation” below).
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U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Acquisition, Ownership, and Disposition of Shares
Distributions on Shares
General Taxation of Distributions

A U.S. Holder that receives a distribution, including a constructive distribution, with respect to the Shares will be required to include the amount of such distribution in
gross income as a dividend (without reduction for any Canadian income tax withheld from such distribution) to the extent of the current or accumulated “earnings and profits” of
the Company. To the extent that a distribution exceeds the current and accumulated “earnings and profits” of the Company, such distribution will be treated (a) first, as a tax-free
return of capital to the extent of a U.S. Holder’s tax basis in the Shares and, (b) thereafter, as gain from the sale or exchange of such Shares. (See more detailed discussion at
“Disposition of Shares” below).

Reduced Tax Rates for Certain Dividends

For taxable years beginning before January 1, 2011, a dividend paid by the Company generally will be taxed at the preferential tax rates applicable to long-term capital
gains if (a) the Company is a “qualified foreign corporation” (as defined below), (b) the U.S. Holder receiving such dividend is an individual, estate, or trust, and (c) such dividend
is paid on Shares that have been held by such U.S. Holder for at least 61 days during the 121-day period beginning 60 days before the “ex-dividend date” (i.e., the first date that a
purchaser of such Shares will not be entitled to receive such dividend).

The Company generally will be a “qualified foreign corporation” under Section 1(h)(11) of the Code (a “QFC”) if (a) the Company is eligible for the benefits of the
Canada-U.S. Tax Convention, or (b) the Shares are readily tradable on an established securities market in the U.S. However, even if the Company satisfies one or more of such
requirements, the Company will not be treated as a QFC if the Company is a “passive foreign investment company” (“PFIC”, as defined below) for the taxable year during which
the Company pays a dividend or for the preceding taxable year.

As discussed below, the Company believes that it was a PFIC for one or more prior taxable years, and, based on current plans and financial projections, the Company
expects to be a PFIC for the current taxable year. (See more detailed discussion at “Additional Rules that May Apply to U.S. Holders” below). Accordingly, there can be no
assurances that the Company will be a QFC for the current or any future taxable year.

If the Company is not a QFC, a dividend paid by the Company to a U.S. Holder, including a U.S. Holder that is an individual, estate, or trust, generally will be taxed at
ordinary income tax rates (and not at the preferential tax rates applicable to long-term capital gains). The dividend rules are complex, and each U.S. Holder should consult its own
financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant regarding the dividend rules.

Distributions Paid in Foreign Currency

The amount of a distribution paid to a U.S. Holder in foreign currency generally will be equal to the U.S. dollar value of such distribution based on the exchange rate
applicable on the date of receipt. A U.S. Holder that does not convert foreign currency received as a distribution into U.S. dollars on the date of receipt generally will have a tax
basis in such foreign currency equal to the U.S. dollar value of such foreign currency on the date of receipt. Such a U.S. Holder generally will recognize ordinary income or loss on
the subsequent sale or other taxable disposition of such foreign currency (including an exchange for U.S. dollars).

Dividends Received Deduction

Dividends paid on the Shares generally will not be eligible for the “dividends received deduction.” The availability of the dividends received deduction is subject to
complex limitations that are beyond the scope of this discussion, and a U.S. Holder that is a corporation should consult its own financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant
regarding the dividends received deduction.
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Disposition of Shares

A U.S. Holder will recognize gain or loss on the sale or other taxable disposition of Shares in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between (a) the amount of cash
plus the fair market value of any property received and (b) such U.S. Holder’s tax basis in the Shares sold or otherwise disposed of. Subject to the PFIC rules discussed below, any
such gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss, which will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Shares are held for more than one year. Gain or loss recognized by a U.S.
Holder on the sale or other taxable disposition of Shares generally will be treated as “U.S. source” for purposes of applying the U.S. foreign tax credit rules. Where a U.S. Holder
pays Canadian income tax with respect to gain on the disposition of Shares, an election is available under the Code whereby such U.S. Holder can treat the gain as arising from
foreign sources. (See more detailed discussion at “Foreign Tax Credit” below).

Preferential tax rates apply to long-term capital gains of a U.S. Holder that is an individual, estate, or trust. There are currently no preferential tax rates for long-term
capital gains of a U.S. Holder that is a corporation. Deductions for capital losses and net capital losses are subject to complex limitations under the Code.

Foreign Tax Credit

A U.S. Holder who pays (whether directly or through withholding) Canadian income tax with respect to dividends paid on the Shares generally will be entitled, at the
election of such U.S. Holder, to receive either a deduction or a credit for such Canadian income tax paid. Generally, a credit will reduce a U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax
liability on a dollar-for-dollar basis, whereas a deduction will reduce a U.S. Holder’s income subject to U.S. federal income tax. This election is made on a year-by-year basis and
applies to all foreign taxes paid (whether directly or through withholding) by a U.S. Holder during a year.

Complex limitations apply to the foreign tax credit, including the general limitation that the credit cannot exceed the proportionate share of a U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal
income tax liability that such U.S. Holder’s “foreign source” taxable income bears to such U.S. Holder’s worldwide taxable income. In applying this limitation, a U.S. Holder’s
various items of income and deduction must be classified, under complex rules, as either “foreign source” or “U.S. source.” In addition, this limitation is calculated separately
with respect to specific categories of income. Dividends paid by the Company generally will constitute “foreign source” income and generally will be categorized as “passive
income.” The foreign tax credit rules are complex, and each U.S. Holder should consult its own financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant regarding the foreign tax credit
rules.

Information Reporting; Backup Withholding Tax

Payments made within the U.S., or by a U.S. payor or U.S. middleman, of dividends on, and proceeds arising from certain sales or other taxable dispositions of, Shares
generally will be subject to information reporting and backup withholding tax, at the rate of 28%, if a U.S. Holder (a) fails to furnish such U.S. Holder’s correct U.S. taxpayer
identification number (generally on Form W-9), (b) furnishes an incorrect U.S. taxpayer identification number, (c) is notified by the IRS that such U.S. Holder has previously failed
to properly report items subject to backup withholding tax, or (d) fails to certify, under penalty of perjury, that such U.S. Holder has furnished its correct U.S. taxpayer
identification number and that the IRS has not notified such U.S. Holder that it is subject to backup withholding tax. However, U.S. Holders that are corporations generally are
excluded from these information reporting and backup withholding tax rules. Any amounts withheld under the U.S. backup withholding tax rules will be allowed as a credit
against a U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, or will be refunded, if such U.S. Holder furnishes required information to the IRS. Each U.S. Holder should
consult its own financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant regarding the information reporting and backup withholding tax rules.

Additional Rules that May Apply to U.S. Holders

If the Company is a “controlled foreign corporation” or a “PFIC” (each as defined below), the preceding sections of this summary may not describe the U.S. federal
income tax consequences to U.S. Holders of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares.
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Controlled Foreign Corporation

The Company generally will be a “controlled foreign corporation” under Section 957 of the Code (a “CFC”) if more than 50% of the total voting power or the total value
of the outstanding shares of the Company is owned, directly or indirectly, by citizens or residents of the U.S., domestic partnerships, domestic corporations, domestic estates, or
domestic trusts (each as defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code), each of which own, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the total voting power of the outstanding shares of
the Company (a “10% Shareholder”).

If the Company is a CFC, a 10% Shareholder generally will be subject to current U.S. federal income tax with respect to (a) such 10% Shareholder’s pro rata share of the
“subpart F income” (as defined in Section 952 of the Code) of the Company and (b) such 10% Shareholder’s pro rata share of the earnings of the Company invested in “United
States property” (as defined in Section 956 of the Code). In addition, under Section 1248 of the Code, any gain recognized on the sale or other taxable disposition of Shares by a
U.S. Holder that was a 10% Shareholder at any time during the five-year period ending with such sale or other taxable disposition generally will be treated as a dividend to the
extent of the “earnings and profits” of the Company that are attributable to such Shares. If the Company is both a CFC and a “passive foreign investment company” (as defined
below), the Company generally will be treated as a CFC (and not as a “passive foreign investment company”’) with respect to any 10% Shareholder.

The Company does not believe that it has previously been, or currently is, a CFC. However, there can be no assurance that the Company will not be a CFC for the current
or any future taxable year.

Passive Foreign Investment Company

The Company generally will be a “passive foreign investment company” under Section 1297 of the Code (a “PFIC”) if, for a taxable year, (a) 75% or more of the gross
income of the Company for such taxable year is passive income or (b) on average 50% or more of the assets held by the Company either produce passive income or are held for the
production of passive income, based on the fair market value of such assets (or on the adjusted tax basis of such assets, if the Company is not publicly traded and either is a
“controlled foreign corporation” or makes an election). “Passive income” includes, for example, dividends, interest, certain rents and royalties, certain gains from the sale of stock
and securities, and certain gains from commodities transactions. However, for transactions entered into on or before December 31, 2004, gains arising from the sale of
commodities generally are excluded from passive income if (a) a foreign corporation holds the commodities directly (and not through an agent or independent contractor) as
inventory or similar property or as dealer property, (b) such foreign corporation incurs substantial expenses related to the production, processing, transportation, handling, or
storage of the commodities, and (c) gross receipts from sales of commodities that satisfy the requirements of clauses (a) and (b) constitute at least 85% of the total gross receipts of
such foreign corporation. For transactions entered into after December 31, 2004, gains arising from the sale of commodities generally are excluded from passive income if
substantially all of a foreign corporation’s commodities are (a) stock in trade of such foreign corporation or other property of a kind which would properly be included in inventory
of such foreign corporation, or property held by such foreign corporation primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business, (b) property used in the trade or
business of such foreign corporation that would be subject to the allowance for depreciation under Section 167 of the Code, or (c) supplies of a type regularly used or consumed by
such foreign corporation in the ordinary course of its trade or business.

For purposes of the PFIC income test and assets test described above, if the Company owns, directly or indirectly, 25% or more of the total value of the outstanding shares
of another foreign corporation, the Company will be treated as if it (a) held a proportionate share of the assets of such other foreign corporation and (b) received directly a
proportionate share of the income of such other foreign corporation. In addition, for purposes of the PFIC income test and asset test described above, “passive income” does not
include any interest, dividends, rents, or royalties that are received or accrued by the Company from a “related person” (as defined in Section 954(d)(3) of the Code), to the extent
such items are properly allocable to the income of such related person that is not passive income.

In addition, if the Company is a PFIC and owns shares of another foreign corporation that also is a PFIC (a “Subsidiary PFIC”), under certain indirect ownership rules, a
disposition by the Company of the common stock of such Subsidiary PFIC or a distribution received by the Company from such Subsidiary PFIC generally will be treated as an
indirect disposition by a U.S. Holder or an indirect distribution received by a U.S. Holder, subject to the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed below. To the extent that gain
recognized on the actual disposition by a U.S. Holder of the Shares or income recognized by a U.S. Holder on an actual distribution received on the Shares was previously subject
to U.S. federal income tax under these indirect ownership rules, such amount generally should not be subject to U.S. federal income tax.
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The Company believes it was a PFIC for one or more prior taxable years, and, based on current business plans and financial projections, the Company expects to be a
PFIC for its current taxable year. However, the determination of whether the Company was, or will be, a PFIC for a taxable year depends, in part, on the application of complex
U.S. federal income tax rules, which are subject to various interpretations. In addition, whether the Company will be a PFIC for the current taxable year and each subsequent
taxable year depends on the assets and income of the Company over the course of each such taxable year and, as a result, cannot be predicted with certainty as of the date of this
Circular. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not challenge the determination made by the Company concerning its PFIC status.

If the Company is a PFIC, the U.S. federal income tax consequences to a U.S. Holder of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares will depend on whether
such U.S. Holder makes an election to treat the Company as a “qualified electing fund” or “QEF” under Section 1295 of the Code (a “QEF Election”) or a mark-to-market election
under Section 1296 of the Code (a “Mark-to-Market Election”). A U.S. Holder that does not make either a QEF Election or a Mark-to-Market Election will be referred to in this
summary as a “Non-Electing U.S. Holder.”

U.S. Holders should be aware that there can be no assurance that the Company will satisfy record keeping requirements that apply to a QEF, or that the Company will
supply U.S. Holders with information that such U.S. Holders require to report under the QEF rules, in event that the Company is a PFIC and a U.S. Holder wishes to make a QEF
Election. Each U.S. Holder should consult its own financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant regarding the availability of, and procedure for making, a QEF Election.

Under Section 1291 of the Code, any gain recognized on the sale or other taxable disposition of Shares, and any “excess distribution” (as defined in Section 1291(b) of the
Code) paid on the Shares, must be rateably allocated to each day in a Non-Electing U.S. Holder’s holding period for the Shares. The amount of any such gain or excess distribution
allocated to prior years of such Non-Electing U.S. Holder’s holding period for the Shares generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the highest tax applicable to
ordinary income in each such prior year. A Non-Electing U.S. Holder will be required to pay interest on the resulting tax liability for each such prior year, calculated as if such tax
liability had been due in each such prior year.

A U.S. Holder that makes a QEF Election generally will not be subject to the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above. However, a U.S. Holder that makes a
QEF Election generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such U.S. Holder’s pro rata share of (a) the “net capital gain” of the Company, which will be taxed as long-
term capital gain to such U.S. Holder, and (b) and the “ordinary earnings” of the Company, which will be taxed as ordinary income to such U.S. Holder. A U.S. Holder that makes
a QEF Election will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on such amounts for each taxable year in which the Company is a PFIC, regardless of whether such amounts are actually
distributed to such U.S. Holder by the Company.

A U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election generally will not be subject to the rules of Section 1291 of the Code discussed above. A U.S. Holder may make a
Mark-to-Market Election only if the Shares are “marketable stock” (as defined in Section 1296(e) of the Code). A U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election will include
in gross income, for each taxable year in which the Company is a PFIC, an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (a) the fair market value of the Shares as of the close of such
taxable year over (b) such U.S. Holder’s tax basis in such Shares. A U.S. Holder that makes a Mark-to-Market Election will, subject to certain limitations, be allowed a deduction
in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (a) such U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in the Shares over (b) the fair market value of such Shares as of the close of such taxable year.
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The PFIC rules are complex, and each U.S. Holder should consult its own financial advisor, legal counsel, or accountant regarding the PFIC rules and how the PFIC rules may
affect the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of Shares.

Canadian Taxation

The following summary fairly describes, as of the date hereof, the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations under the/ncome Tax Act(Canada) (the “ITA”)
generally applicable to an owner of Shares who is not and has not been or deemed to be resident in Canada for purposes of the ITA at any time while such Holder holds the Shares,
is a resident of the U.S. for purposes of the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention , and who, for purposes of the ITA, at all relevant times: holds the Shares as capital property; does not
have a “permanent establishment” or “fixed base” in Canada, as defined in the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention; does not use or hold (and is not deemed to use or hold) the Shares in
carrying on a business in Canada for purposes of the ITA; and deals at arm’s length and is not affiliated with the Company within the meaning of the ITA (a “Holder”). The Shares
will generally constitute capital property to a Holder unless such Holder holds such Shares in the course of carrying on a business of trading or dealing in securities or has acquired
such Shares in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure in the nature of trade.

This summary is not applicable to a Holder an interest in which is a “tax shelter investment” as defined in the ITA, to a Holder who is a “financial institution” for purposes
of the “mark-to-market” rules contained in the ITA, or to a Holder who is a “specified financial institution” for the purposes of the ITA. Such Holders should consult their own tax
advisors.

This summary is based on the current provisions of the ITA, the regulations thereunder (the “Regulations”), the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention, all specific proposed
amendments to the ITA or the Regulations publicly announced by or on behalf of the Canadian Minister of Finance prior to the date hereof, (the “Specific Proposals”), the
amendments of the Canada-US Tax Convention contained in the Fifth Protocol to the Canada-US Tax Convention (the “Protocol”) and the Company’s understanding of the current
published administrative and assessing practices of the Canada Revenue Agency (the “CRA”). This summary assumes the Specific Proposals will be enacted as proposed but no
assurance can be given that this will be the case and this summary does not otherwise take into account or anticipate any changes in administrative practice or in law, whether by
way of judicial, governmental or legislative decision or action, nor does it take into account any income tax laws or considerations of any province or territory of Canada or any
jurisdiction other than Canada, which may differ from the Canadian federal income tax consequences described in this document.

This summary is of a general nature only, is not exhaustive of all possible tax considerations applicable to an investor, and is not intended to be relied on as legal or tax
advice or representations to any particular investor. Consequently, investors are urged to seek independent tax advice in respect of their particular circumstances and the
consequences to them of the acquisition, ownership or disposition of Shares having regard to their particular circumstances.

Dividends

Under the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention, dividends paid or credited, or deemed to be paid or credited, on the Shares to a Holder generally will be subject to Canadian
withholding tax at the rate of 15% of the gross amount of those dividends. If a Holder is a company within the meaning of the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention and owns 10% or more
of the Company’s voting stock, the rate is reduced from 15% to 5%.

Under the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention, dividends paid to religious, scientific, literary, educational or charitable organizations or certain pension, retirement or employee
benefit organizations that have complied with administrative procedures specified by the CRA are exempt from the aforementioned Canadian withholding tax so long as such
organization is resident in and exempt from tax in the U.S. Such exemption does not apply to the extent the dividends are received in connection with a trade or business carried on
by such Holder or where the Company is related to such Holder.
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Disposition of Shares

A Holder will only be subject to taxation in Canada under the ITA on capital gains realized by the Holder on a disposition or deemed disposition of the Shares if such
shares constitute “taxable Canadian property” within the meaning of the ITA at the time of the disposition or deemed disposition and the Holder is not afforded relief under the
Canada-U.S. Tax Convention. In general, the Shares will not be “taxable Canadian property” to a Holder if, at the time of their disposition, they are listed on a stock exchange that
is prescribed in the Regulations (which includes the American Stock Exchange), unless:

. at any time within the 60-month period immediately preceding the disposition or deemed disposition, the Holder, persons not dealing at arm’s length with the
Holder, or the Holder together with such non-arm’s length persons, owned 25% or more of the issued shares of any class or series of the Company’s capital
stock;

. the Holder was formerly resident in Canada and, upon ceasing to be a Canadian resident, elected under the ITA to have the Shares deemed to be “taxable

Canadian property”; or
. the Holder’s Shares were acquired in a tax deferred exchange in consideration for property that was itself “taxable Canadian property.”

If a Holder’s Shares are “taxable Canadian property,” such Holder will recognize a capital gain (or a capital loss) for the taxation year during which the Holder disposes,
or is deemed to have disposed of, the Shares. Such capital gain (or capital loss) will be equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition exceed (or are less than) the
Holder’s adjusted cost base of such Shares and any reasonable costs of making the disposition. One-half of any such capital gain (a “taxable capital gain”’) must be included in
income in computing the Holder’s income and one half of any such capital loss (an “allowable capital loss”) is generally deductible by the Holder from taxable capital gains
arising in the year of disposition. To the extent a Holder has insufficient taxable capital gains in the current taxation year against which to apply an allowable capital loss, the
deficiency will constitute a net capital loss for the current taxation year and may generally be carried back to any of the three preceding taxation years or carried forward to any
future taxation year, to the extent and under the circumstances described in the ITA.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents
Not applicable.
G. Statement by Experts
Not applicable.
H. Documents on Display

We are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and file periodic reports and other information with the
SEC. However, as a foreign private issuer, we are exempt from the rules and regulations under the Exchange Act prescribing the furnishing and content of proxy statements, and
our officers, directors and principal stockholders are exempt from the reporting and short-swing profit recovery provisions contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Our
reports and other information filed with the SEC may be inspected at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Copies
of these materials may be obtained at prescribed rates from the SEC at that address. Our reports and other information can also be inspected at no charge on the SEC’s website at

WWW.SEC.Zov.

We are also subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Securities Act (Ontario) and the Canada Business Corporations Act. Such reports and
information can be inspected at no charge on the website www.sedar.com.

If you are a stockholder, you may request a copy of these filings at no cost by contacting us at:

2 Meridian Road

Toronto, Ontario, MOW 477
Canada

Phone (416) 798-1200

Fax (416) 798-2200
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L Subsidiary Information

Lorus’ currently has one subsidiary, NuChem Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“NuChem”), a corporation incorporated under the laws of Ontario, of which Lorus owns 80% of the
issued and outstanding voting share capital and 100% of the issued and outstanding non-voting preference share capital. Effective May 31, 2009, the Company wound up
GeneSense Technologies Inc. (“GeneSense”), a corporation incorporated under the laws of Canada, of which Lorus owned 100% of the issued and outstanding share capital into
Lorus. On June 22, 2009, the Company transferred its ownership in Pharma Immune, Inc to TEMIC as part of the consideration provided on the repurchase of the convertible
debentures.

Item 11. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Refer to notes 8 and 9 of the consolidated financial statements in Item 18.

With the repurchase of the convertible debentures in June, the Company's is not exposed to significant market risks. The company does not currently have significant interest,
credit or foreign currency risk.

The Company does not utilize derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate or foreign currency rate risks.

Interest rate risk
The Company invests its cash resources in liquid government and corporate debt instruments. We do not believe that the results of operations or cash flows would be affected to
any significant degree by a sudden change in market interest rates relative to interest rates on our investments, owing to the relative short-term nature of the investments.

Subsequent to May 31, 2009 the Company repurchased the convertible debentures.

Credit Risk

Financial instruments potentially exposing the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and marketable
securities. The Company manages this credit risk by maintaining bank accounts with Schedule I banks and investing only in highly rated Canadian with securities that are traded
on active markets and are capable of prompt liquidation.

Exchange rate sensitivity

The functional currency of the Company is the Canadian dollar. The company does not have significant cash balances in any foreign currencies, does not generally invest
in marketable securities denominated in currencies other than Canadian dollars and does not have significant ongoing supply contracts or revenue sources denominated in foreign
currencies. Any foreign exchange gains and losses are included in the determination of loss for the period.

Limitations

Except in the case of the discussion regarding the convertible debenture interest rate risk, the above discussion includes only those exposures that exist as of May
31,2009, and as a result, does not consider exposures or positions that could arise after that date. The Company's ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to interest rate and
exchange rate fluctuations would depend on the exposures that arise during the period.
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Risk Factors

See item 3.D.
Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities
Not applicable.
PART 11
Item 13. Defaults, Dividends, Arrearages and Delinquencies
Not applicable.
Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds
Not applicable.
Item 15. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of our fiscal year ended May 31, 2009, an evaluation of the effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and procedures” (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), was carried out by our management under the supervision of and with the participation of the principal executive officer and
principal financial officer. Based upon on that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that as of the end of that fiscal year, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

It should be noted that while our principal executive officer and principal financial officer believe that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective and provide a
reasonable level of assurance, they do not expect that the disclosure controls and procedures or internal control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived or operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a - 15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Exchange Act). Our internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance that all transactions are accurately recorded, that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our assets are safeguarded.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as at May 31, 2009. In management’s opinion, the internal control over
financial reporting is effective as at May 31, 2009. In making its assessment, management used the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(“COSO”) framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. As part of its assessment,
management has identified the following two deficiencies described below, but believes that the Company’s limited number of transactions, day-to-day management involvement
in operations and reporting and access to third party experts sufficiently limit the risk of material misstatement in our financial statements.
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This annual report does not include an attestation report of the company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission
that permit the company to provide only management’s report in this annual report.

Segregation of Duties

Given our limited staff, certain duties within the accounting and finance department cannot be properly segregated. We believe that none of the segregation of duty
deficiencies has resulted in a misstatement to the financial statements as we rely on certain compensating controls, including substantive periodic review of the financial statements
by the Chief Executive Officer and Audit Committee. We believe that our current level of staffing is commensurate with the size of our operations and nature of our business.

Complex and Non-Routine Transactions

As required, we record complex and non-routine transactions in our financial statements. These transactions are extremely technical in nature and require an in-depth
understanding of GAAP. Our accounting staff has only a fair and reasonable knowledge of the rules related to GAAP and there is a risk that these transactions may not be recorded
correctly, potentially resulting in material misstatement of our financial statements.

To address this risk, we consult with our third party expert advisors as needed in connection with the identification, recording and reporting of complex and non-routine
transactions. In addition, an annual audit is completed by our auditors, and presented to the Audit Committee for its review and approval. During the audit for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2009, no material misstatements were identified.

(¢) Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the year ended May 31, 2009, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect our’ internal control over financial reporting.

Item 16. [Reserved]
Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Georg Ludwig, a director of the Company and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, possesses the attributes required of
an “audit committee financial expert,” and is “independent,” under applicable NYSE Amex rules.

Item 16B. Code of Ethics
We have adopted a Code of Ethics, which applies to all of our officers, directors, employees and consultants. A copy of the Code of Ethics is also available upon written

request from our Director of Finance at our offices located at 2 Meridian Road, Toronto, Ontario M9W 4Z7. There were no amendments to, or waivers granted under, the Code
of Ethics during our fiscal year ended May 31, 2009.
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Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

KPMG LLP has served as our principal independent auditors since October 1994. The total fees billed for professional services by KPMG LLP (our independent auditors) for the
years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Audit Fees $252,000 $283,000
Tax Fees $39,000 $15,000
All Other Fees $19,000 5
Total $310,000 $298,000

Audit fees consist of the fees paid with respect to the audit of our consolidated annual financial statements, quarterly reviews and accounting assistance and fees for
services associated with the filing of the management proxy circular in May 2008 and other regulatory assistance. Tax fees relate to assistance provided with review of tax returns
and assistance with specific tax issues. Other fees consist of advisory services related to financing alternatives.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The audit committee of our board of directors has, pursuant to the audit committee charter, adopted specific responsibilities and duties regarding the provision of services
by our external auditors, currently KPMG LLP. Our charter requires audit committee pre-approval of all permitted audit and audit-related services. Any audit and non-audit
services must also be submitted to the audit committee for review and approval. Under the charter, all permitted services to be provided by KPMG LLP must be pre-approved by

the audit committee.

Subject to the charter, the audit committee may establish fee thresholds for a group of pre-approved services. The audit committee then recommends to the board of
directors approval of the fees and other significant compensation to be paid to the independent auditors.

No services were provided by KPMG LLP under a de minimus exemption for our fiscal year ended May 31, 2009.

Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees
Not applicable.
Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
Not applicable.

PART II1
Item 17. Financial Statements

We have responded to Item 18 in lieu of responding to this Item.
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Item 18.

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. are attached as follows:

Page
Managements Responsibility for Financial Reporting F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May 31, 2009 and 2008 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the years ended May 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 F-4
Consolidated Statement of Deficit for the years ended May 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended May 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7
Supplementary Information: Reconciliation of Canadian and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles F-44

Item 19.
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2.9+

2.10+
2.11+
2.12+
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Exhibits

Exhibit

Articles of Arrangement

By-law #2 of the Registrant

Share Purchase Agreement dated as of July 13, 2006 between Lorus and High Tech Beteiligungen GmbH & Co. KG (“High Tech”)
Registration Rights Agreement dated as of August 30, 2006 between Lorus and High Tech

Share Purchase Agreement dated as of July 24, 2006 between Lorus and Technifund Inc.

Subscription Agreement entered into with The Erin Mills Investment Corporation dated October 6, 2004

Convertible Secured Debentures issued to The Erin Mills Investment Corporation on April 15, 2005, January 14, 2005 and October 6, 2004

Arrangement Agreement dated May 1, 2007, as amended, between the Company, Old Lorus, 6707157 Canada Inc., NuChem Pharmaceuticals Inc. (“NuChem”),
GeneSense Technologies Inc. (“GeneSense”) and Pinnacle International Lands Inc., as amended May 14, 2007 and July 4, 2007.

Warrant Repurchase Agreement dated May 1, 2007 between the Company and TEMIC

Assignment, Novation and Amendment Agreement and Consent dated May 1, 2007 among the Company, Old Lorus, GeneSense and TEMIC as amended June 28,
2007

Tangible Business Assets Transfer Agreement dated July 10, 2007 between Old Lorus and GeneSense

Antisense Patent Transfer Agreement dated July 10, 2007 between the Company and GeneSense

Virulizin and Small Molecule Patent Assets Transfer Agreement dated July 10, 2007 between Old Lorus and GeneSense

Prepaid Expenses and Receivables Transfer Agreement dated July 10, 2007 between Old Lorus and GeneSense

Nuchem Share Purchase Agreement dated July 10, 2007 between Old Lorus and GeneSense

GeneSense Share Purchase Agreement dated July 10, 2007 between Old Lorus and New Lorus

Pinnacle Share purchase agreement dated July 10, 2007 between Old Lorus and 6707157 Canada Inc.
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Indemnification Agreement dated July 10, 2007 between Old Lorus and the Company

Escrow Agreement between 6707157 Canada Inc, the Company and Equity Transfer & Trust Company dated July 10, 2007

Amended and Restated Guarantee and Indemnity between GeneSense and TEMIC dated July 10,

Amended and Restated Share Pledge Agreement between the Company and TEMIC dated July 10, 2007

Form of Canadian Subscription agreement used in connection with November 2009 private placement

Form of Canadian Warrant issued in connection with November 2009 private placement

Form of United States Subscription agreement used in connection with November 2009 private placement

Form of United States Warrant issued in connection with November 2009 private placement

Promissory note dated October 6, 2009 between the Company and Herbert Abramson.

Share Purchase Warrant Indenture dated June 27, 2009 between the Company and Computershare Trust Company of Canada.

Settlement Agreement dated June 19. 2009 between the Company and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation with respect to the purchase and settlement of $15
million secured convertible debentures.

Asset Purchase Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation under which the Company sold the intellectual
property associated with Virulizin.

Supply and Services Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and Erin Mills Biotech Inc.

Share Purchase Agreement regarding sale of Pharma Immune Inc dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation.
Animal Rights License Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company and Erin Mills Biotech Inc.

Amendment, Assignment, Assumption, Novation and Consent Agreement dated June 19, 2009 between the Company, Zor Pharmaceuticals, LLC, Erin Mills
Biotech Inc. and The Erin Mills Investment Corporation.

List of subsidiaries

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Stock Option Plans

Form of Officer and Director Indemnity Agreement

Amalgamation Agreement dated August 23, 1991, among the Company, Mint Gold Resources Ltd., Harry J. Hodge and Wayne Beach.

Exclusive License Agreement dated April 8, 2008 between the Company and Zor Pharmaceuticals LLC.

Independent Contractor Services Agreement dated April 8, 2008 between the Company and Zor Pharmaceuticals LLC.

Limited Liability Company Agreement dated April 8, 2008 between the Company and ZBV I, LLC.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Incorporated by reference to File 0-32001, Form 6-K dated November 19, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 20 F, Annual Report, dated November 21, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 6-K dated February 10, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 6-K dated May 30, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 6-K dated November 20, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 6-K dated September 4, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to File 0-19763, Registration Statement on Form 20-FR, dated March 4, 1992.

Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 20 F, Annual Report, dated November 29, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 6K dated April 21, 2008
Incorporated by reference to File 1-32001, Form 6K dated November 16, 2009
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Signatures
The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has duly caused and authorized the undersigned to sign this annual report on

its behalf.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

By: /s/ Aiping H. Young

Name: Aiping H. Young
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 30, 2009

By: /s/ Elizabeth Williams

Name: Elizabeth Williams
Title: Director of Finance and Acting Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 30, 2009
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. and other financial information contained in this annual report are the
responsibility of Management and have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, using Management's best
estimates and judgments where appropriate. In the opinion of Management, these consolidated financial statements reflect fairly the financial position and the
results of operations and cash flows of the Company within reasonable limits of materiality. The financial information contained elsewhere in this annual report
has been reviewed to ensure consistency with that in the consolidated financial statements. The integrity and objectivity of data in the financial statements and
elsewhere in this annual report are the responsibility of Management.

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management maintains a system of internal controls designed to
provide reasonable assurance, at appropriate cost, that transactions are authorized, assets are safeguarded and proper records are maintained. Management
believes that the internal controls provide reasonable assurance that financial records are reliable and form a proper basis for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, and that assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded. The internal control process includes management’'s
communication to employees of policies that govern ethical business conduct.

The Board of Directors, through an Audit Committee, oversees management’s responsibilities for financial reporting. This committee, which consists of three
independent directors, reviews the audited consolidated financial statements and recommends the financial statements to the Board for approval. Other key
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing the adequacy of the Company’s existing internal controls, audit process and financial reporting with
management and the external auditors.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, Chartered Accountants, who are independent auditors appointed by the shareholders
of the Company upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Their report follows. The independent auditors have free and full access to the Audit
Committee.

/sl Aiping H. Young /sl Elizabeth Williams

Aiping H. Young Elizabeth Williams
President and Chief Executive Officer Director of Finance (Acting Chief Financial Officer)
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KPMG LLP Telephone  (416) 228-7000
Chartered Accountants Fax (416) 228-T123
Yonge Corparate Centre Internet www_kpmg.ca
4100 Yonge Street Suite 200

Toronto ON M2P 2H3
Canada

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. as at May 31, 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income, deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2009 and for the
period from inception on September 5, 1986 to May 31, 2009. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at May
31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2009 and for the period
from inception on September 5, 1986 to May 31, 2009, in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in note
1(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has significant doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plan in regard
to these matters is also described in note 1(a). The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.

As discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the Accounting Standards Board's replacement
of Section 1506, Accounting Changes, and The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants' Handbook Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, Section 3862,
Financial Instruments - Disclosures, and Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation.

"KPMG LLP"

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Toronto, Canada

August 26, 2009, except as to note 18 which is as of November 30, 2009




LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

May 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (notes 9 and 12) $ 5374 $ 2,652
Short-term investments (notes 4 and 9) 490 6,784
Prepaid expenses and other assets 826 721
Amount held in escrow (note 1(b)) - 600
6,690 10,757
Fixed assets (note 5) 231 244
Goodwill 606 606
$ 7527 $ 11,607
Liabilities and Shareholders' Deficiency
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 299 $ 923
Deferred gain on sale of shares (notes 1(b) and 14(d)) - 600
Accrued liabilities 1,131 1,194
Secured convertible debentures (note 13) 14,448 -
15,878 2,717
Secured convertible debentures (note 13) - 12,742
Shareholders' deficiency:
Share capital (note 6):
Common shares 162,240 158,743
Equity portion of secured convertible debentures 3,814 3,814
Stock options 3,845 4,961
Contributed surplus 10,744 9,181
Warrants 417 -
Deficit accumulated during development stage (189,411) (180,551)
(8,351) (3,852)
Basis of presentation (note 1)
Contingencies, commitments and guarantees (note 14)
Subsequent events (note 18)
$ 7,527 $ 11,607

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

"Denis R. Burger" Director

"Aiping H. Young" Director
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LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except for per common share data)

Period from
inception on
September 5,
1986 to
Years ended May 31, May 31,
2009 2008 2007 2009
Revenue $ 184 § 43 3 107 $ 1,040
Expenses:
Cost of sales - 2 16 105
Research and development (note 11) 3,757 6,260 3,505 123,997
General and administrative 2,958 3,715 3,727 57,875
Stock-based compensation (note 7) 446 719 503 8,418
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 189 317 402 9,731
7,350 11,013 8,153 200,126
(7,166) (10,970) (8,046) (199,086)
Other expenses (income):
Interest on convertible debentures 707 1,029 1,050 3,968
Accretion in carrying value of convertible debentures (notes 3(c)(iv) and
13) 1,707 1,176 935 4,903
Amortization of deferred financing costs (notes 3(c)(iv) and 13) - - 110 412
Interest (270) (542) (503) (12,236)
2,144 1,663 1,592 (2,953)
Loss from operations (9,310) (12,633) (9,638) (196,133)
Gain on sale of shares (note 1(b)) 450 6,299 - 6,749
Loss for the period and other comprehensive loss $ (8,860) $ (6,334) $ (9,638) $ (189,384)
Basic and diluted loss per common share $ (0.04) $ (0.03) $ (0.05)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding used in the
calculation of basic and diluted loss per share (in thousands) 247,084 215,084 204,860

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Deficit
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Period from

inception on

September 5,

1986 to

Years ended May 31, May 31,

2009 2008 2007 2009

Deficit, beginning of period:

As previously reported $ (180,551) $ (174,190) $ (164,552) $ -
Change in accounting policy - (27) - (27)
As restated (180,551) (174,217) (164,552) (27)
Loss for the period (8,860) (6,334) (9,638) (189,384)
Deficit, end of period $ (189,411) $ (180,551) $ (174,190) $ (189,411)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Period from
inception on
September 5,
1986 to
Years ended May 31, May 31,
2009 2008 2007 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
Loss for the period $ (8,860) $ (6,334) $ (9,638) $ (189,384)
Iltems not involving cash:
Gain on sale of shares (note 1(b)) (450) (6,299) - (6,749)
Stock-based compensation 446 719 503 8,418
Interest on convertible debentures 707 1,029 1,050 3,968
Accretion in carrying value of convertible debentures 1,707 1,176 935 4,903
Amortization of deferred financing costs - - 110 412
Depreciation, amortization and write-down of fixed assets and
acquired patents and licenses 189 317 1,057 22,292
Other (10) (7) - 445
Change in non-cash operating working capital (note 12) (942) (794) (310) (454)
Cash used in operating activities (7,213) (10,193) (6,293) (156,149)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of debentures, net of issuance costs - - - 12,948
Issuance (repurchase) of warrants (note 6) - (252) - 37,153
Proceeds on sale of shares, net of amount held in escrow and arrangement
costs (note 1(b)) 600 7,561 (1,262) 6,899
Issuance of common shares and warrants, net of issuance costs (note 6) 3,207 - 11,654 112,232
Cash provided by financing activities 3,807 7,309 10,392 169,232
Cash flows from investing activities:
Maturity (purchase) of investments, net 6,304 4,189 (5,366) (500)
Business acquisition, net of cash received - - - (539)
Acquired patents and licenses - - - (715)
Additions to fixed assets (176) (58) (20) (6,303)
Proceeds on sale of fixed assets - - - 348
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 6,128 4,131 (5,386) (7,709)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2722 1,247 (1,287) 5374
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 2,652 1,405 2,692 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 5374 $ 2652 § 1,405 § 5,374

Supplemental cash flow information (note 12)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1.

Basis of presentation:

(a) Going concern:

The Company has not earned substantial revenue from its drug candidates and is therefore considered to be in the development stage. The
continuation of the Company's research and development activities is dependent upon the Company's ability to successfully fund its cash requirements
through a combination of equity financing and payments from strategic partners. The Company has no current sources of significant payments from
strategic partners.

Subsequent to year end, the Company settled its secured convertible debentures and extinguished its liability in the amount of $15.0 million for
consideration of cash and other assets (note 18).

Management has forecasted that the Company's current level of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments after the extinguishment of the
secured convertible debentures will not be sufficient to execute its current planned expenditures for the next twelve months without further
investment. The Company is currently in discussion with several potential investors to provide additional funding. Management believes that it will
complete one or more of these arrangements in sufficient time to continue to execute its planned expenditures without interruption. However, there can
be no assurance that the capital will be available as necessary to meet these continuing expenditures, or if the capital is available, that it will be on terms
acceptable to the Company. The issuance of common shares by the Company could result in significant dilution in the equity interest of existing
shareholders. The Company is also considering alternatives to delay its research program until financing is available, amongst other cost savings
measures. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain sufficient financing to meet future operational needs. As a result, there
is a significant doubt as to whether the Company will be able to continue as a going concern and realize its assets and pay its liabilities as they fall due.

The consolidated financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption were not appropriate. If the

going concern basis were not appropriate for these consolidated financial statements, then adjustments would be necessary in the carrying value of the
assets and liabilities, the reported revenue and expenses and the balance sheet classifications used.
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1.

Basis of presentation (continued):

(b) Reorganization:

On November 1, 2006, Lorus Therapeutics Inc. ("Lorus", the "Company" or "New Lorus") was incorporated as 6650309 Canada Inc. pursuant to the
provisions of the Canada Business Corporation Act and did not carry out any active business from the date of incorporation to July 10, 2007. From its
incorporation to July 10, 2007, the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary of 4325231 Canada Inc., formerly Lorus Therapeutics Inc. ("Old Lorus").

On July 10, 2007, the Company and Old Lorus completed a plan of arrangement and corporate reorganization (the "Arrangement"). As part of the
Arrangement, all of the assets and liabilities of Old Lorus (including all of the shares of its subsidiaries held by it), with the exception of certain future tax
assets were transferred, directly or indirectly, from Old Lorus to the Company. Securityholders in Old Lorus exchanged their securities in Old Lorus for
equivalent securities in New Lorus (the "Exchange") and the board of directors and management of Old Lorus continued as the board of directors and
management of New Lorus.

In connection with the Arrangement, New Lorus received cash consideration of approximately $8.5 million less an escrowed amount of $600 thousand
related to the indemnification discussed below, before transaction costs. After completion of the Arrangement, New Lorus is not related to Old Lorus,
which was subsequently renamed Global Summit Real Estate Inc.

Under the Arrangement, New Lorus and its subsidiaries agreed to indemnify Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees from and against all
damages, losses, expenses (including fines and penalties), other third party costs and legal expenses, to which any of them may be subject arising out
of various matters discussed in note 14. The escrowed amount of $600 thousand was subsequently released to Lorus on July 10, 2008.

As part of the Arrangement, the Company changed its name to Lorus Therapeutics Inc. and continued as a biopharmaceutical company, specializing in

the research and development of pharmaceutical products and technologies for the management of cancer as a continuation of the business of Old
Lorus.
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Basis of presentation (continued):

The Arrangement has been accounted for on a continuity of interest basis and, accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of New Lorus reflect
the financial position, results of operations and cash flows as if New Lorus has always carried on the business formerly carried on by Old
Lorus. Consequently, all comparative figures presented in these consolidated financial statements include those of Old Lorus.

Changes in accounting policies:

(a)

(b)

Accounting changes:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the Accounting Standards Board's ("AcSB") replacement of Section 1506, Accounting Changes. The new
standard allows for voluntary changes in accounting policy only when they result in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant
information; requires changes in accounting policy to be applied retrospectively unless doing so is impracticable; requires prior period errors to be
corrected retrospectively; and calls for enhanced disclosures about the effects of changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors on the financial

statements. The adoption of this standard did not have any impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements during the year ended May 31,
2009.

Capital disclosures:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the new recommendations of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ("CICA") Handbook
Section 1535, Capital Disclosures ("Section 1535"). Section 1535 establishes standards for disclosing information about an entity's capital and how it is
managed. It requires the disclosure of information about: (i) an entity's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital; complied with any
capital requirements; and if it has not complied, the consequences of such non-compliance. The Company has included disclosures recommended by
Section 1535 in note 8 to these consolidated financial statements.
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2.

Changes in accounting policies (continued):

(c)

(d)

Financial instruments:

Effective June 1, 2008, the Company adopted the new recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures
("Section 3862"), and Handbook Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation ("Section 3863"). Section 3862 requires entities to provide
disclosures in their financial statements that enable users to evaluate the significance of financial instruments on the entity's financial position and its
performance and the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the period and at the balance
sheet date, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 establishes standards for presentation of financial instruments and non-financial
derivatives. It deals with the classification of financial instruments, from the perspective of the issuer, between liabilities and equities, the classification
of related interest, dividends, losses and gains, and circumstances in which financial assets and financial liabilities are offset. The adoption of these
standards did not have any impact on the classification and valuation of the Company's financial instruments. The Company has included disclosures
recommended by these new Handbook sections in note 9 to these consolidated financial statements.

General standards of financial statement presentation:

In May 2007, the AcSB amended CICA Handbook Section 1400, General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation, to change the guidance
related to management's responsibility to assess the ability of the entity to continue as a going concern.

The main features of the changes are as follows:
(i) management is required to make an assessment of an entity's ability to continue as a going concern;

(i) in making its assessment, management takes into account all available information about the future, which is at least, but is not limited to, twelve
months from the balance sheet date;

(iii) financial statements must be prepared on a going concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the entity, to cease trading or
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so;
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2.

Changes in accounting policies (continued):

(iv) disclosure is required of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern; and

(v) when financial statements are not prepared on a going concern basis, that fact should be disclosed, together with the basis on which the financial
statements are prepared and the reason the entity is not regarded as a going concern.

The effective date of these amendments is for interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The
new disclosure requirements pertaining to this section are contained in note 1(a) to these consolidated financial statements.

Significant accounting policies:
(a) Principles of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lorus, its 80% owned subsidiary, NuChem Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("NuChem"), and its
wholly owned subsidiaries, GeneSense Technologies Inc. ("GeneSense") and Pharma Immune Inc. ("Pharma Immune"), which are substantially located
in Canada. The results of operations for acquisitions are included in these consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. Subsequent to year end, the Company disposed of the shares of
Pharma Immune (note 18).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
("Canadian GAAP").




Significant accounting policies (continued):
(b) Revenue recognition:
Revenue includes product sales, service, license and royalty revenue.

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales and provision of services when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred, the Company's price to the customer is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. The Company allows customers to
return product. Provisions for these returns are estimated based on historical return and exchange levels, and third-party data with respect to inventory
levels in the Company's distribution channels.

Revenue from multiple element arrangements consisting of non-refundable license fees, receipt of milestone payments, royalty and delivery of services
over a defined term are recognized in accordance with Emerging Issues Committee Abstract No. 142, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables. The Company recognizes the non-refundable license fee as revenue when the technology license is delivered, the fee is fixed or
determinable, collection of the amount was probable and there is no continuing involvement or obligation to perform under the arrangement. Any
milestone payment subsequently received from the customer is recognized when the customer acknowledges achievement of the milestone, when the
fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the amount is probable. If the multiple deliverables in an arrangement do not meet the criteria for
separation, the proceeds from the entire arrangement are deferred and recognized as revenue on a proportionate performance basis, or over the term
of the arrangement.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(c) Financial instruments:

Upon adoption of CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement ("Section 3855"), on June 1, 2007, the
Company designates its financial assets and liabilities as follows:

()

(ii)

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents as at June 1, 2007 and acquired thereafter are classified as held-for-trading investments and measured at fair value. By
virtue of the nature of these assets, fair value is generally equal to cost plus accrued interest. Where applicable, any significant change in market
value would result in a gain or loss being recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. As a result of adopting the new standards, there
was no material change in valuation of these assets.

The Company considers unrestricted cash on hand and in banks, term deposits and guaranteed investment certificates with original maturities of
three months or less as cash and cash equivalents.

Short-term investments, marketable securities and other investments:

Short-term investments consist of fixed income government investments and corporate instruments. Any government and corporate investments
with a stated maturity date that are not cash equivalents are classified as held-to-maturity investments, except where the Company does not intend
to hold to maturity and, therefore, the investment is designated as held-for-trading. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, while held-for-trading investments are measured at fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in
the consolidated statements of operations. The Company designated certain corporate instruments with maturities greater than one year previously
carried at amortized cost as held-for-trading investments. This change in accounting policy resulted in a decrease in the carrying amount of these
investments of $27 thousand and a corresponding increase in the opening deficit at June 1, 2007. The Company recognized a net unrealized gain
in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended May 31, 2009 of $10 thousand (2008 - $7 thousand).
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3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Company invests in high-quality fixed income government and corporate investments with low credit risk.

Subsequent to the adoption of Section 3855, short-term investments, which consist of fixed income securities with a maturity of more than three
months but less than one year, are recorded at their accreted value as they are held-to-maturity instruments. Certain corporate instruments have
maturities greater than one year, however, the Company has designated these investments as held-for-trading, and have classified these
investments as short-term investments on the consolidated balance sheets. These investments are carried at fair value.

(iii) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are typically short-term in nature and classified as other financial liabilities. These liabilities are carried at
amortized cost. As a result of adopting the new standards, there was no material change in the carrying value of these liabilities.

(iv) Secured convertible debentures:

The secured convertible debentures are classified as other financial liabilities and accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, which is consistent with the Company's accounting policy prior to the adoption of Section 3855. The deferred financing charges related to
the secured convertible debentures, formerly included in long-term assets, are now included as part of the carrying value of the secured convertible
debentures and continue to be amortized using the effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives:
Section 3855 requires that the Company identify embedded derivatives that require separation from the related host contract and measure those

embedded derivatives at fair value. Subsequent change in fair value of embedded derivatives is recognized in the consolidated statements of
operations in the period in which the change occurs.
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Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Company did not identify any embedded derivatives that required separation from the related host contract and measured at fair value as at
June 1, 2007.

(vi)  Transaction costs:

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or liabilities are accounted for as part of the
respective asset or liability's carrying value at inception except for held-for-trading securities where the costs are expensed immediately.

(d) Fixed assets:

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company records depreciation and amortization at rates that
charge operations with the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Furniture and equipment Over 3 to 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

(e) Research and development:

Research costs are charged to expense as incurred. Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in clinical trials, are expensed as incurred
unless they meet the criteria under Canadian GAAP for deferral and amortization. No development costs have been deferred to date.

(f) Goodwill and acquired patents and licenses:

Intangible assets with finite lives acquired in a business combination or other transaction are amortized over their estimated useful lives.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

@

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in the GeneSense business
combination. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is tested for impairment on an annual basis and at any other time if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would indicate that impairment may exist. When the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the residual fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess.

The Company has identified no impairment relating to goodwill for 2009, 2008 and 2007.

The Company capitalized the cost of acquired patent and license assets on the acquisitions of GeneSense and the NuChem compounds. The nature of
this asset is such that it was categorized as an intangible asset with a finite life. These assets have now been fully amortized.

Impairment of long-lived assets:

The Company periodically reviews the useful lives and the carrying values of its long-lived assets. The Company reviews for impairment in long-lived
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. If the sum of the
undiscounted expected future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of an asset is less than its carrying amount, it is
considered to be impaired. An impairment loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, which is
estimated as the expected future cash flows discounted at a rate proportionate with the risks associated with the recovery of the asset.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(h) Stock-based compensation:

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan, described in note 7. Prior to June 1, 2004, stock-based awards were accounted for using the
intrinsic method with the exception of options with contingent vesting criteria for which the settlement method was used. On June 1, 2004, the
Company adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock-based awards to employees, officers and directors granted or modified after June 1,
2004. This method requires the Company to expense, over the vesting period, the fair value of all employee stock-based awards granted or modified
since June 1, 2002. Stock options and warrants awarded to non-employees are accounted for using the fair value method and expensed as the service
or product is received. Consideration paid on the exercise of stock options and warrants is credited to common shares. The fair value of performance-
based options is recognized over the estimated period to achieve the performance conditions. Fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model.

The Company has a deferred share unit plan that provides directors the option of receiving payment for their services in the form of share units rather
than common shares or cash. Share units entitle the director to elect to receive, on termination of his or her services with the Company, an equivalent
number of common shares, or the cash equivalent of the market value of the common shares at that future date. Lorus records an expense and a
liability equal to the market value of the shares issued. The accumulated liability is adjusted for market fluctuations on a quarterly basis.

Investment tax credits:

The Company is entitled to Canadian federal and provincial investment tax credits, which are earned as a percentage of eligible research and
development expenditures incurred in each taxation year. Investment tax credits are accounted for as a reduction of the related expenditure for items of
a current nature and a reduction of the related asset cost for items of a long-term nature, provided that the Company has reasonable assurance that the
tax credits will be realized. Investment tax credits receivable at May 31, 2009 of $600 thousand are classified as prepaid expenses and other assets
(2008 - $400 thousand).
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Significant accounting policies (continued):

@

(k

U]

<

Income taxes:

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Under this method, future tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and
operating loss and research and development expenditure carryforwards. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively
enacted tax rates expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the year that enactment or substantive enactment occurs. A valuation allowance is recorded if it is not more likely than
not that some portion of or all of a future tax asset will be realized.

Loss per share:

Basic loss per common share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted loss per common share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by the sum of the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding and the dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year. Common equivalent shares consist of the shares issuable upon
exercise of stock options, warrants and conversion of the convertible debentures calculated using the treasury stock method. Common equivalent
shares are not included in the calculation of the weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted loss per common share when the effect
would be anti-dilutive.

Segmented information:

The Company is organized and operates as one operating segment, the research and development of pharmaceuticals. Substantially all of the
Company's identifiable assets as at May 31, 2009 and 2008 are located in Canada.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(m)

(n)

(0)

Foreign currency translation:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars at rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities are
translated into Canadian dollars at the rates in effect on the balance sheet dates. Gains or losses resulting from these transactions are accounted for in
the loss for the period and are not significant.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the years. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Significant estimates include the valuation of the
convertible debentures, fair value of guarantees, the fair value of stock options granted and warrants issued and the useful lives of fixed and intangible
assets.

Recent Canadian accounting pronouncements not yet adopted:

(i) Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, will be replacing Section 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets ("Section 3062"), and Section
3450, Research and Development Costs. This new section, issued in February 2008, will be applicable to financial statements relating to fiscal
years beginning on or after October 1, 2008. Accordingly, the Company will adopt the new standards for its fiscal year beginning June 1,
2009. It establishes standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of goodwill subsequent to its initial recognition and
of intangible assets by profit-oriented enterprises. Standards concerning goodwill are unchanged from the standards included in the previous
Section 3062. The impact of adoption of this new section on the Company's consolidated financial statements has not been determined.

(i) The CICA plans to converge Canadian GAAP with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") over a transition period expected to end
in 2011. The Company will commence the IFRS conversion project in fiscal 2010.
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3.

4.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(iii) In June 2009, the CICA amended Section 3862, Financial Instruments - Disclosures ("Section 3862"), to include additional disclosure
requirements about fair value measurement for financial instruments and liquidity risk disclosures. These amendments require a three level
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the fair value measurements. Fair value of assets and liabilities included in
Level 1 are determined by reference to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities in Level 2 include
valuations using inputs other than the quoted prices for which all significant inputs are based on observable market data, either directly or
indirectly. Level 3 valuations are based in inputs that are not based on observable market data. The amendments to Section 3862 apply for
annual financial statements relating to fiscal years ending after September 30, 2009.

Short-term investments, marketable securities and other investments:

Less than Greater than
one year one year Yield to
2009 maturities maturities Total maturity
Corporate investments
(including guaranteed
investment certificates) $ 248 $ 242§ 490 -
Less than Greater than
one year one year Yield to
2008 maturities maturities Total maturity
Corporate investments
(including guaranteed
investment certificates,
medium-term notes and
fixed-term notes) $ 6,304 $ 480 $ 6,784 3.89 -4.60%

F-20




Short-term investments, marketable securities and other investments (continued):

At May 31, 2008, investments with maturities of less than one year are classified as held-to-maturity investments and carried at amortized cost. These
investments have maturities varying from one to two months. Certain corporate investments, totalling $490 thousand at May 31, 2009 (2008 - $480
thousand), have been designated as held-for-trading investments, and have been classified as short-term investments on the consolidated balance
sheets. These investments are carried at fair value. The net increase in fair value for the year ended May 31, 2009 amounted to $10 thousand and has
been included in the consolidated statements of operations in interest income.

At May 31, 2008, the carrying values of held-to-maturity investments approximated their quoted market values. These investments had varying maturities
from one to two months.

Fixed assets:

Accumulated

depreciation
and Net book
2009 Cost amortization value
Furniture and equipment $ 2905 $ 2,674 $ 231
Leasehold improvements 908 908 -
$ 3813 § 3582 $ 231

Accumulated

depreciation
and Net book
2008 Cost amortization value
Furniture and equipment $ 2,728 $ 2557 $ 171
Leasehold improvements 908 835 73
$ 3636 $ 3,392 $ 244




6.

Share capital:

(a) Continuity of common shares and warrants:

Common shares Warrants
Number Amount Number Amount
(In thousands) (In thousands)
Balance at May 31, 2006 174,694 145,001 3,000 $ 991
Share issuance (e) 33,800 11,641 - -
Interest payments (note 13) 3,726 1,050 - -
Exercise of stock options 46 22 - -
Repurchase of warrants (g) — — (3,000) (991)
Balance, May 31, 2007 212,266 157,714 - -
Interest payments (note 13) 5,383 1,029 — —
Balance, May 31, 2008 217,649 158,743 - -
Interest payments (note 13) 10,620 707 - -
Issuance of units (e) 28,539 2,790 14,269 417
Balance, May 31, 2009 256,808 162,240 14,269 $ 417
(b) Contributed surplus:

2009 2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year 9,181 $ 8,525 $ 7,665
Forfeiture of stock options 1,563 656 121
Repurchase of warrants (g) - - 739
Balance, end of year 10,744  § 9,181 $ 8,525

(c) Continuity of stock options:

2009 2008 2007

Balance, beginning of the year 4961 $ 4,898 $ 4,525
Stock option expense 446 719 494
Forfeiture of stock options (1,562) (656) (121)
Balance, end of year 3,845 §$ 4961 §$ 4,898
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6.

Share capital (continued):

(d)

(e)

Alternate compensation plans:

The Company also established a deferred share unit plan that provides directors the option of receiving payment for their services in the form of share
units rather than common shares or cash. Share units entitle the directors to elect to receive, on termination of their services to the Company, an
equivalent number of common shares, or the cash equivalent of the market value of the common shares at that future date. The share units are granted
based on the market value of the common shares on the date of issue. No deferred share units were issued during the years ended May 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007.

Share issuances:

On June 25, 2008, the Company filed a short-form prospectus for a rights offering to its shareholders. Under the rights offering, holders of the
Company's common shares as of July 9, 2008 (the "Record Date") received one right for each common share held as of the Record Date. Each four
rights entitled the holder thereof to purchase a unit of Lorus ("Unit"). Each Unit consists of one common share of Lorus at $0.13 and a one-half common
share purchase warrant to purchase additional common shares of Lorus at $0.18 until August 7, 2010. All unexercised rights expired on August 7, 2008.

Pursuant to the rights offering, the Company issued 28,538,889 common shares and 14,269,444 common share purchase warrants in exchange for
cash consideration of $3.7 million. The total costs associated with the transaction were approximately $500 thousand. The Company has allocated the
net proceeds of $3.2 million received from the issuance of the Units to the common shares and the common share purchase warrants based on their
relative fair values. The fair value of the common share purchase warrants has been determined based on an option-pricing model. The resulting
allocation based on relative fair values resulted in the allocation of $2.8 million to the common shares and $417 thousand to the common share
purchase warrants.

On July 10, 2007, as part of the Arrangement described in note 1(b), the Company surrendered its Original Share, and exchanged all of the shares in
Old Lorus for an equivalent number of shares of the Company.
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6.

Share capital (continued):

®

()

Employee share purchase plan:

The Company's employee share purchase plan ("ESPP") was established on January 1, 2005. The purpose of the ESPP is to assist the Company in
retaining the services of its employees, to secure and retain the services of new employees and to provide incentives for such persons to exert maximum
efforts for the success of the Company. The ESPP provides a means by which employees of the Company and its affiliates may purchase common
shares of the Company at a discount through accumulated payroll deductions. Generally, each offering is of three months' duration with purchases
occurring every month. Participants may authorize payroll deductions of up to 15% of their base compensation for the purchase of common shares
under the ESPP. For the year ended May 31, 2009, 239,000 (2008 - 282,000; 2007 - 69,000) common shares have been purchased under the ESPP,

and Lorus has recognized an expense of $3 thousand (2008 - $10 thousand; 2007 - $5 thousand) related to this plan in these consolidated financial
statements.

Repurchase of warrants:
In May 2007, the Company entered into an agreement with the holder of Lorus' $15.0 million secured convertible debenture to repurchase the
outstanding 3,000,000 common share purchase warrants at a purchase price of $252 thousand upon close of the Arrangement. The equity-classified

carrying value of the warrants was $991 thousand and the difference between the equity value and the purchase price was recorded as contributed
surplus of $739 thousand.

F-24




7. Stock-based compensation:
Stock option plan:

Under the Company's stock option plan, options may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company to purchase up to a
maximum of 15% of the total number of outstanding common shares, currently estimated at 38,500,000 options. Options are granted at the fair market value
of the common shares on the date immediately preceding the date of the grant. Options vest at various rates (immediate to three years) and have a term of
10 years. Stock option transactions for the three years ended May 31, 2009 are summarized as follows:

2009 2008 2007
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
exercise exercise exercise
Options price Options price Options price
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)
Outstanding,
beginning of year 16,438 §$ 0.45 12,988 §$ 0.59 10,300 $ 0.70
Granted 5,124 0.10 6,048 0.21 5,318 0.30
Exercised - - - - (46) 0.30
Forfeited (4,689) 0.66 (2,598) 0.58 (2,584) 0.44
Outstanding,
end of year 16,873 0.29 16,438 0.45 12,988 0.59
Exercisable,
end of year 9,708 $ 0.38 10,241 $ 0.58 9,796 $ 0.68
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7. Stock-based compensation (continued):

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at May 31, 2009:

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted
average Weighted Weighted
remaining average average
Range of contractual exercise exercise
exercise prices Options life (years) price Options price

(In thousands) (In thousands)

$0.08 - $0.24 9,458 884 § 0.16 3,598 $ 0.20
$0.25 - $0.49 5,701 6.55 0.29 4,397 0.29
$0.50 - $0.99 1,166 4.94 0.78 1,166 0.78
$1.00 - $2.50 548 3.23 1.42 547 1.42
16,873 7.61 0.29 9,708 0.38

For the year ended May 31, 2009, stock option expense comprised $127 thousand (2008 - $171 thousand; 2007 - $216 thousand) related to research and
development and $319 thousand (2008 - $548 thousand; 2007 - $287 thousand) related to general and administrative.

The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options granted during the year:

2009 2008 2007
Risk-free interest rate 2.00% -3.50% 3.75% -4.70% 4.50%
Expected volatility 76% 77% - 80% 75% - 80%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected life of options 5 years 5 years 5 years
Weighted average fair value of options
granted or modified during the year $ 007 $ 014 $ 0.20

The Company has assumed no forfeiture rate as adjustments for actual forfeitures are made in the year they occur.
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Capital risk management:

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

(a) maintain its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders;
(b) maintain a flexible capital structure which optimizes the cost of capital at acceptable risk; and

(c) ensure sufficient cash resources to fund its research and development activity, to pursue partnership and collaboration opportunities and to maintain
ongoing operations.

At May 31, 2009, the capital structure of the Company consisted of secured convertible debentures and equity comprised of share capital, warrants, the
equity portion of the secured convertible debentures, stock options, contributed surplus and deficit. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of economic conditions. The Company, upon approval from its Board of Directors, will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issuances, acquiring or disposing of assets, adjusting the amount of cash and short-term investments balances or by undertaking other activities
as deemed appropriate under the specific circumstances. Subsequent to year end, the Company settled its secured convertible debentures and
extinguished its liability in the amount of $15 million for consideration consisting of cash and other assets. The Company has forecasted that its current
capital resources after extinguishment of the secured convertible debentures (note 18) will not be sufficient to carry its research and development plans and
operations for the next twelve months (note 1(a)) without additional financing.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and the Company's overall strategy with respect to capital risk management remains
unchanged from the year ended May 31, 2008.




9. Financial Instruments:
(a) Financial instruments:

The Company has classified its financial instruments as follows:

2009 2008
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, consisting of term deposits and guaranteed investment certificates, held-for-
trading, at fair value $ 5374 $ 2,652
Short-term investments, held-to-maturity, recorded at amortized cost - 6,304
Short-term investments, held-for-trading, recorded at fair value 490 480
Amount held in escrow, measured at amortized cost - 600
Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable, measured at amortized cost 299 923
Accrued liabilities, measured at amortized cost 1,131 1,194
Secured convertible debentures, measured at amortized cost 14,448 12,742

(b) Financial risk management:

The Company has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the
oversight of these risks and reviews the Company's policies on an ongoing basis to ensure that these risks are appropriately managed.

(i) Credit risk:
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer, partner or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Company's cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. The carrying amount of the financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
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9.

Financial Instruments (continued):

(ii)

(iii)

The Company manages credit risk for its cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments by maintaining minimum standards of R1 low or A
low investments and Lorus invests only in highly rated Canadian corporations with debt securities that are traded on active markets and are capable
of prompt liquidation.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come due. To the extent that the Company does
not believe it has sufficient liquidity to meet its current obligations, the Board considers securing additional funds through equity, debt or partnering
transactions. The Company manages its liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows. Refer to note 1(a) for further
discussion on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices will affect the Company's
income or the value of its financial instruments.

The Company is subject to interest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and secured convertible debentures. The
Company does not believe that the results of operations or cash flows would be affected to any significant degree by a sudden change in market
interest rates relative to interest rates on the investments, owing to the relative short-term nature of the investments. The secured convertible
debentures accrue interest at a rate of prime plus 1%. A change of 100 basis points in the prime interest rate would have increased (decreased)
equity and loss for the year by approximately $150 thousand for the year ended May 31, 2009. This analysis assumes all other variables remain
constant.
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9. Financial Instruments (continued):

Financial instruments potentially exposing the Company to foreign exchange risk consist principally of accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The
Company holds minimal amounts of U.S. dollar denominated cash, purchasing on an as needed basis to cover U.S. dollar denominated
payments. At May 31, 2009, U.S. dollar denominated accounts payable and accrued liabilities amounted to $70 thousand. Assuming all other
variables remain constant, a 10% depreciation or appreciation of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar would result in an increase or decrease
in loss for the year and comprehensive loss of $7 thousand. The Company does not have any forward exchange contracts to hedge this risk.

The Company does not invest in equity instruments of other corporations other than a 19% interest held in Zor Pharmaceuticals, LLC ("ZOR") that is
the licensee of Virulizin. The Company paid a nominal amount for this equity interest and is not exposed to any losses in excess of this nominal
amount. This equity interest in Zor Pharmaceuticals was disposed of subsequent to the year end (note 18).

10. Income taxes:

Income tax recoveries attributable to losses from operations differ from the amounts computed by applying the combined Canadian federal and provincial
income tax rates to pre-tax income from operations primarily as a result of the provision of a valuation allowance on net future income tax benefits.




10.

Income taxes (continued):

Significant components of the Company's future tax assets are as follows:

2009 2008

Non-capital loss carryforwards $ 3,099 § 1,571
Capital loss carryforwards 218 218
Research and development expenditures 4,518 3,275

Book over tax depreciation 749 631
Intangible asset 3,386 3,386
Ontario harmonization tax credit 179 —
Future tax assets 12,149 9,081
Valuation allowance (12,149) (9,081)
$ - 8 -

As a result of the harmonization of the Ontario provincial income tax system with the Canadian federal income tax system, the Company has recorded the
benefit of a transitional credit of $179 thousand. This non-refundable credit will be available to reduce future Ontario income taxes over the next five years.

During the year ended May 31, 2009, for purposes of its provincial tax carryforwards, the Company recognized research and development tax expenditures
that were incurred in a prior year. Consequently, the Company increased the related future tax assets as at May 31, 2009 by $856 thousand, offset by a
valuation allowance of the same amount, with no resulting net impact on the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of operations and
comprehensive income or consolidated statement of deficit, in the current year or any prior period.

During the year ended May 31, 2008, under the Arrangement, numerous steps were undertaken as part of a taxable reorganization. However, these steps
did not result in any taxes payable as the tax benefit of income tax attributes was applied to eliminate any taxes otherwise payable. Of the total
unrecognized future tax assets available at the time of the Arrangement, approximately $7.0 million was transferred to New Lorus and the balance remained
with Old Lorus and is subject to the indemnification agreement (note 1(b)). Those tax attributes remaining with Old Lorus are no longer available to the
Company.




10.

Income taxes (continued):

In assessing the realizable benefit from future tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the future tax
assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of future tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the years in which
those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers projected future taxable income, uncertainties related to the industry in which the
Company operates and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Due to the Company's stage of development and operations, and uncertainties
related to the industry in which the Company operates, the tax benefit of the above amounts has been completely offset by a valuation allowance.

The Company has undeducted research and development expenditures, totalling $15.6 million that can be carried forward indefinitely. In addition, the
Company has non-capital loss and capital loss carryforwards of $10.7 million and $1.5 million, respectively. To the extent that the non-capital loss
carryforwards are not used, they expire as follows:

2010 $ 142
2015 10
2026 11
2027 4
2028 6,653
2029 3,868

$ 10,688

Income tax rate reconciliation:

2009 2008 2007
Recovery of income taxes based on statutory rate of 33% $ (2,950) $ (2,217) $ (3,481)
Expiry of losses 247 127 1,311
Change in valuation allowance subsequent to the Arrangement 3,068 2,048 (3,168)
Non deductible accretion, stock-based compensation and capital gains 582 (1,880) 519
Ontario harmonization tax credit (260) - -
Change in substantively enacted tax rates 299 1,585 4,437
Adjustment of prior year research and development expenditures (856) - -
Other (130) 337 382
$ - % - 3 -
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1.

Research and development programs:

The Company's cancer drug research and development programs focus primarily on the following technology platforms:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Antisense:

Antisense drugs are genetic molecules that inhibit the production of disease-causing proteins. LOR-2040 (formerly GTI-2040) is the Company's lead
antisense drug, and has shown preclinical anticancer activity across a broad range of cancers and is currently in various Phase I/ll trials in several solid
tumor types, which are sponsored by the U.S. National Cancer Institute. Lorus has selected Acute Myeloid Leukemia ("AML") as a lead cancer
indication for clinical development of LOR-2040. LOR-2040 is currently in a Company-sponsored advanced Phase Il clinical trial in combination with
high dose Ara-C as salvage therapy in refractory and relapsed AML patients under 60 years of age.

Small molecules:

The Company is utilizing its small molecule drug screening technologies and preclinical scientific expertise to identify several groups of novel small
molecules that show strong anticancer activity and a high therapeutic index due to low toxicity.

The Company's proprietary group of novel small molecule compounds, which include lead compounds LOR-253 and LOR-220, have unique structures
and modes of action, and are promising candidates for the development of novel anticancer agents with high safety profiles.

Immunotherapy:

This clinical approach stimulates the body's natural defences against cancer. The Company's lead immunotherapeutic drug, Virulizin ®, completed a
global Phase Il clinical trial for the treatment of pancreatic cancer during 2005 and, although overall survival data did not reach statistical significance
there was sufficient justification for further development of a favourable subgroup. In April 2008, the Company signed an exclusive multinational license
agreement with ZOR to further develop and market the drug in certain territories. In June 2009, as discussed in note 18, the Company transferred this
license agreement as part of its agreement to repurchase the secured convertible debentures.
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11. Research and development programs (continued):

Period from
inception on
September 5,
1986 to
Years ended May 31, May 31,
2009 2008 2007 2009
Antisense:
Expensed 1,123 3,291 1,736 35,959
Acquired - - - 11,000
Small molecules:
Expensed 2,634 2,821 1,678 12,841
Acquired - - - 1,228
Immunotherapy:
Expensed - 148 91 75,197
Total expensed 3,757 6,260 3,505 123,997
Total acquired - - - 12,228
Amortization of the acquired patents and licenses is included in the 'Expensed' line of the table.
12. Supplemental cash flow and other information:
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
2009 2008
Cash 2,676 $ 143
Term deposits and guaranteed investment certificates 2,698 2,509
5374  § 2,652
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12. Supplemental cash flow and other information (continued):

Change in non-cash operating working capital is summarized as follows:

Period from

inception on

September 5,

1986 to

Years ended May 31, May 31,

2009 2008 2007 2009

Prepaid expenses and other assets $ (105) $ (386) $ 180 $ (250)

Accounts payable (624) (181) 549 (945)
Accrued liabilities (213) (227) (1,039) 741

$ (942) 3 (794) $ (310) $ (454)

During the year ended May 31, 2009, the Company received interest of $367 thousand (2008 -$519 thousand; 2007 - $412 thousand).

Supplementary disclosure relating to non-cash financing activities during May 31, 2008 consists of $252 thousand related to the liability to repurchase
warrants.

13. Convertible debentures:

On October 6, 2004, the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement (the "Agreement") to issue an aggregate of $15.0 million of secured convertible

debentures (the "debentures") to The Erin Mills Investment Corporation ("TEMIC" or the "debenture holder"). The debentures are secured by a first charge
over all of the assets of the Company.
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13.

Convertible debentures (continued):

The Company received $4.4 million on October 6, 2004 (representing a $5.0 million debenture less an investor fee representing 4% of the $15.0 million to be
received under the Agreement), and $5.0 million on each of January 14 and April 15, 2005. All debentures issued under this Agreement are due on October

6, 2009 and are subject to interest payable monthly at a rate of prime plus 1% until such time as the Company's share price reaches $1.75 for 60 consecutive
trading days, at which time interest will no longer be charged. Interest is payable in common shares of Lorus until Lorus' shares trade at a price of $1.00 or
more after which interest would be payable in cash or common shares at the option of the debenture holder. Common shares issued in payment of interest
are issued at a price equal to the weighted average trading price of such shares for the 10 trading days immediately preceding their issue in respect of each
interest payment. For the year ended May 31, 2009, the Company issued 10,620,000 (2008 - 5,383,000; 2006 - 3,726,000) shares in settlement of
approximately $707 thousand (2008 - $1.0 million; 2007 - $1.0 million) in interest.

The $15.0 million principal amount of debentures issued on October 6, 2004, January 14, 2005 and April 15, 2005 is convertible at the holder's option at any
time into common shares of the Company with a conversion price per share of $1.00.

With the issuance of each $5.0 million debenture, the Company issued to the debenture holder from escrow 1,000,000 purchase warrants expiring October
6, 2009 to buy common shares of the Company at a price per share equal to $1.00. In May 2007, the 3,000,000 common share purchase warrants were
repurchased in connection with the Arrangement (note 6(g)).

Prior to the adoption of Section 3855, deferred financing costs were amortized over the five-year life of the Agreement. For the year ended May 31, 2007,
the Company recognized $110 thousand in amortization expense. As a consequence of the adoption of Section 3855, deferred financing costs at June 1,
2007 were reclassified and reduced the carrying value of the debentures. Deferred financing costs are recognized in the consolidated statements of
operations as accretion expense.

Each reporting period, the Company is required to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such that at maturity on October 6, 2009, the

carrying value of the debentures will be their face value of $15.0 million. For the year ended May 31, 2009, the Company has recognized $1.7 million (2007
- $1.2 million; 2007 - $935 thousand) in accretion expense. The convertible debentures were settled subsequent to the year end (note 18).
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14.

Contingencies, commitments and guarantees:

(a)

(b)

Operating lease commitments:

The Company has entered into operating leases for premises and equipment under which it is obligated to make minimum annual payments of
approximately $148 thousand in 2010, $129 thousand in 2011 and $9 thousand in 2012.

During the year ended May 31, 2009, operating lease expenses were $143 thousand (2008 - $140 thousand; 2007 - $139 thousand).
Other contractual commitments:

In December 1997, the Company acquired certain patent rights and a sub-license to develop and commercialize the anticancer application of certain
compounds in exchange for:

(i) a20% share interest in NuChem;

(i) a payment of U.S. $350 thousand in shares of Lorus; and

(iii) up to U.S. $3.5 million in cash.

To date, the Company has made cash payments of U.S. $500 thousand. The remaining balance of up to U.S. $3.0 million remains payable upon the
achievement of certain milestones based on the commencement and completion of clinical trials. Additional amounts paid will be classified as acquired

patents and licenses and will be amortized over the estimated useful life of the licensed asset.

The Company did not meet any of these milestones during the current year and does not currently expect to achieve any of the above milestones in
fiscal years ended May 31, 2010 or 2011 and cannot reasonably predict when such milestones will be achieved, if at all.
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14.

Contingencies, commitments and guarantees (continued):

()

The Company holds an exclusive world-wide license from the University of Manitoba (the "University") and Cancer Care Manitoba ("CCM") to certain
patent rights to develop and sub-license certain oligonucleotide technologies. In consideration for the exclusive license of the patent rights, the
University and CCM are entitled to an aggregate of 1.67% of the net sales received by the Company from the sale of products or processes derived from
the patent rights and 1.67% of all monies received by the Company from sub-licenses of the patent rights. Any and all improvements to any of the
patent rights derived in whole or in part by the Company after the date of the license agreement, being June 20, 1997, are not included within the scope
of the agreement and do not trigger any payment of royalties.

The Company has not yet earned any revenue from the products covered under this agreement and, therefore, has not paid any royalties thereunder
and cannot reasonably predict the timing and amount of any future payment. The Company does not expect to make any royalty payments under this
agreement in fiscal years ended May 31, 2010 or 2011, and cannot reasonably predict when such royalties will become payable, if at all.

Guarantees:

The Company entered into various contracts, whereby contractors perform certain services for the Company. The Company indemnifies the contractors
against costs, charges and expenses in respect of legal actions or proceedings against the contractors in their capacity of servicing the Company. The
maximum amounts payable from these guarantees cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, the Company has not made significant payments
related to these guarantees.

The Company indemnifies its directors and officers against any and all claims or losses reasonably incurred in the performance of their service to the

Company to the extent permitted by law. The Company has acquired and maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers. The fair value of this
indemnification is not determinable.
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14.

Contingencies, commitments and guarantees (continued):

(d)

(e)

Indemnification on Arrangement:

Under the Arrangement (note 1(b)), the Company has agreed to indemnify Old Lorus and its directors, officers and employees from and against all

damages, losses, expenses (including fines and penalties), other third party costs and legal expenses, to which any of them may be subject arising out

of any matter occurring:

(i) prior to, at or after the effective time of the Arrangement ("Effective Time") and directly or indirectly relating to any of the assets of Old Lorus
transferred to New Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement (including losses for income, sales, excise and other taxes arising in connection with the
transfer of any such asset) or conduct of the business prior to the Effective Time;

(ii) prior to, at or after the Effective Time as a result of any and all interests, rights, liabilities and other matters relating to the assets transferred by
Old Lorus to New Lorus pursuant to the Arrangement; and

(iii) prior to or at the Effective Time and directly or indirectly relating to, with certain exceptions, any of the activities of Old Lorus or the Arrangement.
Subsequent to the release of the escrowed amount of $600 thousand in July 2008, the Company has recorded a liability of $150 thousand, which it
believes is a reasonable estimate of the fair value of the obligation for the indemnifications provided. There have been no claims under this
indemnification to date. This amount is included on the balance sheet in accrued liabilities as at May 31, 2009.

Regulatory matter:

On October 31, 2008, Lorus voluntarily delisted its common shares from trading on the NYSE Alternext US LLC (formerly the American Stock
Exchange or AMEX). Lorus is eligible to apply for deregistration from the Securities Exchange Commission one year after delisting from AMEX.
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15.

16.

Financial instruments:

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument. These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with
precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

(a) Cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, other assets, amount held in escrow, accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

Due to the short period to maturity of the financial instruments, the carrying values as presented in the consolidated balance sheets are reasonable
estimates of fair value.

(b) Convertible debentures:
The fair value of the convertible debentures at May 31, 2009 is $14.5 million (2008 - $13.9 million).

Financial instruments potentially exposing the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and short-term
investments. The Company mitigates this risk by investing in high grade fixed income securities.

Prior to extinguishment of the Company's convertible debentures, it was exposed to interest rate risk due to the convertible debentures that require interest
payments at a variable rate of interest. The convertible debentures were settled subsequent to the year end (note 18) and the Company does not have other
interest bearing debt at May 31, 2009.

License agreement:

Effective April 8, 2008, the Company entered into a non-exclusive multinational license agreement with ZOR, formed as a subsidiary of Zoticon Bioventures
Inc., to further develop and commercialize Virulizin® for human therapeutic applications.
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16.

License agreement (continued):

Under the terms of the agreement, the Company received an upfront licensing fee of $100 thousand, and may receive certain milestone payments totalling
approximately U.S. $10 million based on progress through financing and clinical development, and royalties on net sales that vary from 10% to 20%
depending on the level of sales of Virulizin® achieved in those territories covered by the license and subject to certain other adjustments. ZOR will assume
all future costs for the development of the licensed technology. In 2009, the Company received an additional payment of $178 thousand (U.S. $150
thousand).

The Company has also entered into a service agreement with ZOR to assist in the transfer of knowledge. Under this agreement, the Company has agreed
to provide ZOR with 300 hours of consulting service during a period of 18 months.

The initial fee of $100 thousand and a milestone payment of $178 thousand (U.S. $150 thousand) have been deferred under this arrangement and revenue
is recognized based on the measure of progress toward completion of the technical support services under this contract based on the actual hours provided
relative to the total number of hours required to be provided, applied to the total of these initial fee and non-contingent contractual payments related to the
support services. At any time, the amount of cumulative revenue recognized would not exceed the cumulative amount of non-refundable payments received
under the arrangement.

In addition, Lorus acquired a 25% equity interest in ZOR in exchange for a capital contribution of $2,500. This investment has been accounted for as an
equity investment. Lorus' equity is subject to dilution following receipt by ZOR of more than U.S. $5 million of equity financing in ZOR should the Company
not to participate in the financing. During the year, the Company's equity interest was reduced to 19%.

As described in note 18, subsequent to year end, as part of the agreement to repurchase the convertible debentures, the Company disposed of its interest in
ZOR and assigned the licence agreement to TEMIC.
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17.

18.

Related party transaction:

During the year ended May 31, 2009, the Company expensed consulting fees of $25 thousand to a director of the Company (2008 - $31 thousand; 2007 -
nil). There was no amount payable at May 31, 2009 (2008 - $30 thousand; 2007 - nil).

This transaction was in the normal course of business and has been measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration established
and agreed to by the related parties.

Subsequent events:

On June 22, 2009, the Company reached a settlement with TEMIC with respect to the re-purchase and settlement of the $15.0 million secured convertible
debentures.

Under the terms of the agreement, Lorus purchased all of the convertible debentures from TEMIC for a cash payment, payable on closing, of the
transaction of $3.3 million, the assignment of the rights under the license agreement with ZOR, sale of intellectual property associated with Virulizin and
sale of Lorus' shares in its wholly owned subsidiary, Pharma Immune, which holds an equity interest in ZOR (the "Consideration"). Under the terms of the
agreement, Lorus will be entitled to 50% of any royalties received under the ZOR license agreement and 50% of the value of any transaction completed in
territories not covered by the ZOR license agreement. Lorus also retains a perpetual royalty-free license for the animal use of Virulizin. TEMIC will be
fully responsible for all clinical and regulatory costs associated with commercialization of Virulizin in territories not covered by the ZOR license
agreement. Lorus will assist TEMIC with certain agreed upon services.

For receipt of this consideration, TEMIC has released all security interests in the assets of Lorus.

As a result of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain on the repurchase of the debentures of $11.0 million reflecting the difference between the
carrying value of the debentures at the repurchase date, net of transaction costs of approximately $221 thousand, and the cash payment amount of $3.3
million. In addition, as a result of extinguishing the debentures, the equity portion of the debentures in the amount of $3.8 million was transferred to
contributed surplus. The gain on repurchase of the debentures does not result in income taxes payable as the Company has sufficient capital loss and
non-capital loss carryforwards to shelter this gain.

On October 6, 2009 the Company received an unsecured loan by way of a Promissory Note from Herbert Abramson, a director. The principal amount of
$1.0 million bears interest at a rate of 10% per annum. Principal and interest are due at maturity, which is six months from the date the loan was entered
into. The loan can also be repaid at anytime prior to maturity without attracting any penalty. The loan was repaid to the director on November 27, 2009
who then acquired units in the private placement described below.

On November 27, 2009, the Company completed a private placement resulting in the issuance of 41 million units of the Company at a price of $0.06 per

unit. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and a one-half common share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant permits the holder to
purchase one common share of Lorus at $0.08 until May 27, 2011.
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19.

Pursuant to the private placement, the Company issued 41 million common shares and 20.5 million common share purchase warrants in exchange for
cash consideration of $2.5 million. This amount includes the principal amount of $1.0 million originally received by way of a loan from a director on October
6, 2009 which was repaid to the director, who then used the cash repaid to subscribe for units as part of the private placement. In addition, the Company
issued 2.2 million broker warrants to purchase an equivalent number of common shares at $0.08 until May 27, 2011 The total costs associated with the
transaction were approximately $225 thousand in addition to the broker warrants. The Company will allocate the net proceeds of the private placement to
the common shares and to common share purchase warrants based on their relative fair values, in its interim financial statements for the second quarter of

fiscal 2010.

Comparative figures:

Certain 2008 and 2007 figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation adopted in 2009.
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Supplementary Information
(In Canadian dollars)

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Years ended May 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007




AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.

Under date of August 26, 2009, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the "Company") as at May 31, 2009 and 2008 and the
related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31,
2009 and period from inception on September 5, 1986 to May 31, 2009, included in the Annual Report on Form 20-F. In connection with our audits of the
aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the related supplementary information entitled "Reconciliation of Canadian and United
States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” as included in Form 20-F in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). This supplementary information is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on this supplementary information based on our audits.

In our opinion, such supplementary information, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein as at May 31, 2009 and 2008 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2009.

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
"KPMG LLP"
Toronto, Canada

November 30, 2009




The consolidated financial statements as at May 31, 2009 and 2008 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2009 have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("Canadian GAAP") which differ in some respects from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"). The following reconciliation identifies material differences in the Company's consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income and consolidated balance sheets.

(a) Consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income:

2009 2008 2007

Loss for the year per Canadian GAAP $ (8,860) $ (6,334) $ (9,638)
Accretion of convertible debentures (i) 1,222 902 741
Amortization of debt issue costs (i) (48) (40) (59)
Stock-based compensation expense (ii) (39) 47) (194)
Short-term investments (iii) (10) (7) -
Loss for the year per U.S. GAAP $ (7,735) $ (5,526) $ (9,150)
Other comprehensive loss (iii):

Unrealized gain (loss) on short-term

investments $ 10 $ (20) $ -
Loss for the year and comprehensive loss
per U.S. GAAP $ (7,725) $ (5,546) $ (9,150)
Basic and diluted loss per share per U.S. GAAP $ (0.03) $ (0.03) $ (0.05)

Under U.S. GAAP, the number of weighted average common shares outstanding for basic and diluted loss per share is the same as under Canadian GAAP.




(b) Consolidated balance sheets:

Adjustments
Canadian Convertible Stock u.s.
2009 GAAP debentures options Other GAAP
0] (i) (iii)
Deferred financing charges - 3 65 $ - - 65
Secured convertible debentures (14,448) (444) - - (14,892)
Equity portion of secured convertible debentures (3,814) 3,814 - - -
Stock options (3,845) - 3,845 - -
Contributed surplus/additional paid-in capital (10,744) (57) 1,276 - (9,525)
Warrants (417 - - - (417)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - - - 10 10
Deficit 189,411 (3,379) (5,121) (10) 180,901
Adjustments
Canadian Convertible Stock u.s.
2008 GAAP debentures options Other GAAP
0] (it) (iii)
Deferred financing charges - 3 304 $ - - 304
Secured convertible debentures (12,742) (1,855) - - (14,597)
Equity portion of secured convertible debentures (3,814) 3,814 - - -
Stock options (4,961) - 4,961 - -
Contributed surplus/additional paid-in capital (9,181 (57) 198 - (9,040)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss - - - 20 20
Deficit 180,551 (2,206) (5,159) (20) 173,166




(i) Convertible debentures:

Under Canadian GAAP, the conversion option embedded in the convertible debentures is presented separately as a component of shareholders' equity
(deficiency). Under U.S. GAAP, the embedded conversion option is not subject to bifurcation in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Abstract No.
00-19 ("EITF 00-19") since, as a conventional convertible debt, the holder of the debentures may only realize the value of the conversion option by
exercising the option and receiving the entire proceeds in a fixed number of shares. Accordingly, the conversion option is included in the carrying amount of
the secured convertible debentures, presented as a liability. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, EITF 00-19 and Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion
No. 14, the warrants issued in connection with the convertible debentures financing were recorded as additional paid-in capital ("APIC") and a reduction to
the proceeds from the issuance of convertible debentures. The warrants were presented as a separate component of shareholders' equity (deficiency) for
Canadian GAAP purposes. Under U.S. GAAP, the Company allocated the total proceeds received from the issuance of the convertible debentures to the
debt and warrant portions based on their relative fair values. The fair value of the warrants was determined based on an option pricing model. The resulting
allocation based on relative fair values resulted in the allocation of $13.9 million to the debt instrument and $1.1 million to the warrants. The financing costs
totalling $1.1 million related to the issuance of the convertible debentures were allocated on a pro rata basis to deferred financing charges of $964 thousand
and to the warrants of $97 thousand. This allocation resulted in the net amount allocated to the warrants of $1.0 million. In May 2007, the Company
entered into an agreement with the holder of the convertible debentures to repurchase its outstanding 3,000,000 common share purchase warrants at a
purchase price of $252 thousand in connection with the Arrangement. The difference between the repurchase liability and the carrying amount of the
warrants has been recorded as APIC.

Under Canadian GAAP, prior to the adoption of Section 3855, deferred financing costs were amortized over the five-year life of the debentures. As a
consequence of the adoption of Section 3855, deferred financing costs at June 1, 2007 were reclassified and reduced the carrying value of the
debentures. Deferred financing costs are recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income as accretion expense.




(ii)

Each reporting period, the Company is required to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such that at maturity on October 6, 2009, the
carrying value of the debentures will be their face value of $15.0 million. To date, the Company has recognized $1.0 million in accretion expense. This
accretion expense has increased the carrying value of the convertible debentures from $13.9 million to $14.9 million at May 31, 2009.

On June 22, 2009, the Company reached a settlement with the debenture holders with respect to the purchase and settlement of the convertible
debentures. This transaction will be recorded in fiscal 2010.

Stock-based compensation:

Under Canadian GAAP, effective June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair value-based method of accounting for employee stock options granted on or
after June 1, 2002, retroactively without restatement as allowed under the transitional provisions of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants'
("CICA") Handbook Section 3870, Stock-based Compensation and Other Stock-based Payments. As a result, the opening balances of deficit and stock
options were increased by $2.8 million at June 1, 2004.

Under U.S. GAAP, on June 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based
Payment ("SFAS 123(R)"), which requires companies to recognize in the statement of operations and comprehensive income all share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, based on their fair values. The statement eliminates the ability to account for share-based
compensation transactions, as the Company formerly did, using the intrinsic value method as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees.

The Company adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method, which requires the application of the accounting standards as of June 1,
2006. In accordance with the modified prospective method, the consolidated financial statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do
not include, the impact of SFAS 123(R).




Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of stock-based payment awards that is ultimately
expected to vest. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income during fiscal
2007 included compensation expense for stock-based payment awarded prior to, but not yet vested as of June 1, 2006 based on the grant date fair value
estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosures ("SFAS
148"), and compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted subsequent to May 31, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated
in accordance with SFAS 123(R). As stock-based compensation expense recognized in statement of operations and comprehensive income commencing
fiscal 2007 is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. SFAS 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated
at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. There was no material cumulative effect
adjustment to APIC relating to estimating forfeitures on recognized stock-based compensation cost in periods prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R).

The Company recorded stock-based compensation of $485 thousand for the year ended May 31, 2009 (2008 - $766 thousand; 2007 - $697 thousand) which
is $39 thousand higher than the expense recorded in accordance with Canadian GAAP, substantially arising from the impact of estimating forfeitures as
explained above. For the year ended May 31, 2009, stock-based compensation expense comprised $138 thousand (2008 - $182 thousand; 2007 -
$299 thousand) related to research and development and $347 thousand (2008 - $584 thousand; 2007 - $398 thousand) related to general and
administrative expenses. The Company used the Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the fair value of options granted in each of the fiscal years
beginning in 2007 and valuation assumptions are consistent with those used under Canadian GAAP.

During the year ended May 31, 2008, the Company extended the option exercise period to those directors not seeking re-election at the annual general
meeting and to the Company's former President and Chief Executive Officer. These transactions result in modification of the terms of the original awards,
and under both Canadian GAAP and SFAS 123(R), the incremental compensation expense relating to the modified options amounted to approximately $83
thousand that is included in the stock-based compensation expense for the year ended May 31, 2008.

As at May 31, 2009, the aggregate intrinsic values for options outstanding and options exercisable are nil as the common stock price as of May 31, 2009
was lower than the exercise prices of the stock options. There were no options exercised during the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008. The intrinsic
value of options exercised in the year ended May 31, 2007 is $2 thousand.

The weighted average remaining contractual term of options exercisable as at May 31, 2009 is 6.8 years.

Total unrecognized compensation cost relating to unvested stock options at May 31, 2009, prior to the consideration of expected forfeitures, is approximately
$326 thousand and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.4 years.




(iii) Short-term investments:

Effective June 1, 2007, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments - Recognition and
Measurement, retroactively without restatement of prior periods. This section provides standards for recognition, measurement, disclosure and
presentation of financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial derivatives.

As part of the adoption of the new standards on June 1, 2007, the Company designated certain short-term investments consisting of corporate instruments
as "held-for-trading". This change in accounting policy under Canadian GAAP resulted in a decrease in the carrying amount of these investments
amounting to $27 thousand and an increase in the fiscal 2008 opening deficit accumulated during the development stage of $27 thousand. Further, the
Company recognized a net unrealized gain in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income for the year ended May 31, 2008 of
$7 thousand.

Under U.S. GAAP, the Company previously accounted for these investments as "held-to-maturity" in accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities ("SFAS 115"). Because the Company did not have the ability or intent to hold these investments until their stated
maturity date, the Company made a reassessment of the appropriateness of the previous classification and reallocated these investments as "available-for-
sale" as of May 31, 2008, in accordance with SFAS 115. An unrealized holding gain in the amount of $10 thousand (2008 - loss of $20 thousand) was
recorded in other comprehensive income relating to these investments.

(c) Consolidated statements of cash flows:

There are no differences between Canadian and U.S. GAAP that impact the consolidated statements of cash flows.




(d)

(e)

®

Investment tax credits:
Prepaid expenses and other assets as at May 31, 2009 include investment tax credits receivable of $600 thousand (2008 - $400 thousand).

Under Canadian GAAP, investment tax credits and other research and development credits are deducted from research and development expense for items of a
current nature, and deducted from property and equipment for items of a capital nature. Under U.S. GAAP, these tax credits would be reclassified as a
reduction of income tax expense. The impact would be higher research and development expense and an income tax recovery of $200 thousand for the year
ended May 31, 2009 (2008 - $200 thousand; 2007 - $212 thousand) with no net impact to loss for the year or loss per share.

Income taxes:

The Company fully recognizes its tax benefits, which are offset by a valuation allowance to the extent that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. The Company does not expect significant changes in its unrecognized tax benefits for the next 12 months.

The Company and its Canadian subsidiaries each file Canadian federal and provincial income tax returns. The Company and its subsidiaries remain open to tax
examinations by the Canadian federal and provincial tax authorities for years ended after the 1998 and 1997 taxation years, respectively.

The Company's U.S. subsidiary files U.S. federal and state income tax returns. The U.S. subsidiary is subject to federal and state income tax examinations by
U.S. tax authorities for taxation years ended May 31, 2008 and 2009.

The Company recognizes any interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in operating expenses. During the year
ended May 31, 2009, there was no such interest or penalties.

Adoption of new accounting pronouncements under U.S. GAAP:

On June 1, 2008, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 157 ("SFAS 157"), Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value under United States GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies to other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements.




SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value measurements for assets and liabilities required or permitted to be recorded at fair
value, the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact and it considers assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability.

(i)  Fair value hierarchy:

SFAS 157 requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. SFAS 157
establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective evidence surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial
instrument's categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. SFAS 157
prioritizes the inputs into three levels that may be used to measure fair value:

» Level 1 - applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2 - applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent
transactions (less active markets); or model-derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or
corroborated by, observable market data.

» Level 3 - applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of
the fair value of the assets or liabilities.




(ii) Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of May 31, 2009 were as follows:

Quoted
prices in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
instruments inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, consisting of term deposits and guaranteed
investment certificates $ 2,676 $ 2,698 $ - $ 5,374
Corporate investments - 490 - 490
$ 2,676 $ 3,188 $ - 3 5,864

Level 2 fixed income securities are priced using quoted market prices for similar instruments, non-binding market prices that are corroborated by observable
market data.

The Company does not carry any liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

On June 1, 2008, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 159 ("SFAS 159"), The Fair Value Options for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which
permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments at fair value on a contract-by-contract basis. SFAS 159 applies to all reporting entities and
contains financial statement presentation and disclosure requirements for assets and liabilities reported at fair value as a consequence of the election. The
adoption of this change did not have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.




(g) New accounting pronouncements not yet adopted under U.S. GAAP:

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2"), which delayed the effective date of SFAS 157
for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring
basis (at least annually), until the beginning of the Company’s fiscal 2010 year. The Company does not expect that the application of SFAS 157, when applied
to non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, will have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 141R, Business Combinations ("SFAS 141R"), which requires most identifiable assets, liabilities, non-
controlling interests and goodwill acquired in a business combination to be recorded at full fair value. SFAS 141R applies to all business combinations, including
combinations among mutual entities and combinations by contract alone. Under SFAS 141R, all business combinations will be accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. SFAS 141R is effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after December 15, 2008, specifically June 1, 2009 for the Company.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements ("SFAS 160"), which will requires non-
controlling interests (previously referred to as minority interests) to be treated as a separate component of equity, not as a liability or other item outside
permanent equity. SFAS 160 applies to the accounting for non-controlling interests and transactions with non-controlling interest holders in consolidated
financial statements. SFAS 160 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2008, specifically June 1, 2009 for the Company. Earlier
application is prohibited. SFAS 160 will be applied prospectively to all non-controlling interests, including any that arose before the effective date, except that
comparative period information must be recast to classify non-controlling interests in equity, attribute net income and other comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests and provide other disclosures required by SFAS 160. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have an impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB ratified EITF No. 07-1, Accounting for Collaborative Agreements ("EITF 07-1"), which provides guidance on how the parties to a
collaborative agreement should account for costs incurred and revenue generated on sales to third parties, how sharing payments pursuant to a collaboration
agreement should be presented in the income statement and certain related disclosure requirements. EITF 07-1 is effective for the first annual or interim
reporting period beginning after December 15, 2008, and should be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented for all collaborative arrangements
existing as of the effective date.




The Company will adopt the provisions of EITF 07-1 effective June 1, 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of EITF
07-1 will have on its consolidated results of operations and financial position.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ("SFAS 161"), which requires enhanced
disclosures about an entity's derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting. Mainly, entities are required to
provide enhanced disclosures about (i) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (ii) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are
accounted for under Statement 133 and its related interpretations, and (iii) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008,
specifically June 1, 2009 for the Company. SFAS 161 encourages, but does not require, comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption. The
Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 161 to have an impact on its consolidated financial position, financial performance or cash flows.

In May 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 165 ("SFAS 165"), Subsequent Events, which establishes general standards of accounting and disclosure of
events that occur after the balance sheet date, but before financial statements are issued or available to be issued. SFAS 165 is effective for annual periods
ending after June 15, 2009. The Company will prospectively adopt SFAS 165 in its financial statements for the year ending May 31, 2010 and will make the
required disclosures.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 168 ("SFAS 168"), The FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ ("Codification") and the Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to replace SFAS 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, which became effective November
13, 2008. The Codification will become the source of authoritative United States GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by non-governmental entities.
Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under authority of federal securities laws are also sources of authoritative
United States GAAP for SEC registrants. On the effective date of this statement, the Codification will supersede all then-existing non-SEC accounting and
reporting standards. All other non-grandfathered non-SEC accounting literature not included in the Codification will become non-authoritative. This statement is
effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS
168 will have an impact on its consolidated financial statements other than changes to note disclosures.

In September 2009, the FASB ratified EITF No. 08-1, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables ("EITF 08-1"), which addresses the criteria for
separating consideration in a multiple element arrangement from EITF No. 00-21. The consensus will require the use of an estimated selling price for
deliverables in circumstances where vendor specific objective evidence or third party evidence of selling price does not exist. Companies will be required to use
the relative selling price method to allocate the arrangement consideration to all elements, thereby eliminating the residual method. EITF 08-1 also enhances
disclosure requirements for multiple element arrangements. EITF 08-1 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in
fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that the adoption of EITF 08-1 will have on its
consolidated results of operations and financial position.




(h) Consolidated statement of shareholders' equity (deficiency) for the period from June 1, 1998 to May 31, 2009:

Accumulated
Contributed other
Number of surplus/ comprehensive
shares Amount Warrants APIC Deficit loss Total
Balance, May 31, 1998 36,785 § 37,180 - 667 $ (32,946) $ - 4,901
Exercise of special warrants 5,333 1,004 - (1,217) - - (213)
Exercise of stock options 46 48 - - - - 48
Issue of warrants - - - 1,217 - - 1,217
Issue of special warrants - - - 213 - - 213
Other issuances 583 379 - - - - 379
Deficit - - - - (4,623) - (4,623)
Balance, May 31, 1999 42,747 38,611 - 880 (37,569) - 1,922
Exercise of warrants 12,591 7,546 (534) - - 7,012
Issuance of special and purchase
warrants - - - 8,853 - - 8,853
Issuance of public offering 15,333 41,952 - 659 - - 42,611
Issued of acquisition 36,050 14,000 - - - - 14,000
Exercise of units 893 1,821 - (321) - - 1,500
Issuance under alternate
compensation plan 18 15 - - - - 15
Exercise of special warrants 30,303 8,438 - (8,438) - - -
Exercise of stock options 1,730 1,113 - - - - 1,113
Stock-based compensation - 869 - - - - 869
Deficit - - - - (8,599) - (8,599)




Accumulated

Contributed other
Number of surplus/ comprehensive

shares Amount Warrants APIC Deficit loss Total
Balance, May 31, 2000 139,665 114,365 - 1,099 (46,168) - 69,296
Exercise of warrants 168 93 - (25) - - 68
Issuance under alternate
compensation plan 28 49 - - - - 49
Exercise of stock options 2,550 1,866 - - - - 1,866
Stock-based compensation - 351 - - - - 351
Deficit - 82 - - (15,213) - (15,131)
Balance, May 31, 2001 142,411 116,806 - 1,074 (61,381) - 56,499
Exercise of compensation warrants 476 265 - (71) - - 194
Exercise of stock options 1,525 1,194 - - - - 1,194
Stock-based compensation - (100) - - - - (100)
Deficit - - - - (13,488) - (13,488)
Balance, May 31, 2002 144,412 118,165 - 1,003 (74,869) - 44,299
Exercise of stock options 873 715 - - - - 715
Stock-based compensation - 558 - - - - 558
Deficit - - - - (16,634) - (16,634)
Balance, May 31, 2003 145,285 119,438 - 1,003 (91,503) - 28,938
Share issuance 26,220 24,121 - 4,325 - - 28,446
Exercise of stock options 289 171 - - - - 171
Stock-based compensation - (88) - - - - (88)
Other issuances - 28 - - - - 28
Deficit - - - - (30,301) - (30,301)
Balance, May 31, 2004 171,794 143,670 - 5,328 (121,804) - 27,194
Interest payment 421 300 - - - - 300
Exercise of stock options 276 112 - - - - 112
Expiry of compensation options - - - 1,405 - - 1,405
Issuance under alternate
compensation plan 50 37 - - - - 37
Issuance of warrants - - - 1,048 - - 1,048
Deficit - - - - (20,298) - (20,298)




Accumulated

Contributed other
Number of surplus/ comprehensive

shares Amount Warrants APIC Deficit loss Total
Balance, May 31, 2005 172,541 144,119 - 7,781 (142,102) - 9,798
Interest payment 2,153 882 - - - - 882
Stock-based compensation - - - 56 - - 56
Deficit - - - - (16,388) - (16,388)
Balance, May 31, 2006 174,694 145,001 - 7,837 (158,490) - (5,652)
Equity issuance 33,800 11,641 - - - - 11,641
Interest payments 3,726 1,050 - - - - 1,050
Exercise of stock options 46 22 - ©) - - 13
Repurchase of warrants - - - (252) - - (252)
Stock-based compensation - - - 697 - - 697
Deficit - - - - (9,150) - (9,150)
Balance, May 31, 2007 212,266 157,714 - 8,273 (167,640) - (1,653)
Interest payments 5,383 1,029 - - - - 1,029
Stock-based compensation - - - 767 - - 767
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - (20) (20)
Deficit - - - - (5,526) - (5,526)
Balance, May 31, 2008 217,649 158,743 - 9,040 (173,166) (20) (5,403)
Interest payments 10,620 707 - - - - 707
Share issuance 28,539 2,790 - - - - 2,790
Warrant issuance - - 417 - - - 417
Stock-based compensation - - - 485 - - 485
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 10 10
Deficit - - - - (7,735) - (7,735)
Balance, May 31, 2009 256,808 162,240 $ 417 9,525 $ (180,901) $ (10)  $ (8,729)







TO:

(Form of Canadian Subscription Agreement used in connection with November 2009 private placement)

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Corporation™)

EXHIBIT 2.20

The undersigned (hereinafter referred to as the “Subscriber”) hereby subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of units of the Corporation (the “ Units”). Each Unit is comprised of one common share (the “Offered Share”) in
the capital of the Corporation and one-half common share purchase warrant (each whole such warrant being referred to herein as a “Warrant”), each Warrant entitling the holder thereof to purchase one common share of the
Corporation (“Warrant Share”) for an exercise price of $0.08 for 18 months following the Closing Date (as defined below). The aggregate subscription price (the “Aggregate Subscription Price”) of the Units is set forth below,
representing a subscription price of $0.06 per Unit. The Units are available upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in “Terms and Conditions of Subscription for Units of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.” attached hereto as

Appendix I to Schedule “A” (and together with this subscription, and Schedule “A,” the “Subscription Agreement”). All monetary amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated.

A completed and originally executed copy of this Subscription Agr

Attn: Saeid Babaei

(Name of Subscriber - please print)

By:

Number of Units:

(Authorized Signature)

Aggregate Subscription Price: §

(Official Capacity or Title - please print)

(Please print name of individual whose signature appears above if
different than the name of the subscriber printed above.)

(Subscriber’s Address)

(Telephone Number) (E-mail Address)

(E-mail Address)

Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser Information:

If the Subscriber 15 signing as agent for a prineipal and 1s not a trust
company of tust corporation purchasing as trustee or agent for
accounts fully managed by the Subscriber or a person acting on
behalf of a fully managed account managed by the Subscriber. and
in each case satisfying the criteria set forth i NI 45-106. complete
the following and ensure that Schedule B is completed on behalf of
such principal (such principal. a “Disclosed Beneficial
Purchaser™):

(Name of Principal)

(Principal’s Address, Telephone Number and E-mail Address)

Deliver the Units as set forth below:

Name)

(Account reference. if applicable)

(Contact Name)

(Address)

Register the Units as set forth below:

{(Name)

(Account reference if applicable)

(Address)

luding Schedule B hed hereto, must be delivered by no later than 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on November 25, 2009 to: Lorus Therapeutics Inc.,

Number of common shares currently held directly or indirectly by the Subscriber and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser or over which such person exercises direction or control (excluding Offered Shares or Warrant Shares subscribed for

hereunder):

Number of securities convertible into common shares currently held directly or indirectly by the Subscriber and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser or over which such person exercises direction or control:




ACCEPTANCE: The Corporation hereby accepts the subscription as set forth above on the terms and conditions contained in this Subscription Agreement.
November , 2009
LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

By:
Authorized Signatory




SCHEDULE “A”
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUBSCRIPTION FOR UNITS OF LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Terms of the Offering

(1) The Subscriber acknowledges (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) that this subscription is subject to rejection, acceptance or allotment by the Corporation
at its discretion in whole or in part.

(2) The Subscriber acknowledges (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) that the Units subscribed for by it hereunder form part of a larger issuance and sale by
the Corporation of up to 41,000,000 Units at a subscription price of $0.06, for aggregate gross proceeds of up to approximately $2,460,000 (the “Offering™).

Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Corporation

By execution of this Subscription Agreement, the Corporation hereby represents and warrants to the Subscriber as follows and acknowledges and confirms that the Subscriber is relying upon such
representations and warranties in entering into this Subscription Agreement and completing the transactions contemplated herein:

(a) The Corporation has been incorporated and organized and is a valid and subsisting corporation under the laws of Canada and has all requisite corporate power and authority to
carry on its business as now conducted or proposed to be conducted and to own or lease and operate the property and assets thereof and the Corporation has all requisite
corporate power and authority to enter into, execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and the certificate representing the Warrants and to carry out the obligations
thereof hereunder and thereunder.

(b) The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares.

(c) the Corporation will reserve or set aside sufficient shares in its treasury to issue the Warrant Shares on exercise of the Warrants;

(

=

the execution of this Subscription Agreement, the issue and sale of the Offered Securities by the Corporation does not and will not conflict with, and does not and will not result
in a breach of, any of the terms of the Corporation’s incorporating documents or any agreement or instrument to which the Corporation is a party;

(e) this Subscription Agreement has been or will be by the Closing, duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Corporation, duly executed and delivered by
the Corporation, it constitutes a legal, valid and binding agreement of the Corporation enforceable against the Corporation except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or other laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and by general equitable principles, and the Corporation has full corporate
power and authority to undertake the Offering;

(f) the Corporation is a “reporting issuer” within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation, and is not in material default of any of the requirements of applicable
Canadian securities legislation or any of the administrative policies or notices of the regulatory authorities;

=

there are no judgments against the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries, if any, which are unsatisfied, nor are there any consent decrees or injunctions to which the Corporation
or any of its subsidiaries is subject;

(g




(h) the common shares in the capital of the Corporation are listed for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “LOR” and the Corporation is in compliance with
the rules and regulations of such body;

(i) no order ceasing or suspending trading in securities of the Corporation nor prohibiting the sale of such securities has been issued to and is outstanding against the Corporation
or its directors, officers or promoters or against any other companies that have common directors, officers or promoters and, to the best of the Corporation’s knowledge, no
investigations or proceedings for such purposes are pending or threatened; and

(j) the Corporation will within the required time, file with the Toronto Stock Exchange or any other applicable securities agency, any documents, reports and information, in the
required form, required to be filed by applicable securities laws in connection with this Offering, together with any applicable filing fees and other materials;

Representations, Warranties and Covenants by Subscriber

(3) The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) represents, warrants and covenants to the Corporation to such representations, warranties and
covenants, (and the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation, and its legal counsel are relying thereon) that:

a. each of the Subscriber and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser is an accredited investor (‘Accredited Investor”) as such term is defined in both National Instrument 45-106 -
Prospectus and Registration Exemptions (“NI 45-106”), and has indicated each category of Accredited Investor that it satisfies by completing (i) the certification attached as Appendix I to
Schedule B hereto and (ii) the representation letter attached as Schedule B hereto;

b. unless the Subscriber is purchasing the Units under subparagraph (3)c, the Subscriber is purchasing the Units as principal for its own account, and not for the benefit of any other person, and for
investment purposes only, and not with a view to the resale or distribution of all or any of such Units, and is resident in or otherwise subject to the applicable securities legislation of the
jurisdiction set out as the “Subscriber’s Address” on the face page hereof; provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, nothing contained in this Subscription Agreement will prejudice the
Subscriber’s right at any time or from time to time to sell or otherwise dispose of all or some of the Units in compliance with applicable securities laws and nothing contained in this Subscription
Agreement shall be deemed a representation or warranty by the Subscriber to hold the Units for any period of time;

c. if the Subscriber is not purchasing as a principal, (i) the Subscriber is duly authorized to enter into this Subscription Agreement and to execute and deliver all documentation in connection with the
purchase of Units on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser, (ii) the Subscriber and the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser acknowledge that the Corporation is required by law to disclose to
certain regulatory authorities the identity of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser for whom it may be acting, (iii) the Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction set out as the “Subscriber’s Address”
on the face page hereof and the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser is resident in the jurisdiction set out under the heading “Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser Information” on the face page hereof;

d. neither the Subscriber nor, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser was formed for the purpose of purchasing the Units;

e. if the Subscriber is an individual, the Subscriber has the legal capacity and competence to enter into and execute this Subscription Agreement and to take all actions required pursuant hereto;

f.  the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) is aware of and has received independent legal advice with respect to applicable securities legislation that may impose
restrictions upon the resale of the Offered Shares, Warrants, and Warrant Shares, is aware of the fact that he, she or it may not be able to resell the Offered Shares, Warrants or Warrant Shares

except in accordance with the terms of this Subscription Agreement, applicable securities legislation and regulatory policies and acknowledges and agrees that he, she or it is solely responsible
(and the Corporation is not in any way responsible) for compliance with applicable resale restrictions and will comply with such restrictions;




the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) has such prior investment experience, knowledge, sophistication and experience in business and financial matters that he,
she or it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the Units, is able to bear the economic risk of losing its entire investment and recognizes the highly speculative nature of
its investment;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) has been given the opportunity to ask questions concerning the business, business plans, finances, management and
ownership of the Corporation and has received answers to such questions to his, her or its full satisfaction;

in making the decision to invest in the Units, the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) has relied solely upon the information provided in this Subscription
Agreement, the attached Term Sheet, the Corporation’s publicly disclosed documents as filed at www.sedar.com and his, her or its own investigation of the Corporation, which information and
investigation has provided the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) with all the information he, she or it has deemed necessary for purposes of his, her or its
investment decision, and has not relied upon any statements made or information provided by the Corporation or any of its officers, employees, agents or representatives other than the statements
and information that is set forth in this Subscription Agreement;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) acknowledges and understands that no person has made any written or oral representation (i) that any person will resell or
repurchase any or all of the Offered Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares, (ii) that any person will refund the purchase price of the Units or (iii) as to future price or value of the Offered Shares,
Warrants and Warrant Shares;

no Units were offered to the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) by means of general solicitation or advertisement and, in connection therewith, the Subscriber (and,
if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) has not received or been provided with or requested, and does not have any need to receive, any offering memorandum, prospectus, sales or
advertising literature or other document describing the business and affairs of the Corporation which has been prepared for delivery to, and review by, prospective purchasers in order to assist
them in making an investment decision with respect to the Units and the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) has not become aware of any advertisement in printed
media of general and regular paid circulation (or other printed public media), radio, television or telecommunications or other form of advertisement with respect to the distribution of the Units;

none of the funds being used to purchase the Units are, to the knowledge of the Subscriber, proceeds obtained or derived directly or indirectly as a result of illegal activities;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) acknowledges and consents to the placement of any required legend under Canadian securities laws on any certificate
evidencing the Offered Shares, Warrants, and Warrant Shares issued to the Subscriber. The legend to be placed on each certificate shall be in form substantially similar to the following:

UNLESS PERMITTED UNDER SECURITIES LEGISLATION, THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY MUST NOT TRADE THE SECURITY BEFORE MARCH 29, 2010.

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE TORONTO STOCK EXCHANGE AND COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE SECURITIES LEGISLATION, THE
SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE TRADED ON OR THROUGH THE
FACILITIES OF THE TORONTO STOCK EXCHANGE OR OTHERWISE IN CANADA OR TO OR FOR THE BENEFIT OF A CANADIAN RESIDENT UNTIL MARCH 29, 2010.

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) represents and warrants that on and from the date that he, she or it first became aware of the Offering until the date hereof
he, she or it has not engaged in, and covenants that for the period commencing on the date hereof and ending on the public announcement of the Offering he, she or it will not engage in, any
hedging, short sale or other similar transaction with respect to the Offered Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares or any security (other than a broad-based market basket or index) that relates to or
derives a significant part of its value from the Offered Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares;




the Subscriber has full power and authority (corporate, statutory and otherwise) to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and to purchase the Units on its own behalf or, if applicable, on
behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser and this Subscription Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by the Subscriber and constitutes the legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Subscriber, enforceable against the Subscriber in accordance with its terms;

neither the Subscriber nor, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser is a “control person” of the Company, as that term is defined in the applicable securities legislation and will not
become a “control person” of the Company by virtue of the purchase of Units under this Agreement and does not act or intend to act in concert with any other person to form a control group in
respect of the Company;

the entering into of this Subscription Agreement and the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby will not result in a violation of any of the terms or provisions of any law applicable to
the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) or, if Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) is not a natural person, the constating documents of the
Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) or of any agreement, instrument, undertaking or covenant to which the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial
Purchaser) is a party or by which he, she or it is bound;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) has no knowledge of a “material fact” or “material change” (as those terms are defined in the applicable securities
legislation) in the affairs of the Corporation that has not been generally disclosed to the public, save knowledge of this particular transaction;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) acknowledges that purchasing, holding, exercising and disposing of the Offered Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares may
have tax consequences under the laws of Canada, that prospective purchasers are solely responsible for determining the tax consequences applicable to their particular circumstances and that he,
she or it has been advised by the Corporation to consult its tax advisors concerning an investment in the Units;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) understands that no governmental or regulatory authority, including any securities regulatory authority, has made any
recommendations or endorsements with respect to the Units or an investment therein and there is no government or other insurance covering the Units or an investment therein;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) understands, acknowledges and agrees that this Subscription Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, legal representatives and permitted assigns;

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) acknowledges and understands that the Corporation is relying on an exemption under applicable securities legislation from
the requirements to provide the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) with a prospectus and to sell securities through a person or company registered to sell securities
under applicable securities legislation, and:

i. in issuing securities pursuant to this exemption, the Corporation is relying upon the representations and warranties of the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial
Purchaser); and

ii. as a consequence of acquiring securities pursuant to this exemption, certain protections, rights and remedies provided by such securities legislation, including statutory rights of rescission or
damages, will not be available to the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser);

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) represents and warrants that the Units have not been offered to the Subscriber (or any Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) in the
United States, and the person making the order to purchase the Units and executing and delivering this Subscription Agreement was not in the United States when such order was placed and this
Subscription Agreement was executed and delivered; and

the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) represents and warrants that it is not a U.S. Person (as defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities Act"), which definition includes, but is not limited to, an individual resident in the United States, an estate or trust of which any executor or administrator
or trustee, respectively, is a U.S. Person, and any partnership or corporation organized or incorporated under the laws of the United States) and is not purchasing the Units on behalf of, or for the
account or benefit of, a person in the United States or a U.S. Person; and
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y. the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) understands and acknowledges that none of the Units, the Offered Shares and Warrants comprising the Units, or the
Warrant Shares have been or will be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, and that the Warrants may be exercised only pursuant to an exemption or exclusion from the registration
requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and any applicable state securities laws.

On or before 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on November 25, 2009 or such other time as is established by the Corporation, the Subscriber will deliver to the Corporation at 2 Meridian Road, Toronto ON, MOW
477, Attention: Saied Babaei (416-798-1200), fax number: (416) 798-2200, Attention: Saeid Babaei (i) this duly and completed Subscription Agreement (including Schedule B attached hereto) and (ii)

unless other payment arrangements acceptable to the Corporation has been made, a certified cheque or bank draft payable to “Lorus Therapeutics Inc.” in an amount equal to the Aggregate Subscription

Price.

The sale of Units pursuant to this Subscription Agreement will be completed at the offices of McCarthy Tétrault LLP, counsel to the Corporation, at 8:30 a.m.(Toronto time) or such other time as is
established by the Corporation (the “Closing Time”) on November 27, 2009 or such other date as is established by the Corporation (the ‘Closing Date™). If this Subscription Agreement is rejected in
whole or in part, the Subscriber acknowledges (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) that the unused portion of the subscription amount will be promptly
returned to it without interest.

The Corporation shall be entitled to rely on delivery of a facsimile copy or an electronic transmission of this executed Subscription Agreement, and acceptance by the Corporation of such facsimile
subscriptions shall be legally effective to create a valid and binding agreement between the Subscriber and the Corporation in accordance with the terms hereof. In addition, this Subscription Agreement
may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document.

The Subscriber agrees (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) that the representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber herein will be true and
correct both as of the execution of this Subscription Agreement and as of the Closing Time and will survive the completion of the issuance of the Offered Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares issued
pursuant hereto. The representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber herein are made with the intent that they be relied upon by the Corporation and its legal counsel in determining the
eligibility of a purchaser of Offered Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares under the Offering and the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) agrees to indemnify and save
harmless the Corporation and its affiliates, shareholders, directors, officers, employees, counsel and agents against all losses, claims, costs, expenses and damages or liabilities which any of them may
suffer or incur which are caused or arise from a breach thereof. The Subscriber undertakes to immediately notify the Corporation at Lorus Therapeutics, 2 Meridian Road, Toronto ON, M9W
477, Attention: Saied Babaei (416-798-1200), fax number: (416) 798-2200 of any change in any statement or other information relating to the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial
Purchaser) set forth herein which takes place prior to the Closing Time.

The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) acknowledges that the Units are being offered on a private placement basis.

The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) hereby irrevocably authorizes the Corporation, in its sole discretion to complete or correct any errors
or omissions in any form or document provided by the Subscriber, including this Subscription Agreement; and to receive on its behalf certificates representing the Units purchased under this Subscription
Agreement.

The obligations of the parties hereunder are subject to acceptance of the terms of the Offering by the Toronto Stock Exchange and all other required regulatory approvals.

The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) acknowledges and agrees that all costs incurred by the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed

Beneficial Purchaser), including any fees and disbursements of any special counsel retained by the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) relating to the sale of the Units issued
hereunder shall be borne by the Subscriber (or, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser).
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(12) This Subscription Agreement and all documents relating thereto shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable

therein. The parties irrevocably attorn to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario. Time shall be of the essence hereof.

The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Subscription Agreement shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any other provision hereof.

The headings used in this Subscription Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Subscription Agreement or any provision
hereof.

(15) This Subscription Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof and there are no representations, covenants or other agreements relating to the subject

matter hereof except as stated or referred to herein.

Neither this Subscription Agreement nor any provision hereof shall be modified, changed, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom any waiver,
change, discharge or termination is sought.

The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) acknowledges that this Subscription Agreement and the exhibits and schedules hereto require the
Subscriber to provide certain personal information relating to the Subscriber (and, if applicable, the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) to the Corporation. Such information is being collected by the
Corporation for the purposes of completing the Offering, which includes, without limitation, determining the Subscriber’s eligibility to purchase the Units under applicable securities legislation, preparing
and registering certificates representing Units to be issued to the Subscriber and completing filings required by any stock exchange or securities regulatory authority. Such personal information may be
disclosed by the Corporation to (a) stock exchanges or securities regulatory authorities (including the Ontario Securities Commission, (b) the Corporation’s registrar and transfer agent, (c) any government
agency, board or other entity and (d) any of the other parties involved in this private placement, including the Corporation, and its legal counsel, and may be included in record books in connection with
this Offering. By executing this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) is deemed to be consenting to the foregoing
collection, use and disclosure of such personal information. The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) also consents to the filing of copies or

originals of any of the schedules to this Subscription Agreement as may be required to be filed with any stock exchange or securities regulatory authority in connection with the transactions contemplated
hereby.

The Subscriber (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) represents and warrants that the Aggregate Subscription Price which will be advanced by the
Subscriber to the Corporation hereunder will not represent proceeds of crime for the purposes of the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist FinancingAct (Canada) (the “PCMLA”) and the
Subscriber acknowledges (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial Purchaser) that the Corporation may in the future be required by law to disclose his, her or its name
and other information relating to this Subscription Agreement and his, her or its subscription hereunder, on a confidential basis, pursuant to the PCMLA or other applicable legislation. To the best of his,

her or its knowledge, none of the subscription funds to be provided pursuant to this Agreement (a) have been or will be derived from or related to any activity that is deemed criminal under the law of
Canada or any other jurisdiction or (b) are being tendered on behalf of a person or entity who has not been identified to the Subscriber. The Subscriber shall promptly notify the Corporation if the
Subscriber discovers that any of such representations ceases to be true, and to provide the Corporation with appropriate information in connection therewith.

(19) The parties hereto acknowledge and confirm that they have requested that this Subscription Agreement as well as all notices and other documents contemplated hereby be drawn up on the English

language. Les parties aux présentes reconnaissent et conferment qu'elles ont convenu que la présente convention de souscription ainsi que tous les avis et documents qui s'y rattachent soient rédigés dans
la langue anglaise.




Appendix 1 to Schedule “A”

Term Sheet

Issuer:

Offering:

Issue Price:

Gross Proceeds:

Type of Transaction:

Use of Proceeds:

Jurisdictions:

Resale Restrictions:

Listing:

Eligibility:

Conmmission:

Closing Date:

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (“Lorus™ or the “Corporation™).

Private placement (the “Offering”) of 41.000.000 units of the Corporation (the “Units™). Each Unit 15
comprised of one common share (the “Offered Share™) in the capital of the Corporation and one-half
common share purchase warrant (each whole such warrant being referred to herein as a “Warrant™),
each Warrant entithing the holder thereof to purchase one common share of the Corporation
{*Warrant Share”) for an exercise price of $0.08 for 18 months followmng the Closing Date.

$0.06 per Unat.
Up to $2.460.000.

Private placement. The Unats will be sold to “accredited investors™ as defined in National Instrument
45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemptions. by private placement without an offering
memorandum, subject to receipt of necessary regulatory approvals.

The proceeds from the Offering will be used by the Corporation for climeal and development
programs and general corporate purposes.

The qualifying jurisdictions for the Offering will be each of the provinces of Canada and such other
international jurisdictions where agreed by the Corporation.

Pursuant to applicable Canadian securities laws, the Units will be subject to a four month hold period
commencing on the Closing Date. If the Units are sold in jurisdictions other than Canada. relevant
securities laws will apply.

Completion of the Offering 15 conditional upon the Corporation obtaimng approval for the listing of
the Offered Shares and Warrant Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange. The Corporation will use its
best efforts to obtain the conditional approval of the Toronto Stock Exchange. subject only to
customary listing conditions. on or before the Closing Date.

Eligible under the usual statutes and for RRSP’s, RRIF s, RESP’s, DPSP’s and TFSA's.

The Corporation will pay the any registered agents. if any. 7% of the value of the Units sold plus 7%
broker warrants (at the exercise price of the Warrant). where agreed to by the Corporation.

Nevember 27, 2009 or such other date or dates as may be provided by the Corporation.




SCHEDULE “B”
REPRESENTATION LETTER

Capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Representation Letter have the meaning ascribed to them in the Subscription Agreement to which this Schedule “B” is attached. Upon execution of this Representation
Letter by the undersigned, this Representation Letter shall be incorporated into and form a part of such Subscription Agreement.

In addition to the covenants, representations and warranties contained in the Subscription Agreement to which this Schedule “B” is attached, the undersigned covenants, represents and warrants to the Corporation that

the undersigned is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of National Instrument 45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemptions by virtue of satisfying the indicated criterion as set out in Appendix 1 to this
Representation Letter.

DATED November _, 2009.

Signature of individual or Authorized Signatory

Name (please print)

Name of authorized signatory ( please print)

Address (residence if an individual)

Telephone Number

IMPORTANT: PLEASE INITIAL THE APPLICABLE PROVISION ON APPENDIX 1 TO THIS SCHEDULE “B”




Appendix 1 to Schedule “B”

CERTIFICATE OF ACCREDITED INVESTOR

PLEASE CLEARLY MARK YOUR INITIALS BESIDE THE CATEGORY OF “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” TO WHICH YOU BELONG.

Accredited Investor (defined in National Instrument 45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemptions) means:

(a)
(b)
(©)

(d

(e)
®
[€3)

()

(]

k)

M
(m)

a Canadian financial institution, or a Schedule III bank;
the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank of Canada Act(Canada);

a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b), if the person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by
directors of that subsidiary;

a person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser or dealer, other than a person registered solely as a limited market dealer under one or both of
the Securities Act (Ontario) or the Securities Act(Newfoundland and Labrador);

an individual registered or formerly registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as a representative of a person referred to in paragraph (d);
the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any crown corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a metropolitan community, school board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de I’ile de Montréal or an intermunicipal
management board in Québec;

any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government;

a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) or a pension commission or similar regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of
Canada;

an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, financial assets having an aggregate realizable value that before taxes, but net of any related
liabilities, exceeds CDN$1,000,000;

an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded CDN$200,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years or whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse
exceeded CDN$300,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who, in either case, reasonably expects to exceed that net income level in the current calendar year;

(Note: If individual accredited investors wish to purchase through wholly-owned holding companies or similar entities, such purchasing entities must qualify under paragraph ()
below, which must be initialled)

an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, has net assets of at least CDN$5,000,000;

a person, other than an individual or investment fund, that has net assets of at least $5,000,000 as shown on its most recently prepared financial statements, provided that such person has
not been created or used solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor;
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)
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an investment fund that distributes or has distributed its securities only to
(A) a person that is or was an accredited investor at the time of the distribution,

(B) a person that acquires or acquired securities in the circumstances referred to in sections 2.10/Minimum amount investment], and 2.19 [Additional investment in investment
funds] of NI 45-106, or

©) a person described in paragraph (A) or (B) that acquires or acquired securities under section 2.18/Investment fund reinvestment] of NI 45-106;

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed securities under a prospectus in a jurisdiction of Canada for which the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory authority, has
issued a receipt;

a trust company or trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on business under the Trust and Loan Companies Act(Canada) or under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of
Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by the trust company or trust corporation, as the case may be;

a person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by that person, if that person
(A) is registered or authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the equivalent under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, and
(B) in Ontario, is purchasing a security that is not a security of an investment fund;

a registered charity under the Income Tax Act(Canada) that, in regard to the trade, has obtained advice from an eligibility adviser or an adviser registered under the securities legislation
of the jurisdiction of the registered charity to give advice on the securities being traded;

an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in paragraphs (a) to (d) or paragraph (i) in form and function;

a person in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct, indirect or beneficial, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors, are persons that are
accredited investors (as defined in NI 45-106);

an investment fund that is advised by a person registered as an adviser or a person that is exempt from registration as an adviser; or
a person that is recognized or designated by the securities regulatory authority or, except in Ontario and Québec, the regulator as
(A) an accredited investor, or

(B) an exempt purchaser in Alberta or British Columbia, and confirmation of such status is being provided to the Corporation.




NOTE: The investor must initial beside the applicable portion of the above definition.
For the purposes hereof:

“affiliate” means an issuer affiliated with another issuer because

(a) one of them is the subsidiary of the other; or

(b) each of them is controlled by the same person;

“beneficial ownership” of securities by a person includes

(a) for the purposes of British Columbia, Manitoba, and Ontario securities law, when such securities are beneficially owned by
(A) an issuer controlled by that person; or
(B) an affiliate of that person or an affiliate of an issuer controlled by that person;
(b) and, for the purposes of Alberta securities law, when such securities are beneficially owned by
(A) a company controlled by that person or an affiliate of that company;
(B) an affiliate of that person; or
©) through a trustee, legal representative, agent or other intermediary of that person;

“Canadian financial institution” means
(a) an association governed by the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) or a central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under section 473(1) of that Act, or

(b) a bank, loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse populaire, financial services cooperative, or league that, in each case, is
authorized by an enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction in Canada;

“consultant” means, for an issuer, a person, other than an employee, executive officer, or director of the issuer or of a related entity of the issuer, that

(a) is engaged to provide services to the issuer or a related entity of the issuer, other than services provided in relation to a distribution,
(b) provides the services under a written contract with the issuer or a related entity of the issuer, and
(c) spends or will spend a significant amount of time and attention on the affairs and business of the issuer or a related entity of the issuer

and includes, for an individual consultant, a corporation of which the individual consultant is an employee or shareholder, and a partnership of which the individual consultant is an employee or
partner;




“control” or “controlled” means a person (first person) controlled by another person (second person) if:

(a) the first person, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns or exercises control or direction over securities of the second person carrying votes which, if exercised, would entitle the first
person to elect a majority of directors of the second person, unless that first person holds the voting securities only to secure an obligation;

(b) the second person is a partnership, other than a limited partnership, and the first person holds more than 50% of the interests of the partnership; or

(c) the second person is a limited partnership and the general partner of the limited partnership is the first person;

“control person” means
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for the purposes of Alberta securities law, any person or company that holds or is one of a combination of persons or companies that holds

i) a sufficient number of any of the securities of an issuer so as to affect materially the control of the issuer, or
(i) more than 20% of the outstanding voting securities of an issuer except where there is evidence showing that the holding of those securities does not affect materially the control of the
issuer;

and, for the purposes of British Columbia securities law,
i) a person who holds a sufficient number of the voting rights attached to all outstanding voting securities of an issuer to affect materially the control of the issuer, or

(ii) each person in a combination of persons, acting in concert by virtue of an agreement, arrangement, commitment or understanding, which holds in total a sufficient number of the voting
rights attached to all outstanding voting securities of an issuer to affect materially the control of the issuer,

and, if a person or combination of persons holds more than 20% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding voting securities of an issuer, the person or combination of persons is deemed,
in the absence of evidence to the contrary, to hold a sufficient number of the voting rights to affect materially the control of the issuer;

and, for the purposes of Manitoba, Ontario and Québec securities law, any person or company that holds or is one of a combination of persons that holds:
(i) a sufficient number of any securities of an issuer so as to affect materially the control of the issuer, or
more than 20% of the outstanding voting securities of an issuer except where there is evidence showing

that the holding of those securities does not affect materially the control of that issuer;

“director” means

(2)

a member of the board of directors of a company or an individual who performs similar functions for a company, and




(b)

(@)
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with respect to a person that is not a company, an individual who performs functions similar to those of a director of a company;
“eligibility adviser” means

a person that is registered as an investment dealer or in an equivalent category of registration under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of a purchaser and authorized to give advice with
respect to the type of security being distributed; and

in Manitoba, also means a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law society of a jurisdiction of Canada or a public accountant who is a member in good standing of an
institute or association of chartered accountants, certified general accountants or certified management accountants in a jurisdiction of Canada provided that the lawyer or public accountant must
not

(i) have a professional, business or personal relationship with the issuer, or any of its directors, executive officers, founders, or control persons, and

(ii) have acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director, associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the issuer or any
of its directors, executive officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12 months;

“executive officer” means, for an issuer, an individual who is

(2)
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a chair, vice-chair or president,
a vice-president in charge of a principal business unit, division or function including sales, finance or production,
an officer of the issuer or any of its subsidiaries and who performs a policy-making function in respect of the issuer, or

performing a policy-making function in respect of the issuer;

“financial assets” means

(2)
(b)
(©

cash,
securities, or

a contract of insurance, a deposit or an evidence of a deposit that is not a security for the purposes of securities legislation;

“foreign jurisdiction” means a country other than Canada or a political subdivision of a country other than Canada;

“founder” means, in respect of an issuer, a person who,

(2)

(b)

acting alone, in conjunction, or in concert with one or more other persons, directly or indirectly, takes the initiative in founding, organizing or substantially reorganizing the business of the issuer,
and

at the time of the trade, is actively involved in the business of the issuer;




“fully managed account” means an account of a client for which a person makes the investment decisions if that person has full discretion to trade in securities for the account without requiring the client’s
express consent to a transaction;

“individual” means a natural person, but does not include

(a) a partnership, unincorporated association, unincorporated syndicate, unincorporated organization or a trust, or

(b) a natural person in the person’s capacity as trustee, executor, administrator or other legal representative;

“investment fund” means a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund, and, for greater certainty in British Columbia, includes an employee venture capital corporation that does not have a restricted
constitution , and is registered under Part 2 of the Employee Investment Act (British Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 c. 112, and whose business objective is making multiple investments and a venture capital corporation
registered under Part 1 of the Small Business Venture Capital Act(British Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 ¢.429 whose business objective is making multiple investments;

“jurisdiction” means a province or territory of Canada except when used in the term “foreign jurisdiction™;

“local jurisdiction” means the jurisdiction in which the applicable securities regulatory authority is situate;

“mutual fund” includes

(a) for the purposes of Alberta, Manitoba, Ontario and Québec securities law, an issuer of securities that entitles the holder to receive on demand, or within a specified period after demand, an amount
computed by reference to the value of a proportionate interest in the whole or in part of the net assets, including a separate fund or trust account, of the issuer;

(b) and, for the purposes of British Columbia securities law, also includes
(i) an issuer described in an order that the British Columbia Securities Commission may make pursuant to section 3.2 of th&ecurities Act (British Columbia); and
(i) an issuer that is in a class of prescribed issuers,

but does not include an issuer, or a class of issuers, described in an order that the British Columbia Securities Commission may make under section 3.1 of théecurities Act (British Columbia);

“non-redeemable investment fund” means an issuer,

(a) whose primary purpose is to invest money provided by its security holders,
(b) that does not invest,
(A) for the purpose of exercising or seeking to exercise control of an issuer, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, or

(B) for the purpose of being actively involved in the management of any issuer in which it invests, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, and




(c) that is not a mutual fund;

“person” includes

(a) an individual,

(b) a corporation,

(c) a partnership, trust, fund and an association, syndicate, organization or other organized group of persons, whether incorporated or not, and
(d) an individual or other person in that person’s capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator or personal or other legal representative;

“regulator” means, for the local jurisdiction, the Executive Director, Director, Administrator or Regulator as defined under securities legislation of the local jurisdiction;
“related entity” means, for an issuer, a person that controls or is controlled by the issuer or that is controlled by the same person that controls the issuer;
“related liabilities” means:
(a) liabilities incurred or assumed for the purpose of financing the acquisition or ownership of financial assets; or
(b) liabilities that are secured by financial assets;
“Schedule III bank™ means an authorized foreign bank named in Schedule III of the Bank Act (Canada);
“securities legislation” means
(a) for Alberta, the Securities Act (Alberta) and the regulations and rules under such Act and the blanket rulings and orders issued by the Alberta Securities Commission;

(b) for British Columbia, the Securities Act (British Columbia) and the regulations, rules and forms under such Act and the blanket rulings and orders issued by the British Columbia Securities
Commission;




(c) for Manitoba, the Securities Act (Manitoba) and the regulations and rules under such Act and the blanket rulings and orders issued by the Manitoba Securities Commission;

(d) for Ontario, the Securities Act (Ontario) and the regulations and rules under such Act; and
(e) for Québec, the Securities Act (Québec) and the regulations and rules under such Act, policy statements and blanket rulings and orders and decisions issued by the Authorité¢ des marchés
financiers;

“securities regulatory authority” means

(a) the Alberta Securities Commission;

(b) the British Columbia Securities Commission;
(c) the Manitoba Securities Commission;

(d) the Ontario Securities Commission; and

(e) Authorité des marchés financiers;

“spouse” means an individual who,

(a) is married to another individual and is not living separate and apart within the meaning of the Divorce Act (Canada), from the other individual,
(b) is living with another individual in a marriage-like relationship, including a marriage-like relationship between individuals of the same gender, or
(c) in Alberta, is an individual referred to in paragraph (a) or (b), or is an adult interdependent partner within the meaning of theddult Interdependent Relationships Act (Alberta);

“subsidiary” means an issuer that is controlled directly or indirectly by another issuer and includes a subsidiary of that subsidiary; and
“voting security” means any security which:
(a) is not a debt security; and

(b) carries a voting right either under all circumstances or under some circumstances that have occurred and are continuing.



EXHIBIT 2.21

(Form of Canadian Warrant issued in connection with November 2009 private placement)
LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.
(the “Corporation”)

WARRANT NO. W-1 PURCHASE WARRANT ENTITLING THE HOLDER TO
PURCHASE COMMON SHARES
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN ISSUED PURSUANT TO A PROSPECTUS UNDER ANY SECURITIES
LEGISLATION OF ANY PROVINCE OR TERRITORY OF CANADA. THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY THE ACT, THE
CORPORATION’S ARTICLES AND THE APPLICABLE CANADIAN SECURITIES LAWS PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION OR
PROSPECTUS FILING THEREUNDER OR EXEMPTIONS FROM SUCH REGISTRATION AND PROSPECTUS REQUIREMENTS. THE
HOLDER SHOULD BE AWARE THAT IT MAY BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN
INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY REQUIRE AN OPINION OF HOLDER’S COUNSEL IN
FORM AND SUBSTANCE SATISFACTORY TO THE CORPORATION TO THE EFFECT THAT ANY PROPOSED TRANSFER OR
RESALE IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE CANADIAN SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES
REPRESENTED BY THIS WARRANT ARE LISTED ON THE TORONTO STOCK EXCHANGE.
THE WARRANTS REPRESENTED HEREBY AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON THE EXERCISE OF THE WARRANTS
REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE "U.S. SECURITIES ACT"). THE WARRANTS REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY NOT BE EXERCISED IN THE
UNITED STATES OR BY, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIT OF, ANY U.S. PERSON OR A PERSON IN THE UNITED STATES,
EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE U.S. SECURITIES LAWS AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. AS USED HEREIN, THE TERMS "UNITED STATES" AND "U.S. PERSON" HAVE THE
MEANINGS ASCRIBED TO THEM IN REGULATION S UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT.
THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY ACQUIRING THIS SECURITY, AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CORPORATION THAT THIS
WARRANT AND ANY OF THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS WARRANT MAY BE CONVERTED WILL NOT BE OFFERED,
TRADED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED OTHER THAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION IN
WHICH SUCH OFFER, TRADE OR SALE TAKES PLACE.

UNLESS PERMITTED UNDER SECURITIES LEGISLATION, THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY MUST NOT TRADE THE SECURITY
BEFORE MARCH 29, 2010.




This is to certify that for value received, (the “Holder”) is the registered holder of a purchase warrant (“Warrant”),
entitling the Holder to subscribe for and purchase * common shares of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Corporation”) from treasury at (each, a
“Share”) at an exercise price of $0.08 (as adjusted pursuant to the provisions hereof, the “Share Exercise Price”) for a period of eighteen
months, upon the terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth. This Warrant is to remain exercisable from the date hereof to May 27, 2011.

As used herein:
@) “Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation;

(ii) “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in the City of Toronto are authorized or
required by law to close; and

(iii) “Common Shares” means the outstanding common shares of the Corporation.
1. Exercise Period

This Warrant is exercisable, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time during the period (the ‘Exercise Period”) from the date hereof
and, subject to any regulatory requirements, prior to 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) May 27, 2011.
2. Payment

The Shares subscribed for must be paid in full at the time of subscription, by certified cheque or bank draft payable in Canadian funds or wire
transfer of immediately available funds to or to the order of the Corporation.
3. Exercise of Warrant

This Warrant may be exercised, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the Expiry Time by the Holder hereof completing the subscription form
attached as Schedule A hereto (the “Subscription Form”) and made a part hereof and delivering same to Saied Babaei at the Corporation, at its
head office at 2 Meridian Road, Toronto ON, M9W 4Z7 (or such other address as may be designated in writing by the Corporation to the
Holder), together with this Warrant and the amount, payable to the order of the Corporation, equal to the Share Exercise Price subscribed for
upon exercise of this Warrant. The Corporation will promptly notify the Holder in writing of any change of address of its head office.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this Warrant has not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”) or the securities laws of any state of the United States, and this Warrant may not be
exercised, and no Shares will be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, unless an exemption from registration is available, and the Corporation
shall have received either written evidence satisfactory to it upon which it can rely that such exemption is available or an opinion of counsel to
such effect in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation. Therefore, this Warrant may be exercised only by a Holder who, at
the time of exercise, (i) certifies that the Holder (a) did not acquire this Warrant in the United States (as such term is defined in Regulation S
under the U.S. Securities Act) or at a time when the Holder was a U.S. Person (as such term is defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities
Act) or acting for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States, and (b) is not then located in the United States, is not a
U.S. Person and is not exercising this Warrant for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States; or (ii) provides a legal
opinion or other evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation that the exercise of this Warrant does not require registration under the U.S.
Securities Act or applicable state securities laws; or (iii) certifies that the Holder is the original purchaser from the Corporation of the Units
pursuant to which this Warrant was issued and at the time of such acquisition was a U.S. Person, was in the United States or was acting for the
account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States, and confirms, as of the date of such exercise, each of the representations,
warranties and agreements made by it in connection with its acquisition of such Units, including its status as an "accredited investor" within the
meaning of Rule 501(a) under the U.S. Securities Act, as though such representations, warranties and agreements were made on the date of such
exercise and in respect of the acquisition of the Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant.




4. Share Certificates

Upon valid exercise of this Warrant, the Corporation will cause to be issued to the person or persons in whose name or names the Shares so
subscribed for are to be issued the number of fully paid and non-assessable Shares subscribed for and such person or persons will be deemed
upon presentation and payment as aforesaid, to be the holder or holders of record of such Shares. Within three (3) Business Days after receipt of
the executed Subscription Form and payment of the Share Exercise Price, the Corporation will cause to be mailed or delivered to the holder at the
address or addresses specified in the attached Subscription Form, a certificate or certificates evidencing the number of Shares subscribed for.

S. Exercise in Whole or in Part

This Warrant may be exercised in whole or in part, and if exercised in part, the Corporation will issue another Warrant, in a form substantially
evidencing the remaining rights to purchase Shares, provided that any such right will terminate on the Expiry Date.
6. Non-Transferability

This Warrant is not transferable by the Holder.
7. No Fractional Shares

No fractional Shares will be issued upon exercise of this Warrant, nor will any compensation be made for such fractional Shares, if any.
8. Adjustments

The Share Exercise Price in effect and the number and type of securities purchasable under this Warrant at any date will be subject to adjustment
from time to time as follows:
(a) If and whenever at any time prior to the Expiry Date, the Corporation will (i) subdivide or redivide the outstanding Common

Shares into a greater number of Common Shares, (ii) reduce, combine or consolidate the outstanding Common Shares into a
smaller number of Common Shares, or (iii) issue Common Shares to the holders of all or substantially all of the outstanding
Common Shares by way of a stock dividend, the Share Exercise Price in effect on the effective date of any such event will be
adjusted immediately after such event or on the record date for such issue of Common Shares by way of stock dividend, as the
case may be, so that it will equal the amount determined by multiplying the Share Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to
such event by a fraction, of which the numerator will be the total number of Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to
such event and of which the denominator will be the total number of Common Shares outstanding immediately after such
event. The number of Shares which the Holder is entitled to purchase for this Warrant will be adjusted at the same time by
multiplying the number by the inverse of the aforesaid fraction. Any such adjustments will be made successively whenever any
event referred to in this subparagraph (a) will occur and any such issue of Common Shares by way of a stock dividend will be
deemed to have been made on the record date for the stock dividend for the purpose of calculating the number of outstanding
Common Shares immediately after such event;




(b) If and whenever at any time prior to the Expiry Date there is a reclassification of the Common Shares at any time outstanding or
a capital reorganization of the Corporation not covered in subparagraph (a) or a consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement or
merger of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or a sale of the property and assets of the Corporation as or
substantially as an entirety to any other person, a Holder of this Warrant which has not been exercised prior to the effective date
of such reclassification, capital reorganization, consolidation, amalgamation, merger or sale will therein or, upon the exercise of
such Warrant, be entitled to receive and will accept in lieu of the number of Shares, as then constituted, to which the Holder was
previously entitled upon exercise of this Warrant, but for the same aggregate consideration payable therefor, the number of
Shares or other securities or property of the Corporation or of the company resulting from such reclassification, capital
reorganization, consolidation, amalgamation or merger or of the person to which such sale may be made, as the case may be, that
such Holder would have been entitled to receive on such reclassification, capital reorganization, consolidation, amalgamation,
merger or sale on the effective date thereof, if the Holder had been the registered holder of the number of Shares to which the
Holder was previously entitled upon due exercise of this Warrant; and in any case, if necessary, appropriate adjustment will be
made in the application of the provisions set forth herein with respect to the rights and interests thereafter of the Holder of this
Warrant to the end that the provisions set forth herein will thereafter correspondingly be made applicable, as nearly as may
reasonably be, in relation to any Shares or securities or property to which the Holder may be entitled upon the exercise of such
Warrant thereafter;

() In any case in which this section requires that an adjustment become effective immediately after a record date for an event
referred to herein, the Corporation may defer, until the occurrence of such event, issuing to the Holder of any Warrant exercised
after such record date and before the occurrence of such event the kind and amount of Shares, other securities or property to
which he would be entitled upon such exercise by reason of the adjustment required by such event; provided that the Corporation
will deliver to such Holder an appropriate instrument evidencing such Holder’s right to receive the kind and amount of Shares,
other securities or property to which he or she would be entitled upon the occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment and
the right to receive any distributions made or declared in favour of holders of record of Shares as constituted from time to time on
and after such date as such Holder would, but for the provisions of this subparagraph (c), have received, or become entitled to
receive, on such exercise;




(d) The adjustments provided for in this Section 8 are cumulative and will apply to successive subdivisions, redivisions, reductions,
combinations, consolidations, distributions, issues or other events resulting in any adjustment under the provisions of this
paragraph; provided that notwithstanding any other provision of this paragraph, (i) no adjustment of the Share Exercise Price or
number of Shares, as then constituted, purchasable will be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or decrease
of at least 5% in the Share Exercise Price then in effect or the number of Shares, as then constituted, purchasable, and (ii) any
adjustments which by reason of this subparagraph (d) are not required to be made will be carried forward and taken into account
in any subsequent adjustment;

(e) In the event of any question arising with respect to the adjustments provided in this paragraph, such question will be conclusively
determined by the auditors of the Corporation. Such auditors will have access to all necessary records of the Corporation and
such determination will be binding upon the Corporation and the Holder;

(f) As a condition precedent to the taking of any action which would require an adjustment in any of the subscription rights pursuant
to this Warrant, including the number of Shares which are to be received upon the exercise thereof, the Corporation will take any
action which may, in the opinion of counsel, be necessary in order that the Corporation may validly and legally issue as fully
paid and non-assessable all the Shares which the Holder of such Warrant is entitled to receive on the full exercise thereof in
accordance with the provisions hereof;

(g) No adjustment will be made in the acquisition rights attached to this Warrant, if the issue of Shares is being made pursuant to any
Board approved stock option or stock purchase plan in force from time to time for officers, employees or consultants of the
Corporation;

(h) No adjustment will be made pursuant to this paragraph if the Holder is entitled to participate in any event described in this
paragraph on the same terms, mutatis mutandis, as if the Holder had exercised this Warrant prior to, or on the effective date or
record date of, such event, subject to regulatory approval; and




(i) In case the Corporation will take any action affecting the Shares other than action described in this Section 8, which in the
opinion of the Board would materially affect the rights of the Holder, the Share Exercise Price and/or the number of Shares
which may be acquired upon exercise of a Warrant, an appropriate adjustment will be made by action of the Board in such
manner and at such time, in their sole discretion, as they may determine to be equitable in the circumstances. Failure of the
Board to make such an adjustment will be conclusive evidence that the Board has determined that it is equitable to make no
adjustment in the circumstances.

Immediately after the occurrence of any event which requires an adjustment pursuant to this Section 8, other than an adjustment pursuant to
Section 8(a), in the Share Exercise Price or in any of the subscription rights pursuant to this Warrant, including the number of Shares, as then
constituted, which are to be received upon the exercise thereof, the Corporation will forthwith deliver to the Holder a certificate of the
Corporation specifying the particulars of such event and the required adjustment and the computation of such adjustment and give at least 10
Business Days notice to the Holder of this Warrant of the record date or effective date of such event, as the case may be, and such notice will
include particulars of such event and the required adjustment.

9. General Covenants of the Corporation
(a) The Corporation covenants and agrees that it is duly authorized to enter into and perform its obligations under this Warrant.

(b) The Corporation will at all times reserve and keep available free from preemptive rights, out of the aggregate of its authorized
unissued common shares, for the purpose of enabling it to satisfy any obligation to issue Shares upon exercise of this Warrant, the
full number of Shares deliverable upon the exercise or conversion thereof.

(c) The Corporation covenants that all Shares which may be issued on conversion of this Warrant, will upon issue be fully paid and
non-assessable.

(d) Subject to applicable laws, the Corporation will from time to time take all action which may be necessary to obtain and keep
effective any and all permits, consents and approvals of governmental agencies and authorities and will make all securities’ acts
filings under Canadian federal, state or provincial laws, which may be or become requisite in connection with the issuance and
exercise of this Warrant.

(e) The Corporation will give written notice of the issue of Shares pursuant to the exercise of this Warrant, in such detail as may be
required, to each exchange and to applicable securities commissions or similar regulatory authorities.




(f) Upon receipt of evidence satisfactory to the Corporation of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant, and (in the
case of loss, theft or destruction) of indemnification satisfactory to the Corporation, and upon surrender and cancellation of this
Warrant, if mutilated, the Corporation will promptly execute and deliver a new Warrant of like tenor and date.

(g) The Corporation covenants and agrees that all necessary corporate actions have been done and performed to create this Warrant
and to make this Warrant a legal, valid and binding obligations of the Corporation. The Corporation will do, execute,
acknowledge and deliver or cause to be done, executed, acknowledged and delivered, all other acts, deeds and assurances in law
as may be reasonably required for the better accomplishing and effecting of the intentions and provisions of this Warrant.

(h) Subject to the express provisions hereof, the Corporation will carry on and conduct and will cause to be carried on and conducted
its business in a proper and efficient manner and will cause to be kept proper books of account in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practice; and, subject to the express provisions hereof, it will do or cause to be done, all things necessary to
preserve and keep in full force and effect its corporate existence, provided, however, that nothing herein contained will prevent
the amalgamation, consolidation, merger, sale, winding up or liquidation of the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation
or the abandonment of any rights and franchises of the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation if, in the opinion of the
Board or officers of the Corporation, it would be advisable and in the best interests of the Corporation or of such subsidiary of the
Corporation to do so.

(i) The Corporation will, issue share certificates representing the number of Shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant as
evidenced by a duly executed Subscription Form, and subject to adjustment as set forth herein within three days of receipt of the
Subscription Form by the Corporation.

10. Miscellaneous

(a) The Corporation will not, by amendment of its articles or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger,
dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the
terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such action
as may be necessary or appropriate in order to protect the rights of the Holder under this Warrant.

(b) The Holder will be bound by the terms of the meetings of the Holders that may be called by the Corporation as set out in
Schedule B.




(c) Neither this Warrant nor any term hereof may be waived, discharged or terminated other than by an instrument in writing signed
by the Corporation and by the Holder hereof.

(d) This Warrant will be governed by the laws in force in the Province of Ontario.
(e) Time will be of the essence.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Corporation has this certificate to be signed by the signature of its duly authorized officer this 27" day of
November, 2009.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.
Per:

Name: Aiping Young
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Authorized Signing Officer




TO:

SCHEDULE A
SUBSCRIPTION FORM

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.
2 Meridian Road

Toronto ON

MOW 477

The undersigned holder of the attached warrant (the “Warrant”) hereby irrevocably elects to subscribe for Shares of Lorus Therapeutics

Inc. (the “Corporation”) at an aggregate subscription price of $0.08, subject to adjustment, evidenced by and on the terms specified in this
Warrant and encloses herewith a certified cheque or money order payable to the Corporation.
In connection with this subscription, the undersigned must mark one of Box A, Box B or Box C:

Box A

Box B

Box C

The undersigned hereby certifies that (i) it did not acquire the Warrant in the United States (as that term is
defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities
Act")or at a time when the undersigned was a "U.S. Person" (as that term is defined in the U.S. Securities
Act) or acting for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States, (ii) it is not in the
United States or a U.S. Person, (iii) the Warrant is not being exercised for the account or benefit of a U.S.
Person or a person in the United States, and (iv) this Subscription Form was not executed or delivered in the
United States.

The undersigned hereby certifies that it is the original purchaser from the Corporation of the Units pursuant
to which the Warrant was issued and at the time of such acquisition was a U.S. Person or was in the United
States (or was acting for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States), and
confirms, as of the date of hereof, each of the representations, warranties and agreements made by it in
connection with its acquisition of the Units, including its status as an " accredited investor" within the
meaning of Rule 501(a) under the U.S. Securities Act, as though such representations, warranties and
agreements were made on the date hereof and in respect of the acquisition of the Shares upon the exercise
of the Warrant.

An exemption from registration under the U.S. Securities Act and all applicable state securities law is
available for the issuance of Shares pursuant to this subscription, and attached hereto is an opinion of
counsel or other evidence to such effect, it being understood that any opinion of counsel or other evidence
tendered in connection with the exercise of this Warrant must be in form and substance satisfactory to the
Corporation.

Note: Certificates representing Shares will not be registered or delivered to an address in the United States unless Box B or C is marked. If Box
B or C is marked, the certificates representing the Shares will bear a legend restricting transfers unless registered under the U.S. Securities Act
and applicable state securities laws or an exemption from such registration requirements is available.




The undersigned hereby directs that the said Shares be registered in the name of the Holder as follows:

Name & Address Number of Shares

(Please print full name in which share certificates are to be issued.)
DATED this day of , 2009.

Name of Warrant Holder (to be the same as appears on the face of the Warrant)

per:

Authorized Signing Officer




SCHEDULE B
TERMS OF HOLDER MEETINGS

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Warrant Certificate to which the Schedule B is an
attachment.

MEETINGS OF HOLDERS
1 Right to Convene Meetings

The Corporation may convene a meeting of the Holders. Every such meeting shall be held in the City of Toronto, Ontario or at such other place as
may be approved or determined by the Corporation.

2. Notice

At least 21 days' prior notice of any meeting of Holders shall be given to the Holders at the expense of the Corporation. Such notice shall state the
time and place of the meeting, the general nature of the business to be transacted and shall contain such information as is reasonably necessary to enable the
Holders to make a reasoned decision on the matter, but it shall not be necessary for any such notice to set out the terms of any resolution to be proposed or
any of the provisions of this Schedule B. The notice convening any such meeting may be signed by an appropriate officer of the Corporation.

3. Chairman

The Corporation may nominate in writing an individual to be chairman of the meeting and if no individual is so nominated, or if the individual so
nominated is not present within 15 minutes after the time fixed for the holding of the meeting, the Holders present in person or by proxy shall appoint an
individual present to be chairman of the meeting. The chairman of the meeting need not be a Holder.

4. Quorum

Subject to the provisions of Section 11, at any meeting of the Holders a quorum shall consist of two Holders present in person or represented by
proxy and representing at least 10% of the aggregate number of Warrants then outstanding. If a quorum of the Holders shall not be present within one-half
hour from the time fixed for holding any meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned to the same day in the next week (unless such day is not a Business Day
in which case it shall be adjourned to the next following Business Day) at the same time and place to the extent possible and, subject to the provisions of
Section 11, no notice of the adjournment need be given. Any business may be brought before or dealt with at an adjourned meeting which might have been
dealt with at the original meeting in accordance with the notice calling the same. At the adjourned meeting the Holders present in person or represented by
proxy shall form a quorum and may transact the business for which the meeting was originally convened, notwithstanding that they may not represent at
least 10% of the aggregate number of Warrants then unexercised and outstanding. No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless a quorum is
present at the commencement of business.

5. Power to Adjourn

The chairman of any meeting at which a quorum of the Holders is present may, with the consent of the meeting, adjourn any such meeting, and no
notice of such adjournment need be given except such notice, if any, as the meeting may prescribe.




6. Show of Hands

Every question submitted to a meeting shall be decided in the first place by a majority of the votes given on a show of hands except that votes on an
Extraordinary Resolution shall be given in the manner hereinafter provided. At any such meeting, unless a poll is duly demanded as herein provided, a
declaration by the chairman that a resolution has been carried or carried unanimously or by a particular majority or lost or not carried by a particular
majority shall be conclusive evidence of the fact.

VA Poll and Voting

On every Extraordinary Resolution, and when demanded by the chairman or by one or more of the Holders acting in person or by proxy, on any
other question submitted to a meeting and after a vote by show of hands, a poll shall be taken in such manner as the chairman shall direct. Questions other
than those required to be determined by Extraordinary Resolution shall be decided by a majority of the votes cast on the poll. On a show of hands, every
person who is present and entitled to vote, whether as a Holder or as proxy for one or more absent Holders, or both, shall have one vote. On a poll, each
Holder present in person or represented by a proxy duly appointed by instrument in writing shall be entitled to one vote in respect of each Common Share
which he (or the Holder appointing him as proxy) is entitled to acquire upon the exercise of the Warrant then held by him. A proxy need not be a
Holder. The chairman of any meeting shall be entitled, both on a show of hands and on a poll, to vote in respect of the Warrants, if any, held or represented
by him.

8. Regulations

(a) Subject to the provisions of this Warrant, the Corporation may from time to time make and from time to time vary such regulations as it
shall consider necessary or appropriate:

1) for the deposit of instruments appointing proxies at such place and time as the Corporation, may in the notice convening the meeting
direct;

(i1) for the deposit of instruments appointing proxies at some approved place other than the place at which the meeting is to be held and
enabling particulars of such instruments appointing proxies to be mailed, cabled or telecopied before the meeting to the Corporation at the place where the
same is to be held and for the voting of proxies so deposited as though the instruments themselves were produced at the meeting;

(1ii) for the form of the instrument of proxy and the manner in which the form of proxy may be executed; and

@iv) generally for the calling of meetings of Holders and the conduct of business thereat including setting a record date for Holders entitled to
receive notice of or to vote at such meeting.

(b) Any regulations so made shall be binding and effective and the votes given in accordance therewith shall be valid and shall be
counted. Save as such regulations may provide, the only persons who shall be recognized at any meeting as a Holder, or be entitled to vote or be present at
the meeting in respect thereof (subject to Section 9), shall be Holders or persons holding proxies of Holders.




9. Corporation and Counsel may be Represented

The Corporation, by its respective directors, officers, employees and agents, and the counsel for the Corporation and the Holders may attend any
meeting of the Holders and speak thereat but shall have no vote as such unless in their capacities as Holders.

10. Powers Exercisable by Extraordinary Resolution
The Holders at a meeting shall have the power, exercisable from time to time by Extraordinary Resolution:

(a) to enforce any of the covenants on the part of the Corporation contained in the Warrants or to enforce any of the rights of the Holders in
any manner specified in such Extraordinary Resolution or to refrain from enforcing any such covenant or right;

(b) to waive, authorize and direct the Corporation to waive any default on the part of the Corporation in complying with any provisions of the
Warrants either unconditionally or upon any conditions specified in such Extraordinary Resolution;

(o) to restrain any Holder from taking or instituting any suit, action or proceeding against the Corporation for the enforcement of any of the
covenants on the part of the Corporation contained in the Warrants or to enforce any of the rights of the Holders; and

(d) to direct any Holder who, as such, has brought any suit, action or proceeding to stay or discontinue or otherwise deal with any such suit,
action or proceeding, upon payment of the costs, charges and expenses reasonably and properly incurred by such Holder in connection therewith.

11. Meaning of Extraordinary Resolution

(a) The expression “Extraordinary Resolution” when used in this Schedule B means, subject as hereinafter in this Section 11 and in Section
14 provided, a resolution proposed by the Corporation at a meeting of Holders duly convened for that purpose and held in accordance with the provisions of
this Schedule B at which there are Holders present in person or represented by proxy representing at least 10% of the aggregate number of all the then
outstanding Warrants and passed by the affirmative votes of Holders representing not less than 66 2/3% of the aggregate number of Common Shares which
may be acquired upon the exercise of all the then outstanding Warrants represented at the meeting and voted on the poll upon such resolution.

(b) If, at any meeting called for the purpose of passing an Extraordinary Resolution, Holders representing at least 10% of the aggregate
number of Common Shares which may be acquired upon the exercise of all the then outstanding Warrants are not present in person or by proxy within one-
half hour after the time appointed for the meeting, then the meeting shall stand adjourned to such day, being not less than six or more than 10 Business
Days later, and to such place and time as may be appointed by the chairman. Not less than three Business Days' prior notice shall be given of the time and
place of such adjourned meeting in the manner provided in subsections 11(d) and 11(e). Such notice shall state that at the adjourned meeting the Holders
present in person or represented by proxy shall form a quorum but it shall not be necessary to set forth the purposes for which the meeting was originally
called or any other particulars. At the adjourned meeting, the Holders present in person or represented by proxy shall form a quorum and may transact the
business for which the meeting was originally convened and a resolution proposed at such adjourned meeting and passed by the requisite vote as provided
in subsection 11(a) shall be an Extraordinary Resolution within the meaning of this Warrant notwithstanding that Holders representing at least 10% of all
the Common Shares which may be acquired upon the exercise of all of the then outstanding Warrants are not present in person or represented by proxy at
such adjourned meeting.




(o) Votes on an Extraordinary Resolution shall always be given on a poll and no demand for a poll on an Extraordinary Resolution shall be
necessary.

(d) Any notice to the Holders under the provisions of this Warrant shall be deemed to be validly given if the notice is sent by prepaid mail or
delivered by hand to the holders at their addresses and telecopier numbers appearing in the register of Holders. Any notice so delivered shall be deemed to
have been received on the date of delivery if that date is a Business Day or the Business Day following the date of delivery if such date is not a Business
Day. Accidental error or omission in giving notice or accidental failure to give notice to any Holder shall not invalidate any action or proceeding founded
thereon.

(e) If by reason of any interruption of mail service, actual or threatened, any notice to be given to the Holder would reasonably be unlikely to reach
its destination in the ordinary course of mail, such notice shall be valid and effective only if delivered to an officer of the party to which it is addressed or if
sent to such party, at the appropriate address, by facsimile transmission or other means of prepaid transmitted or recorded communication.

12. Powers Cumulative

It is hereby declared and agreed that any one or more of the powers or any combination of the powers in this Warrant stated to be exercisable by the
Holders by Extraordinary Resolution or otherwise may be exercised from time to time and the exercise of any one or more of such powers or any
combination of powers from time to time shall not be deemed to exhaust the right of the Holders to exercise such powers or combination of powers then or
thereafter from time to time.

13. Minutes

Minutes of all resolutions and proceedings at every meeting of Holders shall be made and duly entered in books to be from time to time provided
for that purpose by the Corporation, and any such minutes as aforesaid, if signed by the chairman of the meeting at which such resolutions were passed or
proceedings held, or by the chairman of the next succeeding meeting of the Holders, shall be prima facie evidence of the matters therein stated and, until
the contrary is proved, every such meeting in respect of the proceedings of which minutes shall have been made shall be deemed to have been duly
convened and held, and all resolutions passed thereat or proceedings taken shall be deemed to have been duly passed and taken.

14. Instruments in Writing

All actions which may be taken and all powers that may be exercised by the Holders at a meeting held as provided in this Schedule B also may be
taken and exercised by Holders representing at least 66 2/3% of the aggregate number of Common Shares issuable upon the exercise of all the then
outstanding Warrants by an instrument in writing signed in one or more counterparts by such Holders in person or by attorney duly appointed in writing,
and the expression “Extraordinary Resolution” when used in this Warrant shall include an instrument so signed.

15. Binding Effect of Resolutions

Every resolution and every Extraordinary Resolution passed in accordance with the provisions of this Schedule B at a meeting of Holders shall be
binding upon all the Holders, whether present at or absent from such meeting, and every instrument in writing signed by Holders in accordance with
Section 14 shall be binding upon all the Holders, whether signatories thereto or not, and each and every Holder shall be bound to give effect accordingly to
every such resolution and instrument in writing. In the case of an instrument in writing, the Corporation shall give notice of the effect of the instrument in
writing to all Holders as is reasonably practicable.




16. Holdings by the Corporation Disregarded

In determining whether Holders are present at a meeting of Holders for the purpose of determining a quorum or have concurred in any consent,
waiver, Extraordinary Resolution or other action under this Warrant, Warrants owned legally or beneficially by the Corporation or any associate, affiliate
or insider (as those terms are defined in the Securities Act (Ontario) of the Corporation shall be disregarded.



EXHIBIT 2.22

(Form of United States Subscription Agreement used in connection with November 2009 private placement)

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

TO: Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Corporation”)

The undersigned (hereinafter referred to as the “Subscriber”) hereby subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of units of the Corporation (the “Units”) indicated below. Each Unit is comprised of one common share (the
“Offered Share”) in the capital of the Corporation and one-half common share purchase warrant (each whole such warrant being referred to herein as a “Warrant”), each Warrant entitling the holder thereof to purchase one
common share of the Corporation (“Warrant Share”) for an exercise price of $0.08 for 18 months following the Closing Date (as defined below). The aggregate subscription price (the “ Aggregate Subscription Price”) of the Units
is set forth below, representing a subscription price of $0.06 per Unit. The Units are available upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in “Terms and Conditions of Subscription for Units of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.”
attached hereto as Appendix I to Schedule A and together with this subscription, and Schedules A, B, and C, the “Subscription Agreement”). All monetary amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated. In
this Subscription Agreement, the Units and Offered Shares and Warrants comprising the Warrants are collectively referred to as the “Securities”).

A completed and originally executed copy of this Subscription Agr including Schedule B and Schedule C hed hereto, must be delivered by no later than 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on November 25, 2009 to: Lorus
Therapeutics Inc., Attn: Saeid Babaei

Number of Units:

(Name of Subscriber - please print)

By: Aggregate Subscription Price: §
(Authorized Signature)

(Official Capacity or Title - please print)

(Please print name of mdividual whose signature appears above if
different than the name of the subscriber printed above.)

(Subscriber’s Address)

(Telephone Number) (E-mail Address)

(E-mail Address)

Deliver the Units as set forth below: Register the Units as set forth below:

(Name)

(Name)

A t reference, if applicabl
(AccrmptBarice Saphicibl) (Account reference, if applicable)

(Contact Name) -
(Address)

(Address)

Number of common shares currently held directly or indirectly by the Subscriber or over which such person exercises direction or control (excluding Offered Shares or Warrant Shares subscribed for hereunder):

Number of securities convertible into common shares currently held directly or indirectly by the Subscriber or over which such person exercises direction or control:




ACCEPTANCE: The Corporation hereby accepts the subscription as set forth above on the terms and conditions contained in this Subscription Agreement.

November , 2009
LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.
By:

Authorized Signatory




SCHEDULE A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUBSCRIPTION FOR UNITS OF LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Terms of the Offering
(20) The Subscriber acknowledges that this subscription is subject to rejection, acceptance or allotment by the Corporation at its discretion in whole or in part.
21 The Subscriber acknowledges that the Units subscribed for by it hereunder form part of a larger issuance and sale by the Corporation of up to 41,000,000 Units at a subscription price of $0.06, for aggregate gross

proceeds of up to approximately $2,460,000 (the “Offering”).

Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Corporation

By execution of this Subscription Agreement, the Corporation hereby represents and warrants to the Subscriber as follows and acknowledges and confirms that the Subscriber is relying upon such representations and
warranties in entering into this Subscription Agreement and completing the transactions contemplated herein:

(k) The Corporation has been incorporated and organized and is a valid and subsisting corporation under the laws of Canada and has all requisite corporate power and authority to carry on its
business as now conducted or proposed to be conducted and to own or lease and operate the property and assets thereof and the Corporation has all requisite corporate power and authority to
enter into, execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and the certificate representing the Warrants and to carry out the obligations thereof hereunder and thereunder.

(1) The Corporation is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares.

(m) the Corporation will reserve or set aside sufficient shares in its treasury to issue the Warrant Shares on exercise of the Warrants;

(n) the execution of this Subscription Agreement, the issue and sale of the Offered Securities by the Corporation does not and will not conflict with, and does not and will not result in a breach
of, any of the terms of the Corporation’s incorporating documents or any agreement or instrument to which the Corporation is a party;

(0) this Subscription Agreement has been or will be by the Closing, duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Corporation, duly executed and delivered by the
Corporation, it constitutes a legal, valid and binding agreement of the Corporation enforceable against the Corporation except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency,
moratorium, reorganization or other laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and by general equitable principles, and the Corporation has full corporate power and authority to
undertake the Offering;

(p) the Corporation is a “reporting issuer” within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation, and is not in material default of any of the requirements of applicable Canadian
securities legislation or any of the administrative policies or notices of the regulatory authorities;

(q) there are no judgments against the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries, if any, which are unsatisfied, nor are there any consent decrees or injunctions to which the Corporation or any of its
subsidiaries is subject;

(r) the common shares in the capital of the Corporation are listed for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “LOR™ and the Corporation is in compliance with the rules and
regulations of such body;




(s) no order ceasing or suspending trading in securities of the Corporation nor prohibiting the sale of such securities has been issued to and is outstanding against the Corporation or its
directors, officers or promoters or against any other companies that have common directors, officers or promoters and, to the best of the Corporation’s knowledge, no investigations or
proceedings for such purposes are pending or threatened; and

(t) the Corporation will within the required time, file with the Toronto Stock Exchange or any other applicable securities agency, any documents, reports and information, in the required form,
required to be filed by applicable securities laws in connection with this Offering, together with any applicable filing fees and other materials;

Representations, Warranties and Covenants by Subscriber

(22)

The Subscriber represents, warrants and covenants to the Corporation to such representations, warranties and covenants, (and the Subscriber acknowledges that the Corporation, and its legal counsel are relying
thereon) that:

a.  the Subscriber is an accredited investor (“Accredited Investor”) as such term is defined in both National Instrument 45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemptions (“NI 45-106”), and has indicated each
category of Accredited Investor that it satisfies by completing (i) the certification attached as Appendix I to Schedule B hereto and (ii) the representation letter attached as Schedule B hereto;

b.  the Subscriber is purchasing the Securities as principal for its own account and not for the benefit of any other person, and for investment purposes only, and not with a view to the resale or distribution of all or
any of the Securities or the Warrant Shares, and is resident in or otherwise subject to, and was offered the Securities in and executed this Subscription Agreement in, the applicable securities legislation of the
jurisdiction set out as the “Subscriber’s Address” on the face page hereof; provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, nothing contained in this Subscription Agreement will prejudice the Subscriber’s right at
any time or from time to time to sell or otherwise dispose of all or some of the Securities or Warrant Shares in compliance with applicable securities laws and nothing contained in this Subscription Agreement
shall be deemed a representation or warranty by the Subscriber to hold the Securities or Warrant Shares for any period of time;

c. the Subscriber was not formed for the purpose of purchasing the Securities;
d. if the Subscriber is an individual, the Subscriber has the legal capacity and competence to enter into and execute this Subscription Agreement and to take all actions required pursuant hereto;

e. the Subscriber is aware of and has received independent legal advice with respect to applicable securities legislation that may impose restrictions upon the resale of the Securities and Warrant Shares, is aware
of the fact that he, she or it may not be able to resell the Securities or Warrant Shares except in accordance with the terms of this Subscription Agreement, applicable securities legislation and regulatory policies,
and acknowledges and agrees that he, she or it is solely responsible (and the Corporation is not in any way responsible) for compliance with applicable resale restrictions and will comply with such restrictions;

f.  the Subscriber has such prior investment experience, knowledge, sophistication and experience in business and financial matters that he, she or it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in
the Securities, is able to bear the economic risk of losing its entire investment and recognizes the highly speculative nature of its investment;

g. the Subscriber has been given the opportunity to ask questions and has received to his, her or its full satisfaction, answers to such questions, and has had access to such additional information, if any, concerning
the business, business plans, finances, management and ownership of the Corporation, in each case that the Subscriber has considered necessary in connection with its decision to invest in the Securities;

h.  in making the decision to invest in the Securities, the Subscriber has relied solely upon the information provided in this Subscription Agreement, the attached Term Sheet, the Corporation’s publicly disclosed
documents as filed at www.sedar.com and his, her or its own investigation of the Corporation, which information and investigation has provided the Subscriber with all the information he, she or it has deemed
necessary for purposes of his, her or its investment decision, and has not relied upon any statements made or information provided by the Corporation or any of its officers, employees, agents or representatives
other than the statements and information that is set forth in this Subscription Agreement;




the Subscriber acknowledges and understands that no person has made any written or oral representation (i) that any person will resell or repurchase any or all of the Securities or Warrant Shares, (ii) that any
person will refund the purchase price of the Units or (iii) as to future price or value of the Securities or Warrant Shares;

no Securities were offered to the Subscriber by means of general solicitation or advertisement and, in connection therewith, the Subscriber has not received or been provided with or requested, and does not have
any need to receive, any offering memorandum, prospectus, sales or advertising literature or other document describing the business and affairs of the Corporation which has been prepared for delivery to, and
review by, prospective purchasers in order to assist them in making an investment decision with respect to the Units and the Subscriber has not become aware of any advertisement in printed media of general
and regular paid circulation (or other printed public media), radio, television or telecommunications or other form of advertisement with respect to the distribution of the Units;

none of the funds being used to purchase the Units are, to the knowledge of the Subscriber, proceeds obtained or derived directly or indirectly as a result of illegal activities;

the Subscriber acknowledges and consents to the placement of any required legend under Canadian securities laws on any certificate evidencing the Offered Shares, Warrants, and Warrant Shares issued to the
Subscriber. The legend to be placed on each certificate shall be in form substantially similar to the following:

UNLESS PERMITTED UNDER SECURITIES LEGISLATION, THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY MUST NOT TRADE THE SECURITY BEFORE MARCH 29, 2010.

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL OF THE TORONTO STOCK EXCHANGE AND COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE SECURITIES LEGISLATION, THE SECURITIES
REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE TRADED ON OR THROUGH THE FACILITIES OF THE TORONTO
STOCK EXCHANGE OR OTHERWISE IN CANADA OR TO OR FOR THE BENEFIT OF A CANADIAN RESIDENT UNTIL MARCH 29, 2010.

the Subscriber represents and warrants that on and from the date that he, she or it first became aware of the Offering until the date hereof he, she or it has not engaged in, and covenants that for the period
commencing on the date hereof and ending on the public announcement of the Offering he, she or it will not engage in, any hedging, short sale or other similar transaction with respect to the Offered Shares,
Warrants and Warrant Shares or any security (other than a broad-based market basket or index) that relates to or derives a significant part of its value from the Offered Shares, Warrants and Warrant Shares;

the Subscriber has full power and authority (corporate, statutory and otherwise) to execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and to purchase the Units and this Subscription Agreement has been duly and
validly executed and delivered by the Subscriber and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Subscriber, enforceable against the Subscriber in accordance with its terms;

the Subscriber is not a “control person” of the Corporation, as that term is defined in the applicable Canadian securities legislation and will not become a “control person” of the Corporation by virtue of the
purchase of Units under this Agreement and does not act or intend to act in concert with any other person to form a control group in respect of the Corporation;

the entering into of this Subscription Agreement and the completion of the transactions contemplated hereby will not result in a violation of any of the terms or provisions of any law applicable to the Subscriber
or, if Subscriber is not a natural person, the constating documents of the Subscriber or of any agreement, instrument, undertaking or covenant to which the Subscriber is a party or by which he, she or it is bound;

the Subscriber has no knowledge of a “material fact” or “material change” (as those terms are defined in the applicable Canadian securities legislation) in the affairs of the Corporation that has not been
generally disclosed to the public, save knowledge of this particular transaction;

the Subscriber acknowledges that purchasing, holding, exercising and disposing of the Securities and Warrant Shares may have tax consequences under the laws of Canada and the United States, that
prospective purchasers are solely responsible for determining the tax consequences applicable to their particular circumstances (including, without limitation, the potential applicability of United States federal
taxation rules related to “passive foreign investment companies”) and that he, she or it has been advised by the Corporation to consult its tax advisors concerning an investment in the Securities and Warrant
Shares;




the Subscriber understands that no governmental or regulatory authority, including any securities regulatory authority, has made any recommendations or endorsements with respect to the Securities or an
investment therein and there is no government or other insurance covering the Securities or an investment therein;

the Subscriber understands, acknowledges and agrees that this Subscription Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, legal
representatives and permitted assigns;

the Subscriber acknowledges and understands that the Corporation is relying on an exemption under applicable securities legislation from the requirements to provide the Subscriber with a prospectus and to sell
securities through a person or company registered to sell securities under applicable securities legislation, and:

i. in issuing securities pursuant to this exemption, the Corporation is relying upon the representations and warranties of the Subscriber; and

ii. as a consequence of acquiring securities pursuant to this exemption, certain protections, rights and remedies provided by such securities legislation, including statutory rights of rescission or damages, will
not be available to the Subscriber.

the Subscriber represents that it is "accredited investor" as defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”) and as set forth in Schedule C
attached hereto (a “U.S. Accredited Investor”), and understands and acknowledges that the Securities and the Warrant Shares have not been and will not be registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state
securities laws, and that the sale contemplated hereby is being made in reliance on a private placement exemption to U.S.. Accredited Investors and similar exemptions under applicable state securities
laws. Accordingly, the Securities and Warrant Shares will be “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144 under the 1933 Act ( “Rule 144”), and may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise
transferred by it, directly or indirectly, without registration under United States federal and state securities laws, except in compliance with paragraph 3(w) below;

the Subscriber agrees that if it decides to offer, sell, pledge or otherwise transfer any of the Securities or Warrant Shares, it will not offer, sell, pledge or otherwise transfer any of such Securities or Common
Shares, directly or indirectly, except: (A) to the Corporation, (B) outside the United States in accordance with Rule 904 of Regulation S under the 1933 Act and in compliance with applicable local laws and
regulations, (C) pursuant to the exemptions from registration under the 1933 Act provided by Rule 144 or Rule 144A thereunder, if available, or (D) in another transaction exempt from registration under the
1933 Act and, in each case, in compliance with any applicable state securities laws of the United States; provided that prior to any transfer pursuant to the foregoing clause (C) or (D) (and, if required by the
transfer agent or trustee for the Securities or Warrant Shares, as applicable, clause (B)), the Corporation may require the delivery of a legal opinion of counsel of recognized standing, or other evidence, in either
case reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation, that such transfer does not require registration under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws;

the Subscriber understands that upon the original issuance thereof, and until such time as the same is no longer required under applicable requirements of the 1933 Act or state securities laws, the certificates
representing the Securities and Warrant Shares, and all certificates issued in exchange therefor or in substitution thereof, shall bear on the face of such certificates a legend describing the applicable restrictions
on transfer under the 1933 Act described in paragraph 3(v) above;

the Subscriber has concurrently executed and delivered Schedule C attached hereto with this Subscription Agreement, which Schedule is incorporated into and forms a part of this Subscription Agreement;
the Subscriber understands and acknowledges that the Warrants may be exercised only pursuant to an exemption or exclusion from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act and applicable state securities

laws, and that prior to issuing Warrant Shares pursuant to any such exercise the Corporation may require a legal opinion of counsel of recognized standing, or other evidence, in either case reasonably
satisfactory to the Corporation, that such issuance does not require registration under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws;




Closing
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(24)
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General

(26)
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(28)

aa. the Subscriber understands and acknowledges that the Corporation has the right to instruct the transfer agent or trustee, as applicable, for the Securities and Warrant Shares, not to record a transfer by any person
without first being notified by the Corporation that it is satisfied that such transfer is exempt from or not subject to registration under the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws;

bb. the Subscriber acknowledges that it has not purchased the Securities as a result of any "general solicitation” or “general advertising", as such terms are used in Regulation D under the 1933 Act, including,
without limitation, advertisements, articles, notices or other communications published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or on the internet, or broadcast over radio or television, or any seminar or
meeting whose attendees have been invited by general solicitation or general advertising; and

cc. the Subscriber understands and acknowledges that the Corporation is not obligated to file and has no present intention of filing with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or with any state
securities administrator any registration statement in respect of resales of the Securities or Warrant Shares; and

dd. it understands and acknowledges that the Corporation (i) is under no obligation to be or to remain a "foreign issuer", as such term is defined in the 1933 Act, (ii) may not, at the time the Subscriber sells the
Securities or Warrant Shares or at any other time, be a foreign issuer, and (iii) may engage in one or more transactions that could cause the Corporation not to be a foreign issuer. If the Corporation is not a
foreign issuer at the time of any sale pursuant to Rule 904 of Regulation S, the certificate delivered to the buyer may continue to bear the U.S. legend described above.

On or before 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on November 27, 2009 or such other time as is established by the Corporation, the Subscriber will deliver to the Corporation at 2 Meridian Road, Toronto ON, M9W
477, Attention: Saied Babaei (416-798-1200), fax number: (416) 798-2200, Attention: Saeid Babaei (i) this duly and completed Subscription Agreement (including Schedule B and C attached hereto) and (ii) unless
other payment arrangements acceptable to the Corporation has been made, a certified cheque or bank draft payable to “Lorus Therapeutics Inc.” in an amount equal to the Aggregate Subscription Price.

The sale of Units pursuant to this Subscription Agreement will be completed at the offices of McCarthy Tétrault LLP, counsel to the Corporation, at 8:30 a.m. (Toronto time) or such other time as is established by
the Corporation (the “Closing Time”) on November 27, 2009 or such other date as is established by the Corporation (the “Closing Date™). If this Subscription Agreement is rejected in whole or in part, the
Subscriber acknowledges that the unused portion of the subscription amount will be promptly returned to it without interest.

The Corporation shall be entitled to rely on delivery of a facsimile copy or an electronic transmission of this executed Subscription Agreement, and acceptance by the Corporation of such facsimile subscriptions
shall be legally effective to create a valid and binding agreement between the Subscriber and the Corporation in accordance with the terms hereof. In addition, this Subscription Agreement may be executed in
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document.

The Subscriber agrees that the representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber herein will be true and correct both as of the execution of this Subscription Agreement and as of the Closing Time and will
survive the completion of the issuance of the Securities and Warrant Shares issued pursuant hereto. The representations, warranties and covenants of the Subscriber herein are made with the intent that they be relied
upon by the Corporation and its legal counsel in determining the eligibility of a purchaser of Securities and Warrant Shares under the Offering and the Subscriber agrees to indemnify and save harmless the
Corporation and its affiliates, shareholders, directors, officers, employees, counsel and agents against all losses, claims, costs, expenses and damages or liabilities which any of them may suffer or incur which are
caused or arise from a breach thereof. The Subscriber undertakes to immediately notify the Corporation at Lorus Therapeutics, 2 Meridian Road, Toronto ON, MOW 4Z7, Attention: Saied Babaei (416-798-1200),
fax number: (416) 798-2200 of any change in any statement or other information relating to the Subscriber set forth herein which takes place prior to the Closing Time.

The Subscriber acknowledges that the Securities and Warrant Shares are being offered on a private placement basis.

The Subscriber hereby irrevocably authorizes the Corporation, in its sole discretion to complete or correct any errors or omissions in any form or document provided by the Subscriber, including this Subscription
Agreement; and to receive on its behalf certificates representing the Securities purchased under this Subscription Agreement.




(29)

(30)

@31

(32)
(33)

(34)

(35)

(36)

(37

(38)

The obligations of the parties hereunder are subject to acceptance of the terms of the Offering by the Toronto Stock Exchange and all other required regulatory approvals.

The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that all costs incurred by the Subscriber, including any fees and disbursements of any special counsel retained by the Subscriber relating to the sale of the Securities issued
hereunder shall be borne by the Subscriber.

This Subscription Agreement and all documents relating thereto shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. The
parties irrevocably attorn to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario. Time shall be of the essence hereof.

The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Subscription Agreement shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any other provision hereof.
The headings used in this Subscription Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Subscription Agreement or any provision hereof.

This Subscription Agreement represents the entire agreement of the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof and there are no representations, covenants or other agreements relating to the subject matter
hereof except as stated or referred to herein.

Neither this Subscription Agreement nor any provision hereof shall be modified, changed, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom any waiver, change,
discharge or termination is sought.

The Subscriber acknowledges that this Subscription Agreement and the exhibits and schedules hereto require the Subscriber to provide certain personal information relating to the Subscriber to the
Corporation. Such information is being collected by the Corporation for the purposes of completing the Offering, which includes, without limitation, determining the Subscriber’s eligibility to purchase the
Securities under applicable securities legislation, preparing and registering certificates representing Securities to be issued to the Subscriber and completing filings required by any stock exchange or securities
regulatory authority. Such personal information may be disclosed by the Corporation to (a) stock exchanges or securities regulatory authorities (including the Ontario Securities Commission, (b) the registrar and
transfer agent or trustee, as applicable, for the Securities, (c) any government agency, board or other entity and (d) any of the other parties involved in this private placement, including the Corporation, and its legal
counsel, and may be included in record books in connection with this Offering. By executing this Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber is deemed to be consenting to the foregoing collection, use and disclosure
of such personal information. The Subscriber also consents to the filing of copies or originals of any of the schedules to this Subscription Agreement as may be required to be filed with any stock exchange or
securities regulatory authority in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.

The Subscriber represents and warrants that the Aggregate Subscription Price which will be advanced by the Subscriber to the Corporation hereunder will not represent proceeds of crime for the purposes of the
Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act (Canada) (the “PCMLA”) and the Subscriber acknowledges (on its own behalf and, if applicable, on behalf of the Disclosed Beneficial
Purchaser) that the Corporation may in the future be required by law to disclose his, her or its name and other information relating to this Subscription Agreement and his, her or its subscription hereunder, on a
confidential basis, pursuant to the PCMLA or other applicable legislation. To the best of his, her or its knowledge, none of the subscription funds to be provided pursuant to this Agreement (a) have been or will be
derived from or related to any activity that is deemed criminal under the law of Canada or any other jurisdiction or (b) are being tendered on behalf of a person or entity who has not been identified to the Subscriber.
The Subscriber shall promptly notify the Corporation if the Subscriber discovers that any of such representations ceases to be true, and to provide the Corporation with appropriate information in connection
therewith.

The parties hereto acknowledge and confirm that they have requested that this Subscription Agreement as well as all notices and other documents contemplated hereby be drawn up on the English language. Les
parties aux présentes reconnaissent et conferment qu'elles ont convenu que la présente convention de souscription ainsi que tous les avis et documents qui s'y rattachent soient rédigés dans la langue anglaise.




Appendix 1 to Schedule A

Term Sheet

Issuer:

Offering:

Issue Price:

Gross Proceeds:

Type of Transaction:

Use of Proceeds:

Junsdictions:

Resale Restrictions:

Listing:

Eligibility:

Commussion:

Closing Date:

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (“Lorus™ or the “Corporation™).

Private placement (the “Offering”) of 41,000.000 vmits of the Corporation (the “Units™). Each Unit 1s
comprised of one common share (the “Offered Share™) in the capital of the Corporation and one-half
common share purchase warrant (each whole such warrant being referred to herein as a “Warrant™),
each Warrant entitling the holder thereof to purchase one common share of the Corporation
(“Warrant Share”) for an exercise price of $0.08 for 18 months following the Closing Date.

$0.06 per Unit.
Up to $2.460.000.

Private placement. The Units will be sold to “accredited investors™ as defined in National Instrument
45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemprions, by private placement without an offering
memorandum. subject to receipt of necessary regulatory approvals.

The proceeds from the Offering will be used by the Corporation for clinical and development
programs and general corporate purposes.

The qualifying jurisdictions for the Offering will be each of the provinces of Canada and such other
international jurisdictions where agreed by the Corporation.

Pursuant to applicable Canadian securities laws, the Units will be subject to a four month hold period
commencing on the Closing Date. If the Units are sold in jurisdictions other than Canada, relevant
secunties laws will apply.

Completion of the Offering 15 conditional upon the Corporation obtaining approval for the listing of
the Offered Shares and Warrant Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange. The Corporation will use its
best efforts to obtain the conditional approval of the Toronto Stock Exchange. subject only to
customary listing conditions, on or before the Closing Date.

Eligible under the usual statutes and for RRSP’s. RRIF s, RESP’s. DPSP's and TFSA's.

The Corporation will pay the any registered agents, if any. 7% of the value of the Units sold plus 7%
broker warrants (art the exercise price of the Warrant), where agreed to by the Corporation.

November 27, 2009 or such other date or dates as may be provided by the Corporation.




SCHEDULE B
REPRESENTATION LETTER

Capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Representation Letter have the meaning ascribed to them in the Subscription Agreement to which this Schedule B is attached. Upon execution of this Representation Letter by the
undersigned, this Representation Letter shall be incorporated into and form a part of such Subscription Agreement.

In addition to the covenants, representations and warranties contained in the Subscription Agreement to which this Schedule B is attached, the undersigned covenants, represents and warrants to the Corporation that the undersigned
is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of National Instrument 45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemptions by virtue of satisfying the indicated criterion as set out in Appendix 1 to this Representation Letter.

DATED November ,2009.

Signature of individual or Authorized Signatory

Name (please print)

Name of authorized signatory ( please print)

Address (residence if an individual)

Telephone Number

IMPORTANT: PLEASE INITIAL THE APPLICABLE PROVISION ON APPENDIX 1 TO THIS SCHEDULE “B”




Appendix 1 to Schedule B

CERTIFICATE OF ACCREDITED INVESTOR

PLEASE CLEARLY MARK YOUR INITIALS BESIDE THE CATEGORY OF “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” TO WHICH YOU BELONG.

Accredited Investor (defined in National Instrument 45-106 - Prospectus and Registration Exemptions) means:

(@)
(b
(©

(d)

(e)
®
(8

()

0}

(k)

(U]
(m)

a Canadian financial institution, or a Schedule III bank;
the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank of Canada Act(Canada);

a subsidiary of any person referred to in paragraphs (a) or (b), if the person owns all of the voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned
by directors of that subsidiary;

a person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser or dealer, other than a person registered solely as a limited market dealer under one or both of
the Securities Act(Ontario) or the Securities Act (Newfoundland and Labrador);

an individual registered or formerly registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as a representative of a person referred to in paragraph (d);
the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any crown corporation, agency or wholly owned entity of the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

a municipality, public board or commission in Canada and a metropolitan community, school board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de I’ile de Montréal or an intermunicipal
management board in Québec;

any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government;

a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) or a pension commission or similar regulatory authority of a jurisdiction of
Canada;

an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, financial assets having an aggregate realizable value that before taxes, but net of any related
liabilities, exceeds CDN$1,000,000;

an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded CDN$200,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years or whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse
exceeded CDN$300,000 in each of the two most recent calendar years and who, in either case, reasonably expects to exceed that net income level in the current calendar year;

(Note: If individual accredited investors wish to purchase through wholly-owned holding companies or similar entities, such purchasing entities must qualify under paragraph (t)
below, which must be initialled)

an individual who, either alone or with a spouse, has net assets of at least CDN$5,000,000;

a person, other than an individual or investment fund, that has net assets of at least $5,000,000 as shown on its most recently prepared financial statements, provided that such person
has not been created or used solely to purchase or hold securities as an accredited investor;




(n)

(0)

()

(@)

(6}

(s)
(t)

()
2

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed its securities only to
(A) a person that is or was an accredited investor at the time of the distribution,

(B) a person that acquires or acquired securities in the circumstances referred to in sections 2.10/Minimum amount investment], and 2.19 [Additional investment in investment
funds] of NI 45-106, or

© a person described in paragraph (A) or (B) that acquires or acquired securities under section 2.18/Investment fund reinvestment] of NI 45-106;

an investment fund that distributes or has distributed securities under a prospectus in a jurisdiction of Canada for which the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory authority,
has issued a receipt;

a trust company or trust corporation registered or authorized to carry on business under the Trust and Loan Companies Act(Canada) or under comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of
Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by the trust company or trust corporation, as the case may be;

a person acting on behalf of a fully managed account managed by that person, if that person
(A) is registered or authorized to carry on business as an adviser or the equivalent under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction, and
B) in Ontario, is purchasing a security that is not a security of an investment fund;

a registered charity under the Income Tax Act(Canada) that, in regard to the trade, has obtained advice from an eligibility adviser or an adviser registered under the securities legislation
of the jurisdiction of the registered charity to give advice on the securities being traded;

an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in paragraphs (a) to (d) or paragraph (i) in form and function;

a person in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct, indirect or beneficial, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors, are persons that are
accredited investors (as defined in NI 45-106);

an investment fund that is advised by a person registered as an adviser or a person that is exempt from registration as an adviser; or
a person that is recognized or designated by the securities regulatory authority or, except in Ontario and Québec, the regulator as
(A) an accredited investor, or

(B) an exempt purchaser in Alberta or British Columbia, and confirmation of such status is being provided to the Corporation.

NOTE: The investor must initial beside the applicable portion of the above definition.




For the purposes hereof:
“affiliate” means an issuer affiliated with another issuer because
(a) one of them is the subsidiary of the other; or
(b) each of them is controlled by the same person;

“beneficial ownership” of securities by a person includes

(a) for the purposes of British Columbia, Manitoba, and Ontario securities law, when such securities are beneficially owned by
(A) an issuer controlled by that person; or
(B) an affiliate of that person or an affiliate of an issuer controlled by that person;
(b) and, for the purposes of Alberta securities law, when such securities are beneficially owned by
(A) a company controlled by that person or an affiliate of that company;
(B) an affiliate of that person; or
©) through a trustee, legal representative, agent or other intermediary of that person;

“Canadian financial institution” means
(a) an association governed by the Cooperative Credit Associations Act(Canada) or a central cooperative credit society for which an order has been made under section 473(1) of that Act, or

(b) a bank, loan corporation, trust company, trust corporation, insurance company, treasury branch, credit union, caisse populaire, financial services cooperative, or league that, in each case, is
authorized by an enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a jurisdiction in Canada;

“consultant” means, for an issuer, a person, other than an employee, executive officer, or director of the issuer or of a related entity of the issuer, that

(a) is engaged to provide services to the issuer or a related entity of the issuer, other than services provided in relation to a distribution,
(b) provides the services under a written contract with the issuer or a related entity of the issuer, and
(c) spends or will spend a significant amount of time and attention on the affairs and business of the issuer or a related entity of the issuer

and includes, for an individual consultant, a corporation of which the individual consultant is an employee or sharecholder, and a partnership of which the individual consultant is an employee or
partner;

“control” or “controlled” means a person (first person) controlled by another person (second person) if:

a the first person, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns or exercises control or direction over securities of the second person carrying votes which, if exercised, would entitle the first
p y y. y p rying
person to elect a majority of directors of the second person, unless that first person holds the voting securities only to secure an obligation;

(b) the second person is a partnership, other than a limited partnership, and the first person holds more than 50% of the interests of the partnership; or
(c) the second person is a limited partnership and the general partner of the limited partnership is the first person;

“control person” means




(2)

(b)

(©

(ii)

for the purposes of Alberta securities law, any person or company that holds or is one of a combination of persons or companies that holds

(i) a sufficient number of any of the securities of an issuer so as to affect materially the control of the issuer, or
(i) more than 20% of the outstanding voting securities of an issuer except where there is evidence showing that the holding of those securities does not affect materially the control of the
issuer;

and, for the purposes of British Columbia securities law,
(i) a person who holds a sufficient number of the voting rights attached to all outstanding voting securities of an issuer to affect materially the control of the issuer, or

(ii) each person in a combination of persons, acting in concert by virtue of an agreement, arrangement, commitment or understanding, which holds in total a sufficient number of the voting
rights attached to all outstanding voting securities of an issuer to affect materially the control of the issuer,

and, if a person or combination of persons holds more than 20% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding voting securities of an issuer, the person or combination of persons is
deemed, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, to hold a sufficient number of the voting rights to affect materially the control of the issuer;

and, for the purposes of Manitoba, Ontario and Québec securities law, any person or company that holds or is one of a combination of persons that holds:
@) a sufficient number of any securities of an issuer so as to affect materially the control of the issuer, or
more than 20% of the outstanding voting securities of an issuer except where there is evidence showing

that the holding of those securities does not affect materially the control of that issuer;

“director” means

(@)
(b)

(@)

a member of the board of directors of a company or an individual who performs similar functions for a company, and
with respect to a person that is not a company, an individual who performs functions similar to those of a director of a company;
“eligibility adviser” means

a person that is registered as an investment dealer or in an equivalent category of registration under the securities legislation of the jurisdiction of a purchaser and authorized to give advice with respect to the
type of security being distributed; and




(b) in Manitoba, also means a lawyer who is a practicing member in good standing with a law society of a jurisdiction of Canada or a public accountant who is a member in good standing of an
institute or association of chartered accountants, certified general accountants or certified management accountants in a jurisdiction of Canada provided that the lawyer or public accountant

must not
(i) have a professional, business or personal relationship with the issuer, or any of its directors, executive officers, founders, or control persons, and
(i) have acted for or been retained personally or otherwise as an employee, executive officer, director, associate or partner of a person that has acted for or been retained by the issuer or

any of its directors, executive officers, founders or control persons within the previous 12 months;

“executive officer’” means, for an issuer, an individual who is

(a) a chair, vice-chair or president,

(b) a vice-president in charge of a principal business unit, division or function including sales, finance or production,

(c) an officer of the issuer or any of its subsidiaries and who performs a policy-making function in respect of the issuer, or
(d) performing a policy-making function in respect of the issuer;

“financial assets” means

(a) cash,
(b) securities, or
(c) a contract of insurance, a deposit or an evidence of a deposit that is not a security for the purposes of securities legislation;

“foreign jurisdiction” means a country other than Canada or a political subdivision of a country other than Canada;

“founder” means, in respect of an issuer, a person who,

(a) acting alone, in conjunction, or in concert with one or more other persons, directly or indirectly, takes the initiative in founding, organizing or substantially reorganizing the business of the
issuer, and
(b) at the time of the trade, is actively involved in the business of the issuer;

“fully managed account” means an account of a client for which a person makes the investment decisions if that person has full discretion to trade in securities for the account without requiring the client’s
express consent to a transaction;

“individual” means a natural person, but does not include

(a) a partnership, unincorporated association, unincorporated syndicate, unincorporated organization or a trust, or




(b) a natural person in the person’s capacity as trustee, executor, administrator or other legal representative;

“investment fund” means a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund, and, for greater certainty in British Columbia, includes an employee venture capital corporation that does not have a restricted
constitution , and is registered under Part 2 of the Employee Investment Act (British Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 c. 112, and whose business objective is making multiple investments and a venture capital corporation
registered under Part 1 of the Small Business Venture Capital Act (British Columbia), R.S.B.C. 1996 ¢.429 whose business objective is making multiple investments;

“jurisdiction” means a province or territory of Canada except when used in the term “foreign jurisdiction”;

“local jurisdiction” means the jurisdiction in which the applicable securities regulatory authority is situate;

“mutual fund” includes

(a) for the purposes of Alberta, Manitoba, Ontario and Québec securities law, an issuer of securities that entitles the holder to receive on demand, or within a specified period after demand, an amount
computed by reference to the value of a proportionate interest in the whole or in part of the net assets, including a separate fund or trust account, of the issuer;

(b) and, for the purposes of British Columbia securities law, also includes
[6))] an issuer described in an order that the British Columbia Securities Commission may make pursuant to section 3.2 of thecurities Act (British Columbia); and
(i) an issuer that is in a class of prescribed issuers,

but does not include an issuer, or a class of issuers, described in an order that the British Columbia Securities Commission may make under section 3.1 of théecurities Act (British Columbia);

“non-redeemable investment fund” means an issuer,

(a) whose primary purpose is to invest money provided by its security holders,
(b) that does not invest,

(A) for the purpose of exercising or seeking to exercise control of an issuer, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, or

(B) for the purpose of being actively involved in the management of any issuer in which it invests, other than an issuer that is a mutual fund or a non-redeemable investment fund, and
(c) that is not a mutual fund;

“person” includes

(a) an individual,
(b) a corporation,
(c) a partnership, trust, fund and an association, syndicate, organization or other organized group of persons, whether incorporated or not, and




(d) an individual or other person in that person’s capacity as a trustee, executor, administrator or personal or other legal representative;
“regulator” means, for the local jurisdiction, the Executive Director, Director, Administrator or Regulator as defined under securities legislation of the local jurisdiction;
“related entity” means, for an issuer, a person that controls or is controlled by the issuer or that is controlled by the same person that controls the issuer;
“related liabilities” means:
(a) liabilities incurred or assumed for the purpose of financing the acquisition or ownership of financial assets; or
(b) liabilities that are secured by financial assets;
“Schedule I1I bank” means an authorized foreign bank named in Schedule III of the Bank Act (Canada);
“securities legislation” means
(a) for Alberta, the Securities Act (Alberta) and the regulations and rules under such Act and the blanket rulings and orders issued by the Alberta Securities Commission;

(b) for British Columbia, the Securities Act (British Columbia) and the regulations, rules and forms under such Act and the blanket rulings and orders issued by the British Columbia Securities
Commission;

(c) for Manitoba, the Securities Act (Manitoba) and the regulations and rules under such Act and the blanket rulings and orders issued by the Manitoba Securities Commission;

(d) for Ontario, the Securities Act (Ontario) and the regulations and rules under such Act; and

(e) for Québec, the Securities Act (Québec) and the regulations and rules under such Act, policy statements and blanket rulings and orders and decisions issued by the Authorité des marchés
financiers;

“securities regulatory authority” means

(a) the Alberta Securities Commission;

(b) the British Columbia Securities Commission;
(c) the Manitoba Securities Commission;

(d) the Ontario Securities Commission; and

(e) Authorité des marchés financiers;

“spouse” means an individual who,
(a) is married to another individual and is not living separate and apart within the meaning of the Divorce Act (Canada), from the other individual,

(b) is living with another individual in a marriage-like relationship, including a marriage-like relationship between individuals of the same gender, or




(c) in Alberta, is an individual referred to in paragraph (a) or (b), or is an adult interdependent partner within the meaning of theddult Interdependent Relationships Act (Alberta);
“subsidiary” means an issuer that is controlled directly or indirectly by another issuer and includes a subsidiary of that subsidiary; and

“voting security” means any security which:

(a) is not a debt security; and

(b) carries a voting right either under all circumstances or under some circumstances that have occurred and are continuing.




SCHEDULE C
UNITED STATES ACCREDITED INVESTOR REPRESENTATION LETTER

Upon execution of this United States Accredited Investor Representation Letter by the undersigned, this United States Accredited Investor Representation Letter shall be incorporated into and form a part of the Subscription
Agreement to which this Schedule C is attached.

In connection with the purchase by the undersigned of Units of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.the "Corporation"), the undersigned represents (which representation shall survive the closing of such purchase) to the Corporation and
acknowledges that the Corporation is relying thereon, that the undersigned is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”),

because it satisfies the criteria of one or more of the following categories of “accredited investor” (please initial beside each applicable category):

A bank (as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act) or a savings and loan association or other institution (as defined in Section 3(a)(5)(A) of the Securities Act), acting in its individual or fiduciary
capacity.

A broker or dealer registered under Section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

An insurance company (as defined in Section 2(a)(13) of the Securities Act).

An investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

A business development company (as defined in Section 2(a)(48) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended).

A Small Business Investment Company (licensed by the United States Small Business Administration under Section 301(c) or (d) of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958, as amended).
A private business development company (as defined in Section 202(a)(22) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended).

A tax-exempt organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities offered, with total assets of more
than U.S.$5 million.

A corporation, Massachusetts or similar business trust, or partnership, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities offered, with total assets of more than U.S.$5 million.

An employee benefit plan with total assets of more than U.S.$5 million, established and maintained by a state, a political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or its political
subdivisions.

Any employee benefit plan subject to ERISA if the investment decision is made by a plan fiduciary, as defined in Section 3(21) of such Act, which is either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance
company, or registered investment adviser, or if the employee benefit plan has total assets in excess of U.S.$5,000,000 or, if a self-directed plan with investment decisions made solely by persons that are
accredited investors.

A natural person whose individual net worth, or joint net worth with that person's spouse, at the time of his purchase exceeds U.S.$1,000,000.

A natural person who had an individual income in excess of U.S.$200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint income with that person's spouse in excess of U.S.$300,000 in each of those years and has
a reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in the current year.

Any director, executive officer or general partner of the issuer of the securities being offered or sold, or any director, executive officer or general partner of a general partner of that issuer.

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]




Any trust, with total assets in excess of U.S.$5 million, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities offered, whose purchase is directed by a sophisticated person as described in Rule 506(b)
(2)(ii) of the Securities Act.

Any entity in which all of the equity owners are accredited investors.

Print Name of Subscriber

Signature

Title



EXHIBIT 2.23

(Form of United States Warrant issued in connection with November 2009 private placement)
LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.
(the “Corporation”)

WARRANT NO. W-1 PURCHASE WARRANT ENTITLING THE HOLDER TO
PURCHASE COMMON SHARES
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN ISSUED PURSUANT TO A PROSPECTUS UNDER ANY SECURITIES
LEGISLATION OF ANY PROVINCE OR TERRITORY OF CANADA. THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY THE ACT, THE
CORPORATION’S ARTICLES AND THE APPLICABLE CANADIAN SECURITIES LAWS PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION OR
PROSPECTUS FILING THEREUNDER OR EXEMPTIONS FROM SUCH REGISTRATION AND PROSPECTUS REQUIREMENTS. THE
HOLDER SHOULD BE AWARE THAT IT MAY BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN
INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY REQUIRE AN OPINION OF HOLDER’S COUNSEL IN
FORM AND SUBSTANCE SATISFACTORY TO THE CORPORATION TO THE EFFECT THAT ANY PROPOSED TRANSFER OR
RESALE IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE CANADIAN SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES
REPRESENTED BY THIS WARRANT ARE LISTED ON THE TORONTO STOCK EXCHANGE.
THE WARRANTS REPRESENTED HEREBY AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON THE EXERCISE OF THE WARRANTS
REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED (THE "U.S. SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY PURCHASING
SUCH SECURITIES, AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC. THAT SUCH SECURITIES MAY BE OFFERED,
SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED ONLY (A) TO LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC., (B) OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 904 OF REGULATION S UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT, (C) PURSUANT TO THE EXEMPTION
FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY RULE 144 OR 144A THEREUNDER, IF AVAILABLE, OR
(D) PURSUANT TO ANOTHER EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT AND, IN EACH CASE, IN
COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AFTER, IN THE CASE OF TRANSFERS PURSUANT TO
CLAUSES (C) OR (D), PROVIDING A LEGAL OPINION TO LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC. TO THE EFFECT THAT SUCH
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED.
THE WARRANTS REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY NOT BE EXERCISED IN THE UNITED STATES OR BY, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR
BENEFIT OF, ANY U.S. PERSON OR A PERSON IN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM THE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE U.S. SECURITIES LAWS AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. AS USED
HEREIN, THE TERMS "UNITED STATES" AND "U.S. PERSON" HAVE THE MEANINGS ASCRIBED TO THEM IN REGULATION S
UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT.
THE HOLDER HEREOF, BY ACQUIRING THIS SECURITY, AGREES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CORPORATION THAT THIS
WARRANT AND ANY OF THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS WARRANT MAY BE CONVERTED WILL NOT BE OFFERED,
TRADED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED OTHER THAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION IN
WHICH SUCH OFFER, TRADE OR SALE TAKES PLACE.

UNLESS PERMITTED UNDER SECURITIES LEGISLATION, THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY MUST NOT TRADE THE SECURITY
BEFORE MARCH 29, 2010.




This is to certify that for value received, (the “Holder”) is the registered holder of a purchase warrant (“Warrant”),
entitling the Holder to subscribe for and purchase * common shares of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Corporation”) from treasury at (each, a
“Share”) at an exercise price of $0.08 (as adjusted pursuant to the provisions hereof, the “Share Exercise Price”) for a period of eighteen
months, upon the terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth. This Warrant is to remain exercisable from the date hereof to May 27, 2011.

As used herein:
@iv) “Board” means the board of directors of the Corporation;

W) “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in the City of Toronto are authorized or
required by law to close; and

(vi) “Common Shares” means the outstanding common shares of the Corporation.
11. Exercise Period

This Warrant is exercisable, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time during the period (the ‘Exercise Period”) from the date hereof
and, subject to any regulatory requirements, prior to 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) May 27, 2011.

12. Payment

The Shares subscribed for must be paid in full at the time of subscription, by certified cheque or bank draft payable in Canadian funds or wire
transfer of immediately available funds to or to the order of the Corporation.
13. Exercise of Warrant

This Warrant may be exercised, in whole or in part, at any time prior to the Expiry Time by the Holder hereof completing the subscription form
attached as Schedule A hereto (the “Subscription Form”) and made a part hereof and delivering same to Saied Babaei at the Corporation, at its
head office at 2 Meridian Road, Toronto ON, M9W 4Z7 (or such other address as may be designated in writing by the Corporation to the
Holder), together with this Warrant and the amount, payable to the order of the Corporation, equal to the Share Exercise Price subscribed for
upon exercise of this Warrant. The Corporation will promptly notify the Holder in writing of any change of address of its head office.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this Warrant has not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”) or the securities laws of any state of the United States, and this Warrant may not be
exercised, and no Shares will be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, unless an exemption from registration is available, and the Corporation
shall have received either written evidence satisfactory to it upon which it can rely that such exemption is available or an opinion of counsel to
such effect in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation. Therefore, this Warrant may be exercised only by a Holder who, at
the time of exercise, (i) certifies that the Holder (a) did not acquire this Warrant in the United States (as such term is defined in Regulation S
under the U.S. Securities Act) or at a time when the Holder was a U.S. Person (as such term is defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities
Act) or acting for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States, and (b) is not then located in the United States, is not a
U.S. Person and is not exercising this Warrant for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States; or (ii) provides a legal
opinion or other evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation that the exercise of this Warrant does not require registration under the U.S.
Securities Act or applicable state securities laws; or (iii) certifies that the Holder is the original purchaser from the Corporation of the Units
pursuant to which this Warrant was issued and at the time of such acquisition was a U.S. Person, was in the United States or was acting for the
account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States, and confirms, as of the date of such exercise, each of the representations,
warranties and agreements made by it in connection with its acquisition of such Units, including its status as an "accredited investor" within the
meaning of Rule 501(a) under the U.S. Securities Act, as though such representations, warranties and agreements were made on the date of such
exercise and in respect of the acquisition of the Shares upon the exercise of this Warrant.




14. Share Certificates

Upon valid exercise of this Warrant, the Corporation will cause to be issued to the person or persons in whose name or names the Shares so
subscribed for are to be issued the number of fully paid and non-assessable Shares subscribed for and such person or persons will be deemed
upon presentation and payment as aforesaid, to be the holder or holders of record of such Shares. Within three (3) Business Days after receipt of
the executed Subscription Form and payment of the Share Exercise Price, the Corporation will cause to be mailed or delivered to the holder at the
address or addresses specified in the attached Subscription Form, a certificate or certificates evidencing the number of Shares subscribed for.

15. Exercise in Whole or in Part

This Warrant may be exercised in whole or in part, and if exercised in part, the Corporation will issue another Warrant, in a form substantially
evidencing the remaining rights to purchase Shares, provided that any such right will terminate on the Expiry Date.

16. Non-Transferability

This Warrant is not transferable by the Holder.

17. No Fractional Shares

No fractional Shares will be issued upon exercise of this Warrant, nor will any compensation be made for such fractional Shares, if any.

18. Adjustments

The Share Exercise Price in effect and the number and type of securities purchasable under this Warrant at any date will be subject to adjustment
from time to time as follows:
(a) If and whenever at any time prior to the Expiry Date, the Corporation will (i) subdivide or redivide the outstanding Common

Shares into a greater number of Common Shares, (ii) reduce, combine or consolidate the outstanding Common Shares into a
smaller number of Common Shares, or (iii) issue Common Shares to the holders of all or substantially all of the outstanding
Common Shares by way of a stock dividend, the Share Exercise Price in effect on the effective date of any such event will be
adjusted immediately after such event or on the record date for such issue of Common Shares by way of stock dividend, as the
case may be, so that it will equal the amount determined by multiplying the Share Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to
such event by a fraction, of which the numerator will be the total number of Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to
such event and of which the denominator will be the total number of Common Shares outstanding immediately after such
event. The number of Shares which the Holder is entitled to purchase for this Warrant will be adjusted at the same time by
multiplying the number by the inverse of the aforesaid fraction. Any such adjustments will be made successively whenever any
event referred to in this subparagraph (a) will occur and any such issue of Common Shares by way of a stock dividend will be
deemed to have been made on the record date for the stock dividend for the purpose of calculating the number of outstanding
Common Shares immediately after such event;




(b) If and whenever at any time prior to the Expiry Date there is a reclassification of the Common Shares at any time outstanding or
a capital reorganization of the Corporation not covered in subparagraph (a) or a consolidation, amalgamation, arrangement or
merger of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or a sale of the property and assets of the Corporation as or
substantially as an entirety to any other person, a Holder of this Warrant which has not been exercised prior to the effective date
of such reclassification, capital reorganization, consolidation, amalgamation, merger or sale will therein or, upon the exercise of
such Warrant, be entitled to receive and will accept in lieu of the number of Shares, as then constituted, to which the Holder was
previously entitled upon exercise of this Warrant, but for the same aggregate consideration payable therefor, the number of
Shares or other securities or property of the Corporation or of the company resulting from such reclassification, capital
reorganization, consolidation, amalgamation or merger or of the person to which such sale may be made, as the case may be, that
such Holder would have been entitled to receive on such reclassification, capital reorganization, consolidation, amalgamation,
merger or sale on the effective date thereof, if the Holder had been the registered holder of the number of Shares to which the
Holder was previously entitled upon due exercise of this Warrant; and in any case, if necessary, appropriate adjustment will be
made in the application of the provisions set forth herein with respect to the rights and interests thereafter of the Holder of this
Warrant to the end that the provisions set forth herein will thereafter correspondingly be made applicable, as nearly as may
reasonably be, in relation to any Shares or securities or property to which the Holder may be entitled upon the exercise of such
Warrant thereafter;

() In any case in which this section requires that an adjustment become effective immediately after a record date for an event
referred to herein, the Corporation may defer, until the occurrence of such event, issuing to the Holder of any Warrant exercised
after such record date and before the occurrence of such event the kind and amount of Shares, other securities or property to
which he would be entitled upon such exercise by reason of the adjustment required by such event; provided that the Corporation
will deliver to such Holder an appropriate instrument evidencing such Holder’s right to receive the kind and amount of Shares,
other securities or property to which he or she would be entitled upon the occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment and
the right to receive any distributions made or declared in favour of holders of record of Shares as constituted from time to time on
and after such date as such Holder would, but for the provisions of this subparagraph (c), have received, or become entitled to
receive, on such exercise;




(d) The adjustments provided for in this Section 8 are cumulative and will apply to successive subdivisions, redivisions, reductions,
combinations, consolidations, distributions, issues or other events resulting in any adjustment under the provisions of this
paragraph; provided that notwithstanding any other provision of this paragraph, (i) no adjustment of the Share Exercise Price or
number of Shares, as then constituted, purchasable will be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or decrease
of at least 5% in the Share Exercise Price then in effect or the number of Shares, as then constituted, purchasable, and (ii) any
adjustments which by reason of this subparagraph (d) are not required to be made will be carried forward and taken into account
in any subsequent adjustment;

(e) In the event of any question arising with respect to the adjustments provided in this paragraph, such question will be conclusively
determined by the auditors of the Corporation. Such auditors will have access to all necessary records of the Corporation and
such determination will be binding upon the Corporation and the Holder;

(f) As a condition precedent to the taking of any action which would require an adjustment in any of the subscription rights pursuant
to this Warrant, including the number of Shares which are to be received upon the exercise thereof, the Corporation will take any
action which may, in the opinion of counsel, be necessary in order that the Corporation may validly and legally issue as fully
paid and non-assessable all the Shares which the Holder of such Warrant is entitled to receive on the full exercise thereof in
accordance with the provisions hereof;

(g) No adjustment will be made in the acquisition rights attached to this Warrant, if the issue of Shares is being made pursuant to any
Board approved stock option or stock purchase plan in force from time to time for officers, employees or consultants of the
Corporation;

(h) No adjustment will be made pursuant to this paragraph if the Holder is entitled to participate in any event described in this
paragraph on the same terms, mutatis mutandis, as if the Holder had exercised this Warrant prior to, or on the effective date or
record date of, such event, subject to regulatory approval; and

(i) In case the Corporation will take any action affecting the Shares other than action described in this Section 8, which in the
opinion of the Board would materially affect the rights of the Holder, the Share Exercise Price and/or the number of Shares
which may be acquired upon exercise of a Warrant, an appropriate adjustment will be made by action of the Board in such
manner and at such time, in their sole discretion, as they may determine to be equitable in the circumstances. Failure of the
Board to make such an adjustment will be conclusive evidence that the Board has determined that it is equitable to make no
adjustment in the circumstances.




Immediately after the occurrence of any event which requires an adjustment pursuant to this Section 8, other than an adjustment pursuant to
Section 8(a), in the Share Exercise Price or in any of the subscription rights pursuant to this Warrant, including the number of Shares, as then
constituted, which are to be received upon the exercise thereof, the Corporation will forthwith deliver to the Holder a certificate of the
Corporation specifying the particulars of such event and the required adjustment and the computation of such adjustment and give at least 10
Business Days notice to the Holder of this Warrant of the record date or effective date of such event, as the case may be, and such notice will
include particulars of such event and the required adjustment.

19. General Covenants of the Corporation

(a) The Corporation covenants and agrees that it is duly authorized to enter into and perform its obligations under this Warrant.

(b) The Corporation will at all times reserve and keep available free from preemptive rights, out of the aggregate of its authorized
unissued common shares, for the purpose of enabling it to satisfy any obligation to issue Shares upon exercise of this Warrant, the
full number of Shares deliverable upon the exercise or conversion thereof.

(c) The Corporation covenants that all Shares which may be issued on conversion of this Warrant, will upon issue be fully paid and
non-assessable.

(d) Subject to applicable laws, the Corporation will from time to time take all action which may be necessary to obtain and keep
effective any and all permits, consents and approvals of governmental agencies and authorities and will make all securities’ acts
filings under Canadian federal, state or provincial laws, which may be or become requisite in connection with the issuance and
exercise of this Warrant.

(e) The Corporation will give written notice of the issue of Shares pursuant to the exercise of this Warrant, in such detail as may be
required, to each exchange and to applicable securities commissions or similar regulatory authorities.

(f) Upon receipt of evidence satisfactory to the Corporation of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant, and (in the
case of loss, theft or destruction) of indemnification satisfactory to the Corporation, and upon surrender and cancellation of this
Warrant, if mutilated, the Corporation will promptly execute and deliver a new Warrant of like tenor and date.

(g) The Corporation covenants and agrees that all necessary corporate actions have been done and performed to create this Warrant
and to make this Warrant a legal, valid and binding obligations of the Corporation. The Corporation will do, execute,
acknowledge and deliver or cause to be done, executed, acknowledged and delivered, all other acts, deeds and assurances in law
as may be reasonably required for the better accomplishing and effecting of the intentions and provisions of this Warrant.




(h) Subject to the express provisions hereof, the Corporation will carry on and conduct and will cause to be carried on and conducted
its business in a proper and efficient manner and will cause to be kept proper books of account in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practice; and, subject to the express provisions hereof, it will do or cause to be done, all things necessary to
preserve and keep in full force and effect its corporate existence, provided, however, that nothing herein contained will prevent
the amalgamation, consolidation, merger, sale, winding up or liquidation of the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation
or the abandonment of any rights and franchises of the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation if, in the opinion of the
Board or officers of the Corporation, it would be advisable and in the best interests of the Corporation or of such subsidiary of the
Corporation to do so.

(i) The Corporation will, issue share certificates representing the number of Shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant as
evidenced by a duly executed Subscription Form, and subject to adjustment as set forth herein within three days of receipt of the
Subscription Form by the Corporation.

20. Miscellaneous

(a) The Corporation will not, by amendment of its articles or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger,
dissolution, issue or sale of securities or any other action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the
terms of this Warrant, but will at all times in good faith assist in carrying out of all such terms and in the taking of all such action
as may be necessary or appropriate in order to protect the rights of the Holder under this Warrant.

(b) The Holder will be bound by the terms of the meetings of the Holders that may be called by the Corporation as set out in
Schedule B.

(¢) Neither this Warrant nor any term hereof may be waived, discharged or terminated other than by an instrument in writing signed
by the Corporation and by the Holder hereof.

(d) This Warrant will be governed by the laws in force in the Province of Ontario.

(e) Time will be of the essence.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Corporation has this certificate to be signed by the signature of its duly authorized officer this 27" day of
November, 2009.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Per:

Name: Aiping Young
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Authorized Signing Officer




SCHEDULE A

SUBSCRIPTION FORM
TO: LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.
2 Meridian Road
Toronto ON
MOW 477
The undersigned holder of the attached warrant (the “Warrant”) hereby irrevocably elects to subscribefor ~~ Shares of

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Corporation™) at an aggregate subscription price of $0.08, subject to adjustment, evidenced by and on the terms
specified in this Warrant and encloses herewith a certified cheque or money order payable to the Corporation.
In connection with this subscription, the undersigned must mark one of Box A, Box B or Box C:

Box A The undersigned hereby certifies that (i) it did not acquire the Warrant in the United States (as that term is
defined in Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities
IAct")or at a time when the undersigned was a "U.S. Person" (as that term is defined in the U.S. Securities
lAct) or acting for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States, (ii) it is not in the
[United States or a U.S. Person, (iii) the Warrant is not being exercised for the account or benefit of a U.S.
Person or a person in the United States, and (iv) this Subscription Form was not executed or delivered in the
[United States.

Box B The undersigned hereby certifies that it is the original purchaser from the Corporation of the Units pursuant
to which the Warrant was issued and at the time of such acquisition was a U.S. Person or was in the United
States (or was acting for the account or benefit of a U.S. Person or a person in the United States), and
confirms, as of the date of hereof, each of the representations, warranties and agreements made by it in
connection with its acquisition of the Units, including its status as an " accredited investor" within the
meaning of Rule 501(a) under the U.S. Securities Act, as though such representations, warranties and
agreements were made on the date hereof and in respect of the acquisition of the Shares upon the exercise of
the Warrant.

Box C IAn exemption from registration under the U.S. Securities Act and all applicable state securities law is
available for the issuance of Shares pursuant to this subscription, and attached hereto is an opinion of
counsel or other evidence to such effect, it being understood that any opinion of counsel or other evidence
tendered in connection with the exercise of this Warrant must be in form and substance satisfactory to the
Corporation.

Note: Certificates representing Shares will not be registered or delivered to an address in the United States unless Box B or C is marked. If Box
B or C is marked, the certificates representing the Shares will bear a legend restricting transfers unless registered under the U.S. Securities Act
and applicable state securities laws or an exemption from such registration requirements is available.




The undersigned hereby directs that the said Shares be registered in the name of the Holder as follows:

Name & Address Number of Shares

(Please print full name in which share certificates are to be issued.)
DATED this day of ,2009.

Name of Warrant Holder (to be the same as appears on the face of the Warrant)

per:

Authorized Signing Officer




SCHEDULE B
TERMS OF HOLDER MEETINGS

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Warrant Certificate to which the Schedule B is an
attachment.

MEETINGS OF HOLDERS
1. Right to Convene Meetings

The Corporation may convene a meeting of the Holders. Every such meeting shall be held in the City of Toronto, Ontario or at such other place as
may be approved or determined by the Corporation.

2. Notice

At least 21 days' prior notice of any meeting of Holders shall be given to the Holders at the expense of the Corporation. Such notice shall state the
time and place of the meeting, the general nature of the business to be transacted and shall contain such information as is reasonably necessary to enable the
Holders to make a reasoned decision on the matter, but it shall not be necessary for any such notice to set out the terms of any resolution to be proposed or
any of the provisions of this Schedule B. The notice convening any such meeting may be signed by an appropriate officer of the Corporation.

3. Chairman

The Corporation may nominate in writing an individual to be chairman of the meeting and if no individual is so nominated, or if the individual so
nominated is not present within 15 minutes after the time fixed for the holding of the meeting, the Holders present in person or by proxy shall appoint an
individual present to be chairman of the meeting. The chairman of the meeting need not be a Holder.

4. Quorum

Subject to the provisions of Section 11, at any meeting of the Holders a quorum shall consist of two Holders present in person or represented by
proxy and representing at least 10% of the aggregate number of Warrants then outstanding. If a quorum of the Holders shall not be present within one-half
hour from the time fixed for holding any meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned to the same day in the next week (unless such day is not a Business Day
in which case it shall be adjourned to the next following Business Day) at the same time and place to the extent possible and, subject to the provisions of
Section 11, no notice of the adjournment need be given. Any business may be brought before or dealt with at an adjourned meeting which might have been
dealt with at the original meeting in accordance with the notice calling the same. At the adjourned meeting the Holders present in person or represented by
proxy shall form a quorum and may transact the business for which the meeting was originally convened, notwithstanding that they may not represent at
least 10% of the aggregate number of Warrants then unexercised and outstanding. No business shall be transacted at any meeting unless a quorum is
present at the commencement of business.




5. Power to Adjourn

The chairman of any meeting at which a quorum of the Holders is present may, with the consent of the meeting, adjourn any such meeting, and no
notice of such adjournment need be given except such notice, if any, as the meeting may prescribe.

6. Show of Hands

Every question submitted to a meeting shall be decided in the first place by a majority of the votes given on a show of hands except that votes on an
Extraordinary Resolution shall be given in the manner hereinafter provided. At any such meeting, unless a poll is duly demanded as herein provided, a
declaration by the chairman that a resolution has been carried or carried unanimously or by a particular majority or lost or not carried by a particular
majority shall be conclusive evidence of the fact.

7. Poll and Voting

On every Extraordinary Resolution, and when demanded by the chairman or by one or more of the Holders acting in person or by proxy, on any
other question submitted to a meeting and after a vote by show of hands, a poll shall be taken in such manner as the chairman shall direct. Questions other
than those required to be determined by Extraordinary Resolution shall be decided by a majority of the votes cast on the poll. On a show of hands, every
person who is present and entitled to vote, whether as a Holder or as proxy for one or more absent Holders, or both, shall have one vote. On a poll, each
Holder present in person or represented by a proxy duly appointed by instrument in writing shall be entitled to one vote in respect of each Common Share
which he (or the Holder appointing him as proxy) is entitled to acquire upon the exercise of the Warrant then held by him. A proxy need not be a
Holder. The chairman of any meeting shall be entitled, both on a show of hands and on a poll, to vote in respect of the Warrants, if any, held or represented
by him.




8. Regulations

(a) Subject to the provisions of this Warrant, the Corporation may from time to time make and from time to time vary such regulations as it
shall consider necessary or appropriate:

1) for the deposit of instruments appointing proxies at such place and time as the Corporation, may in the notice convening the meeting
direct;

(i1) for the deposit of instruments appointing proxies at some approved place other than the place at which the meeting is to be held and
enabling particulars of such instruments appointing proxies to be mailed, cabled or telecopied before the meeting to the Corporation at the place where the
same is to be held and for the voting of proxies so deposited as though the instruments themselves were produced at the meeting;

(1ii) for the form of the instrument of proxy and the manner in which the form of proxy may be executed; and

@iv) generally for the calling of meetings of Holders and the conduct of business thereat including setting a record date for Holders entitled to
receive notice of or to vote at such meeting.

(b) Any regulations so made shall be binding and effective and the votes given in accordance therewith shall be valid and shall be
counted. Save as such regulations may provide, the only persons who shall be recognized at any meeting as a Holder, or be entitled to vote or be present at
the meeting in respect thereof (subject to Section 9), shall be Holders or persons holding proxies of Holders.

9. Corporation and Counsel may be Represented

The Corporation, by its respective directors, officers, employees and agents, and the counsel for the Corporation and the Holders may attend any
meeting of the Holders and speak thereat but shall have no vote as such unless in their capacities as Holders.

10. Powers Exercisable by Extraordinary Resolution
The Holders at a meeting shall have the power, exercisable from time to time by Extraordinary Resolution:

(a) to enforce any of the covenants on the part of the Corporation contained in the Warrants or to enforce any of the rights of the Holders in
any manner specified in such Extraordinary Resolution or to refrain from enforcing any such covenant or right;

(b) to waive, authorize and direct the Corporation to waive any default on the part of the Corporation in complying with any provisions of the
Warrants either unconditionally or upon any conditions specified in such Extraordinary Resolution;

(o) to restrain any Holder from taking or instituting any suit, action or proceeding against the Corporation for the enforcement of any of the
covenants on the part of the Corporation contained in the Warrants or to enforce any of the rights of the Holders; and




(d) to direct any Holder who, as such, has brought any suit, action or proceeding to stay or discontinue or otherwise deal with any such suit,
action or proceeding, upon payment of the costs, charges and expenses reasonably and properly incurred by such Holder in connection therewith.

11. Meaning of Extraordinary Resolution
(a) The expression “Extraordinary Resolution” when used in this Schedule B means, subject as hereinafter in this Section 11 and in Section

14 provided, a resolution proposed by the Corporation at a meeting of Holders duly convened for that purpose and held in accordance with the provisions of
this Schedule B at which there are Holders present in person or represented by proxy representing at least 10% of the aggregate number of all the then
outstanding Warrants and passed by the affirmative votes of Holders representing not less than 66 2/3% of the aggregate number of Common Shares which
may be acquired upon the exercise of all the then outstanding Warrants represented at the meeting and voted on the poll upon such resolution.

(b) If, at any meeting called for the purpose of passing an Extraordinary Resolution, Holders representing at least 10% of the aggregate
number of Common Shares which may be acquired upon the exercise of all the then outstanding Warrants are not present in person or by proxy within one-
half hour after the time appointed for the meeting, then the meeting shall stand adjourned to such day, being not less than six or more than 10 Business
Days later, and to such place and time as may be appointed by the chairman. Not less than three Business Days' prior notice shall be given of the time and
place of such adjourned meeting in the manner provided in subsections 11(d) and 11(e). Such notice shall state that at the adjourned meeting the Holders
present in person or represented by proxy shall form a quorum but it shall not be necessary to set forth the purposes for which the meeting was originally
called or any other particulars. At the adjourned meeting, the Holders present in person or represented by proxy shall form a quorum and may transact the
business for which the meeting was originally convened and a resolution proposed at such adjourned meeting and passed by the requisite vote as provided
in subsection 11(a) shall be an Extraordinary Resolution within the meaning of this Warrant notwithstanding that Holders representing at least 10% of all
the Common Shares which may be acquired upon the exercise of all of the then outstanding Warrants are not present in person or represented by proxy at
such adjourned meeting.

(o) Votes on an Extraordinary Resolution shall always be given on a poll and no demand for a poll on an Extraordinary Resolution shall be
necessary.
(d) Any notice to the Holders under the provisions of this Warrant shall be deemed to be validly given if the notice is sent by prepaid mail or

delivered by hand to the holders at their addresses and telecopier numbers appearing in the register of Holders. Any notice so delivered shall be deemed to
have been received on the date of delivery if that date is a Business Day or the Business Day following the date of delivery if such date is not a Business
Day. Accidental error or omission in giving notice or accidental failure to give notice to any Holder shall not invalidate any action or proceeding founded
thereon.

(e) If by reason of any interruption of mail service, actual or threatened, any notice to be given to the Holder would reasonably be unlikely to reach
its destination in the ordinary course of mail, such notice shall be valid and effective only if delivered to an officer of the party to which it is addressed or if
sent to such party, at the appropriate address, by facsimile transmission or other means of prepaid transmitted or recorded communication.

12. Powers Cumulative

It is hereby declared and agreed that any one or more of the powers or any combination of the powers in this Warrant stated to be exercisable by the
Holders by Extraordinary Resolution or otherwise may be exercised from time to time and the exercise of any one or more of such powers or any
combination of powers from time to time shall not be deemed to exhaust the right of the Holders to exercise such powers or combination of powers then or
thereafter from time to time.




13. Minutes

Minutes of all resolutions and proceedings at every meeting of Holders shall be made and duly entered in books to be from time to time provided
for that purpose by the Corporation, and any such minutes as aforesaid, if signed by the chairman of the meeting at which such resolutions were passed or
proceedings held, or by the chairman of the next succeeding meeting of the Holders, shall be prima facie evidence of the matters therein stated and, until
the contrary is proved, every such meeting in respect of the proceedings of which minutes shall have been made shall be deemed to have been duly
convened and held, and all resolutions passed thereat or proceedings taken shall be deemed to have been duly passed and taken.

14. Instruments in Writing

All actions which may be taken and all powers that may be exercised by the Holders at a meeting held as provided in this Schedule B also may be
taken and exercised by Holders representing at least 66 2/3% of the aggregate number of Common Shares issuable upon the exercise of all the then
outstanding Warrants by an instrument in writing signed in one or more counterparts by such Holders in person or by attorney duly appointed in writing,
and the expression “Extraordinary Resolution” when used in this Warrant shall include an instrument so signed.

15. Binding Effect of Resolutions

Every resolution and every Extraordinary Resolution passed in accordance with the provisions of this Schedule B at a meeting of Holders shall be
binding upon all the Holders, whether present at or absent from such meeting, and every instrument in writing signed by Holders in accordance with
Section 14 shall be binding upon all the Holders, whether signatories thereto or not, and each and every Holder shall be bound to give effect accordingly to
every such resolution and instrument in writing. In the case of an instrument in writing, the Corporation shall give notice of the effect of the instrument in
writing to all Holders as is reasonably practicable.

16. Holdings by the Corporation Disregarded

In determining whether Holders are present at a meeting of Holders for the purpose of determining a quorum or have concurred in any consent,
waiver, Extraordinary Resolution or other action under this Warrant, Warrants owned legally or beneficially by the Corporation or any associate, affiliate
or insider (as those terms are defined in the Securities Act (Ontario) of the Corporation shall be disregarded.



EXHIBIT 2.24
PROMISSORY NOTE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Debtor”) hereby promises to pay to or to the order of Herbert Abramson (the ‘Lender”) the principal amount of
$1,000,000 (the “Principal Amount”) in lawful money of Canada, with interest thereon at the rate of 10% per annum. The outstanding Principal Amount, together with any
accrued and unpaid interest thereon, will be payable by the Debtor to the Lender upon the business day which is the day before the six month anniversary of the date of this
Promissory Note.

This Promissory Note shall enure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Lender and any of his respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal
representatives.

All payments hereunder will be made without days of grace, presentment, protest, notice of dishonour or any other notice whatsoever, all of which are hereby expressly
waived by the maker and each endorser hereof.

The Debtor hereby acknowledges that the Lender may declare the Principal Amount outstanding under this Promissory Note to be forthwith due and payable, whereupon the
same shall become and be forthwith due and payable without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Debtor,
upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) the Debtor fails to pay any or all interest payable when due;

(b) the Debtor ceases or threatens to cease to carry on the business currently being carried on by it or a substantial portion thereof or makes or agrees to make an
assignment, disposition or conveyance, whether by way of sale or otherwise, of its assets in bulk;

(c) the Debtor is an insolvent person within the meaning of the Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada) or commits or threatens to commit any act of
bankruptcy; or

(d) the commencement of any proceeding or the taking of any step by or against the Debtor for the dissolution, liquidation or winding-up of the Debtor or for
any relief under the laws of any jurisdiction relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, compromise or winding-up, or for the
appointment of one or more of a trustee, receiver, receiver and manager, custodian, liquidator or any other person with similar powers with respect to the
Debtor.

The Principal Amount hereof, together with interest accrued thereon, may at any time be repaid in full by the Debtor without bonus or penalty and with prior written notice to the
Lender.

Neither the extension of time for making any payment which is due and payable under this Promissory Note at any time or times, nor the failure, delay, or omission of
the Lender to exercise or enforce any of its rights or remedies under this Promissory Note, will constitute a waiver by the Lender of its right to enforce any such rights and
remedies subsequently. The single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy will not preclude the Lender’s further exercise of such right or remedy or any other right or
remedy.




This Promissory Note will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable therein.

DATED as of the 6th day of October, 2009.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Per:

Per:

Acknowledged and agreed:

Name: Herbert Abramson



EXHIBIT 2.32

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

1. Nuchem Pharmaceuticals Inc.



EXHIBIT 2.33
Lorus Therapeutics Inc.
and its subsidiaries and affiliates
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

INTRODUCTION

It is our policy that our employees, officers, directors, consultants and agents are held to the highest standards of honest and ethical conduct when acting on our behalf. In this
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”), all references to “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company” and similar references refer to Lorus Therapeutics Inc. and its affiliates and

subsidiaries.

“At Lorus we are dedicated to the highest standards of ethical behaviour. These standards guide us in all aspects of our business culture whether it be with our employees, our
shareholders, our business partners or cancer patients everywhere.”
- Dr. Aiping Young, President and Chief Executive Officer of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.

The Code is intended to promote, among other things:

*  honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and Company interests;

e full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in continuous disclosure reports and documents filed with or submitted to securities regulators and other public
communications;

*  compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations;

*  prompt internal reporting of violations of the Code to the appropriate person identified in the Code; and

*  accountability for adherence to the Code.

The Code is intended to provide general guidance as to ethical behaviour when dealing with other people - - from employees, officers and directors to customers, suppliers,
government authorities and the public. The Code is available at a dedicated page on the Company’s website (www.lorusthera.com) and on SEDAR (www.sedar.com). All of our
directors, officers, employees, agents and consultants (the “Representatives”) are expected to adhere to the principles of the Code in their dealings with us and on our behalf.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A “conflict of interest” occurs whenever your private interests interfere in any way (or even appear to interfere) with the interests of the Company and your employment duties and
responsibilities.

You must avoid any investment, interest, association or other relationship that interferes, might interfere, or might be thought to interfere, with your independent exercise of
judgment in the Company’s best interest and otherwise with your professional obligations to the Company. Any material transaction or relationship that reasonably could be
expected to give rise to a conflict of interest must be disclosed as soon as possible to a member of the senior management team or if a member of the senior management team is
not available, to the Chair of the Audit Committee and if none of them is available, to your immediate supervisor. Contact information for the Chair of the Audit Committee can be
obtained on a confidential basis from the Office Manager or the Finance Department. Officers and directors should make such disclosure to the Chair of the Audit Committee.
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There are many situations that could give rise to a conflict of interest. The most common include but are not limited to:

* accepting gifts with a value exceeding $200 or other favours or “kickbacks” from suppliers;

* employment by another company with which the Company transacts business or which is potentially a competitor of the Company;

* ownership of a significant part of another company or business with which the Company transacts business;

* close or family relationships with outside suppliers - the closeness of the relationship might lead an employee to inadvertently compromise the Company’s
interests. Several factors to consider include: the relationship between us and the other company; the nature of one’s responsibilities as a Company employee, and
those of the person close to the employee; and the access each person has to his or her respective employer’s confidential information;

*  passing confidential information to competitors - employees must treat all information from its customers, suppliers, or other third parties with the same degree of care
as they are required to treat the Company’ own information;

* loans by the Company to directors and executive officers;

*  investment activity using insider information; and

*  providing assistance to an organization that markets products and services in competition with the Company’s own products or services Such organizations include
suppliers, competitors, customers, and distributors.

Conflicts of interest may not always be readily apparent, so if you are in doubt as to whether undertaking a particular course of action may lead to a conflict of interest or if you
become aware of a conflict or potential conflict, you should consult with your immediate supervisor or a member of senior management of the Company.

bribes

All dealings between directors, officers, employees, agents and consultants and public officials are to be conducted in a manner that will not compromise the integrity or the
reputation of any public official or of the Company. The appearance of impropriety in dealing with public officials, whether domestic or foreign, is improper and
unacceptable. Any participation, whether directly or indirectly, in any bribes, kickbacks, illegal gratuities, indirect contributions or similar payments is expressly forbidden,
whether or not they might further the interests of the Company. A high standard of integrity is of the utmost importance to the Company.

Fair Dealing

All employees, officers and directors of Lorus should endeavour to deal fairly, on a timely basis, with clients, competitors, suppliers and service providers. No employee, officer or
director may take advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged information, misrepresentation of material facts or other unfair dealing practice.

Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets and Opportunities
Our property is of significant value to our competitiveness and success as a business. Company assets are for Company business and for Company use. You must not obtain, use

or divert our property for personal use or benefit, materially alter or destroy our property or remove it without prior management approval. Theft, carelessness and waste have a
direct impact on the Company’s profitability. All of our assets should be used for legitimate business purposes.




The Company is entitled to determine who should have access to its proprietary information and for what purpose. Representatives must not use or disclose confidential
information except as authorized by the Company and must implement and/or follow safeguards to prevent loss of such information.

Commercial and other corporate opportunities of the Company are an important asset of the Company and must be protected by our Representatives. Any diversion of corporate
opportunities through the use of information learned in one’s capacity as a Representative of the Company will not be tolerated and should be reported to a senior officer of the
Company and if such activity involves a senior officer of the Company, should be reported directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee or ConfidenceLine.

Representatives will not use their employment status to obtain personal gain from those doing or seeking to do business with the Company. If improper financial benefit is gained
by a Representative through a spouse, child or relative sharing the same residence as the employee, as a result of his or her employment, or by the use or misuse of confidential
information, the Representative must account for any benefit received. Representatives must act in such a manner that their conduct will bear the closest scrutiny should
circumstances demand that it be examined.

Accounting and Records

All of the Company’s books, records, accounts and financial statements must be maintained in reasonable detail and must reflect accurately and fairly, our operations and financial
position, underlying transactions and dispositions of assets. These books, records, underlying transactions and statements must conform to applicable legal requirements, to our
system of internal controls and to generally accepted accounting principles.

You must ensure the accuracy and integrity of our corporate records and that all of our assets and liabilities are properly recorded on the Company’s books. In maintaining
accurate books and records, you should:

*  cooperate with the Finance Department of the Company and external auditors;

*  report transactions that do not seem to serve a legitimate purpose;

*  report any attempts by management to override existing internal controls where so doing would have the potential to cause a material misstatement in the financial
statements or would result in a missappropration of Company assets;

*  volunteer knowledge of any untruthful or inaccurate statements or records, whether intentionally or unintentionally made;

*  make sure that contracts to which the Company is a party are in writing;

* make sure that side letters or comfort letters which are not mentioned in the main document and are not exhibits, appendices or attachments to the main document are
executed only after being approved by a member of senior management and

« make sure that our records are always retained or destroyed according to our document retention policies.

Public Company Reporting

As a public company, it is critical that our filings with securities regulatory authorities be accurate and timely.

You may not, directly or indirectly, make or cause to be made a materially false or misleading statement, or omit to state, or cause another person to omit to state, any material fact
necessary in order to make statements made not misleading, in light of the circumstances in which such statements were made, to the Company’s independent auditors, the Audit
Committee, the Board of Directors or to a member of the Company’s Finance Department, including without limitation in connection with:

1. any audit or examination of the financial statements of the Company; or
2. the preparation or filing of any document or report required to be filed with any regulator.
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You may not, directly or indirectly take any action to fraudulently influence, coerce, manipulate, or mislead any independent public or certified public accountant engaged in the
performance of an audit or review of the financial statements of the Company that are required to be filed with regulators, if you knew or were unreasonable in not knowing that
such action could, if successful, result in rendering such financial statements materially misleading.

Our policy is to comply with all applicable financial reporting and accounting regulations applicable to us. If you have concerns or complaints regarding questionable accounting or
audit matters of the Company, then you should submit those concerns or complaints (anonymously, confidentially or otherwise) to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
which will, subject to its duties arising under applicable law, regulations and legal proceedings treat such submissions confidentially. Such submissions may be directed to the
attention of the Audit Committee, or any director who is a member of the Audit Committee (or ConfidenceLine).

compliance with laws

You are expected to comply with both the letter and spirit of all applicable laws and governmental rules and regulations. You should be aware of and, to the extent you are a
member of senior management, are responsible for establishing and maintaining procedures to:

» understand applicable laws and governmental rules and regulations;

*  monitor compliance with applicable laws and governmental rules and regulations; and

» identify any possible violations of applicable laws and governmental rules and regulations and report to a member of the senior management team and correct in a
timely and effective manner any violations of applicable laws or governmental rules and regulations.

Amendments, Modifications and Waivers of the Code

The Code may be amended, modified or waived by our Board of Directors and waivers may also be granted by the Corporate Governance Committee of the Board, subject to the
disclosure and other provisions of applicable securities laws, regulations and policies.




Reporting any Illegal or Unethical Behaviour and Violations of The Code: Whistle Blower Policy

Illegal or unethical behaviour and any violation of the Code and its requirements are taken seriously by us. If you are concerned that illegal or unethical behaviour or violations of
the Code may be taking place, you should contact, orally or in writing, an officer of the Company or your immediate supervisor. Concerns or complaints regarding questionable
accounting or audit matters should be submitted to the Audit Committee. The report should include all evidence of activity by a department or Representative of the Company that
may constitute any of the following:

*  corporate fraud;

* unethical business conduct;

» override of internal controls by management that potentially would result in a material misstatement of financial information or would result in a missappropration of
Company assets;

* aviolation of federal, provincial or municipal law; or

»  substantial and specific danger to the health and safety of any individual.

The party receiving your report will record receiving the report and document how the situation was handled.

In instances where you have not received a satisfactory response from an officer or your immediate supervisor, or if you are uncomfortable addressing your concerns to these
individuals, we have engaged ConfidenceLine, an independent third party supplier, to provide a confidential and anonymous communication channel for reporting concerns about
possible violations of the Code as well as auditing matters, internal accounting controls, financial and accounting irregularities or fraud. The ConfidenceLine Call Centre is
available 24 hours a day, seven days a week and provides assistance in more than 150 languages. All inquiries will be handled promptly and discreetly.

To make a report you may call 1-800-661-9675 within Canada or the United States.

If you bring forward a complaint, you have the right to remain anonymous and your confidentiality will be protected, except as necessary to conduct the investigation and take any
remedial action, and subject to and in accordance with applicable law, regulation or legal proceedings. We will not permit retaliation, harassment, discharge, or other types of
discrimination, including but not limited to, compensation or terms and conditions of employment of any kind by or on behalf of the Company or you, in respect of reports made in
good faith or complaints of violations of this Code or other illegal or unethical conduct. In addition, no individual may be adversely affected if he or she refuses to carry out a
directive which constitutes fraud or violation of any of the noted incidents. Nevertheless, if you participated in the alleged violation or alleged illegal or unethical behaviour,
disciplinary action may be necessary. Disciplinary action up to and including dismissal will be taken against anyone who retaliates, directly or indirectly, or encourages others to
do so, against anyone who reports a violation of the Code or illegal or unethical behaviour.

All Representatives have a duty to cooperate in an investigation. Should a Representative fail to cooperate or provides false information in an investigation, the Company will take
effective remedial action commensurate with the severity of the offense. The action may include disciplinary measures up to and including termination of employment.
To protect our good name, we may discipline and/or terminate our relationship or affiliation with any Representative who breaches the Code, its related policies or engages in

illegal or unethical behaviour. In the case of members of the board of directors, we may require that they resign from their position.
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Dissemination

A member of the senior management team will send out an e-mail to all Representatives on an annual basis, reminding them of their obligations under the Code.

Where to Seek Clarification

Conflict of INterest........cooevvervvererieenereieeniene Chief Executive Officer

Employee ISSUES......ccooeveirinieinineieceeniee, Your immediate Supervisor
Chief Executive Officer

Legal Matters Director of Finance

Media INQUITIES.....coveuereeeeeeiieeeieiecreeerene Chief Executive Officer

Illegal Unethical Behaviour or Your supervisor

Suspected Breach of this Code..........ccocevveueuene Member of senior management
Chairman of the Audit Committee
ConfidenceLine



EXHIBIT 12.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Aiping H. Young, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s
auditors and the audit committee of the company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: November 30, 2009

[s/ Aiping H. Young
Aiping H. Young
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 12.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Elizabeth Williams, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Lorus Therapeutics Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The company’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

@

(b)

©

(d

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The company’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors
and the audit committee of the company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: November 30, 2009

/s/ Elizabeth Williams
Elizabeth Williams
Director of Finance and Acting Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the period ended May 31, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Aiping H. Young, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: November 30, 2009

[s/ Aiping H. Young
Aiping H. Young
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 13.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 20-F for the period ended May 31, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Elizabeth Williams, Director of Finance and Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
§1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: November 30, 2009

[s/ Elizabeth Williams
Elizabeth Williams
Director of Finance and Acting Chief Financial Officer



